
 
1 

 

 
AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 
10:00 A.M. 

 
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS 

BOARD ROOM 
6075 KIMBALL AVENUE, BUILDING A 

 CHINO, CALIFORNIA 91708 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG 

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 885 499 122# 
 

PURSUANT TO AB361 AND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-9-2, ADOPTED BY THE IEUA BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS ON SEPTEMBER 7, 2022, IEUA BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS WILL CONTINUE 

TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH TELECONFERENCE IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC 
HEALTH AND PREVENT THE SPREAD OF COVID-19.  

 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing the number 
provided above.   Comments may also be submitted by email to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org prior to the completion of the Public Comment section of the 

meeting. Comments will be distributed to the Board of Directors. 
 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING  
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager prior to the public comment section or request to address the 
Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to three minutes 
per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda 
require two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


 
2 

NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 110 (Finance & Admin) 

Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Hold a Public Hearing to receive comments prior to the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 110, establishing and setting forth the policies 
governing Agency authority dollar limits for procurement and 
procurement-related activities; and 
 

2. After closing the Public Hearing, adopt Ordinance No. 110. 
 
 

2. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

 
NOTICE: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by the Board by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Board votes unless any Board members, 
staff or the public requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for 
separate action. 
 

 

A. MINUTES 
Approve minutes of the August 17, 2022 Board Meeting. 
 

B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-9-3, MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES 
FOR CONDUCTING MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE  

 Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-9-3, making 
certain findings and determinations regarding special rules for conducting 
meetings through teleconference.  

 
C. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin) 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the total disbursements for the 
month of July 2022, in the amount of $39,583,777.01.  

 

 

D. RATIFY CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR STATE LEGISLATIVE 
SERVICES (Community & Leg) 
Staff recommends that the Board ratify the Contract Amendment for 
Contract No. 4600002123 to West Coast Advisors to provide State 
Legislative Services in the amount of $114,000 through June 30, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
3 

 
 

E. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT BUDGET TRANSFER (Eng/Ops/WR) 

(Finance & Admin) 

Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1. Approve a FY 2022/23 transfer in the amount of $60,000 from the 

RP-5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No. EN19001 capital budget, to 
the RP-5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No. EN19001 operating 
budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; 
 
 

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 transfer in the amount of $60,000 from the 
RP-5 Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006 capital budget, to RP-5 
Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006 operating budget in the 
Regional Capital (RC) Fund; and 
 

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget transfer. 
 
F. ARCHITECTURAL MASTER SERVICE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

(Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1. Approve a contract amendment for the Architectural Master Service 

Contract with Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. in the amount of 
$725,000 increasing the contract from $700,000 to $1,425,000          
(204% increase); and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
G. COLLECTION SYSTEM CONDITION ASSESSMENT AND 

OPTIMIZATION PROJECT FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 PROJECT BUDGET 
AUGMENTATION (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the Regional 
System Asset Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of 
$50,237, from $329,878 to $380,115 in the Regional Operations and 
Maintenance (10800) Fund; 
 

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the NRW 
Manhole and Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of 
$393,398, from $70,000 to $463,398 in the Non-Reclaimable 
Wastewater (10500) Fund; and 
 

3. Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
4 

 
H. RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE PROJECT BUDGET 

AUGMENTATION, AGREEMENT AMENDMENT, AND CONSTRUCTION 
CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL (Eng/Ops/WR) (Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 

1. Approve the total project budget augmentation for RW15003.00 in 
Fiscal Year 2022/23 from $24,004,424 to $27,260,512; 
 

2. Approve the second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing 
Agreement, Task Order No. 9, for the project under RW15003.06; 

 
3. Approve the construction change order with MNR Construction, Inc. 

for Project No. RW15003.06 for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$3,161,995 increasing the contract from $15,669,068.27 to 
$18,831.063.27 (20% increase); and 

 
 

4. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget augmentation, 
Agreement amendment, and change order subject to non-substantive 
changes. 
 

I. FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 CARRY FORWARD BUDGET AMENDMENT 
(Finance & Admin) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 

 

1. Approve the carry forward of open encumbrances and non-
encumbered commitments related to budgets from FY 2021/22 to    
FY 2022/23; and 
 

2. Amend the FY 2022/23 budget in the amount of $5,408,121 for 
operations and maintenance expenses, $7,795,788 for non-capital 
projects, and $7,617,085 for capital projects. 

 
 

3. ACTION ITEM 
 
A. CHINO BASIN PROGRAM PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT (Eng/Ops/WR) 
Staff recommends that the Board: 
 
1. Approve a contract amendment for professional consulting services 

to Brown and Caldwell in the amount of $2,855,000, increasing the 
contract from $3,978,506 to a not-to-exceed amount of $6,833,506; 
and 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, 
subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
5 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. WATER STORAGE INVESTMENT PROGRAM/CHINO BASIN 
PROGRAM UPDATE (ORAL) 
 

B. GRANTS SEMI-ANNUAL UPDATE (POWERPOINT) 
 
C. CALIFORNIA AIR RESOURCES BOARD PROPOSED ADVANCED 

CLEAN FLEET REGULATION (POWERPOINT) 
 
D. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT 

UPDATES (POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
E. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE OPERATIONAL AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

AUDIT REPORT – REVIEW OF PROCURE TO PAY PROCESSES FOR 
HOME DEPOT CREDIT CARDS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 

 
F. STATUS UPDATE – REVIEW OF PROCURE TO PAY PROCESSES 

FOR MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 
 
G. PROGRESS UPDATE FOR ALL PROCURE TO PAY AUDIT 

RECOMMENDATIONS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 
 
H. WAREHOUSE ANNUAL PHYSICAL INVENTORY AND MONTHLY 

CYCLE COUNTS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 
 
I. WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS AUDIT – FOLLOW-UP 

REVIEW (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) (Audit) 
 
J. INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT 

FOR SEPTEMBER 2022 (WRITTEN) (Audit) 
 
K. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT FROM CARPI AND CLAY 

(WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 
 

L. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST 
ADVISORS (WRITTEN) (Community & Leg) 

 
M. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (WRITTEN) (Community 

& Leg) 

 
N. RECYCLED WATER GROUNDWATER RECHARGE UPDATE 

(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
O. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – SEPTEMBER 2022 

(POWERPOINT) (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
P. FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 FOURTH QUARTER BUDGET VARIANCE, 

PERFORMANCE UPDATES, AND BUDGET TRANSFERS (Finance & 

Admin) 
 



6 

Q. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/
POWERPOINT) (Finance & Admin)

5. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT
September 20, 2022 SAWPA Commission meeting

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
REPORT (WRITTEN)
September 13, 2022 MWD Board meeting

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT
(WRITTEN)
September 1, 2022 Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee
meeting

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT (WRITTEN)
August 25, 2022 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT (WRITTEN)
September 1, 2022 Special CDA Board meeting

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT
The next IERCA Board meeting is scheduled for November 7, 2022.

6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (WRITTEN)

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS

A. CONFERENCE REPORTS

This is the time and place for the Members of the Board to report on prescheduled Committee/District 
Representative Assignment meetings, which were held since the last regular Board meeting, and/or any 
other items of interest. 

9. CLOSED SESSION

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Two Cases 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54957 AND 54957.6
– PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

1. Manager of Internal Audit
2. General Manager



 
7 

ADJOURN 
 

Declaration of Posting 

 
I, Denise Garzaro, CMC, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water 
District, hereby certify that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the 
Agency’s main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at 
least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at (909) 993-1736 or 
dgarzaro@ieua.org, 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


            

PUBLIC HEARING   
          

1A 



General Manager

Budget Impact N N



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

22213

Attachment 2 - Ordinance No. 110 Redline Version
Attachment 3 - Presentation



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 1 of 18 

   

ORDINANCE NO. 110 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* (AGENCY), ESTABLISHING AND 
SETTING FORTH THE POLICIES GOVERNING AGENCY AUTHORITY 
AND DOLLAR LIMITS FOR BEST VALUE PROCUREMENTS AND 
PROCUREMENT-RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY* AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
SECTION 1 - PROCUREMENT DEFINITION AND INSTRUMENTS 
SECTION 2 - EXPENDITURE APPROVALS AND REQUIREMENTS 
SECTION 3 - SOLICITATIONS AND TERM LIMITS 
SECTION 4 - TRADES AND EXCHANGES 
SECTION 5 - REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
SECTION 6 - DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
SECTION 7 - POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
SECTION 8 - PROHIBITION OF UNAUTHORIZED PROCUREMENT AND 

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCUREMENT FUNDING 
SECTION 9 - DEPARTMENT COOPERATION 
SECTION 10 - EXCEPTION TO THIS ORDINANCE 
SECTION 11 - VOIDABLE 
SECTION 12 - SEVERABILITY 
SECTION 13 - REPEAL 
SECTION 14 - EFFECTIVE DATE AND EXECUTION 

 

 
SECTION 1:  PROCUREMENT DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUMENTS 
 
1. Definitions:  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance: 

 
A. “Appropriated Funding” shall mean funding which has been authorized by 

the Board as part of the adopted budget, or as a respective amendment 
thereto. 

 
B. “Authority to Approve” shall mean authority to designate appropriated 

funding for a specific procurement. 
 

C. “Authority to Commit” shall mean authority to effect and bind a procurement 
commitment, including contractual document execution, for a specific 
designated procurement. 
 

D. “Best Value Procurements” for procurements other than public works, shall 
mean an award based on the best overall value to the Agency  including, 
but not limited to: acquisition cost; lifetime cost of ownership; ability, 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 2 of 18 

   

capability, and skills (e.g., experience, value-added services, etc.) of 
supplier/contractor; ability of supplier/contractor to meet the project 
schedule; character, integrity, reputation and judgment of 
supplier/contractor (e.g., from reference checks, site visits, and background 
checks); quality of previous work with Agency or other public entities; 
warranty or other documented considerations of value (e.g., discounted 
spare parts) offered to the Agency. 

 
E. “Board” shall mean Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency. 
 
F. “Budgeted Procurements” shall mean capital projects and operations and 

maintenance items that have been specifically identified and included as 
part of the adopted budget, or as a respective amendment thereof, and 
authorized by the Board.  
 

G. “Change Order” and “Amendment” shall mean any respective modification 
to an existing procurement or respective contractual document. 

 
H. “Competition” shall mean any award whereby a solicitation has been 

directed to multiple sources and where at least one response is received. 
 
I. “Contingency” shall refer to an identified percentage of a project’s total 

funding as approved by the Board of Directors assigned to that specific 
project during the approval process.   

 
J. “Contracts and Procurement” (CAP) shall refer to the division (unit) charged 

with the responsibility and authority to manage all aspects of the solicitation, 
negotiation, award, acquisition, contract administration, and 
surplus/disposal processes for goods, services, property and minor 
construction (excludes major public works and emergency procurements 
awarded through and administered by the Engineering and Construction 
Management Unit).     
 

K. “Contractual Document” shall mean the document which binds Agency 
commitment of a procurement; such as a contract, agreement, lease, 
purchase order, change order, task order or any amendment thereto. 

 
L. “Cooperative Procurement” shall mean a procurement (i.e., combining of 

requirements) conducted on behalf of two or more public procurement units 
in-order to obtain the benefit of volume purchasing, economies of scale, 
and/or reduction in administrative expenses. 

 
M. “Delegate Authority” shall mean authority to assign authority, at specified 

limits, to respective peers or subordinate staff. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 3 of 18 

   

N. “Electronic Procurement” or “e-Procurement” shall mean electronic 
implementation of the procurement cycle.   

 
O. “Electronic Sourcing” or “e-Sourcing” shall mean an internet-based 

acquisition process that allows for electronically posting the requirement 
and electronic or hardcopy receipt of quotes, proposals, or bids in order to 
make a best-value acquisition. 

 
P. “Emergency Procurement” shall mean any procurement required for the 

prevention against imminent danger, or to mitigate the loss or impairment 
of: life, health, or safety of the public, Agency employees, suppliers, 
contractors; public or private property; prevention of high probabilities of 
violation and compliance with critical permits and regulatory requirements; 
or any other condition which cannot reasonably be foreseen and would have 
a significant effect on the public’s health/safety or that could have a 
significant adverse financial impact on the Agency.  

 
Q. “Formal Solicitation” shall mean the issuance of a written request for sealed 

bids, proposals, or quotations. 
 
R. “Informal Solicitation” shall mean the verbal or written request for a verbal 

or written bid, proposal, or quotation. 
 
S. “In the absence of …” shall mean a reasonable amount of time away from 

the office, exceeding 24 hours. 
 
T. “Master Contracts” shall mean competitively let contracts issued to one or 

more qualified suppliers/contractors where work shall be performed by task 
orders.  Task orders under the master contract do not have a Board-
approved expenditure limit, unless specifically required or otherwise 
approved by the Board of Directors.  Each contractor will have their own 
contract with the Agency with a combined or shared total budget. 

 
U. “Negotiated Procurement” shall mean a documented procurement whereby 

competitive practices may not be practical; due to a unique circumstance 
such as special pricing, limited time offer, complex contractual terms (e.g., 
power purchase agreements, energy, specialized technology) and 
discussions and bargaining are used to finalize the procurement. 

 
V. “Non-Fiscal” shall mean having no direct impact on appropriated budgets, 

or otherwise requiring financial commitment of the Agency. 
 

W. “Piggyback Procurement” shall mean utilizing another public agency’s 
contract or agreement to obtain more advantageous prices and terms than 
can be otherwise obtained on the open market.  

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 4 of 18 

   

X. “Pre-Qualification” shall mean the process (Request for Qualification – 
RFQ) conducted by the Engineering and Construction Management 
(E&CM) Unit to identify “prime contractors” that are capable and responsible 
to bid on public works projects. 

 
Y. “Procurement” shall mean the purchase or otherwise compensatory 

securing of materials, supplies, services, leases, equipment, real property, 
or public works services. 

 
Z. “Procurement Aggregate” shall mean the total of the initial procurement and 

all respective change orders or amendments. 
 
AA. “Professional Services” shall mean any specially trained and experienced 

individual, firm or corporation, providing services and advice in financial, 
economic, accounting, engineering, information services, technical, 
architectural, or other administrative/professional matters. 

 
AB. “Public Works” shall mean the erection, construction, alteration, repair, 

maintenance or improvement of any public structure, building, road, or other 
public improvement of any kind done under contract or paid in whole or in 
part out of public funds as specified in the California Public Contract Code;  

 
AC. “Reverse Auction” shall mean a competitive electronic solicitation process 

for equipment, materials, supplies, and services in which bidders compete 
against each other in real time in an open and interactive web environment. 

 
AD. “Single Source” shall mean a procurement action where there is a 

compelling reason for selection of a preferred brand or vendor: such as 
standardization; time/schedule constraints; technical expertise; follow-on 
work to an existing contract to be procured; etc. A comprehensive written 
justification shall be included in the request. 

 
AE.  “Sole Source” shall mean a procurement action where only one viable 

source exists.  This is usually due to legal restrictions of patent rights, a 
proprietary process, warranty issues, original equipment manufacturer, and 
copyrights. A comprehensive written justification shall be included in the 
request. 

 
AF. “Surplus Personal Property” shall mean items having no further use to the 

Agency; such as scrap, broken, obsolete, abandoned, or unusable 
materials or equipment. 

 
AG.  “Trades and Exchanges” shall mean authorized surplus items used for the 

acquisition of materials, supplies, services, leases, and/or equipment. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 5 of 18 

   

AH. “Unauthorized Procurements” shall mean work or procurement initiated by 
staff without the prior approval of the Board of Directors (Board), General 
Manager (GM), Deputy General Manager (DGM), Assistant General 
Manager (AGM), or the Manager of CAP, based upon authorization 
thresholds identified herein; as evidenced by an approved purchase 
requisition and an executed procurement instrument.  Should it be 
necessary to interpret what is or is not an unauthorized procurement, 
General Counsel shall provide the interpretation on behalf of the Board of 
Directors. 

 
AI. “Uniform Guidance” shall mean Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations 

(2 CFR) 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 
 

AJ. “Where possible and practical” shall mean CAP’s discretion to make a 
documented decision in the best interest of the Agency. 

 
2. Procurement Instruments:  All procurement actions, shall be at the discretion of 

the Board, the GM, the DGM, the AGM, the Manager of CAP, or as authorized by 
one of the aforementioned authorized designees, using one of the following 
respective instruments: 
 
A. Petty Cash – For limited amount cash advance or reimbursement; or, 
 
B. Agency Check – A draft drawn on an Agency bank account for the 

procurement of goods and services; or, 
 

C. Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) – Simplified procurement method to fill 
annually anticipated repetitive needs for supplies or services; or 

 
D. Contractual Document – (See Section 1.I above); or, 

 
E. Procurement Card – Cost efficient, alternative method for purchasing low 

dollar materials, goods, supplies and limited services (e.g. online services, 
or where alternative payment methods are not accepted from vendors) in 
accordance with informal competitive solicitation limits for single quote 
transactions as identified in Section 3.1.B.2 

 
SECTION 2:  EXPENDITURE APPROVALS AND REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. All purchases, agreements, services, leases, and/or contracts including 
construction contracts, for materials, supplies, equipment, and other personal 
property shall be made in accordance with this Ordinance.       

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 6 of 18 

   

2. Splitting or separating of material, supply, service, lease, and equipment orders or 
projects for the intended purpose of evading the requirements of this Ordinance is 
strictly prohibited.   
A. Splitting is defined as  

1. A series or more than one purchase request transaction for the same 
project requested separately in order to evade either the solicitation requirements 
or the higher approval thresholds.   

2. Discrete subsequent amendments or change orders that are for separate 
subprojects or disciplines (e.g., structural or electrical design of a larger 
project) under the same contract do not apply to this provision.   

B. Subsequent follow-on requests, at the discretion of the Manager of CAP, may 
require inclusion in the GM Report to the Board or other report to notify the Board. 
Construction contracts may have subsequent change orders in accordance with 
the requirements of the Public Contract Code.  Task Orders under the Master 
Contract Program do not fall under the provision of this requirement. 

 
3. Procurement authorization parameters and limits are as follows: 

 
A. Approval and execution of original procurements as indicated in the 

following table and as delegated below.   
 

Approver Emergency 
Competitively-
Let  

Single or Sole 
Source 

Public Works 
Change Order & 
Amendments 

Non Public 
Works Change 
Order & 
Amendments 

            

Board   >$150K >$150K >$150K >$150K  

GM Unlimited ≤$150K ≤$150K ≤$150K ≤$150K 

DGM/ AGM As delegated ≤$150K ≤$150K ≤$150K ≤$150K 

Mgr. of CAP As delegated ≤$150K ≤$150K ≤$150K ≤$150K 

 

1.   Board approval is required for competitively let procurements greater 
than $150,000, unless the procurement is a competitively-let 
“budgeted procurement” under $350,000, specifically identified as a 
detailed line item in the adopted budget.   

 
2.  Board approval is required for single or sole source procurements 

greater than $150,000.  
 
3. The GM is authorized to approve and execute competitively let 

procurements and single or sole source procurements less than or 
equal to $150,000, respectively. 

 
4. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to approve and execute 

procurements less than or equal to the limits established for the GM.   
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 7 of 18 

   

5. In the absence of the GM, the DGM or AGM is authorized to approve 
and execute procurements, and single or sole source procurements 
less than or equal to $150,000, respectively. 

 
6. The DGM or AGM is authorized to delegate that authority to approve 

and execute procurements, less than or equal to that limit which has 
been established for their position.   

 
7. In the absence of the GM, the DGM and AGM, the Manager of CAP 

is authorized to approve and execute procurements and single or 
sole source procurements less than or equal to $150,000, 
respectively. 

 
8. All public works procurement/awards shall include the following 

contingency levels: 
 

a. Under $500,000 shall have a 25% contingency added to 
the award authorization. 
 

b. Under $2,000,000, shall have a 15% contingency added 
to the award authorization. 
 

c. Over $2,000,000, shall have a 10% contingency added to 
the award authorization. 

  
B. Change order and amendment authorization parameters and limits are as 

follows: 
 

1. Any single change order or amendment including public works 
project change orders, requires Board approval and execution for 
requests exceeding $150,000. 
 

2. Board approval is required when the cumulative total of the non-
public works change orders or amendments exceed twice the 
contract value and are in excess of the GM approval limit for 
contracts.   

  
3. The GM is authorized to approve and execute respective change 

orders and amendments less than or equal to $150,000, for public 
works projects.  The GM may delegate this authority up to the limit 
established for the GM. 

 

C. The Manager of CAP is authorized to execute all approved and budgeted 
procurements made by purchase orders and change orders; as well as 
contracts, contract amendments, and task orders up to the Manager’s 
internal approval limit or as otherwise delegated. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 8 of 18 

   

   
D The Manager of CAP is authorized to establish and approve all BPAs, in the 

best interest of the Agency. 
 

E. The Manager of CAP is authorized to request an interpretation for any 
procurement from General Counsel pertaining to this Ordinance.  General 
Counsel’s opinion shall be conclusive. 

 
F. The GM is authorized to terminate any procurement or contractual 

obligation less than or equal to $500,000, in the best interest of the Agency. 
 
SECTION 3:  SOLICITATIONS AND TERM LIMITS 
 

1. Solicitations for best value to the Agency and their parameters and limits (subject 
to other provisions of this section) are as follows: 

 
A. Formal Competitive Solicitations: 

 
1. Shall be required for all Agency procurements as set forth and 

adjusted by applicable CA Public Contract Code (PCC)(e.g. $35,000 
for 2022).. The use of e-sourcing, the online solicitation system, is 
acceptable for issuance of formal solicitations as well as the receipt 
of proposals or bids (unless specifically stated otherwise within the 
solicitation documents). Public works construction may be advertised 
in the Green Sheet, on the Agency’s website or through the online 
solicitation system. 

 

2. Shall, at a minimum, be advertised in one general circulation 
newspaper within the Agency’s geographic boundaries and/or 
advertised on either the Agency’s website and/or a regional 
purchasing website as determined by the Manager of CAP, and 
include documented outreach toward Disadvantaged and Small 
Business Enterprises whenever there are grant or Federal or State 
funding sources involved. 

 

3. Shall, whenever possible and practical, provide a minimum of 14 
calendar days for response. 

 
4. Shall require the receipt of a minimum of one competitive response; 

or, have been directed to a minimum of five qualified potential 
respondents, when available. 

 
5. Public works bids shall be publicly unsealed, and the respective 

dollar amount(s) announced.  This may be facilitated electronically 
through the online solicitation system at the discretion of the 
Manager of CAP. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 9 of 18 

   

 
 

6. For procurements funded by a Federal or State loan or grant, or a 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan, in addition to the grant award’s 
specific terms and conditions, the relevant Federal Uniform 
Guidance or the 2 CFR 200 requirements shall be followed, no award 
shall be permitted to any vendor for any contract or sub-contract at 
any tier level for a vendor which is debarred or suspended or is 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
assistance programs under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and 
Suspension” or debarred by the California Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement. 

 
7. Award details shall be made available following approval of the 

award; either on the Agency’s website, the e-sourcing website, or 
delivered upon specific request. 

 
8. The formal competitive solicitation process may be waived at the 

discretion of the GM or a designated representative, when there is a 
compelling reason (e.g., public safety, prevent loss of life, imminent 
danger, emergency procurement or other valid reason).  The GM 
shall document the reason and inform the Board at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting.  

 

B. Informal Competitive Solicitations: 
 
1. For procurements estimated to be greater than $10,000 and less 

than or equal to $50,000, solicitations shall be posted on the 
electronic solicitation system or sent and documented via email to 
prospective vendors requiring a minimum of two competitive written 
or electronic responses in cooperation with CAP, where possible and 
practical. Where possible and practical, solicitations shall be sent to 
Disadvantaged and Small Business Enterprises whenever grant or 
Federal or State funding sources are being utilized. Refer to Section 
E. Pre-qualification process. 
 

2. Procurements less than $10,000, shall be subject to one quote. 
 
3. For procurements associated with federal grant dollars, the Code of 

Federal Regulations (CFR 200.67) shall be followed.   
 

4. For procurement of on-site services regardless of procurement 
value, solicitations shall be conducted in cooperation with CAP to 
address relevant terms and conditions related to applicable Federal 
and State compliance requirements, prevailing wage, risk mitigation, 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 10 of 18 

   

insurance and bonding requirements, unless designated as an 
emergency.  

 
C. Requests for Information: 

 
In order to facilitate the budgetary and planning processes, Agency staff 
other than CAP may request informal pricing and related information for the 
express purpose of obtaining estimates for services, materials, equipment 
and supplies, identify availability of materials and supplies and identify lead-
times, as provided for by policy.  The requestor shall declare that the 
request is for “budgetary and informational purposes only” and is not to be 
construed as an offer or commitment to procure any product or service.  
Requests for Information shall not be used in lieu of the informal and formal 
solicitation processes provided for herein.  Exceptions shall be at the sole 
discretion of the Manager of CAP, AGM, DGM or GM. 
 

D.  Reverse Auctions: 
 

1.  Reverse auctions may be utilized for the acquisition of equipment, 
 materials, supplies, and services when it is advantageous to do so 
 (i.e., by materially-reducing the cost of goods, while increasing 
 the efficiency of the acquisition function through effective use of 
 technology).  

 
2.  Reverse auctions may be hosted by a third-party vendor under 

 contract with the Agency.  
 

3.  Bidders shall be required to register and pre-qualify prior to the 
 reverse auction date and time and agree to any terms and 
 conditions specified.  

 
4. Reverse auctions shall not be used for public works projects. 

 
5. At the discretion of the Manager of CAP, reverse auctions may 
 be conducted in lieu of the formal or informal competitive 
 solicitation processes.          

 
 
 

E. Pre-qualification Process: 
 

1. A pre-qualification process to identify qualified construction 
contractors may be used for public works projects.  For procurements 
funded by a Federal or State loan or grant, or an SRF loan, in addition 
to the grant award’s specific terms and conditions, the relevant 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 11 of 18 

   

Federal Uniform Guidance or the 2 CFR 200 requirements shall be 
followed. 
 

2. The pre-qualification process will include a Request for Qualification 
to establish a list of contractors that may be used for projects valued 
less than $2,000,000. The pre-qualification process will include 
outreach to the Disadvantaged and Small Business community. 
 

3. The list of contractors will be valid for a period of up to five years. 
 

4. For public works projects estimated to be valued at or greater than 
$2,000,000, a Request for Qualification process will be announced 
for each individual project, prior to the release of the solicitation. 

 
5. Should the project be funded by a State or Federal loan or grant or 

SRF loan, the grant or loan requirement language shall be included 
in the Request for Qualification documents.  No potential bidder shall 
be restricted from the qualification process during the solicitation 
period. 
 

6. The award of a public works contract using the pre-qualification 
process shall be made to the lowest-priced, pre-qualified bidder.  

 
7. Use of Master or Pre-qualified Contractor lists may be utilized. The 

lists shall be current, as defined by the contract and/or Pre-
qualification Program, include enough qualified sources to ensure 
competition and must not preclude potential bidders from qualifying 
during the pre-qualification solicitation period.  Grant funded project 
requirements shall be reviewed by the GM’s designee prior to the 
pre-qualification process to ensure solicitation requirements are 
being followed.  No potential bidders shall be restricted from the 
qualification process during the solicitation period.   
 

2. Multi-year procurement terms and extension limits are as follows: 
 
A. The term for initial procurements may not exceed five years, inclusive of 

option years (e.g. three year contract with two one year options). 
 
B. The aggregate term of all extensions for initial procurements may not 

exceed two years For a maximum allowable term of seven years.  
 
C. Exceptions to the term limits, as determined by the GM, shall be compelling, 

in the best interest of the Agency, and documented by memo or email.   
 
3. Negotiated procurement parameters and term limits (subject to other provisions of 

this Ordinance) are as follows: 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 12 of 18 

   

 
A. Negotiated procurements shall be authorized in writing by the respective 

Department Manager and approved by the Manager of CAP for 
documented circumstances where there exists a single or sole source 
supplier, or unusual time or other constraint (e.g., power and energy, 
emergency communications, insurance carrier, specialized materials, 
services or equipment, information technology equipment, limited-time 
discount opportunities, best- value, etc.). 

 
B. Negotiated procurements shall not require any formal or informal 

solicitation.  However, for single or sole source negotiated procurements 
exceeding $150,000, Board approval is required.   

 
C. The aggregate term of all extensions for negotiated procurements may not 

exceed a maximum allowable term of seven years. 
 

D. Exceptions to the term limits shall be compelling, in the best interest of the 
Agency, and documented accordingly in the GM Report to the Board.   

 
4. Cooperative and “piggyback” procurement parameters and limits (subject to other 

provisions of this Ordinance) are as follows: 
 
A. Cooperative and “piggyback” procurements shall not require formal 

solicitations.  However, procurements exceeding $150,000 that result from 
single or sole source cooperative or “piggyback” contracts require Board 
approval.  Procurements exceeding $150,000 that result from competitively-
let cooperative and “piggyback” contracts also require Board approval.   

 
B. The aggregate term, including all extensions, of any cooperative or 

piggyback procurement, may not exceed seven years and/or the terms of 
the cooperative or piggyback contract or subsequent extensions. 

 
C. Exceptions to the term limits, as determined by the Manager of CAP, shall 

be compelling, in the best interest of the Agency, and documented 
accordingly.   

 
5.  Government procurement parameters and limits (subject to other provisions of this 

section) are as follows: 
 
A. Materials, supplies, services, leases, and equipment may be procured from 

other government agencies when doing so would be in the best interest of 
the Agency, as determined by the GM.  

 
B. When government agency procurement is greater than $150,000, formal 

and competitive bids, proposals, or quotations may be solicited from open 
market sources, as determined by the GM. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 13 of 18 

   

 
C. Professional services may be procured from other government agencies 

when doing so would be in the best interest of the Agency, as determined 
by the GM.  

 
6. Petty cash procurement parameters and limits are as follows: 

 
A. A fund of sufficient amount shall be established by Resolution of the Board, 

to support petty cash disbursements for authorized advances and 
reimbursements.   

 
7.   Procurement Card requirements and limits are as follows: 

 
A. Procurement Cards may be used for transactions to acquire materials, 

supplies, equipment and limited services where alternative payment 
methods are not accepted less than or equal to the amount authorized for 
transactions of a single quote as identified in Section 3.1.B.2 unless 
otherwise authorized by the GM, DGM, AGM or Manager of CAP.  

 
8. The Board delegates the authority to the GM or his/her designee for the rejection 

of all offers, bids, proposals, or quotes. 
 

A.  The GM is authorized to delegate authority to reject any and all bids, 
proposals, and quotes. 
 

9. Emergency procurements of materials, supplies, services, rentals, leases, 
equipment, and public works services may be affected, notwithstanding respective 
provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
A. The GM is authorized to approve and execute emergency procurements, 

for any amount. 
 
B. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to approve and execute 

emergency procurements up to any amount. 
 
C. The GM or designee shall report emergency procurements, including 

details of the circumstances, respective dollar amounts expended, and 
cause of the emergency at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.  

 
SECTION 4:  TRADES AND EXCHANGES 
 
1. Acquisition of materials, supplies, services, leases, and equipment may be made 

by trade or exchange. 
 
2. Only authorized surplus items may be used for trade and exchange acquisitions. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 14 of 18 

   

3. Acquisition items must be of same or similar-type to respective surplus items. 
 
4. Board approval is required for trade and exchange acquisitions with a current 

market value greater than $100,000. 
 
5. The GM is authorized to approve trade and exchange acquisitions with a current 

market value less than or equal to $100,000. 
 
6. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to approve trade and exchange 

acquisitions less than or equal to the limit established for the GM.  
 
SECTION 5:  REAL PROPERTY 
 

1. Board approval and authority to execute contractual documents is required for the 
sale, procurement, trade, exchange, surplus or otherwise acquisition of any and 
all real property with a value greater than $100,000. The Board may delegate this 
authority when it is in the best interest of the Agency. 

 
2. The GM is authorized to execute contractual documents, including sale, purchase 

agreements and escrow instruments, for the authorized sale, procurement, trade, 
exchange, or otherwise acquisition, of real property with a value less than or equal 
to $100,000. 

 
3. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to execute contractual documents, 

including purchase agreements and escrow instruments, for authorized sale, 
procurement, trade, exchange, or otherwise acquisition, of real property less than 
or equal to the limit established for the GM. 

 
SECTION 6:  DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT 
 
1. Board approval is required for the disposal of single-item surplus personal property 

or equipment with a current market value greater than $100,000. 
 
2. Board approval is required for the disposal of any multiple-items (lot) of surplus 

personal property or equipment with a current market value greater than $200,000. 
 
3. Professional or contract services may be used for the disposal of surplus items, 

and a formal solicitation shall not be required for said services.  Fees for said 
services shall be paid from respective surplus disposal proceeds. 

 
 
4. Any surplus item(s) may be: 

 
A. Sold for cash. 
 
B. Used for trade or exchange. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 15 of 18 

   

C     Sold for a nominal sum to a non-profit charitable organization, school, or other 
government agency. 
 

5. Prior to the disposal of any State or Federal loan or grant or SRF-loan funded 
surplus item, approval must be received from the funding agency. 

 
6. Board approval is required to declare any and all real property as surplus and/or 

to sell any and all surplus real property, as provided for under California law  
 
7. Board approval is required to authorize the GM to negotiate any and all sale prices 

and terms for the sale of surplus real property. 
 

8. All net proceeds received from surplus activities shall be deposited in the 
appropriate Agency fund reserves.   
 

SECTION 7:  POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
The GM is authorized to establish, develop, and/or revise any and all Agency policies and 
procedures necessary to implement and administer the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 8:  PROHIBITION OF UNAUTHORIZED PROCUREMENT COMMITMENTS 

AND REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCUREMENT FUNDING 
 

1. No work or services, except in emergency situations, shall be authorized or 
accepted until an appropriate and approved procurement instrument has been fully 
secured or executed, as required pursuant to this Ordinance.  If work or services 
are procured in violation of this provision, and the value of the procurement is 
$10,000 or less, then the employee securing the unauthorized procurement shall 
obtain the written approval of the GM, DGM, AGM and/or the Manager of CAP to 
secure the purchase requisition documents necessary to generate the appropriate 
purchase order or contract for payment.  Unauthorized procurements with a value 
in excess of $10,000 shall require approval from the Board.  Public works field 
change orders do not fall under the provision of this section.  A violation of this 
provision shall be cause for disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
the violator.  The Manager of CAP shall retain the discretion to refer any violation 
of this provision to the Internal Audit Department for investigation. 

 
2. No procurement instrument, except in emergency situations, shall be used which 

commits Agency funds or other financial obligations thereof, unless and until such 
unencumbered funding has been identified, authorized, and appropriated for said 
procurement.  

 
SECTION 9:  DEPARTMENT COOPERATION 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 16 of 18 

   

All Agency employees, agents, volunteers, contractors, sub-contractors, consultants, etc.  
shall comply with the provisions of this Ordinance to ensure the responsible and prudent 
expenditure of public funds, and to maintain the preservation of the public trust.  
 
SECTION 10:  EXCEPTION TO THIS ORDINANCE 
 
The Board may authorize the GM to effect procurements or other respective activities free 
of this Ordinance when the Board has determined that such would be in the best interest 
of the Agency, and when such is not in conflict with applicable State or Federal law(s). 
 
SECTION 11:  VOIDABLE 
 
The Board may void any and all transactions not consistent with the provisions of this 
Ordinance.  
 
SECTION 12:  SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance shall, for any 
reason, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such adjudication shall in no 
manner affect any other section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance, or portions thereof.  The Board hereby declares that they would have 
approved this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, and phrase 
hereof, irrespective of any portion thereof which may be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 13:  REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE 108 
 

Ordinance No. 108 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  All portions of other respective 
Ordinances, Resolutions, and/or motions related thereto and in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance, are hereby rescinded and made of no further effect. 
 
SECTION 14:  EFFECTIVE DATE AND EXECUTION 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board, and execution 
of said Ordinance by the President and Secretary/Treasurer thereof. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 21st day of September, 2022 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Steven J. Elie  
President of Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency*, and of the Board of Directors  
thereof 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 17 of 18 

   

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Marco Tule  
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire  
Utilities Agency*, and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 
 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 

General Counsel  
for the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

  



 

ORDINANCE NO. 110                            Page 18 of 18 

   

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
      )SS 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 
 

I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that the foregoing revised Ordinance being No. 110, was adopted at a regular 
meeting on September 21, 2022, of said Agency by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   

 
NOES:  

 
ABSTAIN:  

 
ABSENT:  

 
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 

Marco Tule  
Secretary/Treasurer 

 
 

(SEAL) 
 
* A Municipal Water District  



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 1 of 19 

   

ORDINANCE NO. 108110 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND 
EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* (AGENCY), ESTABLISHING AND 
SETTING FORTH THE POLICIES GOVERNING AGENCY AUTHORITY 
AND DOLLAR LIMITS FOR BEST VALUE PROCUREMENTS AND 
PROCUREMENT-RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INLAND EMPIRE 
UTILITIES AGENCY* AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
SECTION 1 - PROCUREMENT DEFINITION AND INSTRUMENTS 
SECTION 2 - EXPENDITURE APPROVALS AND REQUIREMENTS 
SECTION 3 - SOLICITATIONS AND TERM LIMITS 
SECTION 4 - TRADES AND EXCHANGES 
SECTION 5 - REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
SECTION 6 - DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS 
SECTION 7 - POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
SECTION 8 - PROHIBITION OF UNAUTHORIZED PROCUREMENT AND 

REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCUREMENT FUNDING 
SECTION 9 - DEPARTMENT COOPERATION 
SECTION 10 - EXCEPTION TO THIS ORDINANCE 
SECTION 11 - VOIDABLE 
SECTION 12 - SEVERABILITY 
SECTION 13 - REPEAL 
SECTION 14 - EFFECTIVE DATE AND EXECUTION 

 

 
SECTION 1:  PROCUREMENT DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUMENTS 
 
1. Definitions:  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance: 

 
A. “Appropriated Funding” shall mean that funding which has been authorized 

by the Board as part of the adopted budget, or as a respective amendment 
thereto. 

 
B. “Authority to Approve” shall mean authority to designate appropriated 

funding for a specific procurement. 
 

C. “Authority to Commit” shall mean authority to effect and bind a procurement 
commitment, including contractual document execution, for a specific 
designated procurement. 
 

D. “Best Value Procurements” for procurements other than public works, shall 
mean an award based on the best overall value to the Agency  including, 
but not limited to: acquisition cost; lifetime cost of ownership; ability, 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 2 of 19 

   

capability, and skills (e.g., experience, value-added services, etc.) of 
supplier/contractor; ability of supplier/contractor to meet the project 
schedule; character, integrity, reputation and judgment of 
supplier/contractor (e.g., from reference checks, site visits, and background 
checks); quality of previous work with Agency or other public entities; 
warranty or other documented considerations of value (e.g., discounted 
spare parts) offered to the Agency. 

 
D.E. “Board” shall mean Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency. 
 
E.F. “Budgeted Procurements” shall mean capital projects and operations and 

maintenance items that have been specifically identified and included as 
part of the adopted budget, or as a respective amendment thereof, and 
authorized by the Board.  
 

F.G. “Change Order” and “Amendment” shall mean any respective modification 
to an existing procurement or respective contractual document. 

 
G.H. “Competition” shall mean any award whereby a solicitation has been 

directed to multiple sources and where at least one response is received. 
 
H.I. “Contingency” shall refer to an identified percentage of a project’s total 

funding as approved by the Board of Directors assigned to that specific 
project during the approval process.   

 
I.J. “Contracts and Procurement” (CAP) shall refer to the department ivision 

(unit) charged with the responsibility and authority to manage all aspects of 
the solicitation, negotiation, award, acquisition, contract administration, and 
surplus/disposal processes for goods, services, property and minor 
construction (excludes major public works and emergency procurements 
awarded through and administered by the Engineering and Construction 
Management DepartmentUnit).     
 

J.K. “Contractual Document” shall mean the document which binds Agency 
commitment of a procurement; such as a contract, agreement, lease, 
purchase order, change order, task order or any amendment thereto. 

 
K. “Cooperative Procurement” shall mean a procurement (i.e., combining of 

requirements) conducted on behalf of two or more public procurement units 
in-order to obtain the benefit of volume purchasing, economies of scale, 
and/or reduction in administrative expenses. 

 
L. “Delegate Authority” shall mean authority to assign authority, at specified 

limits, to respective peers or subordinate staff. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 3 of 19 

   

M. “Electronic Procurement” or “e-Procurement” shall mean electronic 
implementation of the procurement cycle.   

 
N. “Electronic Sourcing” or “e-Sourcing” shall mean an internet-based 

acquisition process that allows for electronically posting the requirement 
and electronic or hardcopy receipt of quotes, proposals, or bids in order to 
make a best-value acquisition. 

 
O. “Emergency Procurement” shall mean any procurement required for the 

prevention against imminent danger, or to mitigate the loss or impairment 
of: life, health, or safety of the public, Agency employees, suppliers, 
contractors; public or private property; prevention of high probabilities of 
violation and compliance with critical permits and regulatory requirements; 
or any other condition which cannot reasonably be foreseen and would have 
a significant effect on the public’s health/safety or that could have a 
significant adverse financial impact on the Agency.  

 
P. “Formal Solicitation” shall mean the issuance of a written request for sealed 

bids, proposals, or quotations. 
 
Q. “Informal Solicitation” shall mean the verbal or written request for a verbal 

or written bid, proposal, or quotation. 
 
R. “In the absence of …” shall mean a reasonable amount of time away from 

the office, exceeding 24 hours. 
 
S. “Master Contracts” shall mean competitively-letcompetitively let contracts 

issued to one or more qualified suppliers/contractors where work shall be 
performed by task orders.  Task orders under the master contract do not 
have a Board-approved expenditure limit, unless specifically required or 
otherwise approved otherwise by the Board of Directors.  (Each contractor 
will have their own contract with the Agency with a combined or shared total 
budget.) 

 
T. “Negotiated Procurement” shall mean a documented procurement whereby 

competitive practices may not be practical; due to a unique circumstance 
such as special pricing, limited time offer, complex contractual terms (e.g., 
power purchase agreements, energy, specialized technology) and 
discussions and bargaining are used to finalize the procurement. 

 
U. “Non-Fiscal” shall mean having no direct impact on appropriated budgets, 

or otherwise requiring financial commitment of the Agency. 
 

V. “Piggyback Procurement” shall mean utilizing another public agency’s 
contract or agreement to obtain more advantageous prices and terms than 
can be otherwise obtained on the open market.  



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 4 of 19 

   

 
W. “Pre-Qualification” shall mean the process (Request for Qualification – 

RFQ) conducted by the Engineering and Construction Management 
(E&CM) Department Unit to identify “prime contractors” that are capable 
and responsible to bid on public works projects. 

 
X. “Procurement” shall mean the purchase or otherwise compensatory 

securing of materials, supplies, services, leases, equipment, real property, 
or public works services. 

 
Y. “Procurement Aggregate” shall mean the total of the initial procurement and 

all respective change orders or amendments. 
 
Z. “Professional Services” shall mean any specially-trainedspecially trained 

and experienced individual, firm or corporation, providing services and 
advice in financial, economic, accounting, engineering, information 
services, technical, architectural, or other administrative/professional 
matters. 

 
AA. “Public Works” shall mean the erection, construction, alteration, repair, 

maintenance or improvement of any public structure, building, road, or other 
public improvement of any kind done under contract or paid in whole or in 
part out of public funds as specified in the California Public Contract Code; 
specifically, Article 40, Sections 20640-20644, and Article 72, Sections 
21050-21051. 

 
AB. “Reverse Auction” shall mean a competitive electronic solicitation process 

for equipment, materials, supplies, and services in which bidders compete 
against each other in real time in an open and interactive web environment. 

 
AC. “Single Source” shall mean a procurement action where there is a 

compelling reason for selection of a preferred brand or vendor: such as 
standardization; time/schedule constraints; technical expertise; follow-on 
work to an existing contract to be procured; etc. A comprehensive written 
justification shall be included in the request. 

 
AD.  “Sole Source” shall mean a procurement action where only one viable 

source exists.  This is usually due to legal restrictions of patent rights, a 
proprietary process, warranty issues, original equipment manufacturer, and 
copyrights. A comprehensive written justification shall be included in the 
request. 

 
AE. “Surplus Personal Property” shall mean items having no further use to the 

Agency; such as scrap, broken, obsolete, abandoned, or unusable 
materials or equipment. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 5 of 19 

   

AF.  “Trades and Exchanges” shall mean authorized surplus items used for the 
acquisition of materials, supplies, services, leases, and/or equipment. 

 
AG. “Unauthorized Procurements” shall mean work or procurement initiated by 

staff without the prior approval of the Board of Directors (Board), General 
Manager (GM),  Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/ Deputy 
General Manager (DGM), Assistant General Manager (AGM), or the 
Manager of CAP, based upon authorization thresholds identified herein; as 
evidenced by an approved purchase requisition and an executed 
procurement instrument.  Should it be necessary to interpret what is or is 
not an unauthorized procurement, General Counsel shall provide the 
interpretation on behalf of the Board of Directors. 

 
AH. “Uniform Guidance” shall mean Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations 

(2 CFR) 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 
 

AI. “Where possible and practical” shall mean CAP’s discretion to make a 
documented decision in the best interest of the Agency. 

 
2. Procurement Instruments:  All procurement actions, shall be effected by and at the 

discretion of the Board, the GM, the DGM, the Executive Manager of Finance and 
Administration/AGM, the Manager of CAP, or as authorized by one of the 
aforementioned authorized designees, using one of the following respective 
instruments: 
 
A. Petty Cash – For limited amount cash advance or reimbursement; or, 
 
B. Agency Check – A draft drawn on an Agency bank account for the 

procurement of goods and services; or, 
 

C. Blanket Purchase Agreement (BPA) – Simplified acquisition procurement 
method to fill annually anticipated repetitive needs for supplies or services; 
or 

 
D. Contractual Document – (See Section 1.I above); or, 

 
E. Credit/Procurement Card – For procurements under $5,000of $10,000 in 

accordance with Section 3,1,B2, the individual Credit/Procurement Card 
restrictions and as set forth in administrative policy (see Section 3.7 for 
exceptions). Cost efficient, alternative method for purchasing low dollar 
materials, goods, supplies and limited services where alternative payment 
methods are not accepted from vendors in accordance with informal 
competitive solicitation limits for single quote transactions as identified in 
Section 3.1.B.2 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 6 of 19 

   

SECTION 2:  EXPENDITURE APPROVALS AND REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. All purchases, agreements, services, leases, and/or contracts including 
construction contracts, for materials, supplies, equipment, and other personal 
property shall be made in accordance with this Ordinance.       

 
2. Splitting or separating of material, supply, service, lease, and equipment orders or 

projects for the expressedintended purpose of evading the requirements of this 
Ordinance is strictly prohibited.   
A. Splitting is defined as  

1. aA series or more than one purchase request transaction for the same 
project requested separately in order to evade either the solicitation requirements 
or the higher approval thresholds.   

2. Discrete subsequent amendments or change orders that are for separate 
subprojects or disciplines (e.g., structural or electrical design of a larger 
project) under the same contract do not apply to this provision.   

B. Subsequent follow-on requests, at the discretion of the Manager of CAP, may 
require inclusion in the GM Report to the Board or other report to notify the Board.   
Construction contracts may have subsequent change orders in accordance with 
the requirements of the Public Contract Code.  Task Orders under the Master 
Contract Program do not fall under the provision of this requirement. 

 
3. Procurement authorization parameters and limits are as follows: 

 
A. Approval and execution of original procurements as indicated in the 

following table and as delegated below.   
 

Approver Emergency 
Competitively-
Let  

Single or Sole 
Source 

Public Works 
Change Order & 
Amendments 

Non Public 
Works Change 
Order & 
Amendments 

            

Board   >$100K150K >$100K150K >$100K150K >$40K 150K  

GM Unlimited ≤$100K150K ≤$100K150K ≤$100K150K ≤$40K150K 

Exec. Mgr. of 
Fin. & 
Admin.DGM/ 
AGM As delegated ≤$100K150K ≤$100K150K ≤$100K150K ≤$40K150K 

Mgr. of CAP As delegated ≤$100K150K ≤$100K150K ≤$100K150K ≤$40K150K 

 

1.   Board approval is required for competitively-letcompetitively let 
procurements greater than $1050,000, unless the procurement is a 
competitively-let “budgeted procurement” under $2350,000, 
specifically identified as a detailed line item in the adopted budget.   

 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 7 of 19 

   

2.  Board approval is required for single or sole source procurements 
greater than $1050,000.  

 
3. The GM is authorized to approve and execute competitively-

letcompetitively let procurements less than or equal to $100,000, 
andand single or sole source procurements less than or equal to 
$1050,000, respectively. 

 
4. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to approve and execute 

procurements less than or equal to the limits established for the GM.   
 

5. In the absence of the GM, the DGM or Executive Manager of Finance 
and Administration/ AGM is authorized to approve and execute 
procurements less than or equal to $100,000, and single or sole 
source procurements less than or equal to $1050,000, respectively. 

 
6. The Executive Manager of Finance and Administration/DGM or AGM 

is authorized to delegate that authority to approve and execute 
procurements, less than or equal to that limit which has been 
established for their position.   

 
7. In the absence of the GM, the Executive Manager of Finance and 

Administration/DGM and AGM, the Manager of CAP is authorized to 
approve and execute procurements less than or equal to $100,000, 
and single or sole source procurements less than or equal to 
$1050,000, respectively. 

 
8. All public works procurement/awards shall include the following 

contingency levels: 
 

a. Under $500,000 shall have a 25% contingency added to 
the award authorization. 
 

b. Under $2,000,000, shall have a 15% contingency added 
to the award authorization. 
 

c. Over $2,000,000, shall have a 10% contingency added to 
the award authorization. 

  
B. Change order and amendment authorization parameters and limits are as 

follows: 
 

1. Board approval is required for Aany single change order or 
amendment greater than $40,000. However, forincluding public 
works project change orders, requires Board approval and execution 
is required for requests exceeding $1050,000. 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 8 of 19 

   

 
2. Board approval is required when the cumulative total of the non-

public works change orders or amendments exceed twice the 
contract value or isand are  in excess of the GM approval limit for 
contracts.   

  
3. The GM is authorized to approve and execute respective change 

orders and amendments less than or equal to $40,000, or less than 
or equal to $1050,000, for public works projects.  The GM may 
delegate this authority up to the limit established for the GM. 

 

C. The Manager of CAP is authorized to execute all approved and budgeted 
procurements made by purchase orders and change orders; as well as 
contracts,  and contract amendments, and task orders up to the Manager’s 
internal approval limit or as otherwise delegated. 

   
D The Manager of CAP is authorized to establish and approve all BPAs, in the 

best interest of the Agency. 
 

E. The Manager of CAP is authorized to request an interpretation for any 
procurement from General Counsel pertaining to this Ordinance.  General 
Counsel’s opinion shall be conclusive. 

 
F. The GM is authorized to terminate any procurement or contractual 

obligation less than or equal to $500,000, in the best interest of the Agency. 
 
SECTION 3:  SOLICITATIONS AND TERM LIMITS 
 

1. Solicitations for best value to the Agency and their parameters and limits (subject 
to other provisions of this section) are as follows: 

 
A. Formal Competitive Solicitations: 

 
1. 1. Shall be required for all Agency procurements estimated to be 

greater than $50,000, oror  for public Public works Works projects,  
as set forth and adjusted by applicable CA Public Contract Code 
(PCC) (i.e., PCC 20642 – Bidding Requirements)(e.g. $35,000 for 
2022).. The use of e-sourcing, the online solicitation system, is 
acceptable for issuance of formal solicitations as well as the receipt 
of proposals or bids (unless specifically stated otherwise within the 
solicitation documents).  Public works construction may be 
advertised in the Green Sheet, on the Agency’s website or through 
the online solicitation system. 

 

2. Shall, at a minimum, be advertised in one general circulation 
newspaper within the Agency’s geographic boundaries and/or 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 9 of 19 

   

advertised on either the Agency’s website and/or a regional 
purchasing website as determined by the Manager of CAP, and 
include documented outreach toward Disadvantaged and Small 
Business Enterprises whenever there are grant or Federal or State 
funding sources involved. 

 

3. Shall, whenever possible and practical, provide a minimum of 14 
calendar days for response. 

 
4. Shall require the receipt of a minimum of one competitive response; 

or, have been directed to a minimum of five qualified potential 
respondents, when available. 

 
5. Public works bids shall be publicly unsealed, and the respective 

dollar amount(s) announced.  This may be facilitated electronically 
facilitated through the online solicitation system at the discretion of 
the Manager of CAP. 

 
6. Proposals and quotations may be publicly unsealed, and the 

respective dollar amount(s) announced. 
 

7.6. For procurements funded by a Federal or State loan or grant, or a 
State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan, in addition to the grant award’s 
specific terms and conditions, the relevant Federal Uniform 
Guidance or the 2 CFR 200 requirements shall be followed, no award 
shall be permitted to any vendor for any contract or sub-contract at 
any tier level for a vendor which is debarred or suspended or is 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
assistance programs under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and 
Suspension” or debarred by the California Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement. 

 
8.7. Award details shall be made available following approval of the 

award; either on the Agency’s website, the e-sourcing website, or 
delivered upon specific request. 

 
9.8. The formal competitive solicitation process may be waived at the 

discretion of the GM or a designated representative, when there is a 
compelling reason (e.g., public safety, prevent loss of life, imminent 
danger, emergency procurement or other valid reason).  The GM 
shall document the reason and inform the Board at the next regularly-
scheduledregularly scheduled meeting.  

 

B. Informal Competitive Solicitations: 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 10 of 19 

   

1. For procurements estimated to be greater than $10,000 and less 
than or equal to $50,000, solicitations shall be posted on the 
electronic solicitation system or sent and documented via email to 
prospective vendors requiring a minimum of two competitive written 
or electronic responses in cooperation with CAP, where possible and 
practical. Where possible and practical, solicitations shall be sent to 
Disadvantaged and Small Business Enterprises whenever grant or 
Federal or State funding sources are being utilized. Refer to Section 
E. Pre-qualification process. 
 

2. Procurements estimated to be greaterless than than $10,000 3, 500 
and less than or equal to $10,000, shall be either posted on the 
electronic solicitation system or sent and documented via email to a 
minimum of two prospective vendors, and where possible and 
practical shall be sent to Disadvantaged and Small Business 
Enterprises whenever grant or Federal and State funding sources 
are being utilized. Procurements estimated to be greater than a 
$10,000 single transaction limit shall require a minimum of one 
quote.shall be subject to one quote. 

 
3. For procurements associated with federal grant dollars, the less than 

or equal to $10,000 3,500, in accordance with the micro-purchase 
threshold Code of Federal Regulations (CFR 200.67) shall be 
followed. , one written quote is sufficient.   

 
4. For procurement of on-site services regardless of procurement 

value, solicitations shall be conducted in cooperation with CAP to 
address relevant terms and conditions related to applicable Federal 
and State compliance requirements, prevailing wage, risk mitigation, 
insurance and bonding requirements, unless designated as an 
emergency.  

 
C. Requests for Information: 

 
In order to facilitate the budgetary and planning processes, Agency staff 
other than CAP may request informal pricing and related information for the 
express purpose of obtaining estimates for services, materials, equipment 
and supplies, identify availability of materials and supplies and identify lead-
times, as provided for by policy.  The requestor shall declare that the 
request is for “budgetary and informational purposes only” and is not to be 
construed as an offer or commitment to procure any product or service.  
Requests for Information shall not be used in lieu of the informal and formal 
solicitation processes provided for herein.  Exceptions shall be at the sole 
discretion of the Manager of CAP, Executive Manager of Finance and 
Administration/AGM, DGM or GM. 
 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 11 of 19 

   

D.  Reverse Auctions: 
 

1.  Reverse auctions may be utilized for the acquisition of equipment, 
 materials, supplies, and services when it is advantageous to do so 
 (i.e., by materially-reducing the cost of goods, while increasing 
 the efficiency of the acquisition function through effective use of 
 technology).  

 
2.  Reverse auctions may be hosted by a third-party vendor under 

 contract with the Agency.  
 

3.  Bidders shall be required to register and pre-qualify prior to the 
 reverse auction date and time and agree to any terms and 
 conditions specified.  

 
4. Reverse auctions shall not be used for public works projects. 

 
5. At the discretion of the Manager of CAP, reverse auctions may 
 be conducted in lieu of the formal or informal competitive 
 solicitation processes.          

 
 
 

E. Pre-qualification Process: 
 

1. A pre-qualification process to identify qualified construction 
contractors may be used for public works projects.  For procurements 
funded by a Federal or State loan or grant, or an SRF loan, in addition 
to the grant award’s specific terms and conditions, the relevant 
Federal Uniform Guidance or the 2 CFR 200 requirements shall be 
followed. 
 

2. The pre-qualification process will include a Request for Qualification 
to establish a list of contractors that may be used for projects valued 
less than $2,000,000. The pre-qualification process will include 
outreach to the Disadvantaged and Small Business community. 
 

3. The list of contractors will be valid for a period of up to five years. 
 

4. For public works projects estimated to be valued at or greater than 
$2,000,000, a Request for Qualification process will be announced 
for each individual project, prior to the release of the solicitation. 

 
5. Should the project be funded by a State or Federal loan or grant or 

SRF loan, the grant or loan requirement language shall be included 
in the Request for Qualification documents.  No potential bidder shall 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 12 of 19 

   

be restricted from the qualification process during the solicitation 
period. 
 

6. The award of a public works contract using the pre-qualification 
process shall be made to the lowest-priced, pre-qualified bidder.  

 
7. Use of Master or Pre-qualified Contractor lists may be utilized. The 

lists shall be current, as defined by the contract and/or Pre-
qualification Program, include enough qualified sources to ensure 
competition and must not preclude potential bidders from qualifying 
during the pre-qualification solicitation period.  Grant funded project 
requirements shall be reviewed with the Agency’s Manager of Grants 
by the GM’s designee prior to the pre-qualification process to ensure 
solicitation requirements are being followed.  No potential bidders 
shall be restricted from the qualification process during the 
solicitation period.   
 

2. Multi-year procurement terms and extension limits are as follows: 
 
A. The term for initial procurements may not exceed five years, inclusive of 

option years (e.g. three year contract with two one year options). 
 
B. The aggregate term of all extensions for initial procurements may not 

exceed two years, as determined by the GM. Ffor a maximum allowable 
term of seven years.  

 
C. Exceptions to the term limits, as determined by the GM, shall be compelling, 

in the best interest of the Agency, and documented accordinglyby memo or 
email.   

 
3. Negotiated procurement parameters and term limits (subject to other provisions of 

this Ordinance) are as follows: 
 
A. Negotiated procurements shall be authorized in writing by the respective 

Department Unit Manager, and approved by the Manager of CAP for 
documented circumstances where there exists a single or sole source 
supplier, or unusual time or other constraint (e.g., power and energy, 
emergency communications, insurance carrier, specialized materials, 
services or equipment, information technology equipment, limited-time 
discount opportunities, best- value, etc.). 

 
B. Negotiated procurements shall not require any formal or informal 

solicitation.  However, for single or sole source negotiated procurements 
exceeding $100150,000, Board approval is required.   

 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 13 of 19 

   

C. The aggregate term, including all extensions thereof, of any negotiated 
procurement may not exceed seven years.The aggregate term of all 
extensions for negotiated procurements may not exceed a maximum 
allowable term of seven years. 
 

D. Exceptions to the term limits shall be compelling, in the best interest of the 
Agency, and documented accordingly in the GM Report to the Board.   

 
4. Cooperative and “piggyback” procurement parameters and limits (subject to other 

provisions of this Ordinance) are as follows: 
 
A. Single-occurrence cCooperative and “piggyback” procurements shall not 

require formal solicitations.  However, procurements exceeding $1050,000 
that result from single or sole source cooperative or “piggyback” contracts 
require Board approval.  Procurements exceeding $1050,000 that result 
from competitively-let cooperative and “piggyback” contracts also require 
Board approval.   

 
B. The aggregate term, including all extensions, of any cooperative or 

piggyback procurement, may not exceed seven years and/or the terms of 
the cooperative or piggyback contract or subsequent extensions. 

 
C. Exceptions to the term limits, as determined by the Manager of CAP, shall 

be compelling, in the best interest of the Agency, and documented 
accordingly.   

 
5.  Government procurement parameters and limits (subject to other provisions of this 

section) are as follows: 
 
A. Materials, supplies, services, leases, and equipment may be procured from 

other government agencies when doing so would be in the best interest of 
the Agency, as determined by the GM.  

 
B. When government agency procurement is greater than $150,000, formal 

and competitive bids, proposals, or quotations may be solicited from open 
market sources, as determined by the GM. 

 
C. Professional services may be procured from other government agencies 

when doing so would be in the best interest of the Agency, as determined 
by the GM.  

 
6. Petty cash procurement parameters and limits are as follows: 

 
A. A fund of sufficient amount shall be established by Resolution of the Board, 

to support petty cash disbursements for authorized advances and 
reimbursements.   



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 14 of 19 

   

 
7.   Procurement Card requirements and limits are as follows: 

 
A. Procurement Cards may be used for transactions to acquire materials, 

supplies, equipment and limited services (e.g., online purchases, with 
businesses that will not accept purchase orders, etc.)(e.g. Online purchases 
or where alternative payment methods are not accepted) less than or equal 
to $510,000, unless otherwise authorized by the Manager of CAP, 
Executive Manager of Finance and Administration/AGM, or GM.the amount 
authorized for transactions of a single quote as identified in Section 3.1.B.2 
unless otherwise authorized by the GM, DGM, AGM or Manager of CAP.  

 
. 

 

8. The Board delegates the authority to the GM or his/her designee for the rejection 
of all offers, bids, proposals, or quotes.. 

 
A.  
  

B. A. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to reject any and all bids, proposals, 
and quotationsquotes. 

 
 9. Emergency procurements of materials, supplies, services, rentals, leases, 

equipment, and public works services may be affected, notwithstanding respective 
provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
A. The GM is authorized to approve and execute emergency procurements, 

for any amount. 
 
B. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to approve and execute 

emergency procurements up to any amount. 
 
C. The GM or designee shall report emergency procurements, including 

details of the circumstances, respective dollar amounts expended, and 
cause of the emergency at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.  

 
SECTION 4:  TRADES AND EXCHANGES 
 
1. Acquisition of materials, supplies, services, leases, and equipment may be made 

by trade or exchange. 
 
2. Only authorized surplus items may be used for trade and exchange acquisitions. 
 
3. Acquisition items must be of same or similar-type to respective surplus items. 
 



ORDINANCE NO 11008.   Page 15 of 19 

4. Board approval is required for trade and exchange acquisitions with a current
market value greater than $100,000.

5. The GM is authorized to approve trade and exchange acquisitions with a current
market value less than or equal to $100,000.

6. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to approve trade and exchange
acquisitions less than or equal to the limit established for the GM.

SECTION 5:  REAL PROPERTY 

1. Board approval and authority to execute contractual documents is required for the
sale, procurement, trade, exchange, surplus or otherwise acquisition of any and
all real property with a value greater than $100,000. The Board may delegate this
authority when it is in the best interest of the Agency.

2. The GM is authorized to execute contractual documents, including sale, purchase
agreements and escrow instruments, for the authorized sale, procurement, trade,
exchange, or otherwise acquisition, of real property with a value less than or equal
to $100,000.

3. The GM is authorized to delegate authority to execute contractual documents,
including purchase agreements and escrow instruments, for authorized sale,
procurement, trade, exchange, or otherwise acquisition, of real property less than
or equal to the limit established for the GM.

SECTION 6:  DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT 

1. Board approval is required for the disposal of single-item surplus personal property
or equipment with a current market value greater than $100,000.

2. Board approval is required for the disposal of any multiple-items (lot) of surplus
personal property or equipment with a current market value greater than $200,000.

3. Professional or contract services may be used for the disposal of surplus items,
and a formal solicitation shall not be required for said services.  Fees for said
services shall be paid from respective surplus disposal proceeds.

4. Any surplus item(s) may be:

A. Sold for cash.

B. Used for trade or exchange.

C. C     Sold for a nominal sum to a non-profit charitable organization, school, 
or other government agency. 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 16 of 19 

   

5. Prior to the disposal of any State or Federal loan or grant or SRF-loan funded 
surplus item, approval must be received from the funding agency. 

 
6. Board approval is required to declare any and all real property as surplus and/or 

to sell any and all surplus real property, as provided for under California law (i.e., 
Government Code Section 54221 et. Seq.). 

 
7. Board approval is required to authorize the GM to negotiate any and all sale prices 

and terms for the sale of surplus real property. 
 

8. All net proceeds received from surplus activities shall be deposited in the 
appropriate Agency fund reserves.   
 

SECTION 7:  POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
The GM is authorized to establish, develop, and/or revise any and all Agency policies and 
procedures necessary to implement and administer the provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 8:  PROHIBITION OF UNAUTHORIZED PROCUREMENT COMMITMENTS 

AND REQUIREMENTS FOR PROCUREMENT FUNDING 
 

1. No work or services, except in emergency situations, shall be authorized or 
accepted until an appropriate and approved procurement instrument has been fully 
secured or executed, as required pursuant to this Ordinance.  If work or services 
are procured in violation of this provision, and the value of the procurement is 
$10,000 or less, then the employee securing the unauthorized procurement shall 
obtain the written approval of the GM, DGM, AGM and/or the Manager of CAP to 
secure the purchase requisition documents necessary to generate the appropriate 
purchase order or contract for payment.  Unauthorized procurements with a value 
in excess of $10,000 shall require approval from the Board.  Public works field 
change orders do not fall under the provision of this section.  A violation of this 
provision shall be cause for disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
the violator.  The Manager of CAP shall retain the discretion to refer any violation 
of this provision to the Internal Audit Department for investigation. 

 
2. No procurement instrument, except in emergency situations, shall be used which 

commits Agency funds or other financial obligations thereof, unless and until such 
unencumbered funding has been identified, authorized, and appropriated for said 
procurement.  

 
SECTION 9:  DEPARTMENT COOPERATION 
 
All Agency employees, agents, volunteers, contractors, sub-contractors, consultants, etc.  
shall comply with the provisions of this Ordinance to ensure the responsible and prudent 
expenditure of public funds, and to maintain the preservation of the public trust.  
 



 

ORDINANCE NO 11008.                            Page 17 of 19 

   

 
 
SECTION 10:  EXCEPTION TO THIS ORDINANCE 
 
The Board may authorize the GM to effect procurements or other respective activities free 
of this Ordinance when the Board has determined that such would be in the best interest 
of the Agency, and when such is not in conflict with applicable State or Federal law(s). 
 
SECTION 11:  VOIDABLE 
 
The Board may void any and all transactions not consistent with the provisions of this 
Ordinance.  
 
SECTION 12:  SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance shall, for any 
reason, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such adjudication shall in no 
manner affect any other section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance, or portions thereof.  The Board hereby declares that they would have 
approved this Ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, and phrase 
hereof, irrespective of any portion thereof which may be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 13:  REPEAL AND REPLACE ORDINANCE 108 
 

Ordinance No. 101 108 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  All portions of other respective 
Ordinances, Resolutions, and/or motions related thereto and in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance, are hereby rescinded and made of no further effect. 
 
SECTION 14:  EFFECTIVE DATE AND EXECUTION 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board, and execution 
of said Ordinance by the President and Secretary/Treasurer thereof. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 16th21st day of OctoberSeptember, 201922 

 
 

________________________________ 
Paul Hofer Steven J. Elie 
President of Inland Empire Utilities  
Agency*, and of the Board of Directors 
thereof 

 
  



ORDINANCE NO 11008.   Page 18 of 19 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Marco Tule Kati Parker 
Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire  
Utilities Agency*, and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________________ 

General Counsel  
for the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* 

*A Municipal Water District



ORDINANCE NO 11008.   Page 19 of 19 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
)SS 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 

I, Marco TuleKati Parker, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing revised Ordinance being No. 110108, was adopted 
at a regular meeting on October 16, 2019September 21, 2022, of said Agency by the 
following vote: 

AYES:  Elie, Hall, Parker, Camacho, Hofer 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: None 

____________________________________________ 

Marco TuleKati Parker 
Secretary/Treasurer 

(SEAL) 

* A Municipal Water District



Adoption of Agency
Procurement Ordinance No. 110

Warren T. Green

Manager of Contracts & Procurement

September 2022



• Procurement Ordinance Purpose
—Establish and sets forth the policies governing Agency authority and dollar limits for best value 

procurements and procurement-related activities.
—Ensure compliance with:

• California Water Codes
• Government Codes
• Federal and California Contract Codes

• Labor Codes
• California Commercial Code

• History of Changes
—Ordinance 108 approved by the Board in October 2019
—4 approved updates by the Board since 2012
—Benchmarked against regional water agencies
—Collaboratively updated with all departments within the Agency

2

Ordinance Purpose and History



• Why Update the Ordinance?
— Increase process efficiencies
—Compliance requirements and consistency with Public Contract Code
—Language updates and clarifications
—Organizational and Title changes
—Keep up with inflationary trends

• Key Changes
— Increase requirement for Board Action/Approval to $150,000
— Increase specific, competitively-let, detailed “Budget” approved line items to $350,000
— Increase single quote requirement and Purchasing Card single transaction threshold to 

$10,000
—Reduce formal solicitation for Public Works consistent with Public Contract Code requirements

3

Proposed Revision Highlights



• Hold a Public Hearing to receive comments prior to the adoption of Ordinance No. 110, 
establishing and setting forth the policies governing Agency authority and dollar limits for 
procurement and procurement-related activities. 

• After closing the Public Hearing, adopt Ordinance No. 110.

4

Recommendation

These changes in the ordinance are consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals under Fiscal Responsibility and Business 
Practices, as they support the Agency and internal customers in the completion of their tasks and projects through sound 

fiscal spending and efficient processing.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2A



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

1 

 
 

MINUTES  
MEETING OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2022 

9:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 

Steven J. Elie, President 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer  
 

DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
Michael Camacho, Vice President  
Jasmin A. Hall, Director 
Paul Hofer, Director 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Shivaji Deshmukh, P.E., General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, P.E., Deputy General Manager 
Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager 
Jerry Burke, Director of Engineering 
Tony Arellano, Safety Officer 
Lisa Dye, Director of Human Resources 
Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager 
Brandon Gonzalez Contreras, Technology Specialist I 
Don Hamlett, Director of Information Technology 
Nolan King, Manager of Information Technology 
Michael Larios, Technology Specialist I 
Randy Lee, Director of Operations & Maintenance 
Scott Lening, Manager of Operations 
Alex Lopez, Acting Budget Officer 
Ryan Love, Deputy Manager of Operations  
Jason Marseilles, Manager of Engineering 
Dominic Nguyen, Control Systems Analyst I, 

 Alyson Piguee, Director of External & Government Affairs 
 Rizaldy Sia, Control Systems Analyst I 
 Justin Tao, Associate Engineer  
 Brian Wilson, Senior Engineer 

    
STAFF PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Kevin Asprer, Associate Engineer 
Warren Green, Manager of Contracts & Procurement 
Michael Hurley, Director of Planning & Resources 
Jennifer Hy-Luk, Acting Executive Assistant 
Cathleen Pieroni, Senior Policy Advisor 
Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

2 

Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
Daniel Solorzano, Network Administrator 
Wilson To, Technology Specialist II 
Yolanda Vega, Accounting Supervisor 
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 

   
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Richard Babbe, PFM Asset Management LLC 
Jean Cihigoyenetche, JC Law Firm  
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency* was held at the office 
of the Agency, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, California and via video/teleconference 
on the above date. 
 
President Elie called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. Board Secretary/Office Manager Denise 
Garzaro took roll call and established a quorum.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no changes/additions/deletions to the agenda. 
 
NEW, PROMOTED AND RECLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS 
The following staff member from External & Government Affairs was introduced: 
 

• Caroline Mallari, Accountant II, hired August 15, 2022, Grants 
 
The following staff member from Finance was introduced: 
 

• Yolanda Vega, Accounting Supervisor, hired July 25, 2022, Finance 
 
The following staff members from Information Technology were introduced and recognized: 
 

• Nolan King, Manager of Information Technology, promoted July 24, 2022, 
Information Technology 

• Dominic Nguyen, Control Systems Analyst I, hired July 25, 2022, Information 
Technology  

• Rizaldy Sia, Control Systems Analyst I, hired July 25, 2022, Information 
Technology 

 
The following staff members from Operations & Maintenance were introduced and recognized: 
 

• John Cardenas, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I, hired August 8, 2022, 
Operations – Carbon Canyon 

• Scott Sotello, Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, promoted July 24, 
2022, Operations - RP-4 

• Alex Avila, Compost Operator, promoted July 24, 2022, Organics Management 
 

The Board of Directors welcomed Ms. Mallari, Ms. Vega, Mr. Nguyen, Mr. Sia, and Mr. Cardenas 
to the IEUA team. The Board of Directors congratulated Mr. King, Mr. Sotello, and Mr. Avila on 
their promotions.   
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

3 

 
1. CONSENT ITEMS 

 
A. MINUTES 
 
B. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2022-8-1, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 

DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES FOR CONDUCTING 
MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 
C. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS (Finance & Admin)  

 
D. FERRIC CHLORIDE CHEMICAL CONTRACT (Eng/Ops/WR) 
 
E. SODIUM BISULFITE CHEMICAL CONTRACT (Eng, Ops & WR)  
 
F. MONTCLAIR FORCE MAIN IMPROVEMENTS CONSULTANT CONTRACT 

AWARD (Eng, Ops & WR)  
 
G. SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE FOR CONTINUED RP-1 AND RP-2 DISTRIBUTED 

CONTROL SYSTEM SUPPORT (Eng, Ops & WR)   
 

 
MOVED BY DIRECTOR HALL, SECONDED BY 
DIRECTOR TULE, AGENDA ITEM NOS. 1A 
THROUGH 1G, APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED 
BELOW, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

 
     Ayes:   Camacho, Elie, Hall, Hofer, Tule 
 
     Noes:  None 
 
     Absent: None 
 

o Approved the minutes of the July 6 and July 20, 2022 Board Meetings.  
 

o Adopted Resolution No. 2022-8-1, making certain findings and determinations 
regarding special rules for conducting meetings through teleconference. 

 
o Approved the total disbursements for the month of June 2022, in the amount of 

$17,174,459.33. 
 

o Approved the award to provide the supply of ferric chloride chemicals, Contract 
No. 4600003169, to California Water Technologies, for a one-year contract for a 
not-to-exceed amount of $1,800,000; and authorized the General Manager to 
execute the contract. 

 
o Approved the award to provide sodium bisulfite chemicals, Contract No. 

4600003168, to Univar, for a one-year contract, with four one-year renewal 
options, for a potential total contract term of five years for a not-to-exceed amount 
of $4,900,000; and authorized the General Manager to execute the contract. 

 
o Awarded a consultant contract for the Montclair Force Main Improvements, 

Project No. EN21045, to Stantec Consulting Services Inc., for a not-to-exceed 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

4 

amount of $688,290; and authorized the General Manager to execute the 
contract, subject to non-substantive changes. 

 
o Approved the sole source purchase for continued technical support services, 

Contract No. 4600002966-1, with Schneider Electric, for a three-year contract, for 
a not-to-exceed amount of $271,046; and authorized the General Manager to 
execute the contract. 

 
 
2. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PROJECT UPDATES 
Manager of Engineering Jason Marseilles provided an update on the following 
projects: Headquarter Driveway Safety Improvements; Prado De-Chlorination Station 
Inundation Protection; RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Improvements; and RP-1 and 
RP-4 Ammonia & Free Chloride Analyzers. 

 
Director Hofer asked about the cost to install the permeable pavement and inquired 
about the impact of recent floodplain adjustments. Mr. Marseilles explained the 
benefits of the permeable pavement and confirmed details of the increase in dam 
elevation. General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that staff would provide 
additional information on these matters to the Board.  

 
 

The following items were received and filed by the Board:  
 

B. AMENDMENTS TO THE RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE 
 

C. FEDERAL LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM INNOVATIVE FEDERAL 
STRATEGIES (Comm & Leg Affairs) 
  

D. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT AND MATRIX FROM WEST COAST ADVISORS 
(Comm & Leg Affairs) 

 
E. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION (Comm & Leg Affairs) 
 
F. RP-5 EXPANSION PROJECT UPDATE – JULY 2022 (Eng, Ops & WR) 
 
G. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW FOR QUARTER ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(Finance & Admin) 
 
H. INTERIM FINANCING TO SUPPORT REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROJECTS 

(Finance & Admin) 
 
I. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (Finance & Admin) 

 
 

3. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS  
 

A. SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Tule reported that at the August 16 Commission meeting, the Commission 
discussed the Santa Ana River Watershed Modification Pilot Project and the Upper 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

5 

Santa Ana River Watershed Homeless Encampment – Phase 1A Water Quality 
Monitoring and Trash Asset. 
 

B. METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA REPORT 
Vice President Camacho asked General Manager Deshmukh to provide the report. 
General Manager Deshmukh reported that at the August 16 Board meeting, the MWD 
Board authorized a resolution calling for immediate action to address the inequitable 
access of water supplies faced by the six State Water Project (SWP)-dependent 
member agencies (including IEUA). The MWD Board also approved three projects 
valued at $7 million that, combined with other projects, will deliver water from Diamond 
Valley Lake to the Rialto pipeline by the end of 2024. 
 
General Manager Deshmukh provided several updates on the drought, first noting that 
on August 11, Governor Newsom issued a “Water Supply Strategy”, which predicts 
that hotter and drier weather will persist and could diminish existing water supplies by 
up to 10 percent by 2040. The plan calls for the development of new supplies and 
storage, including the streamlining of the seven remaining WSIP projects (of which, 
CBP is one). It also calls for additional conservation savings of 500,000 AFY by 
instituting the new conservation regulations by Spring 2023 – about a year and a half 
earlier than anticipated. 
 
Yesterday, the Interior Department announced that Lake Mead will operate in its first-
ever Level 2a Shortage Condition in calendar year 2023, which reduces the 
apportionment of other lower basin states by as much as 21% but is not expected to 
impact California until 2024 if conditions do not improve.  IEUA continues to coordinate 
closely with Customer Agency General Managers at weekly drought briefings.  
 

C. REGIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 
There was nothing to report. 
 

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER REPORT 
President Elie reported that at the July 28 Chino Basin Watermaster Board meeting, 
the Watermaster Board held a workshop on the 2000 and 2020 Optimum Basin 
Management Plan (OBMP) and approved the 2020 OBMP CEQA preparation process. 
 

E. CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Tule reported that at the August 4 Board meeting, the CDA Board heard an 
update on emergency repairs to water and sewer lines.  
 

F. INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY REPORT 
Director Hofer reported that the matters considered at the August 1 Board meeting 
were routine in nature.  
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
General Manager Deshmukh stated that Southern California Edison (SCE) launched its 
Charge Ready 2 Program with the goal of adding about 38,000 new electric vehicle 
chargers in their service area. The program offers design and construction of EV Charging 
infrastructure at no cost to the Agency. IEUA will be responsible for purchasing, installing, 
operating, and maintaining the chargers.  Staff has been working through the application 
process for RP-1, RP-4, and RP-5. The RP-1 conceptual design has been reviewed and 
approved by staff, and the agreement with SCE has been executed for 35 charging 
ports.  RP-4 and RP-5 are still being evaluated by SCE. 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

6 

 
General Manager Deshmukh added that after providing oral comments at the California 
Air Resources Board (CARB) public workgroup on the draft proposed clean fleet 
regulations, staff has continued to work alongside California Association of Sanitation 
Agencies (CASA) by meeting with and providing written comments to CARB. As a 
reminder, the proposed regulation would require 50% of vehicles added to IEUA’s fleet be 
zero emissions starting in 2024 and 100% of vehicles added starting in 2027. While staff 
is supportive of the end goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions, we are suggesting 
edits that ensure the proposed regulation does not hinder IEUA’s day to day and 
emergency response activities. Staff will bring a full briefing to the board in September.  
 
The Groundwater Recharge Program reached a new milestone of 17,054.4 AF during 
FY21/22 for annual recharge deliveries of recycled water. This was a 5% increase over 
the previous milestone set in FY 20/21 of 16,252.8 AF. These back-to-back milestone 
years can be attributed to two years of record drought-creating wintertime recycled 
water/groundwater recharge (RW GWR) demands at recharge basins owned by the 
program’s partners: Chino Basin Water Conservation District, San Bernardino County 
Flood Control District, and Inland Empire Utilities Agency.  This accomplishment is a result 
of the dedication and efforts of the RW GWR team, comprised of Andy Campbell, Daisy 
Puga, Brent Ritzinger, Steve Smith, Nathan Smith, Victor Rodriguez, and interns  
Jonathan Oronia, and Quinn Lesser.   
 
General Manager Deshmukh also recognized Manager of Facilities & Water System 
Programs Lucia Diaz who was recently featured in the California Water Environment 
Association’s Clean Water Magazine where she shared her career journey with 
Association President Arvind Akela.   
 

5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Director Hofer requested additional information on Metropolitan Water District’s recent 
action to address the inequitable access of water supplies faced by the SWP-dependent 
member agencies. 

 
6. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS AND CONFERENCE REPORTS 

Director Hall stated that she attended the 2022 CASA 67th Annual Conference held   
August 10 through 12; and the Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts 
Membership Meeting on August 15. 
 
Director Tule stated he attended the BIA Building Industry Association (BIA) Southern 
California Water Conference on August 12. He stated his appreciation to staff for hosting 
the CBP Expo held prior to the Board meeting.  
 
President Elie stated that he attended the IEUA Employee Appreciation Summer Picnic 
on July 20; the Southern California Water Coalition Quarterly Luncheon on July 22;       
John Mura’s Retirement Celebration on July 28; and the BIA Southern California Water 
Conference on August 12. President Elie congratulated Directors Hofer and Hall who will 
get to serve another four-year term on IEUA’s Board of Directors as no other candidates 
filed election paperwork for their respective divisions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
*A Municipal Water District 

 

7 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 The Board recessed to Closed Session at 10:49 a.m.: 
 

A. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2)(e)1 CONFERENCE 
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

Two Cases 
 

B. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(a) – THREAT TO PUBLIC 
SERVICES OR FACILITIES 

Consultation with Manager of Information Technology 
 

 

The meeting resumed at 11:29 a.m. and General Counsel Jean Cihigoyenetche stated 
that the Board did not take any reportable action in Closed Session.  
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
President Elie adjourned the meeting at 11:29 a.m.  

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
APPROVED:  SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2B



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-9-3 Making Certain Findings and Determinations
Regarding Special Rules for Conducting Meetings through Teleconference

On March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency pursuant to Government
Code 8625 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and recommended, together with local officials,
measures for social distancing to assist in abating the spread of COVID-19; and on March 17,
2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 which, among other things, suspended
certain Brown Act rules governing the use of teleconferencing for local agency board meetings.
Executive Order N-29-20 expired on September 30, 2021. In response to the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic, the California legislature enacted, and the Governor signed into law, AB
361 amending portions of Government Code 54953, allowing for the continued use of
teleconferencing for local agency board meetings while suspending the conditions and
restrictions of Government Code 54953(b)(3) if the legislative body of the local agency makes
certain findings. The legislative body must make these findings every 30 days to continue the
use of teleconferencing.

Staff is recommending that the Board of Directors makes the necessary findings and
determinations and Adopt Resolution No. 2022-9-3 to continue to conduct meetings through
teleconference for a period of 30 days.

Adopt Resolution No. 2022-9-3, Making Certain Findings and Determinations Regarding
Special Rules for Conducting Meetings through Teleconference.

None.

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Adoption of a Resolution to make findings for conducting meetings through teleconference
is consistent with the IEUA's commitment to applying ethical, fiscally responsible, transparent
and environmentally sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

The Board adopted Resolution No. 2021-10-1 on Oct. 6, 2021. On Nov. 3, Nov. 17, and Dec. 8,
2021, Jan. 5, Feb. 2, March 2, April 6, May 18, June 15, July 6, Aug. 17, and Sept. 7, 2022, the
Board adopted Resolution Nos. 2021-11-6, 2021-11-1, 2021-12-1, 2022-1-1, 2022-2-1,
2022-3-1, 2022-4-7, 2022-5-6, 2022-6-10, 2022-7-2, 2022-8-1 and 2022-9-2 respectively,
making continued findings and determinations regarding special rules for conducting meetings
through teleconference.

 Attachment 1 - Resolution No. 2022-9-3

Not Applicable

22218



RESOLUTION NO.  2022-9-3 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*, SAN BERNARDINO 
COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 

DETERMINATIONS REGARDING SPECIAL RULES FOR 
CONDUCTING MEETINGS THROUGH TELECONFERENCE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (“IEUA”) is a municipal water district 
 established pursuant to Section 71000 et seq. of the California Water Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board of Directors of IEUA are conducted in open and 
 public settings in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) so that any 
 member of the public may attend, participate and watch the Agency’s Board of Directors 
 conduct their business; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency pursuant to 
 Government Code 8625 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and has recommended, together 
 with local officials, measures for social distancing to assist in abating the spread of 
 COVID-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 which, 
 among other things, suspended certain Brown Act rules governing the use of 
 teleconferencing of local agency board meetings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the California legislature has enacted, and the Governor has signed into law, 
 AB 361 amending portions of Government Code 54953, allowing for the continued use of 
 teleconferencing for local agency board meetings while suspending the conditions and 
 restrictions of Government Code 54953(b)(3) if the legislative body of the local agency 
 makes certain findings; and 

 
WHEREAS, On October 6, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2021-10-1 making certain factual findings, and authorizing 
the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an effective period of 
30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 3, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution 2021-11-6 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 



Resolution No. 2022-9-3 
Page 2 of 5 

 
WHEREAS, On November 17, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2021-11-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On December 8, 2021 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2021-12-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On January 5, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-1-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On February 2, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-2-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On March 2, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-3-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On April 6, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-4-7 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On May 18, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-5-6 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On June 15, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-6-10 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 



Resolution No. 2022-9-3 
Page 3 of 5 

 
WHEREAS, On July 6, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
approved Resolution No. 2022-7-2 again making certain factual findings, and authorizing 
the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an effective period of 
30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On August 17, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-8-1 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 7, 2022 the Board of Directors of the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency approved Resolution No. 2022-9-2 again making certain factual findings, and 
authorizing the continued use of teleconferencing for IEUA Board meetings for an 
effective period of 30 days; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors must now determine whether to extend the effective 
period of Resolution No. 2022-9-3 for an additional 30 days, making the appropriate factual 
findings in support thereof; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Inland 
 Empire Utilities Agency hereby make the following findings and determinations: 
 
 SECTION 1.       The Governor has proclaimed a state of emergency on March 4, 2020 
 which continues. 

 
SECTION 2.     The Governor and local officials have promoted the use of social 
distancing as a method to abate the spread of COVID-19 within the community. The Board 
of Directors finds that conducting in person meetings of the IEUA Board of Directors 
would be inimical to social distancing and would present imminent risks to the health or 
safety of the attendees and conducting meetings by teleconference would diminish that 
risk. 

 
SECTION 3.        The Board of Directors will continue to conduct Board meetings by 

 teleconference in compliance with Government Code 54953(e) until such time as the 
 Governor has terminated the state of emergency and the risk to health and safety of meeting 
 attendees is sufficiently diminished or as otherwise required by law. Notice of meetings 
 and posted agendas will contain information which allows members of the public to access 
 the meeting and address the Board of Directors and offer public comment including an 
 opportunity for all persons to attend via a call-in option or an internet-based service option.  

 



Resolution No. 2022-9-3 
Page 4 of 5 

 
SECTION 4.      This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall 

 be effective for 30 days or until such time as the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent 
 resolution in accordance with Government Code 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during 
 which meetings of the Board of Directors may be conducted by teleconference without 
 compliance with Government Code 54953(3)(b).  

 
   
ADOPTED this 21st day of September, 2022. 

     

 
____________________________________ 
Steven J. Elie, President of the Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency* and of the Board 
of Directors thereof  

 

ATTEST: 

 
 
______________________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland  
Empire Utilities Agency* and of the Board of  
Directors thereof 



Resolution No. 2022-9-3 
Page 5 of 5 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 
 
 
 I, Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2022-9-3, was adopted at a 

regular meeting on September 21, 2022, of said Agency by the following vote: 

 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:  

  

  

      ___________________________________ 
Marco Tule, Secretary/Treasurer of the 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency* and of the 
Board of Directors thereof 

 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2C



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of July 2022 were $39,583,777.01. Disbursement activity
included check payments of $363,274.81 to vendors and $7,235.46 for worker's compensation
related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House (ACH) of
$28,826,262.03 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $7,842,750.48. The total payroll was
$2,537,484.05 for employees and $6,770.18 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of July 2022 in the amount of $39,583,777.01.

09/14/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On August 10, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the June 2022 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $17,174,459.33.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22212



Page 1 of 2

Background
Subject: Report on General Disbursements

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter.
Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 
in largest to smallest dollar value.

Table 1:  Disbursement Details

Attachment Payment Type Amount
2A Vendor Checks $ 363,274.81
2B Workers' Comp Checks $ 7,235.46
2C Vendor ACHs $ 28,826,262.03
2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $ 7,842,750.48
2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors $ 6,770.18
2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees $ 2,537,484.05

Total Disbursements $39,583,777.01

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor

Vendor Amount Description

WM LYLES COMPANY $17,055,436.81 Professional Svc’s for EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd; 
EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility.

CALPERS $ 3,523,045.00 FY 2022/23 Unfunded Liability

METROPOLITAN WATER 
DISTRICT $ 2,686,243.10 May 2022 Water Purchases

MNR CONSTRUCTION $  1,128,671.95 Professional Svc’s for RW15003.06- Wineville/Jurupa/Force 
Main Improvements

SO CALIF EDISON $ 932,274.80 05/18/22 – 06/30/22 Electricity

FRESNO FIRST BANK $ 897,654.56 Escrow Retention Deposits - EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 
30 mgd; EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility

ARCADIS U.S. INC $ 836,768.92
Professional Svc’s for EN19001- RP-5 Expansion to 30 
mgd; EN19006- RP-5 Biosolids Facility; Phase 3 Chino 
Basin Water Bank

California Sanitation Risk 
Management Authority 
(CSRMA)

$ 814,793.47 FY 2022/23 Property Insurance Premium



Page 2 of 2

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor, continued:

Vendor Amount Description

PERS $ 727,508.24 07/22 Health Ins; P/R 13, 14

INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE $ 723,690.30 P/R 13, 14; Dir 07 Taxes

ALLIANT INSURANCE 
SERVICES INC $ 699,565.17

FY 2022/23 Insurance premium for Commercial Liability, 
Commercial Crime, Equipment Floater and Workers 
Compensation,

CDM SMITH
$ 682,876.90

Professional Svc’s for EN17006 - CCWRF Asset Mgmt 
Improvements; EN19024 - Collection System Asset Mgmt 
Assessment; EN19028 - NRW Manhole and Pipeline 
Condition Assessment































































































































































IEUA’s Business Goal under Fiscal Responsibility



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2D



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Ratify Contract Amendment for State Legislative Services

In 2016, IEUA announced a Request for Proposal (RFP) for state legislative advocacy services.
After a competitive process, the IEUA Board voted in favor of awarding the contract to West
Coast Advisors. West Coast Advisors (WCA) has represented IEUA since 2006, providing state
legislative services. The services WCA provides include tracking legislation and regulations that
may affect the Agency, testifying on behalf of IEUA on bill positions and assists IEUA staff in
building and maintaining important relationships with the Agency's delegation and regulatory
agencies. WCA has continued to demonstrate strong knowledge of the industry and more
specifically the region; they are well versed in the Agency's goals, mission, vision, and current
and upcoming projects. This long-term relationship proves to be particularly important when
looking at future impacts of legislation and possible funding opportunities.

Per IEUA's ordinance, a contract can be extended for a maximum of seven years. At the
direction of the General Manager staff amended the WCA contract through June 2023. Staff is
requesting ratification of the contract amendment for WCA. The contract for state legislative
advocacy will be reevaluated prior to July 2023.

Ratify the Contract Amendment for Contract No. 4600002123 to West Coast Advisors to
provide State Legislative Services in the amount of $114,000 through June 30, 2023.

10200-139100-100000-521080

09/14/22Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Approving the State legislative services contract is in line with IEUA's business practices goal of
advocating for development of policies, legislation and regulations that benefit the region.

On June 16, 2021, the Board approved a contract amendment with West Coast Advisors for
legislative consulting services for one additional year, extending the contract to June 30, 2022.

On August 17, 2016, the Board approved a five-year contract with West Coast Advisors.

1. Contract Amendment 4600002123

Not Applicable

22211



4600002123-004 (GD)                                                                                                                                                                                                    

6/20/2022 

 

 

 
 
 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER:  4600002123-004 
FOR 

CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 

STATE LEGISLATIVE LOBBYING SERVICES 
 
AMENDMENT NUMBER FOUR is made and entered by and between the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA), a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of 
San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred 
to as "Agency" or “IEUA”), and West Coast Advisors, of Sacramento, California (hereinafter 
referred to as "Contractor"), and shall revise the Contract as amended: 
 
TERM, IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
An additional term of this Contract shall commence on July 1, 2022, and shall continue in 
effect through June 30, 2023, unless terminated as specified on page 3, or in the event the 
maximum amount of this Contract is exceeded. 

 
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED 
 
 
WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the 
above amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become 
incorporated into the Contract Documents. 
 
 
 

 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: WEST COAST ADVISORS: 
      *A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
_______________________   ________ _________________________   ________ 
Warren T. Green                          (Date)             Michael Boccadoro                          (Date) 
Manager of Contracts,                                         President                   
Procurement & Risk Services 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1D51140A-0B22-4142-87EF-4BD9D4134272

6/21/20226/21/2022



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2E



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

RP-5 Expansion Project Budget Transfer

On July 15, 2020, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) awarded a $329,982,900 construction
contract to W.M. Lyles Co., for the Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) Expansion
Project. The RP-5 Expansion will expand the plant’s liquids treatment capacity to 22.5 MGD
and provide up to 30 MGD of solids treatment from both Carbon Canyon Water Reclamation
Facility (CCWRF) and RP-5.

RP-5 plant prior to the start of construction had four secondary clarifiers. The RP-5 Expansion
Project demolished one secondary clarifier to allow the construction of Phase 1 of the
Membrane Bioreactor (MBR). To improve settleability and reduce other process impacts,
polymer is added at the aeration basin effluent box prior to the remaining three secondary
clarifiers ensuring compliance. The polymer will no longer be required once Phase 1 of the
MBR goes into operation.

Staff is recommending a budget augmentation from RP-5 Expansion projects capital budgets to
the RP-5 Expansion projects O&M budgets to support the cost of chemicals needed for the
RP-5 Expansion.

1. Approve a FY 2022/23 tranfer in the amount of $60,000 from the RP-5 Expansion to 30
MGD, Project No. EN19001 capital budget, to the RP5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No.
EN19001 operating budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund;

2.Approve a FY 2022/23 transfer in the amount of $60,000 from the RP-5 Biosolids Facility,
Project No. EN19006 capital budget, to the RP5 Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006
operating budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget transfer.

$ 120,000

EN19001-RP5 Expansion to 30 mgd
EN19006/RP-5 Biosolids Facility

If approved, the capital budget in Fiscal Year 2022/23 for the RP-5 Expansion, Project Nos.
EN19001 and EN19006 will decrease $120,000 and the O & M budget for EN19001 and
EN19006 in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund will increase $120,000.

1000 10900 595000 127155 EN19001/EN19006

09/14/22

09/14/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y Y

10900 505000 1271551000

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The RP-5 Expansion Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater
Management, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will
ensure that systems are well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably
managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the
environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

On July 15, 2020, the Board of Directors awarded a Construction Contract to W.M. Lyles Co., in
the amount of $329,982,900.
On November 20, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a contract to Arcadis, for construction
management services for a not-to-exceed amount of $21,125,523.
On November 20, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a contract amendment to Parsons, for
engineering services during construction for a not-to-exceed amount of $12,589,469.

A Finding of Consistency with IEUA's Program Environmental Impact Report and a CEQA Plus
evaluation for SRF Loan Funding have been completed.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

22192



 

 

Attachment 1 



RP-5 Expansion Project : 
Capital to Operating Budget Transfer

Project Nos. EN19001/EN19006

Brian Wilson, P.E. CCM

Principal Engineer

September 2022



2

Issue/Solution:



3

Project Budget EN19001 & EN19006

Description O & M Capital Combined

Design Phase Services $0 $26,406,753 $26,406,753
Construction Services $0 $43,361,716 $43,361,716
Construction $120,000 $376,061,190 $376,181,190

RP-5 Expansion Bid $0 $329,982,900 $329,982,900 

Executed Change Orders $0 $3,783,454 $3,783,454

Contingency $0 $29,094,836 $29,094,836

Offsite Facilities Allowance $0 $12,000,000 $12,000,000 

Contingency $0 $1,200,000 $1,200,000 

Chemicals (this action) $120,000 $0 $120,000 

Total Project Cost: $120,000 $445,829,659 $445,949,659 

Total Requested Project Budget: $120,000 $450,000,000 $450,000,000 



1. Approve a FY 2022/23 capital budget transfer in the amount of $60,000.00 from the RP-5 
Expansion to 30 MGD, Project No. EN19001, to the RP-5 Expansion to 30 MGD, Project 
No. EN19001, O&M budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; 

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 capital budget transfer in the amount of $60,000.00 from the RP-5 
Biosolids Facility, Project No. EN19006, to the RP-5 Biosolids Facility, Project No. 
EN19006, O&M budget in the Regional Capital (RC) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the budget transfer. 

4

Recommendation 

The RP-5 Expansion Project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management and Water 
Reliability, specifically the Asset Management and Water Quality objectives that IEUA will ensure that systems are well 
maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional 

water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2F



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

 Architectural Master Services Contract Amendment

In April 2019, the Board of Directors approved a five-year master service contract with Gillis +
Panichapan Architects, Inc. (GPa) for a not-to-exceed amount of $700,000 with the option to
extend this contract by an additional two years, if needed. The initial contract amount was based
on foreseeable work at that time. GPa's work has been exceptional during these past three years.

Based on the planned projects that will require architectural design services in the ten year
capital improvement program and the past three year's level of effort on the projects GPa has
been awarded, staff is requesting an additional $725,000 to the current contract value which will
increase the contract to $1,425,000 (204% increase) and allow the Agency to continue to utilize
their services to the end of the contract term.

1. Approve a contract amendment for the Architectural Master Service Contract with Gillis +
Panichapan Architects, Inc. in the amount of $725,000 increasing the contract from $700,000 to
$1,425,000 (204% increase); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to
non-substantive changes.

Multiple capital projects and department O&M budget under various program funds.

There is no direct impact on IEUA's fiscal year budget as a result of this action. This contract
is for work which will be required on various projects. As such, no separate funding is needed 
for this contract.

N/A

09/14/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Architectural Master Service Contract is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of
Wastewater Management that ensures quality asset management and that systems are planned,
constructed, and managed to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated
regulatory requirements.

On April 19, 2019, the Board of Directors awarded a five-year Architectural Master Service
Contract to Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $700,000.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Master Service Contract Amendment - GPa

Statutory Exemption



 

 

Attachment 1 



Architectural Master Services Contract 
Amendment

Matthew A. Poeske, P.E.

Senior Engineer

September 2022



Background

2

—Completed Work
• IEUA roofing (5 Projects)
• SCADA Migration Server Room 

Design
• Wetlands Education Center
• RP-1 Lab and Administration 

Building Pre-Design

—Future Work:
• IEUA roofing
• RP-1 Lab & Administration Bldgs. 

Rehabilitation
• SCADA Migration CM
• Misc. project managers’ directed 

work

Completed and Future Projects at RP-1 Admin. and Lab Buildings

RP-1 Lab Repurpose Pre-
Design

RP-1 Administration Building 
Roof and Pre-Design



Contract Amendment Overview

3

Description Estimated Cost
Design Services to Date (3-Years): $601,785

Complete $579,460
Pending $22,325

Two Year Contract Extension: $461,368
Design Services to Date/3 Years $200,595

Calculated  2-year Contract Extension  (2 X Design Services Average) $401,190
Contingency at 15% $60,178

Pending Future TYCIP Projects: $362,174
RP-1 Administration Building Rehabilitation $78,835
RP-1 Lab Rehabilitation $123,995

RP-1 Admin Building Rehab Construction Support $11,825
RP-1 Lab Rehabilitation Construction Support $18,599
Phase IV Roofing $81,680
Contingency at 15% $47,240

Subtotal 7-Year Cost (Rounded): $1,425,000
Current Contract: $700,000

Amendment  (this action) $725,000

Revised Contract: $1,425,000

Contract Duration Date
Original Contract 5-Years April 2024

2-Year Contract Extension Terms



Recommendation

4

The Architectural Master Service Contract is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management that 
ensures quality asset management and that systems are planned, constructed, and managed to protect public health, the 

environment, and meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Approve a contract amendment for the Architectural Master Service Contract 
with Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc. in the amount of $725,000 increasing 
the contract from $700,000 to $1,425,000 (204% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to 
non-substantive changes. 



 

 

Attachment 2 



4600002710-001 (GD)                                                                                                                                                                                                    

8/4/2022 

 

 

 
 
 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NUMBER:  4600002710-001 
FOR PROVISION OF 

 
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 
AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE is made and entered by and between the Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency (IEUA), a Municipal Water District, organized and existing in the County of 
San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (hereinafter referred 
to as "Agency" or “IEUA”), and Gillis + Panichapan Architects, Inc., of Costa Mesa, CA 
(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and shall revise the Contract as amended:  
 
SECTION 2.A.3, TERM, IS REVISED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 
An additional term of this Contract shall commence on May 1, 2024, and shall 
continue in effect through April 30, 2026, unless terminated as specified in section 
21, (Termination for Convenience), or in the event the maximum amount of this 
Contract is exceeded as set forth in section 5 (Compensation and Changes). 
 

SECTION 5. COMPENSATION AND CHANGES, PARAGRAPH A. IS REVISED TO 
READ AS FOLLOWS: 
 

A. An additional $725,000.00 will be added to the total not-to-exceed compensation 
payable to the Contractor, such that the Contractor’s total compensation for 
services rendered under this Agreement, as amended, shall not exceed the 
aggregate sum of $1,425,000.00 for all services satisfactorily provided during the 
term of this Contract. The Consultant shall not be paid for any amount exceeding 
the NOT-TO-EXCEED amount, nor for work completed beyond the expiration 
date without an Amendment to the Contract. 
 

 
 

 
 

ALL OTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS CONTRACT REMAIN UNCHANGED 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9895DC12-A5FE-4FE3-844E-855926C649C2



4600002710-001 (GD)                                                                                                                                                                                                    

8/4/2022 

 

 

 
WITNESSETH, that the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed as per the 
above amendment item, and in doing so have caused this document to become 
incorporated into the Contract Documents. 
 
 
 

 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: GILLIS + PANICHAPAN ARCHITECTS, INC.: 
      *A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
_______________________   ________ _________________________   ________ 
Shivaji Deshmukh P.E.                (Date)      Jack Panichapan                                           (Date) 
General Manager   Principal/CEO 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9895DC12-A5FE-4FE3-844E-855926C649C2

8/4/2022



CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2G



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Project Fiscal Year
2022/23 Project Budget Augmentation

In 2020, Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) with CDM Smith initiated the Collection
System Condition Assessment and Optimization Project. The goal of the project is to enhance
IEUA's planning and maintenance of the collection assets within the regional and brine sewer
systems by gathering condition assessment data on several critical sewer assets and develop a
comprehensive sewer system maintenance optimization program. The project is scheduled to be
completed by December 2022. On July 20, 2022, the Board of Directors approved a total
project budget augmentation for Project EN19024 from $3,590,419 to $3,919,419 in the RO
Fund and for Project No. EN19028, from $915,000 to $1,256,000 in the NC Fund to complete
the condition assessment scope with CDM Smith with an amendment to perform additional
cleaning and bypassing efforts on two remaining siphons. With the Board approved augmented
budget for each project, staff is recommending a Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 budget augmentation
for EN19024 and EN19028 to complete the project as scheduled. The adjustment would adjust
the FY 2022/23 budget for EN19024 from $329,878 to $380,115 ($50,237 increase) and
EN19028 from $70,000 to $463,398 ($393,398 increase). These adjustments would allow
projected spending to align with the augmented total project budget.

1. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the Regional System Asset
Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $50,237, from $329,878 to $380,115 in
the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) Fund;

2. Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole and Pipeline
Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $393,398, from $70,000 to $463,398 in the
Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation.

$ 443,635

EN19024/Regional System Asset Management
EN19028/NRW Manhole and Pipeline

If approved, the FY 2022/23 project budget for Project EN19024 will increase from $329,878 to
$380,115 in the RO Fund and for Project No. EN19028, the FY 2022/23 project budget will
increase from $70,000 to $463,398 in the NC Fund. These changes will not increase the total
project budget for each project.

1000 10800 501000 127100 EN19024/EN19028

09/14/22

09/14/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

10500 160000 1271001000

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Collection System Condition Assessment and Optimization Project is consistent with the 
IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management and 
Water Quality objectives, that IEUA will ensure that systems are well maintained, upgraded to 
meet evolving requirements, sustainably managed, and accommodate changes in regional 
water use to protect public health, the environment, and meet anticipated regulatory 
requirements.

On July 20th, 2022 IEUA's Board of Directors approved an amendment to CDM Smith’s
contract for a not-to-exceed amount of $659,325
On September 16, 2020, IEUA's Board of Directors approved the service contract with CDM
Smith for a not-to-exceed amount of $2,910,909 for the Condition Assessment and Optimization
of the Collection System, Project Nos. EN19024 & EN19028.

CEQA exempts a variety of projects from compliance with the statute. This project qualifies for
a Statutory Exemption as defined in Section 15262 of the State CEQA Guidelines. When the
project will be implemented, it will be subject to future environmental evaluation.

Attachment 1- PowerPoint 

Statutory Exemption

22157



 

 

Attachment 1 



Collection System Condition Assessment 
and Optimization Project FY 2022/23 Budget 

Augmentation 
Project No. EN19024 and EN19028

Ryan Ward, E.I.T.

Associate Engineer

September 2022



Project Overview/Location

2

Collection Sewer 
System

Brine Sewer 
System

Regional Sewer 
System

Collection Sewer System

• Two independent sewer systems

• Regional Sewer System

• Brine Sewer System

City BSS – Siphons RSS – Siphons

Rancho Cucamonga 4 -

Ontario 5 10

Fontana 3 4

Chino 1 14

Chino Hills - -

Claremont - -

Total Assets 13 28

Total Length of Assets 4,745 feet 9,601 feet
Brine Sewer System (BSS)
Regional Sewer System (RSS)



Project Goals/Objectives

3

• Goals

– Enhance asset data

– Develop risk management framework

– Support asset management best 
practices

• Objectives

– Conduct assessment, inspection and 
cleaning

– Develop maintenance optimization plan

Coordination

Development of Condition 
Assessment Implementation 
Plan

Implementation

Condition Assessments, 
Inspections, and Cleaning

Evaluation

Available Data and 
Information

Optimization

Collection System Enhanced 
Management Program

Path to Meeting Goals & Objectives

Recent Effort: 
Discovery of 

Potential Sewer 
Failure 4-inch hole 

in sewer line 



Project Budget and Schedule

4

Description Cost

Asset Management/Inspection Support (actuals/projected) $1,463,685 
Asset Management $471,687

Inspection Support $991,998

Other Engineering Consulting Support (actuals/projected) $75,000 
Engineering Consultant (GHD Contract)   $75,000 

CDM Smith's Service Contract (actuals/projected) $3,626,734
CDM Smith’s Service Contract $3,626,734

Total Project Budget: $5,175,419 
Total EN19024’s Budget for RSS Assets (RO Fund) $3,919,419

Total EN19028’s Budget for BSS Assets (NC Fund) $1,256,000

Current FY22/23 Budget for EN19024 $329,878
Current FY22/23 Budget for EN19028 $70,000
Requested FY22/23 Budget Augmentation to EN19024 (this action) + $50,237

Requested FY22/23 Budget Augmentation to EN19028 (this action) + $393,398

Adjusted FY22/23 Budget for EN19024: $380,115
Adjusted FY22/23 Budget for EN19028: $463,398

Contract Milestone Date

Complete Condition Assessment Sept. 2022

Complete Planning/Optimization Dec. 2022



Recommendation

5

This project is consistent with IEUA’s Business Goal of Wastewater Management, specifically the Asset Management 
objective that IEUA will ensure the Collection's System is well maintained, upgraded to meet evolving requirements, 

sustainably managed, and can accommodate changes in regional water use to protect public health, the environment, and 
meet anticipated regulatory requirements.

• Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the Regional System 
Asset Management Project, No. EN19024, in the amount of $50,237, from 
$329,878 to $380,115 in the Regional Operations and Maintenance (10800) 
Fund; 

• Approve a FY 2022/23 project budget augmentation for the NRW Manhole 
and Pipeline Project, No. EN19028, in the amount of $393,398, from 
$70,000 to $463,398 in the Non-Reclaimable Wastewater (10500) Fund; and

• Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation.



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2H



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

RMPU Project Budget Augmentation, Agreement Amendment, and Construction 
Change Order Approval

In May 2017, Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) and Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
executed a cost sharing agreement, Task Order No. 9, under the Recharge Master Plan Update
(RMPU) to implement the groundwater recharge improvements within the Chino Basin at
Wineville, Jurupa, and RP-3 basins. These improvements will enhance the groundwater basin by
adding approximately 2,921 acre-feet per year (AFY) of stormwater and 2,905 AFY of recycled
water for basin recharge. On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction
contract under Project No. RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of
$15,480,880 for the construction at Wineville and Jurupa basins and force main construction
within Ontario and Fontana. Currently, additional funds are needed to address higher
construction cost due to changes in the site conditions, delays to the schedule, and scope changes
to the project. At the August 25th Board meetings at CBWM, the Board agreed to increase the
project's budget through the approval of the amended Task Order No. 9. The following is staff's
recommendation (1) increase the total project budget under RW15003.06 by $3.26 M to address
higher construction costs, (2) finalize the execution of the amended CBWM/IEUA Task Order
No. 9, and (3) execute a change order in a not-to-exceed amount of $3.16 M with the Contractor,
MNR to resolve utility conflicts with buried utilities and to extend the schedule.

1. Approve the total project budget augmentation for RW15003.00 in Fiscal Year 2022/23 from
$24,004,424 to $27,260,512;
2. Approve the second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order 
No.9, for the project under RW15003.06;
3. Approve the construction change order with MNR Construction, Inc. for Project No. 
RW15003.06 at a not-to-exceed amount of $3,161,995 increasing the contract from
$15,669,068.27 to $18,831,063.27 (a 20% increase); and
4. Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation, agreement amendment, 
and change order, subject to non-substantive changes.

$ 3,256,088

RW15003.06/Wineville, Jurupa, Force Main

The budget increase will only impact fiscal year spending; however, the cost is offset with
nearly $9.7 M in state and federal grants. The remaining cost is funded by available Clean Water
State Revolving Funds which will be an added debt service to CBWM after one year from
construction completion. CBWM pays 100% of the cost under RW15003.06.

1000 10300 126100 4235000 RW15003

09/14/22

09/14/22

Engineering, Operations & Water Resources
Finance & Administration

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

N Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The projects under the 2013 RMPU which include the Wineville, Jurupa and Force Main are
consistent with the IEUA's Business Goal of Water Reliability, specifically the Groundwater
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region
through strategic, cost-effective partnerships, and development.

On July 20, 2022, the Board of Directors ratified the change order with MNR Construction, Inc.
in the amount of $188,188.27.

On June 16, 2021, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract for the Project No.
RW15003.06 to MNR Construction, Inc. in the amount of $15,480,880.

The RMPU Project was under a comprehensive Program Environmental Impact Report which
the Board adopted as complete on March 15, 2017. Within this report specific mitigation
measures are a part of the Project that will be implemented under the attached Mitigation
Measures and Reporting Program (MMRP).

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint Presentation
Attachment 2 - Second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order
No.9
Attachment 3 - Change Order with MNR Construction, Inc. which is a not-to-exceed amount of
$3,161,995.

Program Environmental Impact Report (Finding of Consistency)

22194



Attachment 1 



Recharge Master Plan Update Project
Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Construction 

Project No. RW15003.06
AUGMENT TOTAL BUDGET – AMEND COST SHARING AGREEMENT – CHANGE ORDER APPROVALS

Joel Ignacio, PE

Project Manager

September 14, 2022



2

Overall RMPU Project Update

Basin Projects Additional Recharge Goal

Stormwater Recycled Water

San Sevaine Basin 642 4,100

Lower Day Basin 993 -

Victoria Basin 75 120

Montclair Basins 96 -

Wineville, Jurupa, RP3 Basins 2,921 2,905

Total: 4,727 7,125



3

RW15003.06 Background/Scope

Installation of a 
stormwater force main 
system (pump station)

New Recharge Facility 

Increase stormwater diversion

Added recharge basin

Project Benefit:

• Increase stormwater recharge to 2,921 acre-feet per year

• Increased recycled water 2,905 acre-feet per year (with RP-3)



4

Construction Status
CONSTRUCTION WINEVILLE/JURUPA/FORCE MAIN

CONTRACT AMOUNT

MNR’s Original Contract Total $   15,480,880 

Project’s Original Contingency $     1,548,088 

Construction Progress 49%

Contractor Invoiced 49%

SCHEDULE DATE

Completion Date based on Baseline Schedule: 5/12/2023

Schedule Elapsed (on Approved Baseline Schedule): 59%



5

Increasing Construction Cost
• Unforeseen Field Conditions

— Conflicts with buried utilities

• Schedule Delays

— Permit delays at start of construction

— Supply/demand issues on change conditions

— Delaying completion to mid to late 2023

• Needed Scope Changes

— Added manhole access

— Fencing

— Utility changes

— Rubber Dam design changes

• Others

— Additional Contingencies

• Impacts

— Requesting a $4.8 million contingency fund to address increasing cost

— Current Contingency: $1.5 million

Changed site conditions, 
56%

Needed Scope Changes, 6%

Schedule Delays, 21%

Other, 17%

Percent Breakdown 
Projected $4.8 M Contingency Fund 

$800 K

$1.0 M

$300 K

$2.7 M



6

Change Order Request

• Resolving Utility Conflicts

— Identified 89 buried utilities (200% more) along 
Jurupa Street/Road (Cities of Fontana and 
Ontario) 

— Revised 11 sheets of the construction plans

— Changing alignment for nearly 90% of the 2.1 
miles of new pipe

— Change Order cost: $2,411,995

• Extending Contract Schedule

— Permit delays at start of construction

— Availability of pipes delayed

— Delaying completion to mid to late 2023

— Additional overhead cost to manage extended 
schedule

— Change Order cost: $750,000

• Change Order cost of $3,161,995

— 20% Change Order Ratio

Revised Construction Plan (Sheet 78C-21)

Initial Construction Plan (Sheet 78C-21)

Additional 
utilities/relocate new 

deeper
6



7

Impact to Project Budget (RW15003.06)

Description (Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main)
RW15003.06

Budget
(A)

Cost to Date
(B)

Remaining
(A-B)

Revised Item
(D)

Impact
(D-A)

Design Services $1,960,940 $1,960,940 $0 

Preliminary Design Contract (actual cost) $269,300 $269,300 $0 

Design Contract (actual cost) $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $0 

Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin (actual costs) $191,640 $191,640 $0 

Construction Services $1,231,044 $494,035 $737,009 

Design Consultant Construction Services $397,977 $201,907 $196,070 

IEUA Construction Services $833,067 $292,128 $540,939 

Construction $17,028,968 $7,527,594 $11,939,667 

Construction Contract (MNR Construction) $15,480,880 $7,339,405 $10,391,579 

Contingency - Change Orders $1,548,088 $188,188 $1,359,900 $4,804,176 ($3,256,088)

Total: $20,220,952 $9,982,569 $12,676,675 $4,804,176 ($3,256,088)

Augment project budget to increase project contingency funds from $1.55 M to $4.80 M ($3.26 M increase)



8

Project Budget & Schedule

Change Order Ratio:  20%
Contingency Remaining: 30%

Project Milestone Date
Construction
Contract Award Jun 2021
Project Completion May 2023

Description Cost
Design Services $1,960,940 
Preliminary Design Contract (actual cost) $269,300 
Design Contract (actual cost) $1,500,000 
Environmental/Permits/Bid/Admin (actual costs) $191,640 

Construction Services $1,231,044 
Design Consultant Construction Services (actual) $397,977 
IEUA Construction Services (projected) $833,067 

Construction $20,285,056 
Construction Contract (MNR Construction) $15,480,880 
Executed Change Orders $188,188 
Change Orders (this action) $3,161,995 
Remaining Adjusted Contingency $1,453,993 

Augmented Total Project Cost for RW15003.06 (sub-project): $23,477,040 
Augmented Total Project Cost for RW15003.00 (parent project): $27,260,512 
Current Budget for RW15003.00 (parent project): $24,004,424 
Increasing Budget for Parent Project RW15003.00 (this action): $3,256,088 

The Project is funded with $10.8 M grants and the remaining cost is financing with CWSRF



Phase Start Finish Projected Cost

Project Development 7/1/2014 12/17/2014 $14,600 

Pre-Design 12/18/2014 11/16/2016 $407,900 

Environmental Impact 12/18/2014 4/20/2016 $179,500 

Permits 12/18/2014 1/8/2018 $52,400 

Design 6/22/2017 12/31/2020 $1,372,500 

Bid and Award 1/1/2021 6/15/2021 $15,000

Construction 6/22/2021 12/31/2023 $23,254,440 

Total $25,296,340 

Available Grants

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa 

Basin

RP-3 Basin Total

State Water Resources Control 
Board - Storm Water Grant 
Program

$8,994,167 $809,214 $9,803,381 

United States Department of 
Interior Bureau of Reclamation -
Drought Resiliency

- $290,000 $290,000 

United States Department of 
Interior Bureau of Reclamation -
Secure Water Act

$740,000 - $740,000

Total $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381

9

Amendment to Cost Sharing Agreement

CBWM/IEUA/Grant

Stormwater 
Distribution 

System/Wineville 
Basin/Jurupa 

Basin

RP-3 Basin Total

Watermaster $13,742,873 $360,043 $14,102,916

IEUA - $360,043 $360,043

Grants $9,734,167 $1,099,214 $10,833,381

Total $23,477,040 $1,819,300 $25,296,340

Total Project Budget Breakdown Specific RW15003.06/.05 Total Available Grants Specific to RW15003.06/.05

Revised Cost Share Breakdown Specific to RW15003.06/.05 Chino Basin Watermaster’s Actions:

Aug. 11 - All three Watermaster Pools unanimously agreed 
to have the Advisory Committee consider the amendment

Aug. 18 – The Advisory unanimously agreed to recommend 
the amendment for Board approval

Aug. 25 – CBWM Board to finalize approval and 
authorization of amendment to augment budget



10

Recommendation

The RMPU Project is consistent with the IEUA’s Business Goal of Water Reliability specifically the Groundwater 
Recharge objective that IEUA will maximize groundwater recharge projects in the region through strategic, cost-effective 

partnerships, and development.

• Approve the total project budget augmentation for RW15003.00 in Fiscal Year 2022/23 
from $24,004,424 to $27,260,512;

• Approve second amendment to IEUA and CBWM’s Cost Sharing Agreement, Task Order 
No.9, for Project No. RW15003.06;

• Approve the construction change order with MNR Construction, Inc. for Project No. 
RW15003.06 at a not-to-exceed amount of $3,161,995 increasing the contract from
$15,669,068.27 to $18,831,063.27 (approximately a 20% increase); and

• Authorize the General Manager to approve the budget augmentation, agreement 
amendment, and change order, subject to non-substantive changes. 



   CONSENT 
    CALENDAR 

ITEM 

2I 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Fiscal Year 2021/22 Carry Forward Budget Amendment

The Agency’s Fiscal Control Ordinance established that all unexpended appropriations shall
lapse at the end of the Fiscal Year, unless approved by the Board to be carried forward to the
following fiscal year.

In compliance with the Agency’s Fiscal Ordinance and with Agency’s Policy A-81, Fiscal Year
End Carry Forward of Encumbrances and Related Budget, Finance staff worked with different
departments to identify open encumbrances and commitments from Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 to
be honored in FY 2022/23.

Open encumbrances and non-encumbered commitments to be carried forward from FY 2021/22
to FY 2022/23 total $20,820,994 and are comprised of $5,408,121 for operations and
maintenance expenses, $7,795,788 for non-capital projects, and $7,617,085 for capital projects.

Future expenditures against these carried forward commitments will reduce the reserve balances
in the respective funds as summarized in Attachment 1, Table 2.

1. Approve the carry forward of open encumbrances and non-encumbered commitments related
to budgets from FY 2021/22 to FY 2022/23; and

2. Amend the FY 2022/23 budget in the amount of $5,408,121 for operations and maintenance
expenses, $7,795,788 for non-capital projects, and $7,617,085 for capital projects.

$ 20,820,994

If approved, the FY 2022/23 budget will be augmented by $20,820,994, in the respective funds
and major account categories (capital and operations & maintenance) as detailed in Attachment
1, Table 2.

09/14/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The carry forward of encumbrances at fiscal year end is consistent with the Agency's business
goal of Fiscal Responsibility and maintaining prudent budgetary controls.

On September 15, 2021, the Board approved the carry forward of $18.9 million from FY
2020/21 to FY 2021/22.

On June 15, 2022, the Board approved the FY 2022/23 Amended Budget.

Attachment 1 – Background
Attachment 2 – PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22209







* Numbers may not tie due to rounding 











 
 

.



ACTION  
ITEM 

3A



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Chino Basin Program Professional Consulting Services Contract Amendment

In July 2018, the California Water Commission (CWC) approved a maximum conditional grant
funding of $206.9M under Proposition 1 - Water Storage Investment Program (WSIP). In
August 2021, an early funding agreement of $8.9M was executed to assist with planning-related
activities such as program administration, technical feasibility studies, environmental evaluation,
and regulatory coordination to maintain eligibility for the funding. Since April 2022, an
additional $8M were received, increasing the funding amount to $215M.

Brown and Caldwell was awarded a consulting services contract in March 2019 to provide
preliminary design services for the PUT and TAKE facilities but it was amended to develop a
technical feasibility study for the CWC feasibility determination in November 2021. This
amendment will provide engineering services for preliminary design reports of the advanced
water purification facility, injection wells, the Rialto recycled water intertie and permitting
strategy. Their continued professional services will provide IEUA with the best value.

The proposed contract amendment for Brown and Caldwell is for a not-to-exceed amount of
$2,855,000, a 72% increase, and will provide continued services through 2023.

1. Approve a contract amendment for professional consulting services to Brown and Caldwell
in the amount of $2,855,000, increasing the contract from $3,978,506 to a not-to-exceed amount
of $6,833,506;

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to
non-substantive changes.

The contract amendment for a not-to-exceed amount of $2,855,000 will be funded by Project
No. PL19005 in the Water Resources (WW) fund.

09/14/22Engineering, Operations & Water Resources 

Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager

Y N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The CBP supports IEUA's business goal of Water Reliability, of implementing an integrated 
water resources management plan providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and 
promoting sustainable water use throughout the region.

On March 20, 2019, IEUA's Board of Directors approved a project budget amendment of $8.7M,
increasing the project budget from $6.3M to $15M for the Chino Basin Program and awarded a
consulting services contract to Brown and Caldwell for a not-to-exceed amount of $3,978,506.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint
Attachment 2 - Consultant Contract

Not Applicable



Chino Basin Program
Professional Consulting Services Contract Amendment

Elizabeth Hurst

Chino Basin Program Manager

September 21, 2022



2

Background

July 2018 Chino Basin Program (CBP) received the conditional funding award of $207M

March 2019 Brown and Caldwell (B&C) awarded an engineering services contract for 
preliminary design for CBP components

October 2021 B&C completed the technical feasibility study for submission to the California 
Water Commission (CWC)

November 2021 CWC determined CBP's feasibility and eligibility for Water Storage Investment 
Program funding

May 2022 IEUA Board of Directors adopted the Program Environmental Impact Report



3

Key Roles

Role Consultant

Program Management (State) GEI

Preliminary Design Brown and Caldwell

Owner’s Agent TBD

AWPF Design Builder TBD

Injection Wells TBD

Rialto External Recycled Water TBD



4

Chino Basin Program Facilities



5

CBP Preliminary Design Schedule



• Perform a preliminary site investigation of RP-4

• Define process design criteria, site layout, facility 
implementation, and regulatory compliance

• Prepare project technical requirements for a 
progressive design build delivery approach

• Evaluate CEC compliance strategy such as 
regulatory requirements and treatment 
technologies

• Develop cost estimate in 2023 dollars 

• Prepare a preliminary design report

6

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
Advanced Water Purification Facility



• Develop well siting criteria and evaluate 
preliminary well sites including test injection 
well sites

• Perform exploratory borings and 
geophysical investigation using seismic 
reflection survey

• Conduct geochemical aquifer analysis from 
soil samples and testing

• Provide oversight during test injection well 
construction and testing and document 
results

• Develop a cost estimate in 2023 dollars

• Prepare a preliminary design report

7

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
Injection and Monitoring Wells



• Conduct workshops/meetings with 
IEUA staff and stakeholders

• Conduct pipeline alignment alternatives 
analysis, utility research, direct use 
opportunities, pump station siting

• Prepare preliminary design drawings 
for selected alignment alternative and 
pump station

• Develop a cost estimate in 2023 dollars 

• Prepare a preliminary design report

8

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
City of Rialto Recycled Water Intertie



• Conduct workshops/meetings with 
regulatory agencies to discuss compliance 
and expectations

• Prepare a permitting plan for PUT 
infrastructure

• Develop regulatory strategy to define 
requirements and expectations

• Prepare a technical memorandum

9

Contract Amendment Scope of Work:
Permitting Plan and Regulatory Strategy



10

Project Budget

Description Cost

Preliminary Design/Technical Feasibility Contract $3,978,506

Brown and Caldwell Expenditures ($2,398,506)

Remaining Contract Balance $1,580,000

Preliminary Design Services: $4,435,000

Ongoing coordination $375,000

Advanced Water Purification Facility $1,399,000

City of Rialto Recycled Water Intertie $592,000

Injection wells $1,894,000

Permitting plan $175,000

Contract Amendment $2,855,000

Total Revised Cost for Preliminary Design Services $6,833,506

Project Milestone Date

Preliminary Design Completion

Advanced Water Purification Facility May 2023

City of Rialto Recycled Water Intertie May 2023

Injection wells May 2023

Permitting plan March 2023

CBP Planning Budget Cost

Current Budget $15,000,000

Expenditures to date ($6,222,750)

Approved Early Funding Agreement $8,919,000

Early Funding Reimbursement to date $5,109,823



• Approve a contract amendment for professional consulting services with Brown and Caldwell, 
Contract No. 46000002697, for the Chino Basin Program in the amount of $2,855,000, increasing 
the contract from $3,978,506 to a not-to-exceed amount of $6,833,506; and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment, subject to non-substantive 
changes.

11

Recommendation

The contract amendment is consistent with IEUA's business goal of Water Reliability by 
implementing an integrated water resources management plan that provides the region with 

reliable and cost-effective water supply and promotes sustainable water use.



�

����������	
���
����������������������������������������������� � ����������������������

������ !���!"#�$"#����%"&# '��()****+),-.**(�/01���23���&!43��5 �6 !"�5 #73"3�! 8�$#436�� #5� ���9:;<=:;<>�<?:@;A�BC?A�DE�FGHI�GJH�IJKILIH�DJKM�KNDE�OOO�HGP�MQ�OOOOOOOOOOOOOR�STSSR�UP�GJH�UIKVIIJ�KNI�WJXGJH�;FYDLI�?KDXDKDIE�9ZIJ[PR�G�:\JD[DYGX�]GKIL�=DEKLD[KR�MLZGJD̂IH�GJH�I_DEKDJZ�DJ�KNI�̀M\JKP�MQ�aGJ�@ILJGLHDJM�\JHIL�GJH�UP�bDLK\I�MQ�KNI�XGVE�MQ�KNI�aKGKI�MQ�̀GXDQMLJDG�cNILIDJGQKIL�LIQILLIH�KM�GE�defghi�jkl�dhmnkopiq�jkl�@LMVJ�GJH�̀GXHVIXXR�VDKN�MQQD[IE�XM[GKIH�DJ�WLbDJIR�̀GXDQMLJDG�cNILIDJGQKIL�LIQILLIH�KM�jr�d̀MJE\XKGJKiqR�ENGXX�LIbDEI�KNI�̀MJKLG[K�GE�QMXXMVEs��� #t34#�4#��3���(u�4��5#��v�w� x�!�$�4# t3�#4u�!$$3�6�!�5! !6 !52���� #!$'��9HHDKDMJGX�̀MJE\XKGJK�EILbD[IE�GJH�LIEYMJEDUDXDKDIE�ENGXX�DJ[X\HI�GJH�UI�DJ�G[[MLHGJ[I�VDKN�yzkr{|}jk}~r��\MKIR�HGKIH�9\Z\EK��R�STSSR�#�������!R�VND[N�DE�GKKG[NIH�NILIKMR�LIQILIJ[IH�NILIDJR�GJH�FGHI�G�YGLK�NILIMQ��� #t34#�4#��3���)u��# "u�!$$3�6�!�5! !6 !52u���� #!$'��]DKN�KNI�I_I[\KDMJ�MQ�M̀JKLG[K�9FIJHFIJK�<\FUIL���TTTTS����TT�R�KNI�KILFDJGKDMJ�HGKI�MQ�KNDE�̀MJKLG[K�ENGXX�UI�I_KIJHIH�KM�=I[IFUIL���R�STS���\JXIEE�GZLIIH�KM�UP�UMKN�YGLKDIER�LIH\[IH�KM�VLDKDJZR�GJH�GFIJHIH�DJ�KNDE�̀MJKLG[K��� #t34#�4#��3���-u���"5#�4!�3��u�!$$3�6�!�5! !6 !52���� #!$'�WJ�[MFYIJEGKDMJ�QML�KNI�VML��LIYLIEIJKIH�UP�KNDE�̀ MJKLG[K�9FIJHFIJKR�9ZIJ[P�ENGXX�YGP�M̀JE\XKGJK�G����.��.#��##$�"!�3"%"�����)u���u�*)�QML�GXX�EILbD[IE�YLMbDHIH��>NDE�LIYLIEIJKE�GJ�DJ[LIGEI�MQ��+u���u***�DJ�G[[MLHGJ[I�VDKN�#�������!�VND[N�DE�GKKG[NIH�NILIKMR�LIQILIJ[IH�NILIDJR�GJH�FGHI�G�YGLK�NILIMQ����!77���2# �5 �t343��4��v��234����� !��� #"!3��%��2!�6#$��>NI�YGLKDIE�NILIKM�NGbI�F\K\GXXP�[MbIJGJKIH�GJH�GZLIIH�GE�YIL�KNI�GUMbI�GFIJHFIJK�DKIFR�GJH�DJ�HMDJZ�EM�NGbI�[G\EIH�KNDE�HM[\FIJK�KM�UI[MFI�DJ[MLYMLGKIH�DJKM�KNI�̀MJKLG[K�=M[\FIJKE����3�7!�$�#"53 #�%�373�3#4�!6#��8'� & �w��!�$��!7$w#77'��������������������������� ¡¢�£�¤ ¢�� ����OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO���OOOOOOOO�OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO���OOOOOOOO�aNDbG¥D�=IENF\�N� �c=GKI¦� :D[NGIX�§\[[DMR�§��;������������������������c=GKI¦�ÏJILGX�:GJGZIL� � � ©D[I�§LIEDHIJK�

ª«¬®̄°±�²±³́µ«¶́�·ª̧�¹º»¼½¼½¼¾½½¿¿¾ÀÁ¹Â¾»ÃºÄ¾ÃÅºÅ»»Áªª²ÅÆ

ÇÈÉÊÈËÌËË



������������	
�����������
����	����������������� �!��"�#�"$�$�� 		�$%



����������	
��
�����������������������������
�������
�������������� �!� �����"����� �!� �����

#$%�%&�'%&��(����#�('����%��%�(
�'���

�)�(������������*( �+�,
�*���,��- . ��������.�)�����/-��0�#��*
�
)������
�&�.�%����1�������(�)��#2������	��$
����������3������
�������
������� ��!��� �������$0�#����3����4
(���-��)�
��-56�7� ��5�
��*( �*���,���8�����
�����
��(��9#���&�
$��������#��#�%��
��
�&�%�������
�2�&�(�)������������3���3����4
(���-��)�
��:�4-;�
�&�
���%��
(�&�<��3��3����#��������������(�
$��(3�&�<��3��3���
����(�(�
=�3��&��( �>��3�(�$��((��������3����#3��#
��"�
(�$����2����&2�
�&�(�%%�����)�&�#�����
���������3���
�������
�>
���������((����
�&���#��%�����������(����������(�/(�%%���������%������
��%��)�
��%
���#�%
��(��<�����=����<
�&����$���)����#�������&�(����#������3�����
�&�.�%����1�����2�)��#2�:�.1;����&�����%���������3���4- �8�����
��<
(��(�
$��(3�&����$�����9�$���
�&�
&0�(�����#3
�)�(�
((�#�
��&�<��3���%��������)��3�(�#��%��9�%��)�
� ���.1�#���
#��&�4��<��
�&��
�&<����:4�;����%��%
���
�$������������%��%�(
�����%����&��#�������&�%�������
�2�&�(�)����%����:-56;�(����#�(������
����(��4-��������( ��3�(�<��=�<���&�$��
��3���,�&���&���������
�?(�#��������4-�#����
#���(��)����
����)����&(�
�
��
$��������������
�?(����9�$���
%%��
#3�
�&�<��=%�
� ��%�#���#�(����#�(���#��&���@��
(=���7�-��%
���6�)���
��-�
���A� ���:6-�;�&�
�#�&�>
����-�����#
�����"
#����2�:>-";�-56�
�&�-��0�#����#3��#
��6�B��������(�@��
(=���7�-��%
������2����6�
����:6�
���;�6�#2#��&�>
������%%�2�-56�@��
(=�!�7�-��%
�����0�#�����
�&�*��������)�>���(�-56��5��
���&������)�6�%����
�&����&�#��C2&��)����)�#�����(��)
����(�@��
(=���7�-��%
���-��������)�-�
��
�&�6�)��
���2����
��)2��3�(��������%��%�(
��%����&�(��3���#�%�����>��=��+��������.������
�&��#3�&���������3����B��(��&�(����#�( ���3�������<��)��
(=(�<����$��#��%����&���&����3�(�(#�%�����<��=��DED�FGHIJKL�MNGOPKL�QRHRSPQPHL�RHI�RIQTHTULNRLTGHE����&�#��)����
��%��0�#���
�
)������
�&�
&����(��
�����
#�������(����#��&��)��
(=�#���&��
������)����
��#������#
����(��(#�%���(#3�&����
�&�$�&)�����
#=��)�
�&������#��%��%
�
���� �4
(�(����������������������(������3��
((���&��<�����:��;�����3�-56�&��
���� ��DEV�FGHIJKL�KWRHSP�QRHRSPQPHL�RHI�XJRYTLZ�KGHLNGYE�*��������
(=�%��)��((�
�&������2��.1����%������
����%
#�(����(#�%���(#3�&�������$�&)�� �5�#������#3
�)�(�
�&�

[\]̂_̀ab�cbdef\ge�h[i�jklmnmnmonnppoqrjsoltkuotvkvllr[[cvw



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

������� �������!���� ���������� ���

�����
�����������!�����������������
�����
�����"����#	�������
������!��$���"������!�����������������	�����������������%&'�()*+,-.�/00.1*23�4*+�5)6738)93&���������"����
��"���������	�������
�:;�<�$��=�>�����
�������
�������
����$���������������
����!��$���$��>���������""�������������>������
���
��$��=�>����?��$�
�����>������
�@$��=�>�������A����������>�����������	�����������
����
	����$��>���A����������
���
�������
�����������������
���$��=�
�������������"�����������������""�����>��"��>����

�����B�:C<�$��=�>����$�����������
����$�����������$��=�>�����D>��"�����$�����!������
��!��!��$@�!�	����
��"��>���
��
�����	�A������������
���������
�����
���	�>��>�����������""�>��������������������
����!��$��
�	������������>������
��$��=�>����D>������
��$��=�>������>��	��������B��������
��$��=��"�����>��"�������>�����!��������������
E���!�
������
���>���$������	��������#	�����
����
�	����
���������
��"������A����������
�����
��D>��"��$�
��$��=�>�����
�������
��������������
�����	��
����!�����
���"��>���FGH�I������
��J;�K�L��=E�""������
��I�M��=�>���J;�K�G������������

�
���I�M��=�>���J��K��M�?���������@�>���
���$�������	������
��#	������I�M��=�>���JN�K����A�������>
������#	�����
���������
����
�I�M��=�>���J��K�O�����E$����P�P�������
����I�M��=�>���JQ�K�R��������
���
�����
������������
�I�M��=�>���JC�K��M�?��������
�����������
�����	������������
���I������
��J��K�F��"���FG��
����	����
@�!��!��$��I������
��JN�K�F��"���FG������
��@�����
������!��$�I������
��J��K�?�
���FG������
�����
�%&S�()*+,-.�960T1/1*46U�31.0�1*V03.124.1)*3�4.�WXYS&�P�
�	���������
����������	�!�������������>��B����
���
"�����	��	���������������������	
��������
����
"�����!������"������
��"�������������M�?���
��������	�!��������
���$��>�"�����	�!���!���"������
������

����P�
�	���������>
�����!�	����
��"��>��G�E�����������������>���
����������>
������
�����
���
�����
��"���
��������=�������>������	������#	���
�����������
�����>�����������������A������

�
���������������
����
�@�������������������

���"����>���������
�����
!���������
��Z���������������>
����������������
�����	
���>��G�E�������$�����������!��$����
���
���������!�������������B��������>��������������	�!����
��������>
�����
!���������
�:�����
��������<�$�������
�	��������������"��>��
�B���>�����"������
���!�����
���%&[�()*+,-.�960T1/1*46U�+0312*&�\	���"����P\����
����������
]��
����
��
��$��>����"���	��
���
��������
�����>��������:���������>��
���<��������
���������
�$����"�
���>���������"������
���������
���������������
�����������������
������������	���
��>����	������������
�E�����"��������
�����������
��"�������������
�����
���D>��������
���������
�$�������
�	�����!�����
���"��>��"��$�
�H�I�������;�̂ ��!��������
���������
����$�
���:	������_��>����<�����	�������������!�����
���
����
"�������A����"����������I������������������

àbcdefg�hgijkalj�m̀n�opqrsrsrtssuutvwoxtqypzty{p{qqẁ h̀{|



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#$%�&'()*'(�&'+,(-.�/(-012-*3�4(562'(7(1.8$��������
���	 �������9��:��;��9���;<�������������=����>��:
����<�?	�����
���@�><A����:
����������
�	�����:������� ���
�	����B��:��:��C �����
�����	��
��D�9����:��<����E�F���:�	���:�����=������������9��B�
�������������"�������
� 	���@�;GA����"�����������:��>:���><�B���	��������H������=���� ��H���	
�����
������?	�����
����B�����?	������:����	������������������
��:����	����
���������
�������
�����������:���9�����:�� �����9�������I�������
���?	�����
����
�����9���
�����
��B�	��	�������� ����
����������
��	�������
���?	�����
���9����;<����"������>:���;<��������B��H���
�	��
���:��"����	��B��H�:������?	������9������������99��B�	���
9������"�����
���9��:���><����	��
����������
�����������:�����������I�����������
���:���><��
���
����:����;<J����������	��
�����	�� ��������"��� ������:������
�����;G��
���������#$K�LM*36*.(�NLOP�8Q8.(7�RLR�-+7)32*1-(�8.'*.(SQ$�G	���9����B��H���
�	�����	
����
�
JTG������
���"����T�T�������
���B��9��	���
��FU���
��V����J>T������"��������������T	���
���
����
��
�����	��������?	�����
���B�� ����9�
����>������
�����:
�������B�� ����"��B����
���"�	�������
�����J������������ ��
���B�� ����������������9�
���:���"���9��������
��@����������
�����:
����A���� ��������
��������:��"����	�������
����
������������������������:
����������
�	����9����:��T�T�������
����"�	����
��
���
�	�������
�����
��W�����:���E�F��;<���#$X�Y(M(3+)�+)212+1�+Z�)'+[*[3(�-+8.$�����������T���T��������������
��
��
���������������������
��9�����J���
���9���
���	����
���������
��
��;�"�������
��
��9���� � ���

	����������
���
�����
��
�
�����������#$\�&'()*'(�&Y4$���;��9���;<�B�� �����������9���������
�����H�:�������"��B��
�������
���T����
��������"���B�� �������������
���
�����������������������������
�����F�
���;<��������
������9�"�����
���9� ��:��:��;��9���
��F�
���;<�B�� �����"������>:���><�>��B�� ���
���������������
�����
��W���� ��:��:�����9���
��9�
���;<��	 ���������#$#]�&'()*'(�P̂ &_�'(1̀('21S8�*1̀�a%]b̀(S'((�M2̀(+$�F��B�
����������
��9��:���E�F�������
���������
�����������
�	���������
����
���
���c�J�������9�����	
��"������9��:��<����E�F��:����
�������������������	���	
��
���
9�����	��	����>:���
��
��9����:����������������9��������	����
����H�:����������
����
�d�����

����	 �����	�����
���������:����@�A�����:������� ����"������9�����:��B��H�
���E�F���������e$#�R+1̀6-.�)'+,(-.�7*1*S(7(1.�*1̀�*̀72128.'*.2+1$�T�
�	�����
�������=������
�����
���
������
�������"������"��������
�	��
�����H�������
����
����
��������	
������
������������:��	���
�� 	���������H�
���
���
"���������������
��G�����9����"���9��99�������9����:�����	�����B�"��@V�A���
�:��;<��	�����
���e$e�R+1̀6-.�-0*1S(�7*1*S(7(1.�*1̀�56*32.Q�-+1.'+3$���
��������H�����������
��
���9��������9�����
������������������������:��	������ 	�������;��	��
���:�
�����
��� ���
�����������"�����������������
�����
�����9����?	�������
������"��B��9������"��� �������������	 ����������������

fghijklm�nmopqgrp�sft�uvwxyxyxzyy{{z|}u~zw�v�z��v�ww}ffn��



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

������� �������!���� ���������� ���

"#$�%&'()*+�,--+.'/0�1'(�0+12-3&4(-5�*&&5(.'1+.&'#��6�7��8�99�:��8�;������������9����
��9������������<��=�>�;�	��8��8?�99�<��8�;���������������;��9��<�
�@��
����	����
�����	
�����������	����
��������
�����8�;�����������
����A����!��������	���������	
������9�������
�����
;�
����
�������;��	����9��;��9���������=���������!��B:�������8��
�����;�����
��
�>������	����
��8
�<
����
��
����
�����
����
���!����������������	��������
���������������	���9�������������
���
�B�����::C�����������<�����
��������<�����������������;����	�����;������	����
�<��;�����
��
�����8�;�������6�D��8�;����������
����������
��!��	���<��;�8������8�;���������
��������������
��
����!��<����������
9�������
������������!����������������
�������A�����
;�
����
�������
��
�����
���
?�����9�������������
���
�������
��������������!���9��99�������	�����;����=E>�!���	��F?;�	�������
����
���
��=F>������!���������;��B�����::C���6������
�����
��
������
���!���B�!��<������
���B�!��<��;����=E>����
��
������
���!����
������	�����
����	�����������
�9��������8���
����
�����
����9����;��6������
�����
��
������
���!���D������
������
���D������;�����9�����������
�����
��
���6��	���D�����
�������
����B�!��<������
���B�!��<�;����	������	�����
��������
������������
����
����	�������
��������
�����
��9����;��B�����B�������:������	���D�����
��6�G��9���GB�B�!��<������
���B�!��<������
����
�G��9���GB�6�H�
���GB������
�����
������
��������
���;��H�
���GB��"#I�J5-K15-�J.K-4.'-�L4./',-'+�MN�6�O�
�	��������
�����
��
������
���!����
������6�B�!��<�����
�������A�����
;�
����
����
�����
��
����
�����
������
��9����������8�;�������
����������	������;����=E>���
����	�������
�����
��
�����H������;����
��
����	����������
����	�����������
�9��������8���
����
�����
����6�O�
�	���	�������������;�������
��9����A���	����������
���;���;����=E>���
����	�������
�����
��
������������������;�<�����9�����;���������9�	���������
������������<��;��;�������
�����
��
������
���!����
�������
��	��������<��
��������������
�������
���������
�����<�
������������������;��
9�������
������!���<������
�	��������
�����
��P�����;��H�
���GB��6��!�	�����
���
�������������������������������
����H�
��
����������<�������

�����
�������	
�������6�B�!��<��;�����	���<��;��;�����8�;�������
�������������9�����������
�����
��
������
���!���6��������������
�����
��
��C���G�!����G��9��C��������	��
���;������
���!����
�������
��������������
���!�����
���������������
����
����������H�
��C����H�
��C��<������
�	��������
�����
��P�����;���GB�����

QRSTUVWX�YXZ[\R][�̂Q_�̀abcdcdceddffegh̀iebjakejlalbbhQQYlm



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#$%�&'()*+,�-./0121(3.4�5*.6/�7(304818�9�����������������
�����	�����
�������:��;����������<����������
�� ������
��;����������������
�����
��
��������������	����:�<���������
���;�������������������
������������:��;����������<������	���������
��9��������������:��=��������
���;��:�
��
���:�����;���	�����
�������
��������
�����������
�����
��:��	�������������
������������>����������������?"��		������:�"�"�����	������
@��"�"���������
��"�"����������
������A���
���������������
����
����������:�
��=���B�
��=��<�� ���
�	��������
�����
��C�����;���DE��9�B�
��"���:������
��:��	�������������
���F	�����
����;�	�� �����:�������	��
��:�
�������
� ������
�:�
�������
���
���	���������
������
��������������#$G�&'()*+,�-',H'01(6�9����;���	������<�"��>I�A�������
����
���;�����:���������
��
������������
��������
��:���������	��������
:�����#$J�-./K3./�-./0121(3.4�L.3M1(68$��9�D����N������
��
��E�"��<��O�P�:���������
����EQ�	��������
�����
�������R 	����:���E�����QQ=����
�	��
����������;����	�"����E�����QQ=��:�<����S�����
���������;
�����������:���E�����QQ=��������9�B����;�����:�����������
�����
��
������������������������O�P� �����������������
���;��:��<�
��:���	���� ������
��
:�������
��"��� ���
�O�P�:������:�������S�������@�;����������
��;���	 ��������
T�����������������	 ������;����:�<����:���<����
����������������
��������@�������
�������;������S����C����
��	����������9���������������
����D��<�
������������	�������U��"�����<�
���:����;��:��<�
�����

�������;����T�V�W�����������
����  ��"�����
��V�X����	������:���V�=<�"��>I�A�I��R����������
����
��;�����>O�P� ����A�V�D�������
���
�>�:�
�����A�V��	���������
���"���������
�V��	���������
����;�
������
�V��	���������
����;�
����������
�V��	���������
������������
����
����������V��	���������
��Y�D�V�EQ������
��;����	������:���V�E�R����

�����
�������#$Z�L/[/0'K�\K1(1'(�']�-.'̂3̂0/�&'8,$�����������N���N��������������
��
��
���������_�����������
��:�����R���
���:���
���	����
���������
��
��D�"�������
��
��:���� � ���

	����������
���
�����
��
�
�����������#$̀�-./K3./�-La$�D�"����D��:���DE���
�	��
���;��:��<�
��������
�T��C��	��"��P	��������
����	����
��
��Nb��c"��"��<���	�������
��c S����"����b������:�D����
��

defghijk�lkmnoepn�qdr�stuvwvwvxwwyyxz{s|xu}t~x}�t�uu{ddl��



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

�
"���
��
���#�����
���#�
���������
���$%������
�����
��
���%%&��'�(��
���)	�������
��
�������$�����%%&��*
����������"���
�����	���+�����
�,����
��#���������������
��������
�����
���������
�������(�
����
���
������������������(�� ���
�	�����������
��������
���������������
����
����������'�
���,$��������
������-�"�����
���-� ��.��.��,��-���
��'�
���,$�(�� �����"������/012�3456745�89:;5�<=>�?57@9A9;9:B�C:DEB0������������&����FG��'���� �����+�	���H'���� �����+�	��I�-����.��$�����$�������%�����+	�������J�����
��������
���(��.���+�K	���	��-�$��������
���)	�����
�������L01�MNOEDP:�64NQ5P:�R7O7S5R5O:�7OE�7ER9O9@:47:9NO0�#�
�	�����
�������T�����
�������"������"��������
�	��
�����T�������
����
����
��������	
������
������������.��	���
�� 	���������T�
���
����
�.���
"���������������
���K�����-����"���-��--�������-����.�����	�����(�"��HU�I���
�.��������������������
�����"�������&�%��'���������+���
��+�	�����������������������
�����
���
�-����.��#K��%��V��(��T���
����������
����,����
�$������-����
J�����
��
����
�����
��%����L0/�MNOEDP:�PW7OS5�R7O7S5R5O:�7OE�XD7;9:B�PNO:4N;0���
��������T�����������
��
���-��������-�����
������������������������.��	����� 	������,��	��
���.�
�����
��� ���
�����������"�����������������
�����
�����-����)	�������
������"��(���-������"��� �������������	 ���������������L0L�MNOEDP:�R55:9OS@�7OE�YN4Z@WN6@0���������-����
��-����������.��-��(�
�������
����
��(��T�.�����.���������

���-����(��H�I�.�	������.[�\�]��T̂�--������
���\�+�.��	����"�����
��(��T�.���\����������.��H_I������
���(��.����T�.�����̀����������(
��������J�����������
�	��
�����
����������	
�(����������
����
�	��
���H������%����a���I�\��
�����(�-��������
���"�	����
�(��T�.���\�,��-������
�����������"��(������
��\��������(��H�I������
���(��.�,,%��
��b��	
�(������� ��
����
�����
���
����������
����������Hb���I�	
���L0c�MNOEDP:�dBE4NS5N;NS9P�>Oe5@:9S7:9NO@�\��f���������K���
���g������������
����
������
��������-�
���.���f�������������
����������H����������
���
�������
�����.������
J�����
�����
���������.���-�����-��.�� ���
��I��g����
��-��	�����-�	��H�I�����
�����f��������� ���
��������
��g�#�
�	���	�����-�	��H�I�-��
��.�������������� ���.���H���	���(�� ��	�����������������
J�����
�����
���I�g��������������
���"����
���������
�� ������T����-����f�������������
����������g�%��
��������
��������
����
���"�	�������	����

hijklmno�poqrsitr�uhv�wxyz{z{z|{{}}|~�w�|y�x�|��x�yy�hhp��



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#�$���%�������
"���������
�&�'�
�	����(�)�������*�+�����
�)	�"����&�,-�����%���
���
������%�� �	����./��/0/�����	�"����
����%��	�%��%��������
�������
��+�����
1�����
�-��+�����&�������
�����
�����������
��+��(�)�������*�+�����
�)	�"���&�*�+�
���
�����������
�	�����
�������+�����%���2��������� ���
���&���������
������%�/�+/-���������
����
��
�3������++�����
������
��+���+��������	������
����
�	�����
��%������������
���%�� ����
�	����� ����%������&�45678�95::;7<�=75>?@A;BA�CDA�B5E6DB67F�G@�5H<�67DI�65�B5EFHB6�6?;A�C5<JK�L77�M66DB?I7E6�N�O5<�6?7;<�:7667<�><5>5AD:�C?;B?�;EB:HF7A�DFF;6;5ED:�F76D;:�DEF�GDBJP<5HEF�O5<�6?7�><5>5A7F�P75>?@A;BD:�;EQ7A6;PD6;5EK��RST�UVWVXYZ�[\]�̂VXX�_̀abXbcbVd�ebcbfg�echij�#�'�������
���"�	����(����k��
+�������
�&�*�"��-��"��� ��(����k��
+�������
�&����	��(����*�l	��������)��m�%������k����
��(����)����&���������)���������%���'�����)�����
��&��
�������
�/,����,��
���+���n�������"��������	����
���
��n�����o	�����&�(������
����������
���
��*��	������*�l	�����
���+���p�-�n����#�(�"����n��)���
��'��������&�������q-
���%���&�)����)����k�'�
���	��� �����&�)��������
�(����
���� ������
�(n*�n�����n��)��
������k�)�
����
��*no'r�q�����p���*s/���./��00�t+�����������-��������%������
����	
�-����� ���
�u�&���������-��%�
��%��)�������v����-��m��
"���������
���	��������&�$������k�w�����������t�
1�����
�����
���u��&�n�����o	�����&�����
����n�������	
��
���
���+���
���-��%�q�%����
1�����
�n���&�q�%�������(������
��� ��)��m�%������#��"�	����������
����n��)�����&�)�������
��+������
��
��t-��%���������������+��
���������
����
�-��%��
��-
��������
+����������"��� ����u���
���������l	������
�-��m�t+���������	����
����������
�������	��
�����������������u�-�	�� ����������� ����%�����&���������$�)/ ����������������
��+��)����������
��'��������&��"�	����������
����n��)����� ������
��%������ ��%���-������
�����������x�(�"�����"�	����
������2�

yz{|}~��������z����y���������������������������������yy���



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

#������
�$�
%�
���
�����
��&���'�����&�������
(�����
�)�������� ������
��'��)������
������������
��������
�����"�	����
��&�)���������*�+��"��� ��)���
�	������"�
�����	��
���'�������%���'���"�	����
��
����
%�
����������&����'���
(�����
��
����
�����
��)��������*�,��%�'����������
�����$�"��)�������
����$��	���-	
����.��%�/�/0�1����
��&��.�����
(�����
�2��,�����*����
��&������
����,�����&��������.�����
(�����
�2���
�������������3��������
�����
��)��1�4�����
�������	
�)�����������	
��)��'�2����5����-6789:�;<<�=>7?6@A;89>�;6@�;B?CD9>�E7@9<C6=�C6�F?GG7>8�7D�8H9�C6I9J8C76�A9<<�@9K9<7GE968�FH;<<�L9�@769�LM�78H9>FN��1���������+��&��2��,���
��.��'
����������
�	��1�O�
�����2��,���
��.��'
����������
�	���1�+�"����2��%��
�&����'�������.�����
(�����
�2���*����
��&��.�����
(�����
�2��,�����*������������
����
������
��������&�
���'��������
(�����
�)�������
���
���P�������������
����������*�$��	������������
����
�*�4�
���	����
��������-�
(�����
�)���
��������
�����
��)��-�00�*�.����
�������
�
���-�Q	�&������������'�
����	��������0�RST�UVWXYVW�UVZ[VY\\Y]̂_�̀\XaW\Wb]Y]̂Zb�UaYb�cZV�]dW�efU�gWaa�hW]iZVjS�+�"������&�
�������������
�����
��,��	��	����
����������$�����������
�������������4k���
(�����
��
����
�����
��2����1�������������&�
�������
������
��'����&����'��4k��)��������
�
���'������������'��%���������
���
����&�����	
�� �����&����	�����&	����"�����1�+�"����	������� ����
����'��	��&����'��4k��)��������
�
���'�)�
����(������%���
��������
����1���������'��������
���������������%��������������
�����������
���������
�����%�����
��&����&����'��4k��)����RSl�mWnWaZX�UVWâ\b̂YVo�mWp̂[b�cZV�̀bqW_]̂Zb�Ybr�sZb̂]ZV̂b[�gWaap�1��������� ������&������
�&����
(�����
�)���-���
��&�������������������
t����
����
�0�1��������� ������&������
�&�����
�����
��)���1���������������
������������
�����������&����
(�����
�)���RSu�mWnWaZX�vX̂b̂Zb�Zc�UVZwYwaW�eZp]S�����������4���4��������������
��
��
���������/�����������
��&�����x���
���&���
���	����
���������
��
��+�"�������
��
��&���� � ���

	����������
���
�����
��
�
����������RSy�UVWXYVW�UmzS�+�"����+��&���+$���
�	��
���'��&��)�
��������
�{��P��	��"��,	��������
����	����
��
��4k��|"��"��)���	�������
��| (����"����k������&�+����
�&���4k��)�����
��������
�����
���
�&���)�����
���������������
����
��

}~������������~����}���������������������������������}}���



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

��������#�
���$%��������
������&�"�����
���&� ��'��'��$��&���
��#�
���$%�(�� �����"�������)*+�,-./012�34-5612�78.89676.2�8./�8/7:.:;2482:-.*�<�
�	�����
��������
�����=��"������"��������
�	��
�����>�������
����
����
��������	
������
������������'��=	���
�� 	���������>�
���
����
�'���
"���������������
���?�����&����"���&��&&���������
�
��@�A���
�'���'��	��������������'����������
����
��
��%��	������B����=����������,-./012�1C8.96�78.89676.2�8./�D08E:2F�1-.24-E*���
��������>�����������
��
���&��������&�����
������������������������'��	������ 	������$��	��
���'�
�����
��� ���
�����������"�����������������
�����
�����&����G	�������
������"��(���&������"��� �������������	 ������������������H�,-./012�7662:.9;�8./�I-4J;C-3;*���������&����
��&���������	�������K�@LA������
��������	��������� ��(�����
����(�� ������������
����"��(���(��'���������&&�������������'������
���#��(�
�����'������
������M����������'�����������	�����������
����
	����(��'���M����������
���
�������
�����������������
���(��>�
������N�O��>=�&&������
���<�
�	���>��>=�&&������
��(��'���������&&��
�����>�'����������������������������"��(�(��>��
�&�����"�����
���&��'����������
����
��
�����	�������������������
��&���
������	�����������
���
�����	����������������>���
����������������
���&�����P��
&�����	��	���&���"����
��(��'����	���������
������N�%��	�������
�����>�'����������
����<�
�	���	�����&�	��@�A������
���(��'�BQ%<?=$$Q��BQ%<?=R��	
�(������� ��
����
�����
���
����������
����������@R���A��%QS<?��
����'������>�'������������������������������	������M�������������
���
�����	������������
����
���K��������
����N�$��&��P����"��(������
���<�
�	��������
��(��'���������&&��
����'������>�'����������������������������"��(������
����
�������
����
��'��$��&��P��������T463846�3647:22:.9�3E8.*�����������������
����
�&�����P��
&�����	��	�����
�	��
���K���
���	������&����<�����&�%������%����Q�#��
����

����
M�����
U��
�����
��(�������������
����
��'���
�	������� 	����	�������&���M������G	�������������&���������
�����
���
�	��
�����
�����
�������
&�������
��
������
�U��'��	����G	�����
���&������������
�����V�T463846�4690E82-4F�;248269F*������������	���������������&�����P=��������
&�����	��	�����
�	��
���K���
���	������@������<�����&�%������%����Q�#��
���
M�����
U��
�����
��(��A��B��������(�� ����&�
����'��	�'�	���'�����>��	�����
��
��&��(�
�������
���(��'����>�'�������
�����	���������
������B��������(����������P��������������
�����	������
�����
�����	�����	�����(
���'�����
��W�$�B��������������
����
��P'�����������(�����������������	��������G	�����
����
���K��������
��&����
M�����
U��
�����
��(���������
�����
���
�	��
�������
���
����	�����	��������"���������'���
�����
�����
����
���������
����
�	������	����&���������
���(��'��'��BQ%<?=R����	
���(������ ����&�������
��'�������������

XYZ[\]̂_�̀_abcYdb�eXf�ghijkjkjlkkmmlnogpliqhrlqshsiioXX̀ st



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	�������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

��#�$%&'(%&�)&*+,-*(.�/&01%(,230�4)/56���������7��8��9���:������������� ��:��:����������
����
��
�����	���������������8����:����

���;<����9��
8�����	��	����=	 ����7��8��9����������8�����"��>��;����
��������"���>�� �������������
���
�����������������������������
���?�
��9���������
������8�"�����
���8� ��:��:��7��8���
��?�
��9��>�� �����"��������
������������"�����������
���������������
�����@���:���>�	�� ���������� 	���������
���	�:�����������������8��>�
��������
�����
��
�A�����������
��8��������
�����"������9:�����
������������@���:��������:������
��8����8����	��9���������
�	��������	��������� ��>��?��� 	�������

�
�����	�:����������
��	���BCD�E�������8����:���
������������"������������"������9:���������
��������������� ���@��>
��:�� �����"��������������>:�
��	�:����"�����>�	�� ����
�������
��8��>�
��������
�����
��
�A�����������
��8��������
��>��@������ ��9:��� F����"���8����:���>��@��
�	����������
��8�����:�����������8����:���G	�8����
������"�	�����:������
����8�����������
����88��	���������G	�8���G	���������������
��	������:������:�������
��������
���8��:���	��8����>�����>��:��:���
F�����
��G	�8����CD�������8������"�������������H�������I�J�������K�;�
�	������F������
�����
���
������
��������
�K�;�
�	����:�
�����
�����
���
��G	�������
����K�;�
�	��������
���K�7�"��������������8�������:�������������
������������8��������
���
���
��������
�B=��E��L�����:����	88����
�������������>�	�� ��������"��� ��8������
���	����
��8��:��������
F�����
�>���
�A����
���H���������>�����
�	��������������8��:����
��
������:�������	�"���>��@�B ����:���E��K��� ��������������
����
��
�������
��������K�M���:�������
�������
���������� ��>��@��
�8����:��������
F�����
�>�������
��>�� ����"�������
�9��@�N���>:��:��
�	���������������������8�>��@��:���>�� ��	����������"�������"���8��88��������������������9:��CD��������8����"�������������H�������I�#J�����K��������� ����
�����	��
���8���������
F�����
�>����
���	����
��
�������
��K����"�����
F�����
�>����
���	����
����"�����
���
�������
���"�����:��K������������8���
��8�
��>����
���	����
����"�����
���
�������
����������9:������������ 	�����8����:���>��@�B
����
�	��
���:��O�
������������"����PE����IN���J������9� �������"��������	�������8��	������Q�������
�
��;<���7C� 	������
����G	����8������
���
������:���	�������:���88������G	�����������"����:���������
�����"������������
�����:����:�������������D���
�� 	��������"�����������
��������������
�����
�����"�����8��� 	�����
���	��������D	�������>����"��>��:�� 	���������	����
�:���
����
������:����������F������
�����������
��������� ���8��������
��8	
���

RSTUVWXY�ZY[\]Ŝ\�_R̀�abcdededfeeggfhiajfckblfkmbmcciRRZmn



����������	
����
�
���������������������
����	�	�������������������

� �����!�������"����!����������!���

������#	���������	�������$����#	���������"�����������������"���%��%%����&�'�(��
��%����������"������
��$�������$���)� ������ *+,-.�/0�123�14567+86�+59�3:;�<.7=>8.?�2@9A.6�<@BB+7C�DEFG� HIFJ�KLLMINOPEJQ�HRS�STU�VIWJMEVJ�XEYEWVQ�ZEF�I[�\]̂_]̂^̀� abcd_eceee�fQFF�IWghIOWh�VIIMiOWEJOIW�EWi�VIWVQLJ�iQjQYILPQWJ�ZJkMIlhk�m]ne]̂ǹ� Zâ\dceeè�fQFF�KlhPQWJQi�HRS�FJlio� Zabeeceeè�fQFF�USp�KqSr�STU�ZDEFG�sIt�b̀� Zabcnuuceeè�fQFF�UOEYJI�MQVoVYQi�vEJQM�FlLLYo�STU�ZDEFG�sIt�̂̀� Zadûceeè�fQFF�OWwQVJOIW�vQYYF�STUc�FOJOWh�MQLIMJ�EWi�koiMIhQIYIhOV�OWjQFJOhEJOIWF�ZDEFG�sIt�ǹ� Zabĉ\uceeè�fQFF�LQMPOJJOWh�LYEW�EWi�MQhlYEJIMo�FJMEJQho�ZDEFG�sIt�p̀� Zab\dceeè�� �HRS�STU�VIWJMEVJ�XEYEWVQ�ZWQhEJOjQ�OWiOVEJQF�EPQWiPQWJ�MQxlQFJ̀� Zâĉpeceeè����	��
���	�$��������
��
��
�����������������&y)�(� ��z	
���{���������$����#	���������"������
�	�����
��$�������������������
� �����������|��$�
��$��%��|�
�������
�}�~�������������}��������������&�����
�$�(�~���������������|������	�������}��������������&�����
�$�(�~��
������
��
����
�����
��|�������
����������
�����}��������������&�����
�$�(�~���������
����
��
�����	��������������}�����$����������&����
�$�(���������%��|�������������
�����
��%��$�������
���	����
��
	������"�������������
���������������$���������������
����������������|��$��
��#	�����
������������	����	����������������������������
���|�����
 �������� ������������������������
����� �������$��
�&�(�

������������ ¡�¢ �£�¤�¥¦§̈ ©̈©̈ª©©««ª¬¥®ª§̄¦°ª̄±¦±§§���±²



��������	���
���������������������������	������ �!�"#��$%�
"��&'&$�"(�)�*���� �+  �",-�./0�123245446 
"�7��, 
"�7��, 8�9&:$ ;�<;� 
"���99 ��9# 	�$&�" 
"�7��, 	,�  )��% 	,�  ��9, !�"% 	=�,�,�� 	=�,�,�� 8&"��, 	=�,�,�� 	=�,�,�� ;�<;� ��9# 	�$&�" 	�$&�" 	,�  	,�  ;�<;� ��8 +$:"> 	,�  	,�  	=�,�,�� 	=�,�,�� 8&"��, 	=�,�,�� ��,���$�:�" �%'&$ �$�:�" )��% )��% )��% +$:&$��"+$:&$��"+$:&$��"8�9&:$�"8�9&:$�"+9,&'�,�" 
"���99 ��="9 )���" +?��$9�9 	=�9 ��9, �$�:�"�(%"��:�+$:&$��"+$:&$��"+$:&$��"+$:&$��"8�9&:$�" 	=���",�����:&9,�����:&9, ��="9 )���" +?��$9�9 ��9, ��9,�@AB��9# CDEE��FG.HI45055 HA4J055 HI55055 HI45055 H4KJ055 HA1J055 H4JJ055 HA1J055 HAJ5055 HA15055 HAJ5055 H4L5055 HA3J055 HI45055 H415055 H4M5055 H4I5055 HAMJ055 HAMJ055 H415055 HA15055 HAJJ055 HAJJ055 HAJJ055N�O�PQRSTQR�UPV�WXPY�PZU [\] N\̂ _̀` N̂V V]̀ \̀V \aV bN\ Nc]̀\ [N] VV̂ N[̀ b̀ \c]â Nc̀b̂c_̀] ]̀c_[[ a\c[]] Nc_b[cNa[ ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] Nc_bbc]]]A0A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef AK4 A33 IIM LKp335 Jp555 5 13p335 5 5 5 13p335A04�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 31 43 A45 15 4L4 LLpAM5 5 LLpAM5 5 5 5 LLpAM5A0I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�tekuoqejo A45 5 A54 5 K3 A13 A54 AA5 AK4 A1 31 5 5 KL5 4AMpIL5 A5pJMJ ApJ55 441p3IJ 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 441pJA5A03�d��efghiG�jk.EDmDfFks�oDG.�Df/.oGDnFGDefo�FG���d3 3 1 AM 1 AM J4 AAp515 L5p555 1Ap515 5 5 5 13pJ15A0J�d��efghiG�jk.EDmDfFks�g.oDnf AA4 5 A35 5 AM1 4I4 II4 314 3A5 345 I45 5 5 4pMAM J4Kp4J5 5 5 J4Kp4J5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 J4Kp4J5A0M�d��k.jFk.�jkel.iG�G.iqfDiFE�k.rhDk.m.fGo 43 35 35 15 15 A55 435 445 143 ALIpL15 5 ALIpL15 5 5 5 ALIpL15A0L�d��/FEhFG.���vwdosoG.m�����iemjEDFfi.�oGkFG.ns 43 1 1 35 I4 31 15 KM 43 43 I13 LKpL45 Jp555 13pL45 5 5 5 13pKL5A01�d��./.Eej�ejDfDef�ex�jkeyFyE.�ieoG 1 3 1 AM AJ4 A11 J5pI45 5 J5pI45 5 5 5 J5pI45A0K�d��k.jFk.���� 43 AM 1 45 JM 11 43 K4 I41 MAp335 3p4K5 5 MJpLI5 5 5 5 MJpLI5A0A5�d��k.jFk.�wz�{�k.fg.kDfno2/Dg.e 3 3 1 3 3 3 31 I4 A51 AKpLM5 J55 5 45p4M5 5 5 5 45p4M5�̀O�PQRSTQR�U|T}~��UX�S��S��~T~|���T���S|SR}|�R�PZU \̀ N\ a\ a\ ] ] _̀\ \̂ _̀ ]̂ _̀ Ǹ^ ] ]̂\ ]̀]c̀̂ ] c̀\̂V \[c]]] \̀acb\V [̀\ ] ] ] ] \[̂ \V N_̀ V̀^ ] ] Nc[_̂ b̀̂c[N] ac]]] _][c[N] [b̀c]]]40A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef 1 1 AM IpJM5 5 IpJM5 4M IM M4 A3p4M5 A3p4M5 A1pJII404�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 1 1 43 35 15 4Ap335 5 4Ap335 AM AM 43 JM A3p315 A3p315 IMpM3340I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�oGFu.qeEg.k�ieekgDfFGDef 44 5 I4 5 5 5 I4 5 5 5 5 5 5 1M 43p155 4pM13 5 4Lp313 14 5 5 5 5 K5 5 5 5 5 5 AL4 3Ap5K5 Lp555 31p5K5 LLpKLK403�d��k.jFk.�jDj.EDf.�FEDnfm.fG��� 1 1 4pJM5 5 4pJM5 I4 A35 LM 431 3JpA45 3JpA45 3KpKIM40J�d��efghiG�jk.EDmDfFks�ohkn.�FfFEsoDo 4 3 1 1 44 Mp335 5 Mp335 A4 43 35 A35 4AM 35pL55 35pL55 3KpALJ40M�d��efghiG�jeGqeEDfn 4 3 1 3 A1 3p315 MJp555 MKp315 AM AM 4pM35 4pM35 LJpJ5440L�d��k.jFk.�jk.EDmDfFks�gkFtDfno 1 5 1 43 5 5 KM 35 5 15 I4 5 5 411 MIpL45 5 5 MIpL45 4M 5 5 5 5 A43 5 AI4 5 5 5 414 J4pJ35 5 J4pJ35 AA1p11L401�d��./.Eej�ejDfDef�ex�jkeyFyE.�ieoG 3 3 1 AA4 A41 IJp415 5 IJp415 4 43 4M 3pM55 3pM55 35pAA540K�d��k.jFk.���� 3 AM 31 43 43 AAM 4MpIM5 5 4MpIM5 35 A35 J4 4I4 3IpKM5 3IpKM5 L4pJA140A5�d��k.jFk.��DGE.�����x.FoDyDEDGs�oGhgs 3 1 3 3 3 3 AM 33 AApM35 5 AApM35 45 31 AM5 441 IKpA45 IKpA45 J4pLAM_�O�PQRSTQR�|��R�~|������|~�Q|����R}}���|~|����~����T���PZU NN] `̂ N_̀ \V ] ] _̀] [̀ ] [\ ] NǸ ] âV _̀]c_̀] Vc]NV V̀ c̀]]] \[\c__V N]_ V\b abV Ǹ] V] ] ] V̂ ] N̂̀ N̂] c̀[\\ [\ac_̀] [c\]] [àcb̀] Nc̀abc]]]I0A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef 1 1 AM IpJM5 5 IpJM5 1 35 45 M1 A1pKM5 455 AKpAM5 4IpML1I04�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 3 3 43 31 15 4ApL55 5 4ApL55 1 1 AM 3p155 3p155 4MpL35I0I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�tekuoqejo 35 5 M3 5 5 5 M5 5 5 5 5 5 5 AM3 3LpI55 Ip5A3 AIp555 MIpIA3 31 AAM AAM 5 5 5 5 5 5 33 5 I43 13p145 K55 1JpL45 AJIpKL5I03�d��efghiG�qsgken.eEenDi�Df/.oGDnFGDefo 43 AM 41 I4 5 5 15 5 5 5 5 5 5 A15 31pL45 Ap555 I4Jp555 IL3pL45 5 A5L 4IM 5 5 5 5 5 5 435 A15 LMI AJMp345 ApM55 AJ1p545 JJMp1KAI0J�d��./.Eej��v��t.EE�xFiDEDGD.o�oDGDfn�oGhgs AM 5 AM 5 5 5 33 5 5 5 5 5 5 LM 4ApA35 5 AJp555 IMpA35 AJ AA3 433 1 5 5 5 1 5 343 5 1AI AMKpAM5 ApL55 AL5p1M5 4AMp4KII0M�d��k.jFk.�jkenkFmmFGDi�DmjE.m.fGFGDef�jEFf�xek�t.EEo 3 3 1 AM 3pJ45 35p555 33pJ45 M 43 43 J3 A3p115 A55 A3pK15 M4p43KI0L�d��./.Eej�jk.dg.oDnf�xek�Dfl.iGDef�Ffg�mefDGekDfn�t.EEo M 5 A4 5 5 5 M3 J4 5 JM 5 5 5 AK5 3ApJ35 5 44p555 MIpJ35 1 I3 K5 31 5 5 5 35 5 M3 5 413 MIpM35 M55 M3p435 AI4p5K4I01�d��./.Eej�ejDfDef�ex�jkeyFyE.�ieoG 3 3 1 1 AA4 AIM ILpI45 5 ILpI45 3 M 43 43 AM L3 ALpIM5 455 ALpJM5 JJpLJ1I0K�d��k.jFk.���� 3 3 1 AM 3pJ45 Lp555 AApJ45 M 45 35 35 43 35 AL5 ILp415 I55 ILpJ15 JApI4KV�O�PQRSTQR�SRQ�|~~|���S}T��T���QR��}T~�Q���~QT~R�� \̀ VV [\ _̀ ] \V ] ] ] ] ] ] ] [̀̂ \Vc̀̀ ] NcVb\ b]c]]] N[[caN\ N\ _̀ ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] ] V̂ NVc]̂] ] NVc]̂] Na[c]]]30A�d��efghiG�jkel.iG�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�FgmDfDoGkFGDef A1 IM J3 A5p4M5 5 A5p4M5 3 3 1 4p355 4p355 A4pL15304�d��efghiG�iqFfn.�mFfFn.m.fG�Ffg�rhFEDGs�iefGkeE 1 1 I4 31 AIp155 5 AIp155 5 5 5 AIp15530I�d��efghiG�m..GDfno�Ffg�tekuoqejo 43 43 43 L4 AKpI45 Ap3KM AJp555 IJp1AM 5 5 5 IMpJMM303�d��k.jFk.�j.kmDGGDfn�jEFf 3 A4 A4 41 LpA55 IJp555 34pA55 3 1 A4 IpJ45 IpJ45 3LpJ3M30J�d��k.jFk.�k.nhEFGeks�oGkFG.ns 3 A4 A4 41 LpA55 4Jp555 I4pA55 3 A4 AM 3pM35 3pM35 I1p44430M�d��k.jFk.�G.iqfDiFE�m.mekFfghm 3 1 AM 41 MpM35 AJp555 4ApM35 3 1 A4 IpJ45 IpJ45 4Mp51M����) LK3 4JM J1M IJM 354 M11 Ap4I5 Ap5IM Ap5J1 M3M 315 IK4 K4 1p5AM HApLKIpA35 H41pJ3K HMJIpJ55 H4p3LJpA1K ILJ J5A LK3 A45 35 MJ1 M3 A15 341 1A4 A15 3pAJ4 H1LKpKA5 HA4pM55 H1K4pJA5 ������������~R���N�����}��R����������}~T�~��TQ��S����[�]]��

�"��$��$%����%���� !	�
� ¡¢£¤¥¦�§¦̈©ª «©�¬��®̄°±²±²±³²²́ ³́µ¶®·³°̧ ¹̄³̧º̄º°°¶��§º»



���

�������	
�������	������������������������������������� !"#$%&����'()*+,���-./0�12�31450456��765�12�5-./06��765�12�2789:06��;;04<7306���=03957>0�69??-:@��� AB��040:-/�:0C97:0?0456��-B�D-3E8:194<��.B��.F0357>06��3B��-59?�-4<�6750�3145:1/��<B��01503G473-/�<-5-��� HB�D-676�12�<06784�-B��/-45�/13-5714��.B��4508:-5714�I75G�����?-650:�;/-44748��3B��/-45�3-;-375@�-4<�;G-6748�;/-4��<B��-50:�619:306�J7B0BK���L�K�6@650?K��7-/51M��7B��19:30�?14751:748��77B��:0L5:0-5?045�J7B0BK�<03G/1:74-5714M�777B�D/04<748�-4<�<7>0:6714�0B��-50:�C9-/75@��7B��42/9045�3G-:-350:765736�77B��9:7270<�I-50:�C9-/75@�81-/6�2B��:0-5?045�;:13066��7B��089/-51:@�:0C97:0?0456�77B��:13066�1>0:>70I�8B���N��6@650?�G@<:-9/736�-4<�;9:7270<�I-50:�314>0@-430��GB��0<94<-43@�:0C97:0?0456��� OB��:13066�<06784�3:750:7-�-B��42/9045�0C9-/7P-5714�-4<�;9?;748��.B�����3B����<B�NQR�����0B��165�5:0-5?045�65-.7/7P-5714��2B�SG0?73-/�651:-80�-4<�200<�6@650?6��

TUUTVWXYZU�T[\]̂_̀ab�cbdef\ge�h[i�jklmnmnmonnppoqrjsoltkuotvkvllr[[cvw



���

�������	�
����
�������
������������������
�	����������
������������
����
�������������������
�	�������
�������������
���
�� �����������
������ �����������������
���
�����!��
�������
����������"��#�����$������!��
���������"��#������$�������%�����������	��
�����&��������������������
��
��'���
����
���
�� (���������
���������
����)��"�����
�������
���������
����*��!����������
���������
����+������
����
��������
���������
����,��'���������
��������
���������
����-.����
��������
���������
����--��/0���
���������
�����-1��/���
�
�������������������	�������
�����������������������!��
���
�� -2��"��
���3�����
���������
��������������-��4���
���

�����������������1��5���������
3��2��6
�
������
�����������$�7�����"��#����
����
������(������
���	����������)��%�����������	��
�*��"��#����
�����+��&��������������,������
��������������
��������-.���8���9�����:#�	
����;�7������--������������
��������������7������-1��$��	

����;�7������-2����
����������
�	�������7���
��������-���"��#��
��
�����7�-�

<=>?@ABC�DCEFG=HF�I<J�KLMNONONPOOQQPRSKTPMULVPUWLWMMS<<DWX



���

�������	�
���
���������������	�
���
�����������������
��������
����������������������
���������������������������
���������������������������
������� !"#$$����������%�����&'$����((
��������%����%)*(��%�����&'$�������
���(���+����
�*������'&,���&�-�.�����/"#	�-���0.*0%��1���'&,���#	���%�������
���������'&,���!2�-������+����0.*0%������'&,���!2���%�������
���������'&,���34���%�������
���������'&,����
�.���5���
����+����0.*0%�(�������
�����������%�����&�3��%)%��*�$�$���*0�����������.������67#8����
�9����7��:������!�;.�
�*���%�67#8������
*���������������!��.����
)���
����)�67#8���

<=>?@ABC�DCEFG=HF�I<J�KLMNONONPOOQQPRSKTPMULVPUWLWMMS<<DWX



���������	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��!����"�����# ��$�����������������������%&''()*�+)&,-./(0/1�22%�345�6�6&78-�2&&,�68),-)9:('')1�;<�=>?5@���� �A9'B9C�DE,(*)�F8('(8.�G78-&*(8.�4>??�H)*E&/B�G:)�IB90-&�%70BE&9JB1�%G�4@=K5� �� �

LMMLNOPQRM�STUVWXYZ[�\[]̂_Ù �̂aTb�cdefgfgfhggiihjkclhemdnhmodoeekTT\op



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

� !"#$�"%" &$!' (�" )*+$�!* �,-�./*.&*"�/01)$� 2*$!�1�$3/"2�'/$1#4.*" )�./�5*"/.�1�$1$. )�,,6,78���9:;� -/."�*12*$!�$+�2#/�1�$3/"2�� �����������������
��<<��=�������>����������?�����������@��?�A������B��������	��������=@AB�>������������������������������C�?���������
����C�
���D����������
�������	
�����������D����E�F����G��
��C��H����G����������?�D����	G��	�D�
���������
�
������D���H���������	�
����?��H�H�����H�������������E���9:9� 1%�1$./�I�$J3/"2*5/.��F��������
�������
���?���������
�����D�K�
����	
������=F�������>������D�����=L��	���M>E�F������������G��
��C���D����������
���������������@AB�����
N	������H����������
���D��
����?����D���
��������������	G��	�D�
��A�������?���D����?���D����H���������	�
��E�F���������
�?����H����G��	��?���������O�������	G��	�D�
���D���������	
�����H�����D������������������	G��	�D�
���������
�?��������?�������?���D��P����������
�D����������	
�����D�	�����D��
�	���Q����������������	
�	����������������
���������?	
����
���
�����D�����������?��	
������H�����G���������D�	�
����������
�����D�D�C���G����N	�D������������?�K�
�C����=��K>�H������
�����E��R��H������������������������
��D��������O������H����
��������������������O�������������������?������
�������������H�����D��������?���
�����������������
���
�����D���G������	?�����?����D������������?��	G��	�D�
�����	
�	��E��F�����������������D����������?��������?����������
����=�>������	����?���L��	���M��
� +STUVW�9X���WTSYZ[\�[Z]�\Ŷ[\�_[̀�[Z]�̀VỲYaW]�\SZWa�

bcdefghi�jiklmcnl�obp�qrstututvuuwwvxyqzvs{r|v{}r}ssybbj}~



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

���� !"#$%&'(# !�) &�!%*�+,�-#.-�&%" /0(# !�"%#"1#2�&%)/%2(# !�$'('����3��������
4��5��6��������7���������
�8���������
��9���
:	���8��3������������
��������������������������
:	������;�����������	�������������
���5��
����8����5����	9��	�5�
��
�����<���������������
���8���8���3������
������<���������9����3�������������������������������������	�8�9��������	���5��<=�����<>���������������8��������������������3��9���������	�5�
����5��
��3�������;����8��������5��
����<����������������
����8��?�5������9��@�8�������������5����������	�5�
����5��
��3����5���9���������
���8�������
�3���
����
�����<���A����3���������8��;��������������������8�����������
��������
�����������<=�����<>������������5������������5�=<=����B<>��������5�������
�8���<��C�����
������5���
������;����8���8��������
�8�������8����������;������
�������8�;����9��8�������8��5�����������3����<��A����������9����;��;�	�8���4��	����5����8��8�	���������������<��A��9����3���������������������;����9��5���5������8	
�8�
	��	��������������;�������������9���������8������8�8��8����3�8��������5��

�����	9��
��������������������3�����8��	9��
���������8�	�������������<��D�)#%/$�"#(%�E#"#(�*#//�F%�!%2%""'&G�( �E%&#)G�'//�)#%/$�H'&'1%(%&"�H& H "%$<���IJ+� KLMKNM��OMLP,�QRLSDTMQUK��C����	
�������������������
������
��;���������������	����5��83�
�8�
�9���5�����8���������
����������
��������	
�����������������
���C�
�������V
<�W	�����������
�������<�C��������
�������������	����5��	���������������

�������8�V���
����	�
��?�V�@�������
���������	�
�������6���X��5��6�9�������8��55�
��
���5�������
�5���8����������<��C�����������8��������:	���8�5���
����������5�����5���8�������
�;��4����IY�( �+I�$'G"������
�	8������88�������+�( �Z�*%%["�������
��������8���<������;����9��8���3���8������8��8��\�]�5������;��������������������5������������������
�5���	�����9���3�9���������8���<��IJZ� +,�KLMKNM��,DTD�D�̂ _MKMTMQU�RDSDNLTLSK��C������������
��	�3�������������8�8�����
:	����������������������9���8����������
���������9��
��3������:	���8�����	��������
��������8��������������	������������
��5���������8��3���������
�8�����<��C�������������8��������
�	8��
�����5���������
��������������������

���<������������	���������V\̀ ��;������
	���������8�8����������8�������

���<���������
���������;���������������������
�����8��������3�8�8��������������	���������������88�������
���<�����	�
���8���
��3������������
�����������	9��
�����
�����8	��������8����������5��	�����	������������
��8���	�����9���8��������
�8�����������������9���
����������5����8��

����
�
����5����:	�������8��������<��̀ ���������3����9���5���������������5����������8���5�
������5�����	�5�
���8��	9�	�5�
��abcdefgdhighdj�gkeg�djlhadjf�mfecj�nccfjgo�pafgebijf�5������	�
��?�q�@�fgeganbf�ebprnd�mjsithfanb�unbjfov�	�8���8���	�
����
��3����������������������?�@�
��9����3��;�8����������5���8�8����������5����������
�q�
��3���?q�wq@�8������
��8���

xyz{|}~�������y����x���������������������������������xx���



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

��	������� !�������
������"��#���������$���%���"�����#��#�&#���������������������������'��������� ����()*��"�����+��,�� ������+������������
����
��� �����
�	����������������$���%���������
� ����,����'��
����
�� �	��������"����,���"��� �����������-��./�0123425�067819�:1;41<79�0644=79>�%���������	�+���?�����+������@�������A��-��$B��$C�������@�����
���
��+�������� A�)������� �����	�����D�� �� � -�ECC��./�0123425�067819�FG3<7641G<3�=GH�I15;7H2GJ�K=7=41<173�������
�(���	������ � -��%(�L	����M�������
��������@�����	�+����A�#�&#�(���+���� � � -�ECC"��L	�'����"�?�+���������� � -��CC��BC�@�������� ��������
��+�������
��������� A�����������"��	������ � -������
����?���!�����������	�������� ��������#����� � � -�C$B����#�
�� �?����� � � -�E�����
� ���NG17J9�0;6751�O9P13�=GH�K=7=41<173>�������
�)�������	�
�� � -�Q?#R��CCC��(��@�����	�+����A��#��(���+����� � � -�BC"��S�������������	���� � -��CC�����BC�����(���
��!�#���������� � -�T�R�@�	'��
����������A�L	�'����"�(���
����	�
�������� -�ECC�EBC�@�������� A��UVW� KIXYNZO�0NF0[FZ�F\0OI][N\O�̂\/�N\NI:_�0X]IZN�0_0ON[0��./�0123425�FG3<7641G<3�093<14��%�����
�� ����"�������	������'��� '� �����������	�������,������������
� ��������'�����
���+� �,��� ������ ��������������������,����
�	��� �����������	 ��� �,�������������
���������	�
�����
���'����"����������������
������������,����
�����'��� '� �"���	�
����������������"�B�̀a����E�Cb�̀a$���%���������� �
�'���"�������	��������+�����������"��� ���� ����+� ������
� �������������""�
��
�$�����������
���� ��	������
�'���"��������������� �����������a���������	��+����� 	���� ����������� �+���'�������"�������
���	������ ������ ��+������+������ �$��(
����� �"��c�'������,���������
��������	 ����������������,��"��� �
��,�������'����������+�� �� !���,��d�efghij�gklmenoplq�mrhl�ostsmsiu�mrp�simfgjhnmsgi�gv�lpsltsn�wig�jemex�����$��y����+���������������� ���������
�����������
��+������+� ������������+����"�#�&#��������
��������,���������
�����Q��z��{���� ���
���
����$��#��	��������"��� ������������������ ��	����������	�������������������a� ���""�� ���"��� �
��,������������'������� �������'��	��+���

����,������ ����	 ����������
������@�A$��

|}~�����������}����|���������������������������������||���



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

�������� !"#$%� &'� � � � �����(#)*+,#-� !"#$%� &'��.���/	����0�1230�45�6��7�������8������8�
�����9�������
��9�����
��9���	���:�������;����������������<�=���
����
�
�<>������
��<��?	�
@�������A�9��9�������9�������9�B��9�88���������
�����<���/	����0�8����8�
��������
�������������	���9�8��������
	�����A��������������A�9�����@�������������8����
����9�������������?	���������	9�
�	����C�D�
��/EF��
�������������������������9������
��9������
����
��G���������:����H�;�9I�9����
�������9�I�	��������CH�
���	�	��<���9
����8��������������������HJ����K��L��<���������/��M����=����������������������I��9�	>���9����������9�F�I�9����9�:���9�
���<�������C��/	����0�8���9�����������:�����������/	�	���0����8	������������9��9�
���������A����8�:������
@����9�����9�8���9�����������8���9�N����
�������9��������������:�����
�������9����9�:���9��9�����
��������8���9�:��@�����	
�������A������
��������9��8���9�N�����
�����C��.�����������������9�8�������9������������9���
��	�A������8�E�OE��9��E�������������������/EF�9���������
��:��:����	����B������/	�	���0���8�:�����������9���8���9���<�����:��������������E��E�OE���H����9��������9����	����9�9�����	�9�����@��K����/EF�9��������C��.������@��K���������9�8���/EF�9�����������<����������8�������
������9���
��9����8����E�OE���������
�����C���E����������
��<�����@�9��8�����9���9���9�8��9������9�	����������������@��K�����	�A��������9��8���?	���9C��"#$%P$Q�RS#TU,�"+!TQ#�",%V#P%����������������������	��������������WKE;��JJJ��

�������9�L���
����	�
��=�L�>���������	�
��8����
?	��������8��������������
�9���C���

XYZ[\]̂_�̀_abcYdb�eXf�ghijkjkjlkkmmlnogpliqhrlqshsiioXX̀ st



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

�
 !""#$%�&'()*+,,,�-..$"$%/0$1�234/.0�5!6%.$�7-258��9���:;<=��>>>��

�������?�@���
����	�
���������������A����
���?���B��A	��������
���������	�
��C	�������?����	
��D��B��������������
��������E���������C	��?�����?��������	�A�
���A�����	
�	��F��9���:;<=��>>>�����G	����?�B�������������
��?��@���<��������������������?�HIJ�KLMLNOMNPKIMOQIJOMN�RQOKS�TJSLUVW�IJ�RXSJI�QOKSV�HIJ�SLYZ�[SO[KOY�JSYIJ\]��̂SYIJ\S\�HO_S[�
�������
����
����@���<��������������������?�����
��
̀�QOKS[�HIJ�RQOKS�TJSLUV�YIJJS_LQOIM�B����a	�����a<b���
��?�?�?������?���	�
�������	��������������?�B���?�?�?�����A���c�dc���?�������
G	����������������A��

	���?��<�����������?�c����������F��������A�
���C��A����A�	��������:;<=��>>>��@����������C������A�����E���e����<���������
�D����������	���	����������	�D������?�����F�9����@�������������̀��A�?����������	�A�
���?�C	���?��A�����	
�	���B����������?�����B������?�	����B����	��	����?��F��������������fgh� +i�5j25k2 �l(mnj o�p2j'i� (jq5������������������
��A���?��������������������?�C���������
��r�������?�����F������
����������
��������D�������?���?�B��������������?�
���?�������A�A���?�����������������
��c�dc���A��	�D���?������9@�����	��������A����
��s�?����������?������?���������
�?�����
G	���������?������
��
������	�F��t��������������
������������������	��?�����
G	���������������������������?�
��B�����������G	�����������������?���uFvFu�C���BF�����fghgf��l%!w$.0�k/x/y$3$x0z�564$%{#|#!x�/x1�p#$"1�m4$%/0#!x|� %$}��l%!w$.0�k/x/y$3$x0�~�p#$"1� %$}�564$%{#|#!x�50/����uF��u�������
��r��������F��u����F������
����������
������

����������������������������������������������������������



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

 !"#$"%�&'!()*� +,(%!�-'.�/!%+(."')�0(!1�23�4�5���������
���6���7�8�
��
�����3�425�9	�����6���7�8�
��
����:;<!(�=(+>!%;� ;-??�23�425��@�����
��������3�425�A������
������7�������BCDCE�EF�F-;-�G,-H";*�I##,(-'%!�-'.�G,-H";*�0+';(+H��8����J���7�J�KJ����������L����������������
��	�M������7�����7�������7	
�����7��������������	����	���������7������J�KJ�
�M�����3��N���������8@�9	����O�9JN��7���������
���������P��
����������7����������L��������������������Q���P����	7�����	�����������7�	�L������������������	7�
�	���������	���	����������	�M��������3��R���P����	7���������L�STU�VWXYZ�[\Z]�̂_̀ a]bUZ�cU]̀T]dU�Ẑcd[\�[_̀ \̂SefU�[df�gaUheUdij�ZUdẐŜb̂Sjk��l_̀ a]bU_UdSZ�S]�������	7��������M���������������7����Q�����������2��7R���7����������Q��������
�M�����L�������
�7����P����P�7���L��m	�
��Q�7P�7��3��R�����L��������������������������Q	��������
����
��������n���o���������
������������	���3��p�����������������L����
�������Q	��������	�L���������������������P����	�
����Q�����������Q�������������L���
����7�9JN������Q������4q3qq�r�L���	������������2�qqq�	�����M����������������753��N����L������

�������7�@���
����	�
��4sAJt��qqq��@�5���Q�����
m	��������L�7����������
�7����
�M�������7��LL��������������	��������77��J�������������	7�������P���������������M�����Q����Q����7u��L����������������������7���7���������������������m	�����������3��8���	����L������@��P������7������7	
���Q���
�7�	�L��������
�M�������7�L��7�7�����Q	���3��BCDCv�EF� !"#$"%�F-;-�=(+%!##"')��N���
����������L��������������
�7�����
m	�������P��w��������P�������
�7����P����Q�����M����7����
��M�7���7��������7�L���7���M����L������
��������x�	�����8�n��3�����������7���M�������
��M�7�7����P����Q������
��7��7��M��	���7�L���y�zy���	������3������M����P�����
�	7��������
m	�������������L�������J�KJ��7��J�����������J�KJ��7��J�����7���
�
���7������L����������7��������������L�L���7����������3����8����������o�7����������
����
������P��wL��P�P����
�������L{�� |�J�L���������z����������z�8��
��}7���z�8��
��6�����R���w���
w��|��	�L�
�����������~���	�
�������	�����
�M��	�����������7�J�
��M����� ������������|�J�L��
���������
����K�������A�������7�������8���������
�J�L��
���������
�����	����|��	������
��	�L�
�����������J�L��
���������
���7�K���
�����������{�����������|�9�pz�	���|���p�4@L���7�75�|�6�����������
w�|�R�7P�7���}n������4R�}5�� �|��������
w�8������������� � � � � �

����������������������������������������������������������



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

 �!"#��!�����������$������%���
����������%��������������
�$�������
�������$����������������&��������'�()�*�+,,-.�%��������$���/�����%���0�%���$�$����������
����������1��2343*�56(,787,(9(:)6�96;�<,8)7(��������������������
����0������������������������
�$����������������������������	=��	�%�
�����	
�	����
�������������>����������������
����?�������$�%��$�=������������
�������������
����	
��$��������%�	�����$�%��
�	���>���1��!���$����0����=�����������$��������0��0������/����������
������$�
�/����$����$�����	������/���
������$���$���/�$�%����0��������$������%��/����=�����������������$�/���
�������%�����%�����������
���0��������������/����=��1������������0���������
�$	
��������������=	������
���������������
����$�������
�$�������$�����������������
�
�������������������
�	�������������=���$�
���/���%������%�/���=����@	�%���������������
�%����	���1�������=	������
���������?�����
������������������	$���%��@	�
����������$�������0�/������������������������
��������
��
������������������������
������������	������
���������������%��
���1��!��������
���������������%���%���������%%�
������������������%�������
�������0��
���%%�
�������������������%�����0�/���������$	
�$�=����������
��	�/��1��A�����?����������0�/�������$���0������
��������
��������
��������
���������������	
��������������������������%��������%�	�$������������B0�����������������C��%�	������%��
�	������$������������������
��=�����������$1�������=	������
�������������>�����������������������
�0�/�����������	=�������=������=�������	�������=	��
���������%�
����%���������=�	��������������������%������	=�	�%�
�1������������0�������
��������������
�$����	������/��������$��$������=	�����������$���������������������%�����$�����$�������������0��	
�������������������
�$����
��=���&���
��$�%�����������
����$�$�������1��!��������=	�������
��
	����$�%�������$����0�����
�	$�D��  �E�������	��������	$��� �E�������	��#��@	�
��� �F������ �G����%�� �������������$����=��
�1��!����������������������$��$������=	���$��������������
��=��
��
	����$��$�$�������
�%�
������=	�������
��=�������%������=	���������
��=��
��
	����$1��!��������=	����0��
���������
���$���$����	=�����%��������������$������
�������	��$������=	���1��H�����$/�
�$������=	����
��=��������$��%�$�����$�������	=��@	��������
�����?1��E%��	%%�
������������
���0���������%������������/����=���%����0�������������������
������0��
��
�$	
��������������
��������������
���=��������������=	������������$������/���������$�
��=�������%�%�������������������%��������������
�$���1��E%���������
���0��������
�����������������������/����=�������������=	�����������0�������0�������/��
��������%�������������������=	��0�������=��
���=����$�	������0�������$�����$��$������$1��!������	�����%�����������
�$�����
@	��������$��������������0����=���������$�����������������$��
��=�������%���$������$������
����������������
����$�$������$�������������1��

IJKLMNOP�QPRSTJUS�VIW�XYZ[\[\[]\\̂ ]̂_̀Xa]ZbYc]bdYdZZ̀IIQde



����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

 !"� #$%#&%'�()$*+,%(-#�#+.$,/������������������
��������00����������	1
����
�������2�
��	�����������
�������2�����2�3����
�2	
����0��������
��	�4�����2�
���������������3��������������������
�����	�����00��
�������������������	1��
���2������4���������
������
��3��������5����6�2�������
���0�����	�2������7����
��2�8�����9:���������
�0�
�8�;��2�;4����������������
���	�2������
��1��2�4�����2�����2������
������3�������<�2���������������
�����4���������	���������2����4�����3�����2��

������=	�������:��>!"� )?@ABCD�'@EDE��>!F��  G�#BHEIHC�GJDJ�+CKLHEHDH@M�,L?MNBO�)?HCB� ��P������������1���3��������������	�Q������
���0��������������������	����������
���0��
�����
=	��������
����������2��
��1�2����������������R�� � ,L?MSNBO�'@ED�#HDB�THEHD�JMU�?BVHMBIBMD�@U�WHMB�W@CJDH@ME� XYZY""!""� [� !YS>!"IH� G�EBHEIHC�?BVWBCDH@M�WHMBE�\�]?@CBEEHM̂� X Y_ZY""!""�%MDB?]?BDJDH@M�JMU�?B]@?D� X "Z"""!""�,@DJW� X ̀YZ"""!""�+UUHDH@MJW�a@̂�+MJWOEHE�JMU�*BTHEHM̂�*B]@?D�b(]DH@MJWc� XF"Z"""!""���P���P	�Q������
���
�	2����1	��������������2���������0����3���������
��	�4��������
�����Q���2����4�
��R��d:��	�4���2��������������
�����2������������
�����	������2��=	�������������e������������������������
��4�������	�������2���4��3�����������
����:���:�f�1���g������2�����1���g������0������=	�������2�����������h0�����	�4��������i�8�	�����8	��4�������2��	�����P�j��:���:������������0�������
�����	������4��������	�4������2���	���������=	�����������������2�����2���:���:�������
��=	���������	�������	�����2����������2�����
=	����������������k��
�	2����	���������=	���������	
Q������������������������0���2������������������������2���:��l:�5���	������2��=	��������0���2�������
�:��m:�������
������
���6������
����5��f��������2�8�;���������:��n:�������
����
�������o:������1	������
������

pqrstuvw�xwyz{q|z�}p~��������������������������������ppx��



����������	
��������	��������������������	���������������������������� �

!"�#����������������"�$�����������������%�����������&������'�����������'����������������&������(
�������'���&�)�*��������+��������,-./,�0123�'���������������)����&��(
��������4���5��'������������'�'���&���������"��6���&��������������4����&
���&�����������'������������)�����"�����'�����&����'�������������)���
�&���&
��������)�*���������7��4�����89��4��������"��:����9����9�����������������������������9���
���������'���������������������#;<�������������������
�9������������)����������&
�������)�*���&�����&
�������������
�9������
�&��������"���=>/� ?@ABCDE�FA3E3�GAE�HIDJK0C0�LI�EMC�NK@IOC2�?@LDC���"�	��)�����&4��'��:�������� $���&����	��)�P�;(
�������Q������+���&�R����"�����&��S�� TU��"��V��"�� ��"�7���������&4��$���&����	��)�P�;(
�������Q������+���&�R����"�����&��S�� TU��"��V��"��WXYZ[�\]̂�_̀a]bĉ�̀def�ghaii�cf�jfkdldfb�ĉ�mn]̀kaònk�lnk�faoh�noopkkf]of�a]b�dg�gpcqfò�̀n�ep̀pai�on]gf]̀�ĉ�mniidfk�a]b�rZs\t���"�������������������������������������������������&�''��
����������������&���������������4���&�
����������4������'����&)�������&��������&�������������"�����
����	�������������������������&���������
����������5���������'����4����*����
���'������
4������&�������"�����������������������������
&�&���������������������"����
�&�#;<����(
������������������������	������)
�&�4���4�������9�&�������'�������������'��"�����������������9����4����+�����������&����&��������������9����4����������
&��������������)��'���
4������&����9�������&�
��"���=>=�� uvELAI1J�?@ABCDE�FA3E3�GAE�HIDJK0C0�LI�EMC�NK@IOC2�?@LDC��#�����
������)���������������������������������������������������'���)������'�����������4������&���&���&���������&�'����9����4���)�������&����'������������)����&���������'���������&����'��&�������������������&����9�
��"��%����������������������������9��������������������)�)������9��������&������&�����4
����(
���������������������)�������&���������9����4�����&���������������9����������4
���������������4��
��&��'���9����������������9����4��"����:��
�&������&������#;<��)����4��&�������� ����������)�������&�)����4���������������
����'������������)�������������
&�������������
��������"�����
���������������������)�������&���������9����4���'�������+�������)�������������
���4��������&�)������	������)�����������������������������������&�&�������9������'�������������&����'������'��)��������w��

xyz{|}~�������y����x���������������������������������xx���



�����������	
�������������������
������
������������������
������������������

� �!��"��#���"�$"�����%��������"���&�� � � � � '�(()%����� �*���
��������
����������+���	�������"�
�"�����!���"���,&� � '�-()%����� �.����"�����/�����+�0���1	���"2�	������3�
	�4��,&� � � � '�5()%���� ��60������������������4����7���%��
��
�������������������	������������"�������
�4���
������0���"�����
�4����� ��60����������7�
�����4����7����0�������������������7���
�������"��%��
����4��������"�����
�4�������"������7	������
������	���������%��������0����"���
��"�7��6$8� ��9�����������
���������4����������������������"�	�"���������������������4�"�"�������
������7�� ��:;<� =>?@A>BCD?>E��9���"���4���7����0������������
��%����
�������0�����0����%��&��F���������0���
�"����������������0��������G���"�G�HG���������	��"������
��"��"��������������	
�������������������
�"����4��	�� ��I���������0�������%�������
�"�����������
����
�����������"�����������"������$�J�"����0�����0���"�������
�����������������0��������$�J�4��	���0�������"������
��0���� �I�F�������������
�"�����
1	��������"�"�������
������������� �I����������"��
��7�������0���"����
�"	��������
��������������"�"������������������K;<� L?MENB>��9����������"�������
��	�4�������7���"�����"�������4�"������������	������������0������	7�	�0�
�������������������������������"�������
����� ��9����"����%�������4�"��������1	���"��	7��	�0�
��
������0���6$8�����������%���G�������"	
����%���� ���������7����4�������������������"��	�4���"��
��7�"�%������"	
�����O������
����"�%�����������
�	
��������������������"����"�����"���0�����	���7���%������
����+�, ���������������O��0��%��"����%��O���%����6$8� �������������	��O�%��0���	���4�����1	����������
������ ��J�	�����	����� ����P���P������� � ���� � ���������������
����

QRSTUVWX�YXZ[\R][�̂Q_�̀abcdcdceddffegh̀iebjakejlalbbhQQYlm



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4B 



Grants Semi-Annual Update

Alyson Piguee

Director of External & Government Affairs

September 21, 2022



$56.4
$16.5

$67.2
$118.2

$10.1 $3.1

$20.7
$4.7

$25.7

$0.6 $7.2

$124.8

$152.3
$16.7

$316.4

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

Recycled Water Wastewater
Treatment

Groundwater
Management

Safe Drinking Water Water Conservation Renewable Energy

G
ra

nt
/L

oa
n 

A
m

ou
nt

 (
$M

ill
io

ns
)

State Grant Federal Grant SRF Loan WIFIA Loan
2

Grant & Loan Funding Overview 

Executed Grants + Loans = $941M

Federal 
Loans

$316M
State 
Loans

$294M

State   
Grants

$272M

Federal 
Grants

$59M



Completed 
Projects 
$415.2M

Open/Active 
Project 
$525.6M

Awarded, In 
Negotiation

$63.0M

3

Grant & Loan Funding Overview 

*Does not include WSIP funding

Funding Agencies for IEUA’s Current 
Agreements and Applications

IEUA Grant/Loan Awards 
since 2000

Total Awards 
since 2000 = 

$1.0 B



• Working with CBP team to track and forecast funding opportunities
—Tracking legislation with advocacy partners to identify upcoming water infrastructure funding

—Flexible strategies to align CBP components with opportunities

• Funding application timelines will align with 30% design schedule

4

Chino Basin Program (CBP) Funding

RW Intertie AWPF Injection Wells Extraction Wells External Supplies



30-year term

Total Interest 
Savings = 
$261.2 M

5

Low-Interest Loan Savings

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

$450

$500

1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35

$ 
M

ill
io

ns

Year

Low-Interest Loan Interest

Estimated Bond Interest

$293.9M in capital projects 

Interest Rate = 0.0 – 2.60%

35-year term

$316.4M in capital projects 

Interest Rate = 1.36 – 2.61%



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4C 



California Air Resources Board
Proposed Advanced Clean Fleet Regulation

Lucia Diaz

Manager of Facilities & Water System Programs

September 2022



• Executive Order N-79-20
—Elimination of new internal combustion passenger vehicle sales in CA by 2035
—100% of medium- and heavy-duty vehicles be zero-emission by 2045 where feasible

• California Air Resources Board (CARB) Zero-Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Market
Development Strategy

—Advanced Clean Cars II Program
(Light Duty)

—Advanced Clean Fleet Regulation 
(Medium-Heavy Duty)

Advanced Clean Fleet Background

2



Advanced Clean Cars II Program

Light Duty Vehicles

Ramp up to 

100% ZEV sales by 2035

3

Proposed On-Road ZEV Regulations

Advanced Clean Fleet Regulation 

Medium – Heavy Duty Vehicles

2024, 50% ZEV Public Fleet Purchases

2027,100% ZEV Public Fleet Purchases



4

Proposed Advanced Clean Fleet 
Regulation: Water & Wastewater 
Challenges

• Emergency response vehicles exempt from this regulation 
includes electrical utility vehicles, but not water or wastewater

• Sanitary Sewer Overflows are not included as an emergency 
response function

• “Unavailability Exemptions” for ZEVs may not fully consider 
specific utility vehicle configurations or needs

• Maximum 1-year allowed for charging infrastructure 
construction delays

• Immediate need to replace a vehicle due to unforeseen 
circumstances (accident, breakdown, etc.) is not covered in the 
draft text, potentially delaying ZEV replacement.

• Consider renewable biogas as part of the SB 100 approach, 
and local air districts are limiting its utilization for onsite energy 
production to limit emissions. 



• Staff has been working with CASA to educate CARB on the essential
function IEUA and other water and wastewater utilities serve

• Goal is to update the draft regulation so IEUA can help CARB reduce
emissions without reduced reliability or jeopardization of public safety or
environmental health

• To date, staff has…
—Tracked and reviewed draft regulation language
—Testified at the CARB Public Workgroup Meeting
—Coordinated with CASA on water & wastewater utility needs
—Participated in joint meetings between CARB and CASA
—Provided a comment letter to CARB with challenges and recommendations

Proposed Advanced Clean Fleet 
Regulation: IEUA Action

5



• Continued participation in CARB workgroup 
—Hopeful IEUA & CASA comments have been heard
—Rulemaking package expected early September 2022
—CARB board recommendation October 2022

• Ongoing collaboration with CASA

• Further development of additional ZEV charging stations 
at IEUA facilities

• Review of current assets to determine ZEV conversion 
schedule

6

Proposed Advanced Clean Fleet 
Regulation: Next Steps



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4D 



Engineering and Construction 
Management Project Updates

Jason Marseilles, P.E.

Manager of Engineering & Construction Management

September 2022



2

Project 
Location

Map



3

SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water 
Recycling Plant No. 1)
Project Goal: Increase Reliability

Total Project Budget: $16.2M
Project Completion: July 2024

Design Percent Complete: 90%

Phase
Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design
(Current)

Eramosa $1.37M 14%

Construction
TBD $0 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Cayatte, Pierre

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Nhothsavath, Cathy

Administrative Assistant: Wallace & Associates

Inspector: Jones, Nick



4

RP-1 Flare Improvements 
Project Goal: Enhance Reliability and Permit Compliance

Total Project Budget: $9.2M
Project Completion: December 2022

Construction Percent Complete: 80%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Zughbi, Jamal

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Tao, Justin

Administrative Assistant: Woods

Inspector: GK & Associates

Digester Gas Discharge Piping with Expansion Loop

Phase
Consultant/
Contractor

Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design Lee & Ro $676k 31%

Construction
(Current)

W.M. Lyles $6.4M 16%



5

Montclair Basin Improvement
Project Goal: Increase Groundwater Recharge

Total Project Budget: $1.8M
Project Completion: June 2024

Construction Percent Complete: 0%

Project Management Team

Project Manager: Ignacio, Joel

Assistant/Associate Engineer: Ward, Ryan 

Administrative Assistant: GK & Associates

Inspector: TBD

Phase
Consultant/Contract

or
Current 
Contract

Amendments/
Change Orders

Design
(Current)

Carollo $155k 7%

Construction TBD $0 0%



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4E 



Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report - Review of Procure
to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards

Internal Audit (IA) staff completed an evaluation of the procure to pay (P2P) process for the
Agency's Home Depot credit cards. The objective of the audit was to evaluate the ordering,
receiving, and processing of payments, to identify problems and bottlenecks in the payment
processes, pay Home Depot invoices timely, minimize and eliminate credit holds placed by the
vendor, and propose recommendations to make the process more efficient. This audit noted there
are over 30 Home Depot credit cards issued to Agency employees. In the previous two fiscal
years, the Agency has spent approximately $50,000-$60,000 in purchases with Home Depot.
IA's review notes that the current Home Depot credit card program is not effective because the
cards are often placed on credit hold and employees are often turned back from the stores. IA
identified several issues with the administration of the program and makes recommendations for
efficiencies. The Agency has already initiated steps to phase out the Home Depot credit cards
and absorb the purchases through the use of the procurement card program, as recommended by
IA in 2018. The attached report provides details of the observations and several
recommendations to improve the Home Depot credit card program if the Agency decides to
continue using Home Depot credit cards for Agency purchases.

This is an information item.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

09/12/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report Review of Procure to Pay
Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA's
evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and
objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit.

Attachment 1 - Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report - Review of
Procure to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22206



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report 
– Review of Procure to Pay Processes for 

Home Depot Credit Cards

Teresa Velarde

Manager of Internal Audit

September 12, 2022



P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

2

2018 Procurement Card Audit 

IA provided 6 audit recommendations related to maximizing the use of the Pcard and maximize the 

benefits provided through the Pcard:

• Evaluate the benefits of consolidating the various credit card programs 

• Rebates earned for early payment

• Rebates earned for volume spending

• Maximize the use of the US Bank online tools for 

• Reporting tools to evaluate spending by different categories

• Creating blocks on types or purchases or maximum amounts

• Creating alert notices for any unusual activity 

• Streamlining the approval and reconciliation process

• Improve the reconciliation of expenses



P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

3

Audit Objectives

• Determine compliance with Agency policies and department Procedures 

• Evaluate internal controls

• Evaluate the receiving function

• Evaluate  the timeliness of payments

• Evaluate the efficiency of the payment processes 

• Identify inefficiencies in the processes

• Evaluate the use of technology and reporting tools

• Identify operational efficiencies and opportunities for improvement



4

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

Risks & Other Challenges:

• Agency placed on credit hold and purchases declined

• Morale due to declined purchases

• Workarounds and delays

• Reputation risk to the Agency



Background Information: 

—Home Depot Contract and Credit Cards (in use since at least 2007)
• Contract provides national discounted pricing and Home Depot credit cards

• Credit cards are a payment mechanism to pay for purchases at the Home Depot stores and online 
(website)

—Store specific credit card, No Visa or Mastercard logo

—Follows the Procure to Pay processes 

—Administered by the Contracts and Procurement (CAP)

—No Agency Policy to provide guidelines

—Rebates are minimal

5

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards



6

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

Agency Department
Number of Cards 

Issued

IEUA

Contracts and Procurement 2

Engineering 4

External & Government Affairs 1

Facilities & Water Systems Programs 7

Maintenance 5

Operations 6

Planning & Resources 2

IERCA 5

Home Depot card issued to separated employee 1

Total number of Home Depot credit cards issued 33

Cardholder assignment:

Home Depot Online account

Amounts are inclusive of all purchasing methods 

(Catalog (PR/PO), credit card – in store/online)

Data as of August 11, 2022 (1)

Description IEUA IERCA Totals

Year-to-date Spend (1) $ 24,101.49 $ 12,637.34 $ 36,738.83

Year-to-date EPD (1) $ 97.26 $ 3.39 $ 100.65

Spending and Early Pay Discount: 

The Home Depot’s Incentive Program

Description Net Sales
Earned

Participant Rebate

2020 Rebate

(Received March 2021)
$50,542.85 $1,010.86

2019 Rebate

(Received March 2020)
$52,831.77 $1,056.64

Rebates: 

Home Depot Store locations

Frequently visited (daily)

• 14549 Ramona Avenue, Chino, CA

• 2980 S. Euclid Avenue, Ontario, CA

• 11884 Foothill Blvd, Rancho Cucamonga, CA



7

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards



8

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards



9

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards



10

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

Receiving for Home Depot 
purchases/transactions:

Receiving function in SAP
(Count of Distinct GR Documents with Days to Receive)

Home Depot Purchases

Data as of August 8, 2022

Number of days to 

Receive 
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22

IEUA IERCA IEUA IERCA

1-7 days 91 33 115 15

8-14 days 27 10 23 3

15-30 days 37 7 21 5

31-60 days 39 1 10 0

61-90 days 24 1 7 2

90 or more days 20 0 7 7

Totals 238 52 183 32

Source: Goods Receiving and Invoice Payment Tracker Report, GR Entry Date: 7/1/2020-6/30/2021, Company Code 1000 and 2000

Goods Receiving and Invoice Payment Tracker Report, GR Entry Date: 7/1/2021-6/30/2022, Company Code 1000 and 2000



11

P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

Timeliness of payments for Home Depot purchases/invoices:
Vendor Payment Processing in SAP

(Count of Vendor invoices Paid and Past Due)

Home Depot Purchases

Data as of August 8, 2022

FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22

IEUA IERCA
% of all 

receiving
IEUA IERCA

% of all 

receiving

Paid on Time 31 44 24% 8 2 5%

Past due 1-30 days 

(paid one month late)

54 2 18% 16 5 11%

Past due 31-60 days 

(paid 2 months late)

98 0 31% 33 4 19%

Past due 61-90 days

(paid 3 months late)

67 2 22% 64 8 36%

Past due over 90 days

(paid 4 months late)

15 1 5% 48 10 29%

Totals 265 49 100% 169 29 100%

Source: Goods Receiving and Invoice Payment Tracker Report, GR Entry Date: 7/1/2020-6/30/2021, Company Code 1000 and 2000

Goods Receiving and Invoice Payment Tracker Report, GR Entry Date: 7/1/2021-6/30/2022, Company Code 1000 and 2000



P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

12

Audit Results:
• One (1) of the 20 or 5% items tested had the wrong invoice attached in SAP. The invoice attached in the financial module in SAP does not

support the amount paid. (Sample No. 2)

• One (1) of the 20 or 5% items tested had no invoice/receipt attached in the financial module in SAP. The in-store receipt was used to

perform the Receiving function and available to be viewed in the Purchasing module under the Goods Receipt number in SAP. (Sample

No. 13)

• One (1) of the 20 or 5% items tested had a data entry error and the document date (invoice date) was inputted correctly. Specifically, the

year was entered incorrectly. (Sample No. 16)

• Three (3) of the 20 or 15% items tested had incorrect/inaccurate dates in the document date filed inputted during the Receiving process in

SAP. Specifically, in the Purchasing module, the incorrect date was entered in the document date field. (Sample No. 2, 17, and 20)

• Eight (8) of the 20 or 40% items tested took longer than 30 days to receive according to the dates recorded in SAP and metrics calculated

on the GRIPT report and/or by IA. (Sample No. 1, 4, 5, 8, 9, 13, 14, and 16)

• 16 of the 20 or 80% items tested, the number of days between the completion of the Receiving and processing and posting the payment

by AP took longer than 30 days (as late as 125 days). This is an issue related to Accounting not having a systematic and consistent

methodology to account for and process Home Depot purchases and payments. (Sample No. 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17,

18, 19, and 20)



P2P – Home Depot Credit Cards

13

IA Recommendations:

• Eliminate the Home Depot credit cards

• Electronic Home Depot receipts should be placed in a central location

• Key information required as part of the Receiving function in SAP

• Need an Agency Policy for the use of Home Depot credit cards

• Need documented procedures of tracking, monitoring and processing timely payments of Home Depot credit card transactions

• The various procurement methods should be uniform

• Role of the CAP representative should be enhanced

• Ensure adequate custody and oversight of the credit card assignments

• Accounting does not have a systematic method to account for, monitor and process Home Depot payments



The Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards is consistent with the Agency's 
Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business 
Practices by ensuring IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong 
control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist 
management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

Questions? 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4F 



Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Status Update - Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies

Internal Audit (IA) staff is in the process of finalizing the evaluation of the procure to pay (P2P)
process for Agency material and supplies (M&S). The objective of the audit is to evaluate the
procure to pay processes including ordering, purchase requisitions, receiving, approval and
payments for materials and supplies. The purpose is to identify problems, bottlenecks, and
constraints in the various steps to process vendor invoices timely. Additionally, to evaluate the
reasons for and minimize the risk of the Agency being placed on credit hold due to late
payments.

During the previous quarter, IA provided a general overview of the P2P audit, a preliminary list
of only a few vendors and a draft of the flowchart of the P2P process. During this quarter, IA
revised and updated with more accurate information the steps in the P2P process. Pulled a
larger, more complete list of all M&S vendors, including all transactions and data for analysis.
The next steps in the audit process include completing testing of selected transactions to identify
and evaluate the root cause for delays in the P2P process and complete the analysis of the data
with metrics and statistics, additionally, to provide recommendations for improvements.
A final audit report will be presented in December 2022.

This is an information item.

N/A

09/12/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Status Update - Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies is consistent
with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and
Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a
strong control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist
management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Control Audit.

Attachment 1 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22207



Status Update -
Review of Procure to Pay Processes 

for Materials and Supplies

Teresa Velarde

Manager of Internal Audit 

September 12, 2022



P2P Process for Materials and Supplies (M&S) 

2

New Updates Since the Interim Report:

• Identify 86 M&S vendors1 to be used for sample selection.

• Updated the scope of the M&S audit to focus on recent data for FY 2021-2022.  

• Determined the total dollar amount spent on M&S for the 86 vendors in FY 2021-2022 to be $3.4 million2.

• Facilitated interviews to create new flowcharts and process steps with current and detailed information.

• Documented information for 8 potential procurement methods for M&S.

• Developed testing procedures and began sample selection process.

• Potential observations for improvement are being noted and will be included in the final report.

1. The list of 86 M&S vendors did not include chemical vendors that were already covered in the P2P Processes for Chemicals Review. 

2. $3,415,956.35 according to FY2021-2022 AP Monitoring report that was downloaded from SAP (Crystal Reports) on July 14, 2022. Dollar amounts listed are based 
on the Document Types ZA and ZC, which are amounts paid/disbursed by the IEUA to M&S vendors.



3

Updated Flowcharts:
P2P Process for Materials and Supplies 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

(C
A

P
)

CAP identified 8 potential 
procurement methods for 

materials and supplies. CAP works 
with the vendor, Accounting 
(ACCT), and the appropriate 

ordering department - Operations 
(OPS), Facilities and Water System 

Programs (FWSP), Maintenance 
(MNT), or Warehouse (WHS) - 
throughout each procurement 

method. 

Catalog 

Purchase Orders
Standard 

Purchase Orders

Blanket 

Purchase 

Agreements

Emergency 

Procurements

Cooperative/

Piggyback 

Procurements

Budgeted 

Procurements
Credit Cards Contracts

W
a
re

h
o

u
se

 (
W

H
S

)

R
e
ce

iv
in

g

WHS works with the vendor, CAP, 
and ACCT throughout receiving 

process for M&S.

Delivery truck drops off materials 
and supplies to WHS.

WHS Technician verifies 
contents of package, signs for 
packages that will be kept at 
the WHS, and, if the package 

needs to go elsewhere, 
updates the notes as to where 
the package needs to go from 

there.

 WHS Technician scans 
delivery documentation 

into shared agency drive.

WHS administrative staff access 
scan of delivery documentation 

from shared agency drive to 
perform SAP receiving and 

upload supporting 
documentation into SAP.

 Original 
documentation is 

eliminated. Uploaded 
documentation is kept 

in SAP.

Scans

For items WHS will complete 
SAP receiving for, WHS 

Technician updates internal 
intake log with notes/details 

for items and takes the 
receiving documents from the 

packaging.

For items a different 
department will complete 

SAP receiving for, WHS logs 
notes/details for items in SAP.

For items OPS/FWSP will be 
completing SAP receiving for, the 

appropriate department is 
notified that the package is ready 

for pick up.

After SAP receiving 
is complete, SAP 

generates a goods 
receipt (GR) and GR 

number.



4

Updated Flowcharts: 
P2P Process for Materials and Supplies 

M
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e
 (

M
N

T
) 

U
n

it

R
e
ce

iv
in

g

MNT works with the vendor, CAP, 
and ACCT throughout receiving 

process for M&S.

Delivery truck drops off M&S 
ordered by MNT to RP-2, RP-5, or 
Carbon Canyon Water Recycling 

Facility  (CCWRF).

IEUA staff verify contents of 
package, sign for package, 

accept package and check for 
delivery documentation.

 IEUA staff scan delivery 
documentation into 

computer.

MNT 
administrative staff 
access email with 

delivery 
documentation or 
approved form to 

perform SAP 
receiving and 

upload supporting 
documentation 

into SAP.

 Original 
documentation, 

after scanned 
and attached to 

GR/SAP, is filed in 
a 6-month 

retention folder 
and then 

discarded.

Scans

If there is delivery 
documentation, IEUA staff 

take delivery documentation 
from the packaging.

If there is no delivery 
documentation, a form can be 

used instead as long as it is 
approved by appropriate 

staffing.

Scans

 IEUA staff scan approved form 
into computer.

 IEUA staff goes 
back to his/her 

computer to 
retrieve scanned 

document to 
attach to email 

sent to MNT 
administrative 

staff.

After SAP 
receiving is 

complete, SAP 
generates a 

goods receipt 
(GR) and GR 

number.

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

(O
P

S
) 

U
n

it
 

R
e
ce

iv
in

g

OPS works with the vendor, CAP, 
and ACCT throughout receiving 

process for M&S.

After SAP receiving 
is complete, SAP 

generates a goods 
receipt (GR) and 

GR number.

Package 

Picked up 

From Delivery 

Location

Package 

Taken to 

OPS

Delivery truck drops off materials 
and supplies (M&S) ordered by 

OPS to Warehouse (WHS) or 
(rarely) HQA where it is accepted.

OPS is notified that the package 
has arrived and sends staff to 

retrieve it.

OPS staff open the package, 
verify the contents, and take the 
delivery documentation from the 

packaging.

 OPS staff upload delivery 
documentation into 

SharePoint/OneDrive.

OPS administrative staff access 
uploaded delivery documentation 

in SharePoint/OneDrive to 
perform SAP receiving and 

upload supporting 
documentation into SAP.

 OPS administrative 
staff file original 

documentation to be 
kept for approximately 

one year.



5

Updated Flowcharts:
P2P Process for Materials and Supplies 

A
c
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 (

A
C

C
T
) 

-

A
c
co

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 (

A
P

)

ACCT – AP works with the vendor, 
CAP, and the receiving 

department - Operations (OPS), 
Maintenance (MNT), Warehouse 

(WHS), or Facilities and Water 
System Programs (FWSP) - to 

process payment for materials and 
supplies.

Email 
(electronic) 
invoices are 

electronically 
stamped when 
received by AP.

Hardcopy 
invoices are 

date-stamped, 
scanned daily 

and cataloged by 
AP.

AP processes and 
posts the invoices.

According to AP, after 
a transaction has 
been posted, SAP 
 flags  the item as 

 not due  or 
 overdue. 

For an item  not due,  
SAP will leave the 
item as an open 

payable for 
scheduling of 

payment to be 
completed closer to 

the due date.

For an item 
 overdue,  payment 

is automatically 
scheduled for the 

next payment cycle. 

Once a transaction is selected for 
processing, AP staff will perform the 

three-way match which entails 
navigating approximately 8-10 

screens in SAP to:

  Verify PO information
  Confirm invoice information 
  Validate delivery 
documentation
  Match PO, invoice, and 
delivery documentation 
amounts

Intern staff 
(as of February 28, 

2022)
log all invoices 

received (email/post 
mail) in an excel 

spreadsheet.

Next, intern staff 
enter all invoices into 
SAP and post invoices 
to the  Held Invoices  
report, a database of 
all incoming invoices, 

to be stored 
temporarily for 

further SAP 
processing by AP 

staff.

In
v
o

ic
e
s

Next, AP will 
run a  Pre-list  

on all items 
that will be 

processed for 
payment and 

the  Pre-list  is 
reviewed by 

Agency 
Management. 

Upon 
approval, a 
final list of 

payments is 
generated and 
the payments 
on this list are 

processed.

 Most 
payments are 
paid through 

ACH.

If SAP receiving 
has not been 

completed, then 
the materials and 

supplies 
transaction will 

not appear on the 
GR/IR report.

 If SAP receiving 
has been 

completed, then it 
will appear in the 
SAP GR/IR report 

and AP will 
proceed to perform 

the 3-way match

If 3-way match is unable to be 
completed, then invoice will be 

placed back on hold and continue 
to stay in  Held Invoices.  Then, AP 
will coordinate with Agency staff to 

resolve errors, amount 
adjustments, and/or issues with the 

supporting documentation.

If 3-way match is successfully 
completed, invoice processing 

will continue. 

Invoice

AP relies on materials 
and supplies SAP 
receiving to be 

completed by Agency 
staff 

(OPS, MNT, WHS, and 
FWSP).

Receiving

Goods Receipt/

Invoice Receipt 

(GR/IR) Query 

AP starts with the 
GR/IR report in SAP 

to identify the 
materials and 

supplies 
transactions where 

the receiving has 
been performed

PO
Delivery 

documentation

3-Way 

Match 

AP emails 
remittance 
advice to 
vendor.

ACH 

Payment

Remittance 

Advice



P2P Process for Materials and Supplies

6

Receiving Challenges:

• For non-BPA vendors, there is currently no way to know for the staff placing the order to know if the Agency 
is on credit hold with a vendor without submitting a quote and waiting 1-2 days for a response (sometimes it takes 
3-4 days for the vendor to realize/notify us that we are on credit hold).

• There are times when SAP receiving is completed by the initial delivery site before the item reaches the 
division that is responsible to complete the SAP receiving for it.

• Allotted time used for SAP receiving varies by division with some receivers performing it as soon as it is 
ready and others waiting until a certain time of the week to complete all receiving for the week.

• The information entered into SAP during receiving varies by division, resulting in:

— Varying identification information available in SAP for Accounting

— Varying amounts of time needed to complete SAP receiving



Payment Timeliness in FY 2021-2022:
P2P Process for Materials and Supplies 

Timeliness
Total Dollar ($) Amount 

(AMT) of Transactions

Number (#) of 

Transactions

 Percentage of 

Transactions

On Time $ 1,237,913 994 33%

Late $ 2,500,566 2,023 67%

Grand Total $ 3,738,480 3,017 100%

*The data above is according to the FY 2021-2022 AP Monitoring report that was downloaded from SAP (Crystal Reports) on July 14, 2022. Dollar amounts, transaction counts, and percentages listed are 

approximations based on Document Types VI and VM, which are purchase order and non-purchase order invoices. The total dollar amount of purchase order and non-purchase order invoices after duplicate removal

procedures is just over $3.7 million (as shown above) while the total dollar amount paid/disbursed by the IEUA to M&S vendors is just over $3.4 million. 7



Late Payments by Transaction Amount FY 2021-2022:
P2P Process for Materials and Supplies 

Dollar Amount of 

Transaction

Number (#) of 

Transactions

 Percentage of 

Transactions

Under $5,000 1,932 96%

$5,001-$10,000 54 3%

Over $10,000 37 2%

Grand Total 2,023 100%

8



Top 10 M&S Vendors and Dollar Amounts FY 2021-2022:
P2P Process for Materials and Supplies 

9

Top 10 M&S Vendors for IEUA 

(According to Amounts Spent

 in FY 2021-2022)

Total 

Amount 

Spent

ROYAL INDUSTRIAL SOLUTIONS 537,272$    

HACH COMPANY 194,283$    

GRAINGER INC 182,210$    

CINTAS CORPORATION 166,445$    

VAUGHAN'S INDUSTRIAL REPAIR CO INC 153,805$    

CS-AMSCO 129,791$    

FISHER SCIENTIFIC 128,410$    

JCE EQUIPMENT INC 116,580$    

GRISWOLD INDUSTRIES 108,157$    

MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO 102,213$    

Grand Total for Top 10 1,819,165$ 



The Status Update - Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies is
consistent with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace
Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide
recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets,
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational
goals and objectives.



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4G 



Budget Impact 

 
September 21, 2022

Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations

This is the third progress update of audit recommendations provided by Internal Audit (IA)
through the Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control audits that evaluate the procure
to pay processes (P2P) for the various Agency departments. The scope of the audits is to
evaluate the ordering, receiving and payment processes for the Agency's goods and services and
to identify observations and recommendations for improvements to ensure the processes are
efficient and ensure vendor invoices are paid timely.

To-date, IA has provided 67 recommendations in the four comprehensive audits completed: the
Interim Audit Report, Procure to Pay Processes of Agency Chemicals, Procure to Pay Processes
for Professional Services administered by the Engineering and Construction Management
Department, and the Procure to Pay Processes for Planning & Resources. Of the 67
recommendations issued, 29 are now implemented, 21 are in progress of being implemented and
17 are considered no longer applicable because alternate controls have been implemented to
address the findings noted. The attached report provides details of the results. IA will continue to
provide quarterly progress updates for all recommendations, including new recommendations
made in additional P2P audits.

This is an information item.

N/A

09/12/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations is consistent with the
Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business
Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control
environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in
achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed the various Procure to Pay Audits under the Accounts Payable Operational
and Internal Controls Audit.

Attachment 1 - Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations
Attachment 2 - 3rd Progress Update for all outstanding P2P audits & Process Flowcharts
Attachment 3 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22205



 
 

 

DATE:   September 1, 2022 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 
 

  
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations 
   
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Department (IA) is 
providing a quarterly update of sixty-seven (67) audit recommendations provided in the 
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals, dated November 24, 2021, and the 
Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Engineering & Construction Management, dated 
February 24, 2022, and the Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Planning & 
Resources, dated May 24, 2022.  The quarterly progress update is provided under the 
authority given by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/2023 
Annual Audit Plan and the IA’s Charter. 
 
Audit Objective  
The scope of the original audits was to evaluate the ordering, receiving, and payment 
processes for the Agency's goods and services and to identify observations and 
recommendations for improvements to the processes to ensure the vendor payments are 
paid timely and within the terms of the vendor invoices.  The purpose of the quarterly 
progress reports is to provide an update of the implementation status of the original audit 
recommendations with a status of each, including the corrective action plans, and planned 
dates for implementation for each recommendation.   
 
Background 
As detailed in the original audit reports, goods and services purchased by the Agency are 
considered critical to the wastewater treatment process because of public health 
regulatory requirements and critical to the business initiatives of the Agency.  The original 
audits evaluated the controls and processes in place to ensure goods and services are 
ordered, delivered, received, and paid for, in a timely manner, while following approved 
procurement processes.  Good internal controls and sound processes ensure the Agency 
can operate according to regulatory requirements and maintain healthy business 
relationships and a good business image with its vendors.     
 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations  
September 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 
 

To date, IA has completed the following Procure to Pay (P2P) audits:  
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Chemicals  

o Dated November 24, 2021 
o Provided thirty-five (35) audit recommendations  
o Presented and discussed during the December Audit Committee meeting 

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report - Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction 
Management (P2P – Engineering  

o Dated February 24, 2022 
o Provided twenty-one (21) audit recommendations 
o Presented and discussed during the March Audit Committee meeting 
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Controls Audit Report – Review of Procure 
to Pay Processes for Professional Services – Planning and Resources 

o Dated May 24, 2022 
o Provided 11 audit recommendations 
o Presented and discussed during the June Audit Committee Meeting 

 
The breakdown of the number of recommendations provided to each department is noted 
in the chart below with a status for each recommendation. The attached report, provide a 
detailed list of all recommendations, noting the departments responses, planned date for 
implementation and IA notes/comments related to the responses and proposed plans by 
the departments and the final disposition for each. The list attached provides only a list of 
items that were still outstanding as of June 2022, resolved items are not included.   
 

 

Of the 67 recommendations:  

• 29 are now Implemented (43% of all recommendations) 

• 21 are in progress of being implemented  (31% of all recommendations) 

• 17 are considered no longer applicable because alternate controls were 
implemented.  These are considered closed.  

 
 
  



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations  
September 1, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 

Highlights 
Highlights of the recommendations that have been implemented during the previous three 
months include the following:  
 

• CAP has addressed 8 of the original recommendations. Only one recommendation 
remains outstanding.  This is a new recommendation provided in June of 2022 related 
to updating Agency Policy A-51 regarding procurements for Purchase Orders and 
non-Purchase Orders. CAP is taking the lead to see that this policy is updated to 
formalize and clarify Agency guidelines related to procurements. 

 
Other recommendations already implemented suggested that CAP reach out to the 
departments to work closely with them to gain a clear understanding of their unique 
procurement requirements and to provide additional training, guidance, and 
assistance to ensure the transactions follow the Agency’s P2P process.  CAP has had 
multiple meetings with Operations & Maintenance(O&M) and Engineering & 
Construction Management (E&CM) and has provided guidance and awareness of the 
various procurement instruments and monitoring reports (Contracts and PO).  
Additionally, CAP hosts a virtual Q&A session each month called CAP Café and 
attendees can ask questions, request guidance, assistance, and discuss any unique 
issues.  Lastly, each month, CAP staff send via email to all Agency staff a list of Tips 
and Tricks related to SAP navigation and transactions.  The additional outreach efforts 
have provided valuable and useful information for all users.  

 

• The E&CM Department took the lead to evaluate their internal metric of fourteen (14) 
days to determine the best goal that allows Accounting sufficient time to process the 
invoice payment.  E&CM took worked closely with Accounting and CAP to evaluate 
options to ensure vendor invoices are returned to Accounting within the set internal 
goal/timeline of fourteen (14) days and will work with CAP to determine if invoice terms 
can be extended for future contracts.   

 
The E&CM Department is working on documenting Standard Operating Procedures 
for processing invoices and pay estimates and plans to have final versions by June 
30, 2022.  Additionally, E&CM plans to provide training on the new procedures once 
they are documented.  IA will follow up on this item during the next progress update.   

 

• The O&M Department took the lead and  they worked closely with Information 
Technology and implemented IAs recommendations related to leveraging the various 
technologies and tools already available to expedite the receiving process for 
chemical deliveries.  Specifically, the O&M Department, for all plants, are now using 
Agency-issued cell phones to scan, upload, and submit the delivery documents to a 
designated electronic folder where the administrative assistants have immediate 
visibility and access to begin processing the receiving into SAP.  This process has 
already been rolled out to all plants.  With this new process, the O&M Department has 
set a goal to ensure receiving is completed into SAP within five to seven (5-7) days; 
this is a tremendous improvement when compared to the original audit findings, where 
it was noted that receiving was taking an average of twenty-three (23) days.  With this 



Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations  
September 1, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 

shortened receiving time frame, it will allow the Accounting Unit the remaining days of 
the month to process timely payments for chemical vendors.   

 

• Accounting has been working closely with the IT department to develop monitoring 
reports that Accounting can use to have greater visibility of all payable items that come 
in.  The reports will assist with sorting items, planning, prioritizing, and scheduling 
payments with the end goal of ensuring payments are made on time. 

 

Accounting is also working closely with IT to evaluate new software tools to automate 
the upload and routing of invoices, this system will ensure all invoices that arrive at 
the Agency are accounted for, tracked, monitored and sent to the appropriate 
approver for signature and proper receiving in SAP.  

 
The attached matrix provides a status for each of the previously outstanding audit 
recommendations. For additional details, IA refers readers to the original audit reports, 
received and filed by the Board of Directors:  

 
• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report – Review of Procure to Pay 

Processes for Chemicals, dated November 24, 2021. 
 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report - Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Professional Services – Engineering & Construction Management, dated 
February 24, 2022.  

 

• Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report – Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for Planning and Resources, dated May 24, 2022. 

 
The reports can be accessed through the Agency’s intranet website or requested from 
the Manager of Internal Audit. IA will provide another progress update in December 2022.  
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the Planning & Resources, Engineering & 
Construction Management, Operations & Maintenance, Accounting, and the Contracts 
and Procurement Department staff for their cooperation and assistance during this review 
and look forward to the continued collaboration. 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA met with each of the respective department managers and representatives to discuss 
the observations, the status of each recommendation, and corrective action plans.  Where 
possible, their comments have been incorporated. 
 
 
The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations is consistent with the Agency’s 
Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by ensuring that 
IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, safeguard assets, 
promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 



Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented
No Longer 
Applicable Total Original Audit Recommendations

Operations Unit 12 0 0 4 16
100% Implemented 
All 16 recommendations have been addressed.

Engineering & Construction Management 2 4 0 1 7
2 of 7 recommendations 29% have been addressed.  
4 of 7 recommendaitons 57% are in progress. 

Planning 4 0 0 2 6
100% Implemented 
All 6 recommendations have been addressed.

Contracts and Procurement 7 1 0 1 9
Only one recommendation requires attention - re 
Agency Policy A-51 procurements.

Accounting 4 16 0 9 29
13 of 29 recommendations 45% have been addressed.
16 of 29 recommendations 55% are in progress. 

Total Recommendations 29 21 0 17 67
43% Implemented
31% In Progress
25% No Longer Applicable

Percentages 43% 31% 0% 25%

Reco #
Dept(s). 

taking the 
lead

Recommendation Implemented In Progress Not Implemented
No Longer 
Applicable

Department's Response, Corrective Action Plan 
and Proposed Date for Implementation

IA comments/notes

12

Operati
ons

Working 
with
BIS

Establish and document performance metrics, 
KPI's, goals and objectives and a method to 
measure those for the documentation of the 
deliveries by the operators and the time it takes to 
complete receiving into SAP.  Work with BIS to 
establish any reports that can provide 
measurements and metrics.

X

7/11/2022 response received via email: The Goods 
Receiving and Invoice Payment Tracker for 
chemicals is now automated to be emailed to 
admin assistant and Manager by 0600 every 
Monday. This report will be used to manage and 
track the receiving process of chemicals. We have 
established the following goal: All chemical 
receiving will be completed with an annual average 
of 7 days or less. The Goods Receiving and Invoice
Payment Tracker will be reviewed weekly to ensure 
compliance with the established goal. Additionally, 
the Admin. Assistant and the Manager have 
established have a monthly KPI goal of completing 
all receiving in 7 days or less as part of our 
appraisal goals and objectives. If there are any 
outliers outside of 7 days a justification captured 
and communicated to Operations Unit staff. 

7/11/2022: IA considers this recommendation to be 
implemented and closed.  O&M has found a way to work 
closely with IT and ensure the department is able to 
monitor weekly the progress of their receiving.  Additionally 
O&M is choosing to take a strong stand on thie 
implementation of this recommendation by making these 
goals/objectives/KPIs a priority and taking them as far as 
individual goals in the Managers and Administrator's 
performance appraisal.  IA commends the department for 
taking strong proactive approach to ensure their part in the 
P2P process is evaluated and monitored weekly and 
holding their staff responsible for ensuring to meet the 
goals they set for themselves.

Internal Audit DepartmentProgress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations
September 1, 2022

Internal Audit Department

STATUS

Page 1 of 27



1 E&CM

The E&CM Department  management:
Finalize and update the SOP by documenting, 
signing, sharing with staff, and providing training.
   
Ensure the SOP documents the process for 
monitoring invoices,  timely receiving performed in 
SAP,  how to identify the professional services 
invoices, track, and route for approvals, to allow the 
Accounting Unit  sufficient time to process 
payments.

X

There is an outdated SOP for processing invoices 
and pay estimates. Currently, the drafted updated 
document is under review. The final document is 
expected to be signed and finalized by June 30th, 
2022.

Please forward the completed SOP to IA once it is 
finalized.  IA suggests you place it on a shared drive or on 
you website on AIM for all your staff to access. IA will 
follow up in July. 

2 E&CM

E&CM take the lead to seek assistance of CAP 
Department and the Accounting Unit to establish 
procedures for monitoring POs to minimize any 
budget blocks or delays in processing invoice for 
payments. 

The E&CM Department should document an SOP 
for reviewing, tracking and monitoring contracts, 
POs, monies remaining, payments issued, and 
other details of transactions and provide staff 
training. 

E&CM should work with IT, Accounting and CAP to 
determine, develop and/or enhance (using SAP or 
other systems) and avoid duplication of work/data 
entry, a report that is of greater value/use to the 
E&CM department, other than the Open PO Report 
and/or the MS Access Report, that will track all 
contracts, corresponding transactions (POs), 
spending,  remaining contract values, vendor 
contact information, payments issued, and any 
additional information that E&CM requires. Or 
determine if the current report and process is the 
best method available

X

E&CM has reviewed the current report they utilize 
with CAP, and both departments along with BIS 
have found that the report that E&CM currently 
meets the needs required by the department. No 
new reports will be made for the trackign of these 
contracts. **BIS was going to look into seeing if 
they could generate a report for us utilizing the 
informaton.I need to follow-up with Kanes.**

IA will follow up on any progress sometime in July. 

3 E&CM

The E&CM Department management should 
provide  training periodically to reinforce the 
documented SOPs to ensure employees are 
following consistent procedures. 

X

E&CM has a full training plan that was implemented
in February 2022 and will go through until 2023 to 
cover new and older topics with the department. 
(*attachment to training plan**)

Recommendation will be considered in progress until #1 is 
implemented - the SOP is finalized and shared with staff.  
Did you meant to attach a training plan?  Not attached to 
email. IA will follow up in July. 

4 E&CM

The E&CM Department management E&CM 
Department should consider formalizing this metric 
of 14 days and additional performance metrics and 
key performance indicators (KPI’s), goals, 
objectives, and a method to measure how timely 
invoices are approved and received. 

E&CM Department should work with the IT 
Department to establish any reports that can 
provide measurements and metrics.

X

KPI Metric will be included in the SOP to fomalize 
the process.    **BIS was going to look into seeing if
they could generate a report for us utilizing the 
informaton.** I believe AP and BIS are working an a
new system. I will need to follow up on this item 
with Deborah and Kanes. **

Recommendation will be considered in progress until #1 is 
implemented - the SOP is finalized and shared with staff.  
IA will follow up on the progress sometime in July. 

Page 2 of 27



1 P&R

P&R should work closely with CAP and Accounting 
to establish the most appropriate P2P process for 
all/unique transactions.  The departments should 
collaborate to ensure the process follows the 
Agency’s Procurement Ordinance requirements.  
P&R should discuss and seek CAPs assistance to 
ensure there is a clear understanding of the service 
agreement or transaction and the required 
documentation that should be completed and 
submitted, the process to commit to purchase 
services, ensure vendors are properly set up and a 
required PR/PO are established when necessary. 
The P2P process should be discussed and the best 
procurement method that works for all the 
departments involved, should be formalized, and 
agreed to, in order to ensure transactions are 
tracked and payments are paid on time. 

X

Planning has initiated discussions with the 
departments. Planning is working with CAP and 
Accounting to determine what the best practice is 
for the transactions.  Planning is waiting for 
Accounting to provide additional information.  The 
departments may agree that a traditional PR/PO 
may not be the most appropriate procurement 
instrument. The departments will discuss to 
evaluate various recommendations/approaches 
before finalizing a spceific process.  IA will review 
this in the next quarterly update.  

8/17/2022 It was discussed with CAP, Accounting and 
P&R: the departments have discussed and agreed on the 
steps for going forward with regards to unique procurement
transactions and the need to maintain a P2P process.  The 
meetings have provided awareness and information for all 
departments.  It was decided that the P&R department will 
reach out to CAP when they have questions and ensure 
there is consistency in their procurement instruments and 
processes.  CAP stated that the goal is to have the least 
number of transactions outside the PR PO system and limit
the specific/unique/special transactions that do not have a 
PR PO and CAP is available if needed when there are 
different circumstances.  The discussion and planned 
steps for going forward was satisfactory to CAP. This 
recommendation is now considered implemented.

2 P&R

IA recommends the P&R Department work with and 
collaborate with Accounting and IT to evaluate if the 
SharePoint Document Library and/or Microsoft 
Office Access database would be a more efficient 
tool to track invoices, metrics and projects (similar 
to the one used by Engineering & Construction 
Management) or if any other technologies, tools or 
solutions (new and/or existing) are available 
(leveraging information already in SAP) can be 
leveraged to record, track and route invoices for 
approval, to make the process more efficient and 
effective and eliminate the need for a stand-alone 
spreadsheet. Or determine if the current process 
with the excel spreadsheet is the best method.

X

Planning has discussed this recommendation with 
Accounting. Accounting stated they are currently 
evaluating automated software tools to facilitate the 
routing of invoices to the various departments.  
Planning stated they are open and flexible to 
implement the best process to assist paying 
invoices on time and will take a recommendation 
from Accounting.  Accounting has recommended to 
Planning to keep the current methodology because 
migrating to SharePoint, at this time might not be 
the most efficient tool and will wait until other 
tools/software is evaluated or implemented, in 
order to minimize changes at this time. Planning 
stated they will continue to maintain the internal 
tracker to manage their vendor invoices to ensure 
they are processing the invoices timely. 

IA considerst this recommendation as no longer applicable 
because Accounting is working on implmeemting 
automated tools at this time and has advised Planning to 
keep their current methodology for now.  This 
recommendation continues to be in progress for 
Accounting only. 

3 P&R

IA recommends P&R Department work with and 
collaborate with CAP, Accounting, and IT to 
evaluate if existing reports in the Agency’s financial 
system (SAP) can be leveraged, utilized and/or 
developed to monitor P&R’s contracts/projects to 
make the process of tracking/monitoring more 
efficient. Or evaluate if there are existing reports 
that can be used (for example the Contract 
Expiration Report and others).  Or determine if the 
current process with multiple excel spreadsheets is 
the best monitoring method.

X

Planning discussed with Accounting.  Accounting 
advised to continue to monitor if there is benefit to 
the department. Panning stated this is the best tool 
to monitor the contracts and invoices because they 
have first-hand knowledge regarding the financial 
information.
Planning stated they are currently monitoring their 
projects by project type and also by vendor and 
keeping track by task orders when needed.  At this 
time the department doesn't know if SAP can 
accomplish this and their current method provides 
the best monitoring tool at this time.   Planning 
stated this is a project management tool and will 
not facilitate the timeliness of payments, they 
mentioned it would be a good tool to evaluate at 
some time but at this time this initiative would not 
be a priority for the department. 

Recommendation is considered no longer aplicable 
because IA recommends Planning also discuss with IT to 
determine if this monitoring can be automated to make it 
more efficient with real time data. IA also recommends to 
evaluate the level of projects, contracts and transactions 
and the feasibility managing with the current process to 
make it more efficient with automated tools. Planning could 
take the current spreadsheed to IT as a discussion point to 
begin discussing efficiencies that can be gained from 
automating.  Planning stated they will take the lead to 
evaluate this with IT in the future.

Page 3 of 27



4 P&R

P&R determine the most appropriate metric (in total 
number of days) for completing receiving and work 
closely with Accounting to evaluate and determine if 
the current goal to turnaround the approved invoice 
and complete the receiving into SAP allows 
sufficient time for Accounting to complete the 3-way 
match and process the payment by the due date. 
P&R should determine the best metric and 
document the metric in actual total days, in the 
updated, formal SOP.

X

Planning discussed with Accounting and 
determined that 7 days is the most appropriate goal 
for the department.  The department stated that 
their actual turnaround time is 1-2 days, 7 days will 
be the goal and Accounting stated this is 
reasonable.  The department stated they will 
document this goal in a formal SOP. 

8/23/2022 P&R is finalizing their SOP, IA has reviewed.
8/17/2022.  The department documented an SOP and 
have submitted to IA for review and comments.  The SOP 
provides guidelines to complete the receiving process into 
SAP.  

Recommendation is considered in progress until the SOP 
is formalized. IA will review the updated SOP when it is 
finalized. 

5 P&R

IA recommends P&R take the lead to discuss with 
Accounting to determine if email notifications are 
needed to notify when the receiving process has 
been performed in SAP. P&R and Accounting work 
together to establish the most effective and efficient 
communication method and work to minimize the 
number of emails sent to AP. 

X

Planning stated they are flexible to work with the 
process Accounting prefers.  Planning discussed 
with Accounting and at this time Accounting would 
prefer to keep the email notifications coming from 
P&R. 

IA recommends email notifications be reevaluated and 
possibly eliminated to make the communication process 
more efficient.  IA agrees email notifications are necessary 
for unique transactions that require additional 
review/information.

6 P&R

P&R consider formalizing the current documented 
desk procedures using the Agency’s Policy A-51 for 
documenting department SOPs to ensure these 
include metrics/KPIs/goals for processing receiving 
and other activities including procedures for 
processing invoices, routing, tracking, obtaining 
approvals, receiving in SAP, monitoring POs, 
contracts and projects, and other budget and fiscal 
activities.  Additionally, provide periodic training to 
reinforce the most updated SOPs and ensure 
procedures are available to all staff. 

X

Planning is finalizing the SOP and will provide to IA 
for review once it is finalized.

8/23/2022 P&R is finalizing their SOP, IA has reviewed.
8/18/2022. The department documented an SOP and 
includes procedures for completing the receiving into SAP 
and logging incoices in their internal database tracker.  
Additionally, the procedure specifes the timeline for 
completing the invoice receiving and processing. This 
recommendation is now implemented. 

7 CAP

CAP should take the lead to work closely with and 
collaborate with P&R to evaluate the unique 
transactions and vendor agreements/services and 
provide the necessary information, assistance, and 
training to properly set up the most effective 
procurement instrument that follows the 
requirements of the Agency Ordinance and Agency 
Policies and follow an approved and efficient P2P 
process.

x

The department indicated they have discussed with 
Planning and are also working with Accounting to 
determine how best to set up and treat these 
unique transactions.

8/17/2022.  The departments have discussed and agreed 
on the steps for going forward.  The awareness was 
provided information and education.  It was decided that 
the P&R department will reach out to CAP when they have 
questions and ensure there is consistency in their 
procurement instruments.  CAP stated that the goal is to 
have the least number of transactions outside the PR PO 
system and limit the specific/unique/special transactions 
that do not have a PR PO.  The discussion and planned 
steps for going forward was satisfactory to CAP. This 
recommendation is now considered implemented and 
closed.

Page 4 of 27



8 CAP

CAP should take the lead to make needed updates 
to Agency Policy A-50 and the Procurement 
Ordinance, to ensure they provide policy 
requirements for both PO and Non-PO items and 
addresses the changes resulting from the recent 
Agency reorganization to establish the most current 
and applicable controls for the Agency’s 
procurement activities.

x

On 8/22/22 Received update from CAP: Yes, we 
had a meeting with a lot of great discussion.  The 
meeting included CAP and Accounting.  The policy 
is under review, CAP is taking the lead on the 
review with track changes.  Areas of discussion 
included updating the definition in 4.1 to identify 
that invoices for NPO aren’t tied to a contract or PO 
routed through the formal P2P process.
Update the workflow to remove the reference to the 
Procurement Ordinance.  This is because the 
ordinance is not the governing document for 
invoice approvals.
Update 5.2.A Guidelines to include more accurately 
identify the types of goods and services that should 
be processed via NPO.
Update the table in 5.3A for correct titles and 
thresholds.
Update details in 5.4 Processing to include AP 
related information and where the new Invoice 
processing software will be applied.  (THIS IS 
SOMETHING THAT MAY TAKE SOME TIME TO 
UPDATE.)

CAP stated they would take the lead to evaluate A-
50 and provide recommendations to update. 

8/22/22 IA will follow up with CAP during the next quarterly 
update in October/November.  IA is also available to 
review the updates.

8/17/2022.  CAP is meeting with Accounting to discuss and 
review the required policy updates. 

IA will follow up with CAP during August. 

21 Acct

Once the information is entered into SAP in the "Held 
Invoices" database, AP staff should frequently review and 
evaluate  outstanding items and items past the payment 
terms and elevate them for additional attention and 
prompt processing. 
AP determine if this process is helping expedite 
processing invoices for payments and formalize by 
documenting specific procedures for staff to follow to 
provide specific steps for uploading invoices, how to 
monitor items and activity and actions steps for 
different situations.

X

Per responses provided on 8/2/2022 & 8/4/2022: 
CHEM#21 Accounting has determined having 
the Interns placing the invoices on “hold” as 
part of the in-take process is the most efficient 
method to process AP in the current system. 
While we have a desk procedure for this 
process, any formal SOPs are pending the 
implementation of an AP automation solution. 
We consider this recommendation implemented 
as only the SOP is outstanding which is 
addressed under recommendation CHEM # 26.  

Prior Progress Update Response:  Splitting the 
invoice data entry into SAP from the matching and 
payment processing into two different processes 
has been working well since implementation in 
early summer, 2021.  

Additional information: As of January 2022, this 
invoice intake process is being performed by 
temporary staff; however, recruitment is currently 
underway to hire two part-time interns to perform 
this task.  

This process will be integrated into the SOP of the 
department (see also recommendation 26 
regarding creation of SOPs.)

Recommendation #21:  On February 17, Lauramae 
(IT) forwarded instructions on how to download the

8/3/2022 Accounting has determined that placing all 
invoices in the "held" feature is the most efficient 
method to process AP items.  There is currently a desk 
procedure on the uploading/intake of invoices using 
the "held" feature.  Accounting stated that a final SOP 
will be formalized and finalized upon 
theimplementation of all new/updated accounting 
processes. This will be addressed through #26 below.  
It should also be noted that in this recommendation IA 
also suggested there be a process for staff to monitor 
items to frequently review and evaluate the 
outstanding items and past due items and elevete 
them for additional attention and prompt processing.  
IA provided this second part of the recommendation 
related to documenting how the Held Invoice database 
is used to track, monitor and prioritize payments, in 
the new recommendation under ENG #11. To 
streamline and simplify the recommendations, this 
recommendation will be considered Implemented 
since AP determines logging in the invoice held 
feature is a good control.  The part regarding SOPs is 
in progress in Reco #26 and Eng #11 re utilizing the 
date in the invoice held feature continues to be In 
Progress. 8/3/2022 .

Prior Progress Update Response: This recommendation is 
considered In Progress.  Accounting has worked with IT 
and there is now a way to export the information into a 
report that can be used to sort and prioritize items.   The 

f

Page 5 of 27



23 Acct

Accounting should work with BIS to develop an Aging 
Report or a report that shows all outstanding invoice 
information, including total days held and 
outstanding or overdue so that Accounting can take 
prompt action.
OR Accounting should work with BIS to export and fully 
utilize the Held Invoice Report to review all items and 
ensure any outstanding items are reviewed promptly.
AND  Accounting should formalize and document specific 
procedures for how items are selected for matching and 
processing for payment before the due date.

X

On 8/2/22 the department responded the 
following:  CHEM # 23 – SAP already has an AP 
aging report; but as discussed in Strike Team 
meetings, the aging report does not address 
invoices that are not yet in SAP and/or on hold. 
Until we have visibility of all incoming invoices 
there is no report that BIS can develop that 
would address the observation noted. As such, 
the Agency is looking into the implementation 
of an AP automation solution. Pending that 
solution, Accounting has worked with IT to 
develop dashboards using SAP data 
downloaded into an Excel pivots/charts. This 
new tool has been helpful to understand the 
historical invoice payment volume and rate of 
on-time payments. These dashboard charts are 
also now being used by the Strike Team Lead 
(Ryan Ward) to evaluate progress and have 
been presented to Agency Senior Leadership. 
Regarding the invoices on hold, IT has provided 
instructions on how to download that data into 
Excel, and staff can use it to help sort through 
the data as needed. Accounting has informal 
desk manuals for how to match and process 
payments in SAP; however, any updated 
written procedures or formal SOPs are pending 
the potential implementation of an AP 
automation solution. We consider this 
recommendation implemented as only the SOP 
is outstanding which is addressed under 
recommendation CHEM #26. 

Prior Progress Update Responses: As of January 
2022, the Accounting Department continues to 
have staff vacancies, specifically replacement of an 
Accounting Technician who retired as of June 
2021.  The lack of staff has created a “triage” 
situation within the department, and when end-
user’s department staff or vendor representatives 
inquire about an outstanding invoice, that invoice 
will demand AP staff’s attention and be processed 
as quickly as possible.  Given the volume of vendor 
payments to be processed vs the current staff 
workload capacity, it’s difficult for AP staff to 
proactively identify invoices that are overdue.  
However, we disagree that staff are waiting to 
process payments until someone inquires.  Instead, 
AP staff process payments based on: 
product/service being purchased (for example, 
priory is given to chemical vendors since the 
product is critical to plant operations), and if the 
goods receipt has been performed (i.e. ability to 
perform the 3-way match.)  Accounting 
management agrees it would be very helpful to be 

8/3/2022 Accounting has determined that placing all 
invoices in the "held" feature is the most efficient 
method to process AP items.  There is currently a desk 
procedure on the uploading/intake of invoices using 
the "held" feature.  Accounting stated that a final SOP 
will be formalized and finalized upon 
theimplementation of all new/updated accounting 
processes. This will be addressed through #26 below.  
It should also be noted that in this recommendation IA 
also suggested there be a process for staff to monitor 
items to frequently review and evaluate the 
outstanding items and past due items and elevete 
them for additional attention and prompt processing.  
IA provided this second part of the recommendation 
related to documenting how the Held Invoice database 
is used to track, monitor and prioritize payments, in 
the new recommendation under ENG #11. To 
streamline and simplify the recommendations, this 
recommendation will be considered Implemented 
since AP determines logging in the invoice held 
feature is a good control.  The part regarding SOPs is 
in progress in Reco #26 and Eng #11 re utilizing the 
date in the invoice held feature continues to be In 
Progress. 8/3/2022 

Prior Progress Update Response: This recommendation is 
considered In Progress.  Accounting has worked with IT 
and there is now a way to export the information into a 
report that can be used to sort and prioritize items.   The 
process for how and when to use the report should be 
documented in a SOP.  Planned date for full 
implementation is 2/28/22.  

Page 6 of 27



24 Acct

Accounting - see items (9) & (10) above
Train staff to work proactively and collaborate with other 
departments in researching and resolving any 
delays/blocks with processing invoices for payment, with 
the end goal of working to pay all invoices by the due 
date. 
AND Accounting should formalize and document specific 
procedures for how items are selected for matching and 
processing for payment before the due date. Specify the 
action steps, AP should take when items are approaching 
the due date or are past the due date, and how to elevate 
items for prompt research and attention.

X

On 8/5/2022 Accounting responsed the 
following:  CHEM  # 24 – IA’s observation 
related to AP staff being unable to process 
payments when receiving hasn’t been 
completed. The recommendation is to 
collaborate and train other departments for 
researching and resolving delays in payments. 
As noted in previous responses, Accounting 
works collaboratively with Agency staff in other 
departments throughout the day to resolve any 
issues, including resolving overdue receiving. 
We consider this recommendation implemented 
as only the SOP is outstanding which is 
addressed under recommendation CHEM # 26.  

Prior Progress Update Response:  Accounting 
management disagrees that AP staff do not work 
proactively and collaboratively to research any 
delays/blocks for processing invoices for payment.  
Throughout the day, AP staff reach out to various 
department receivers, managers, as well as staff in 
Finance to attempt to resolve any issues preventing 
payment as quickly as possible. If there is no 
immediate solution to the issue, AP staff place the 
invoice back on hold pending resolution; usually, 
these delays relate to no receiving in SAP, so the 3-
way match cannot be performed.  Other times, the 
inability to process payments is due to lack of 
purchase order capacity or a budget block, in which 
case AP staff will contact both the requesting 
department staff as well as staff in Finance to 
resolve the issue.  We believe the implementation 
of Internal Audit’s recommendations to improve 
efficiency for receiving, as well as improved budget 
monitoring by Department Managers, will reduce 
the need for AP staff to continue to follow-up with 
other Department staff and thus allow for more time 
for payment processing as well as help to eliminate 
inefficiencies caused by AP staff task-switching. 
Accounting management agrees documented 
SOPs for vendor payment processing is needed 
(see also recommendation 26.)

Response provided 2/27/22 Staff continue to 
collaborate with other department staff to resolve 
any delays/blocks. However, due to delays in filling 
vacancies in the Accounting Unit, the Accounts 
Payable group continues to operate in a triage 
mentality versus having an opportunity to be more 
proactive as recommended. Two part-time Interns 
the are scheduled to start the week of 2/28/22 and 
an additional Accounting Technician (to fill the 
vacancy due to a retirement) on 3/7/22. 
Additionally, one limit term position and two 
additional temporary staff have now been approved 
by the Agency Leadership The rest of this

8/5/2021: Accounting has been meeting with the 
Admin Assistants periodically to discuss AP items, 
additionally, CAP's CAP Cafe has also been a helpful 
forum for staff to discuss transactions. This 
recommendation will be considered Implemented 
because CHEM #26 addresses the need for an SOP on 
the 3-way match process.

IA considers this recommendation Not Implemented.  
The recommendation states to formalize and document 
specific procedures for how items are selected for 
matching and processing for payment before the due date. 

Is there a planned date for implementation of a formal 
procedure for performing the 3-way match and process 
payments?  Will the procedure specify the action states 
staff should take to ensure payments are made by the due 
date?  Please provide a planned action to address the 
recommendation and a corrective action date. 

As a note - these steps were documented during the 
discussion and walkthrough with AP staff and we asked for 
confirmation several times and never received 
confirmation. For this reason, IA encourages Accounting to 
formalize and document their SOPs. 

Based on the response provided on 2/17, this 
recommendation will be considered In Progress, pending 
documentation of formal SOPs.

Page 7 of 27



25 Acct

If SAP “flags” items for payment on the due date and 
after, Accounting and BIS should work together to 
evaluate the cost/ benefit to reconfigure this built-in SAP 
“flag/alert” to ensure SAP “flags” items for payment 5 or 
so days before the invoice due date, so that items can be 
processed days prior to the due date to avoid being paid 
late. 

X

Response on 8/2/2022: CHEM # 25 – Accounting 
discussed reprogramming of SAP and was 
advised this would require a customization of 
SAP. With the implementation of new AP 
automation software this recommendation may 
become mute, so there was hesitancy to spend 
the time and resources on reprogramming. 
There were also discussions about changing 
the payment terms within the vendor files, so 
that SAP will process payments earlier than the 
actual contract terms. Accounting does not 
recommend this solution due to the loss of the 
integrity of the vendor data within SAP. As a 
work around, AP staff have been instructed to 
change the way payment runs are processed. 
When generating the ACH, wire, or e-payable 
digital file or physical checks, SAP prompts the 
user to indicate the date of the next payment 
run. Instead of putting the actual date of the 
next run, at most a week in advance, staff are 
now entering a date that is 3 weeks out. SAP 
will now pick up any posted payment 
transactions that are past due or due within the 
next 3 weeks, in accordance with vendor terms. 
In essence, this will allow SAP to process 
payments that aren’t yet due. This change in 
process has been reviewed and approved by 
the Finance Director, direction has been given 
to AP staff to make this change, and it has been 
implemented. We consider this 
recommendation implemented as only the SOP 
is outstanding which is addressed under 
recommendation CHEM # 26.  

Accounting management disagrees that all invoices 
are paid in the month after the due date. The table 
within this report titled “Late Payment Analysis” 
shows 57% of invoices are paid on time; and in the 
following table titled “Number of Invoices Paid 
Late…” of the total 935 invoices reviewed, 534 
invoices were paid on time and 296 are paid within 
the following 30 days.  The payment cycle is 
already defined as one week (Thursday – 
Wednesday), with physical checks only issued 
every other week. Currently, AP staff do not 
manually select which payments to issue; instead, 
SAP is setup to only process pending payments 
which are due or overdue on or after the payment 
date entered by AP staff (each week on Thursday). 
Accounting Management agrees SAP should be 
reprogramed to issue payments with invoice due 
dates prior to the payment date. With consultation 
from Executive Management over Finance, 
Accounting, and BIS on this change in the Agency’s
business practice, we will work with BIS to 
implement this change. Since this recommendation 

8/5/2022: This response applies to both Chem #25 and 
ENG#15, IA will not test this added alternate method to 
see if this is being implemented.  The actual, approved 
process should be documented in the Department 
SOP. Because Accounting has stated that the AP 
automation might assist the process and because the 
department has stated that due to the signifcant 
resources on reprogramming SAP, this 
recommendation will be considered no longer 
applicable.

IA considers this recommendation Not Implemented.  The 
recommendation is suggesting that Accounting work with 
BIS to evaluate the feasibility of reconfiguring SAP to  
"flag" when an item is past due before the actual due date.  
Accounting should also discuss the "business decision" of 
when payments need to be made and incorporate that 
Agency policy into the documented SOP. 

Has Accounting initiated discussions or a plan to work with 
BIS to see if this id completed. Who will take the lead on 
this recommendation.  IA suggests Accounting take the 
lead to discuss the possibilities since it does impact work 
load and prioritizing. Is there a planned date for testing this 
reconfiguration?  

2/14/22 Discussed during Strike Meeting that progress was 
made.  Can you provide a proposed date for 
implementation or a test date of what will happen to make 
this change?

2/17/22:  Per response, this recommendation will be 
considered In Progress due to on going discussions, and 
until full implementation is complete.   

Page 8 of 27



Response on 8/2/2022: CHEM # 26 – Updated 
formal SOPs remain outstanding. At this time, 
dedicating AP staff to revising the SOPs will 
only slow down invoice processing. Even if an 
outside consultant is retained to document AP 
processes, staff will need to be interviewed, 
verify accuracy of documentation, and test the 
new SOPs. Further, the Agency is in process of 
obtaining AP automation software which will 
change the SOPs. While Accounting 
management agrees that updated SOPs are 
best practice, the existence of SOPs does not 
necessarily increase efficiency or on-time 
vendor payments. Additionally, Accounting 
already has many informal “desk manuals” that 
are used by new staff to guide then on the 
steps for processing; while not in standard 
Agency SOP format, these desk manuals are 
effective in providing new and temporary staff 
instruction on how to process payments. In 
regard to a timeline of completion, we will align 
to and incorporate this task as part of 
implementation of any new AP automation 
software - TBD.   Staff also stated that while we 
continue to make changes to payment 
processes, we believe it would be a better use 
of staff time to wait until we finish other 
payment solutions. 

Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting 
Management agrees there is a need for 
documented SOPs for payment processing in order 
to establish consistence procedures and strengthen 
the internal control environment. We will complete 
a draft of SOPs for Executive Management review 
no later than January 31, 2022 and/or once all 
recommendations and changes affecting AP 
processes have been implement.

Response on 2/17/2022:  SOPs are in process; 
however, they are taking much longer than 
anticipated, particularly given the unresolved lack 
of personnel capacity in the Accounting Unit. As 
noted at the Strike Team meeting, the AP Process 
Overview SOP was not ready for any sort of review 
but was forwarded only as evidence of the progress 
being made. The plan is for the Controller to 
continue to work on the AP Process Overview 
SOP, while the AP staff formalize and review all the 
various desk manuals, guides, cheat sheets, and 
other various references that are provided to staff. 
By February 24th, we will have the Mail / Invoice 
Intake desk manual completed which will be used 
to assist in training the new Interns onboarding the 
week of February 28th. By March 24th the 
Accounting Unit will submit a draft of the Process 

8/5/2022:  this recommendation is specific to how and 
what items AP staff select to perform the 3-way match 
and process payments.   Accounting has committed to 
completing all SOP's after all processes have been 
finalized and adopted.  This recommendation will be 
considered In Progress until the SOP is 
documented.The department can provide desk 
procedures or draft SOPs for IA's review or provide an 
approximate timeline for implementation to consider 
this In Progress.

IA considers the recommendation In Progress until the 
SOP is fully documented, finalized, distributed to staff for 
training.  

A Draft SOP was forwarded. IA will provide review 
comments and recommendation to consider in finalizing 
the SOP.   This recommendation suggests an SOP for the 
3-way match, other recommendations suggest SOPs for 
other processes and procedures within Accounting.  

26

Acct

SOP

Formalize and document specific procedures to specify 
how and what items should be selected by AP staff to 
perform the 3-way match AND processing of 
payments, also specify the frequency of when this 
process should be completed.  SOPs establish 
consistent procedures for employees to follow and be 
trained and evaluated on. 

X

Page 9 of 27



Response on 8/2/2022:  CHEM # 27 – Training 
on new SOPs is outstanding since updated 
SOPs aren’t completed. Note that training of AP 
staff is provided on an ongoing basis as 
needed. Existing SOPs and desk procedures 
are provided to new AP staff as part of the 
onboarding and on-the-job training process. 

Accounting Management agrees AP staff should be 
provided training on any new processed 
established as the result of this review.  The 
Accounting Supervisor will be responsible for 
ensuring the existing staff as well as new AP staff 
are trained on the SOPs, on an ongoing basis. In 
addition to training sessions, the Accounting 
Supervisor regularly meets with the AP team and 
will use those meetings to reinforce best practices 
as well as any updates to the SOPs. 

Response on 2/17/2022:  See recommendation # 
26 regarding timeline of SOP creation. As 
previously noted, training will be provided to new 
staff as they onboard, as well as on an ongoing 
basis. The SOPs will be distributed to all AP team 
members, and evidence of the distribution will be 
provided to IA as it occurs. While the SOPs are 
mostly documenting processes that are already 
occurring, any new or changed procedures will be 
communicated to the AP team via their weekly 
meetings with the Accounting Supervisor over AP. 

8/5/2022: This recommendation will be considered In 
Progres - there are no final SOPs to provide staff 
training on current process.  However, the department 
processes are evolving and new staff have been hired 
and training is on-going.  IA requests a "plan for on-
going and future training", for example, types of 
training, timeline and plans, etc.  Accounting staff 
have not provided an anticipated date for 
documentaion of SOPs or planned training. Once all 
SOPs are formalized and finalized, Department 
management can determine how to best provide 
training and information on the new SOPs, a plan of 
action for that training can be provided as a response 
to this recommendation for an In Progress status. 
Additionally, Accounting staff should consider 
providing some type of training now even if SOPs 
have not been finalized, also for an In Progress status.

27

Acct

Training 

Training should be provided periodically to reinforce the 
documented SOPs to ensure employees are following 
consistent procedures.

X

Page 10 of 27



8/5/2022:  The response indicates that the department 
will explore KPIs after the AP automated solution is 
implemented.  The recommendation will continue to In 
Progress as with the prior progress report until KPIs 
have been established. 

Prior Progress Update disposition: IA considers this 
recommendation not implemented at this time.  Does 
Accounting have a timeline for establishing KPIs, goals 
and objectives and a method to measure how timely 
invoices are paid? 

Based on this new response, this recommendation will be 
considered In Progress until all Key Indicators are 
formalized and more defined measurements/goals are 
established, and the monitoring reports are being used to 
measure what is intended to measure.  Once this practice 
is in place and consistently applied, the recommendation 
will be considered Implemented.    

30

Acct

SOP

Document and formalize an Agency Policy or 
Department SOP about the requirement for 
completing receiving, matching, and processing 
payments.
-Specify the types of documents that should be 
included and verified in SAP or other required 
reports, before payments are processed.
-Specify if the Bill of Lading provided by the delivery 
drivers to the operators should be uploaded into SAP 
at the time SAP Receiving is completed or be retained
in hard-copy and where specifically.

X

8/2/2022 response proviced:  CHEM # 30 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26.

Prior Progress Update Responses:  The Strike 
Team responded that the recommendation will also 
be addressed in recommendation six (6) with the 
creation of a SOP.  

Accounting management recommends the Bill of 
Lading continue to be attached to the receiving 
transaction in SAP by the receiver. Receiving 
support documents, such as the Bill of Lading, 
assists AP staff in verification of the 3-way match 
since sometime the information on the invoice 
doesn’t align with the information on the purchase 
order and/or to resolve errors in the receiving that 
may prevent payment processing. Hard copies of 
documents do not need to be forwarded to the 
Accounting Department. 

8/5/2022:  This recommendation is related to SOPs.  
This specific Reco #30 is related to documenting the 
requirement for completing receiving, matching and 
processing payments, to specify the types of 
documents that should be included and verified in 
SAP or other required reports needed before 
payments are processed - specifically to address the 
need for a Bill of Lading or other deliver document.  
Recommendation Chem #26 is related to document 
the process for when and how the matching is 
completed and when payments are porcessed only.  
This recommendation, CHEM #30 steamed from the 
audit finding where 35% of the Bill of Lading items 
were mising. If these documents were missing, how 
was accounting able to complete the 3-way match?  
While Chem #26 suggests the SOPs, CHEM #30 
suggests incorporating details of the information that 
should be obtained and used to complete the 
matching. If accounting has a desk procedure, please 
provide for IA review.  Both #26 and #30 will be 
considered In Progress.  

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided draft 
SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress.

Response on 8/2/2022: CHEM # 29 – The 
primary AP KPIs related to invoice processing 
is to ensure payments are made to vendors 
within contract terms (no late payments), as 
well as not having audit findings from the 
external auditor related to vendor payments. IT 
developed a dashboard using SAP data 
uploaded into Excel pivot table / charts which 
shows how many PO invoices (VI documents) 
and non-PO invoices (VM documents) were 
paid on-time and the total volume per month. 
This dashboard has helped management look 
at historical and current on-time pay rates. The 
Agency is looking at an AP automation solution 
which includes analytic reports, allowing for 
easier monitoring of vendor payments. Once 
that solution is implemented, Accounting 
management will identify what monitoring 
reports best serve our needs to measure 
performance, and if any additional KPIs should 
be tracked. 

Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting 
Management agrees performance metrics and 
goals for on-time payments should be established. 
We will work with BIS to create any reports needed 
to monitor our department’s adherence with the 
performance metrics.  Accounting department 
management will use the established metrics to 
continue to monitor timeliness of vendor payments

29

Acct

KPIs

Accounting should establish and document performance 
metrics and KPI's, goals and objectives and a method to 
measure how timely invoices are paid.
Work with BIS to establish any reports that can provide 
measurements and metrics.

X

Page 11 of 27



8/2/2022 response proviced:  CHEM # 31 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26.

Accounting management agrees SOPs need to be 
created to document the vendor payment process 
(see also recommendation 26.)  Accounting 
management will follow-up with BIS to create a 
report or the ability to pull data from the hold screen 
(MIR6) to determine how long invoices have been 
pending payment (see also recommendation 23.) 

8/5/2022:  This is a 4 part recommendation re SOP: 
1. SOP re receiving, matching and processing pmts.  This 
first item is being addressed under CHEM #26
2. Specify the types of documents that should be 
included and verified in SAP or other required reports. 
3.  Specify that the invoice received by AP should be 
documented with a date received and uploaded into 
SAP and accurately matched to the corresponding 
transaction. 
4. develop a report that shows all outstanding invoices - 
this portion of the recommendation is being addressed 
under CHEM #23 re Aging or other tracking report. 

Reco #31 is related to the findings noted in the report:  
8% of items tested did not include an invoice in SAP.  
How did AP staff complete the matching and the 
payment?   In 3% of items tested AP staff did not 
document the date the invoice was received (no date-
stamp on invoice). 
In 13% of items tested there was a difference in the 
amounts paid when compared to the amount of the 
vendor's invoice.
A policy or SOP should incorporate the requirements 
for the detailed items needed and the supporting 
documents that should be included.  Recommendation 
Chem #26 is related to document the process for when 
and how the matching is completed and when 
payments are porcessed.  This recommendation will 
be considered IP until all items are addressed in new 
SOP or alternate controls or department disagrees 
with the 2 remaining items.

Per responses provided on 2/17/22, the provided draft 
SOP and the timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress.

31

Acct

SOP

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or 
Department SOP about the requirement for completing 
receiving, matching, and processing payments.

-Specify the types of documents that should be 
included and verified in SAP or other required 
reports, before payments are processed.

-Specify that the invoice received by Accounts 
Payable should be documented with a date received 
and uploaded into SAP and accurately matched to 
the corresponding transaction.

Accounting should work with BIS to develop an Aging 
Report or a report that shows all outstanding invoice 
information, including total days held and outstanding or 
overdue so that Accounting can take prompt action. 

X

Page 12 of 27



8/2/2022 Response provided: CHEM # 32 – 
Accounting staff communicate with Agency 
receivers on a daily basis. Accounting staff 
additionally participate in the CAP Café and 
other trainings, such as the Fiscal Year End 
Training, to advise receivers on best practices. 
We consider this recommendation implemented 
as only the SOP is outstanding which is 
addressed under recommendation CHEM # 26.  

Prior Progress Update Response: The Strike Team 
responded that the recommendation will also be 
addressed in recommendation six (6) with the 
creation of a SOP.   

 Accounting management agrees a formal Agency 
Policy regarding appropriate use of data fields 
within SAP is needed. For AP processes, the data 
field usage will be defined withing the AP SOPs 
(see also recommendation 26.) Accounting 
management will further consult with other Agency 
departments regarding suggested best practices to 
incorporate within SOPs over SAP receiving or 
other P2P processes. Additionally, the Accounting 
Supervisor will provide feedback and training to 
receivers on the use of SAP data fields as part of 
the ongoing bi-weekly coordination meetings with 
Administrative Assistants (see also 
recommendation 28.) 

8/5/2021: The intent of the recommendation is meant 
to have accounting take the lead to clarify, inform and 
emphasize the importance of data entry accuracy with 
regards to dating information.  The finding related to 
this recommendation noted that 15% of items tested 
had incorrect/inaccurate dates or data resulting from 
either data-entry errors or back-posting information. 
This recommendaiton will remain In Progress if 
accounting will address this in an SOP or if there is 
any communication re these. CHEM #26 is specific to 
an SOP for procedures related to matching and 
processing payments. 

Prior Progress Update disposition: Per responses provided 
on 2/17/22, the provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this recommendation In 
Progress.

32

Acct

SOP

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or 
Department SOP about the requirement and 
expectation for the accuracy of data entry.

-Emphasize the importance that staff is expected to 
make every attempt to ensure the data entered in SAP
for receiving and invoice processing needs to be 
accurate and accurately match the corresponding 
supporting documentation.

-Specify when it is allowable and when it is not 
allowable to back-post or post-date information.  

X

Page 13 of 27



8/2/2022 Accounting response: CHEM # 33 –  
This recommendation is to update SOPs which 
is addressed under CHEM # 26.

Prior Progress Update Responses: The Strike 
Team responded that the recommendation will also 
be addressed in recommendation six (6) with the 
creation of a SOP.  

Similar to recommendation thirty three (33), 
Accounting management agrees a formal Agency 
Policy regarding appropriate use of data fields 
within SAP is needed. For AP processes, the data 
field usage will be defined withing the AP SOPs 
(see also recommendation twenty six (26).) 
Accounting management will further consult with 
other Agency departments regarding suggested 
best practices to incorporate within SOPs over SAP 
receiving or other P2P processes. Additionally, the 
Accounting Supervisor will provide feedback and 
training to receivers on the use of SAP data fields 
as part of the ongoing bi-weekly coordination 
meetings with Administrative Assistants (see also 
recommendation twenty eight (28)). 

8/5/2022:  Recommendation #26 specifically relates to 
documenting the methodology for performing the 
matching and processing payments.  This reco #33 is 
a 4-part recommendation:  

1. to document a procedure for the expectation of accuracy 
of data - this is going to be addressed with CHEM #32 
above.
2. to specify the expected time frame for processing 
the invoce - uploading it in the database, when 3way 
match should be completed and process for payment.  
These would provide the metrics needed to track the 
performance of AP duties and track the progress of 
invoices. This part of the recommendation is In 
Progress, pending completion of all SOPs and KPIs 
established as well as training.
3. to specificy how invoices are monitored to ensure they 
are paid on time.  This is being addressed through the 
recommendation related to creating an aging or other 
tracking report that provides visibility of all invoices 
received and through the implementation of the software 
system. 
4.to specify how delayed items should be handled and 
communicated.  This part of the recommendation 
requires 2 above be completed so there is a 
monitoring tool then there needs to be some 
communication or procedure on what is done when 
items are delayed. 

This recommendation was also provided as a result of 
the audit findings in the report:  
20% of items tested were paid after the invoice due 
date even when the receiving was completed within 
less than 15 days.  What measures can AP put in place 
to prevent late payments when receiving is done 
timely? 
80% of items tested were paid late because receiving 
was completed date.  However, the payment was 
issued between 1-180 days after the receiving was 
completed and they invoices were already overdue.  
What tool/method does AP have to monitor late 
invoices/late receiving?  

There does not appear to be any procedurs for 
handling delayed items and there does not appear to 
be a systematic method to select items that have been 
received for timely payment. 

Prior Progress Update disposition: Per responses provided 
on 2/17/22, the provided draft SOP and the timeline to 
finalize SOPs, IA will consider this recommendation In 
Progress.

33

Acct

SOP

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or 
Department SOP about the requirement and expectation 
for the accuracy of data entry.

-Specify what is an acceptable best practice and 
approximate time frame for processing the invoice, 
complete the 3-way match, and process for payment. 

-Specify how invoices uploaded are monitored to ensure 
that items are processed by the payment terms. 

-Specify how delayed items should be handled and 
communicated with the goal of issuing payment by 
the payment terms or that items are processed by the 
payment terms.

X

Page 14 of 27



8/2/2022 Accounting response: CHEM # 35 –  
This recommendation is to update SOPs which 
is addressed under CHEM # 26.

Prior Progress Update Response:  Accounting 
Management agrees there is a need for 
documented SOPs for payment processing in order 
to establish consistence procedures and strengthen 
the internal control environment. We will complete 
a draft of SOPs for Executive Management review 
no later than January 31, 2022 and/or once all 
recommendations and changes affecting AP 
processes have been implement (see also 
recommendation twenty six (26)).   Accounting 
Management agrees performance metrics and 
goals for on-time payments should be established 
(see also recommendation twenty nine (29)). 

8/5/2022:  Recommendation #26 specifically relates to 
the method for when and how the 3-way match 
process is selected and how invoices are selected and 
processed for payments.  This reco #35 is specifically 
related to: 

1. the requirements of AP staff to open/download, 
date, upload and match and process invocies in SAP 
and process payments on time. What is the acceptable 
timefram for AP staff to acknowledge the invoises and 
upload for monitoring and tracking?   
2. indorporate goals/objectives and KPIs specific to AP
staff duties.

The original audit findings noted that 13% of the items 
tested, AP staff "received by AP staff date" was more 
than 30 days after the vendor's invoice date. This 
delayed the invoice processed by AP.  30 days after 
the invoice date will make the payment late.  In these 
items all invoices were emailed to the AP email 
address.  There were no reference notes as to the 
reasons for the delay in the receiving of the invoice.  
There needs to be a consistent method for the timing 
of retrieving the invoices and uploading them to begin 
the payment process. 

This  recommendation will continue to be In Progress 
until the department determines a method with 
timelines/metrics for the different activities. 

Prior Progress Update disposition:  Per responses 
provided on 2/17/22, the provided draft SOP and the 
timeline to finalize SOPs, IA will consider this 
recommendation In Progress.

35

Acct

SOP

Document and formalize in an Agency Policy or 
Department SOP about the requirements and 
expectations for AP staff to open/download invoices, 
date, upload, match and process invoices in SAP and 
process payments. 
Consider establishing KPI’s and/or benchmarks to 
determine a reasonable amount for invoice retrieving, 
uploading, matching, and posting to be performed 
and processing the Invoices for payment.

X

Page 15 of 27



Response provided on 8/2/2022: ENG # 10 – 
Accounting believes a significant benefit to 
implementing an AP automation software solution 
will be the ability to capture and make visible within 
the system all incoming invoices, as well as  
provide a workflow and/or forwarding capability 
within the system which is more efficient than the 
current process. Meanwhile, to increase the 
efficiency of forwarding invoices that need 
approval, the AP team has created a “cheat sheet” 
using Excel of service vendors and the associated 
department personnel the invoice should be 
forwarded to. This guide is now being used by the 
Accounting Interns responsible for mail processing, 
invoice in-take and forwarding. Accounting has also 
been using an invoice in-take log to capture all 
invoices that come into the Accounting department. 
Accounting management believes the best solution 
for this audit observation will be AP automation 
software. Although selection and implementation of 
the software is still pending, see recommendation 
ENG # 12, that solution was not part of this 
recommendation; as such, Accounting considers 
this recommendation implemented as noted. 
Additionally, staff stated that staff is instructed to 
review the inbox and mail daily and forward to the 
appropriate department immediately. 

First Progress Update Response: The Agency is 
currently in the process of evaluating technology 
solutions to improve the visibility of incoming 
invoices, as well as possibility of creating workflow 
to distribute and approve invoices. BIS has been 
coordinating these efforts. Last demo held on 
4/5/22; next scheduled for 4/18/22.

Accounting and Finance Management meets with 
E&CM monthly to, amongst other topics, review 
issues with payments to vendors.  The last meeting 
was on 3/29/22. Additionally, the Supervisor of 
Engineering Services and the Accounting 
Supervisor do share lists of vendors used by 
E&CM, as well as lists of invoices received in AP.  
As part of review of these recommendations, EN&C 
staff met with Accounting Management, as well as 
CAP and IT staff on 4/6/22 to review possible areas 
of improvement for the P2P for services. 

8/5/2022:  This is a 3-part recommendation and 
accounting agrees with the recommendation:  
1. Invoices should be immediately sent to 
departments: Is this being done, if so how? 
2. create a reference list of the professional services 
with the corresponding department to help in routing. 
Per the response provided by accounting, the "cheat 
sheet" should facilitate identifying where the invoices 
go.  This portion of the recommendation will be 
considered implemented pending IA receives a copy of
the cheat sheet. 
3. Invoice Held tracking: Per accounting, all invoices 
are now tracked in the invoice held feature.

First progress update disposition: Per Accounting's 
response, Accounting plans to move forward with 
implementing a new technology solution to improve 
uploading invoices received.  This will be an on-going, long 
term project to address the recommendation.

In the meantime, to address the recommendation based on
the current/existing practices, Accounting will continue to 
use current processes to receive and forward invoices.  No 
changes to current practices are planned?  The 
recommendation suggest to: *evaluate an update internal 
processes to immediately send the invoice to the 
department, *to work closely with E&CM to keep a 
reference list of the professional/consulting service 
vendors, including continuous communication, and *to 
track the service invoices.  Accounting did not respond to 
these items in the recommendation.  The response 
indicates that the plan is to work on implementing new 
software.  If Accounting disagrees with the 
recommendation, please indicate so. 

As of  4/18/22, based on the response proviced, this 
recommendation is considered Not Implemented, pending 
full implementation of new software. 

10 Acct

The Accounting management evaluate and make 
necessary updates to its internal processes and 
procedures to ensure all professional service invoices 
are received by AP staff and are immediately sent to 
the corresponding Agency department for approval 
and receiving.  

Accounting management continuously work closely with 
the E&CM Department and other Agency Departments 
and keep a reference list of the 
professional/consulting services vendors that each 
Department is managing, to ensure proper reference 
and routing of the invoices is done immediately upon 
receipt.  This will require continuous communication with 
the Departments as well as continuous communication 
with vendors to specify instructions for submitting 
invoices.  

Accounting management track the 
professional/consulting services invoices in the 
Invoice Held database or other tracking database to 
monitor when they are received by the Agency and when 
they are due for payment. 

X

Page 16 of 27



Response on 8/2/2022: ENG # 11 – The 
recommendation is to create monitoring reports, 
specifically to review invoices that are pending in 
MIR6. Accounting does not believe that is 
necessary, as AP staff and management can look 
at and review the items on hold using the existing 
SAP screens. Working with IT, staff now know how 
to download this data into Excel to view/sort more 
easily as needed; see also CHEM recommendation 
#21. As such, Accounting management disagrees 
with the recommendation and instead suggest that 
purchase and implementation of an AP automated 
software solution that includes monitoring reporting 
capability is a better solution; see ENG 
recommendation # 12. Accounting doesn’t agree 
with this recommendation. 

Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting now 
has the ability to export data on held invoices in 
SAP (via the MIR6 transaction) into Excel. This has 
been helpful when researching the status of a 
payment. Additionally, the Interns that joined 
Accounting as of 2/28/22 are now trained on mail 
processing / invoice in-take process, and have 
been maintaining the invoice log. This log records 
all invoices that come into Accounting, either by 
email or post mail. However, we continue to 
struggle with visibility of all incoming invoices, and 
are looking into additional technology solutions as 
noted above (see recommendation number 10.) 
Pending the Agency possibility purchasing an 
external solution, we have held off on creating any 
additional reports. Further, any reports derived from 
the data in SAP will not capture the non-PO 
invoices. Accounting many times is not aware that 
a non-PO purchase has been made, and therfore 
has no way of knowing there is an invoice 
outstanding until it arrives in Accounting. We would 
like to see adherence to the Agency's Purchasing 
Ordinance by all Agency staff, so that the vast 
majority of all purchases are made using a PO 
(note this is not specific to services, but is an issue 
with various types of purchases.)

8/5/2022: 
This recommendation may be similar to CHEM #21 but 
it is not the same.  As noted, the recommendation was 
Updated for this report only. 

The "new recommendation" suggest for accounting, 
as a best practice, to implement a method/report for 
viewing, tracking, monitoring and prioritizing all 
invoices to plan to make all payments timely, 
specifically to monitor all payments in one report with 
greater visibility.  Based on the response provided by 
Accounting - The department will not be using the 
invoice held information to assist with tracking, 
monitoring and prioritizing making payments, the 
department believes navigating through the various 
screens for view items on hold.  One single report 
would perhaps be more efficient.  

The department now disagress with the 
recommendation, does the department have an 
alternate control that is in place to track, monitor, view 
and prioritize invoices for payment?  If so, please 
provide a copy to clear the recommendation.  If the 
department will wait until the software solution is 
implemented, this recommendaiton will continue to be 
in In Progress.

Prior Progress Update Disposition:  
The recommendation states that Accounting should 
determine how to use the MIR6 export into excel and 
determine how it will be used for tracking, moniotring, 
prioiritizing and making timely payments.    The 
recommendation suggest to document this iinot a 
procedure to assist with consistency of this process.   

The recommendation was not addressed.  This 
recommendation is considred Not Implemented.

The response provides information on:  1. the mail 
processing/ invoice in-take process, 2. invoice log (in 
addition to the Invoice Held screen), 3.evaluation of 
technology solutions to assist with visibility of all incoming 
invoices, 4. Non-PO invoices and transactions, 5. 
Procurement Ordinance adhearance.

However, the recommendation is suggesting Accounting 
document a methodology/procedure for how it intends to 
use the MIR6 information to review, track, and monitor 
invoice due dates and open invoices and prioritize 
payments. Since this step was not addressed, the 
recommendation is considered Not Implemented.  If 
Accounting does agree with this recommendation, please 
indicate so and why. 

11 Acct

The Accounting management should take the lead to 
work with the IT Department to develop useful monitoring 
report from SAP to assist with the review, tracking, and 
monitoring invoice due dates, open invoices, and 
prioritizing payments.
(Note:  This similar recommendation was provided in the 
Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-one (21).  As of February 15, 
2022, the IT Department has developed a way to export 
the data into excel to create reports).  
New Recommendation:  
The Accounting management should determine how 
this new reporting/monitoring tool (information from 
the Held Invoices) will be used and implement a 
procedure to assist with tracking, monitoring and 
prioritizing making timely payments. 

X

Page 17 of 27



12 Acct

The Accounting management should take the lead to 
work with the IT Department and determine if an invoice 
recognition software or other technology tools could assist
with the uploading of invoices.

X

Response on 8/5/2022: ENG # 12 – Accounting 
agrees with this recommendation and 
implementation is in progress. 

Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting 
concurs with this recommendation and is currently 
working with IT staff to determine feasibility.  (See 
also recommendation 10 above.)  Note too that if 
such as solution is purchased, we will need to 
revise any relevant SOP related to vendor payment 
processing. 

8/5/2022 Recommendation is In Progress. Accounting 
continues to work with IT attending demos from 2 
different vendors.   

Prior Progress Update disposition: IA has participated in 
some of the meetings and demonstrations regarding 
software solutions for invoice recognition.  This 
recommendation is considered In Progress. 

Response on 8/2/2022: ENG # 13 –  This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26.

Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting does 
not believe that the variability in the time it takes to 
process one vendor payment vs another is an 
indication of poor internal controls, but instead is 
the nature of processing a variety of types and 
complexity of invoices, as well as other factors that 
determine the time it takes to perform the 3-way 
match.  
An external technology solution may assist in the 
efficiency of the matching process, as well as AP’s 
ability to more quickly follow-up on issue or 
outstanding items preventing payment processing. 
Accounting is currently working with IT to explore 
options. (See recommendation 12 above.) 
While the statistics noted in the observation do not 
align to historical trends noted when data is pulled 
directly from SAP (using the FBL1N transaction), it 
is known that vendor payments aren’t being 
processed timely. However, there are many factors, 
as evidenced by the recommendations in this report
to departments throughout the Agency, not just 
Accounting, that influences the timeliness of vendor 
payments. Using transactional data pulled from 
SAP directly (again, via FBL1N), after each 
payment run (at least weekly) Accounting 
Management (Deborah / Javier) look at the 
payments that were paid significantly late (over 60+ 
days) to analyze the cause of the delay to identity 
possibly process improvement opportunities. These 
issues and possible preventive solutions are 
discussed with the Accounting Supervisor during 
weekly meetings. 
We do not agree that creating a separate tracking 
for “invoice issues” is an efficient way to monitor 
vendor payment processing. Instead, on an 
ongoing basis, as part processing payments, AP 
staff follow-up on issues that are preventing 
invoices from being processed. The Accounting 
Supervisor reviews open invoice issues on a daily

8/5/2022:  This recommendation specifically suggests 
that accounting establish a procedure or process for 4 
items and by procedure/process it is intended to be an 
actual step in the process, a control, an added tool; 
this recommendation is not indicating a 
written/documented SOP is needed as that is addresse 
separately.  The processes recommended are:  1) to 
track all open invoice issues 2) open invoice issues 
are reviewed by a supervisor to ensure these are 
cleared 3) research a more efficient process to 
expedite the 3-way match 4) utilize a software tool for 
invoice management.   Per all responses 3 is being 
addressed under prior recommendation, 4 is also it's 
stand alone recommendation in Eng #12.  Accounting 
needs to address 1 and 2 and demonstrate there is a 
control or process in place for these and demonstrate 
how.  These are provided as a recommendation 
because the findings under this audit were that 73% 
totaling over $1M in professional services invoices 
were paid late in FYs2019 and 2020.  The follow up 
question is:  what alternate controls and best 
practices can accounting demonstrate to show that 
these findings/recommendations are being 
addressed?  This recommendation will be considered in 
progress becasue 2 of the 4 bullet points are being 
addressed under other recommendations and anticipating 
accounting has adopted different processes to address the 
first 2.

Prior Progress Update disposition: The recommendation is 
suggesting controls to improve how invoices are selected 
to be matched and processed for payment.  "Controls" 
include anything related to a process/procedure. IA has not 
been provided with any documented procedures for how 
the department selects and processes matching and 
payments.  The recommendation is encouraging and 
suggesting that the department work to * formalize a 
procedure/process to track all open invoices, *formalize a 
procedure/process to review open invoice issues by a 
supervisor at the end of each month to ensure that 
anything that is due and was not processed for payment is 
addressed and follow up on, *work with IT to determine a 

13 Acct

It is recommended that the Accounting management:
 •establish a procedure to track all open invoice 

issues,
 •open invoice issues are reviewed by the Accounts 

Payable supervisor at the end of each month to 
ensure open items are cleared,
 •work with the IT Department to determine a more 

streamlined/efficient process in SAP to verify that 
receiving was completed and expedite the three-way 
match, and
 •utilize software tools such as SAP Concur for invoice 

process and management.

X

Page 18 of 27



8/2/2022 response provided: ENG # 14 – The 
solution suggested is purchase and 
implementation of AP automation software, as 
outlined under recommendation ENG # 12. 
Accounting requests this recommendation be 
changed to “NA” and/or combined with ENG # 
12.

Prior Progress Update Response: Accounting 
concurs with the recommendation and is currently 
working with IT to evaluate possible technology-
based solutions to assist with the routing of 
invoices. (See recommendation 10 and 12 above.) 

8/5/2022:  This is a 3-part recommendation - the 
original finding was related to making the routing of 
service invoices more efficient and eliminating the lack
of visibility of the invoices when routed. The 3 parts 
are: 
1- work with IT re Sharepoint - this part has been 
addressed, per emails and correspondence related to 
new improvements. 
2-utilizing workflows to route invoices - this part is In 
Progress pending the implementation of a software 
tool. 
3-formal, documented procedures specific for 
Accounting and department staff using SharePoint - 
this is being addressed through - based on recent 
review of email correspondence, this is being drafted 
for email distribution. 

IA considers this recommendation In Progress 
pending finalizing the process for the various 
sharepoint folders and the instructtions on using 
such. 

Prior Progress Update Disposition: Per Accounting's 
response, Accounting plans to move forward with 
implementing a new technology solution to improve 
uploading invoices received.  This will be an on-going, long 
term project to address the recommendation.

This recommendation will be considered In Progress.

14 Acct

The Accounting management work with the IT 
Department to evaluate the feasibility of 
implementing a centralized SharePoint portal (like the 
one developed for E&CM) and determine if it would be of 
value to have for all Professional Services invoices  
where they can be stored for further processing.   In 
addition, Share Point can assist AP staff in sorting and 
identifying invoices for their staff and ensure they track 
the approvals needed.

Accounting management should work with IT to 
determine the feasibility of utilizing SAPs workflow 
process to route invoices for approval while keeping 
track of where they are in the approval process and 
ensuring timely payments.

Additionally, establish formal, documented 
procedures for Accounting and other departments 
using SharePoint to ensure there is consistency in 
using SharePoint and timely processing invoices for 
approval and payment. 

X

Page 19 of 27



X

8/2/2022 Response provided: ENG # 15 – This 
recommendation has been implemented; see 
recommendation CHEM # 25. The remaining 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26.

Priro Progress Update Response: Accounting’s 
goal is to pay invoices as close to but not after the 
due date, in accordance with the payment terms 
agreed to with vendor (generally net 30.) To 
accomplish this, any payment that is currently due, 
will be due within 5 days, or is past due should be 
selected for payment. 
Accounting met with IT staff and determined the 
current set-up in SAP allows for flexibility of 
payment date range. AP staff will be directed to 
select the date range that will flag items due within 
5 days or sooner of the next pay run. This process 
will be outlined in any related updated desk 
manuals or SOPs. Further, Accounting 
Management will review how to make the correct 
date selections with the Accounting Technicians at 
the meeting on April 19, 2022. 

8/5/2022: Per response also provided for Chem#25, 
staff stated they are implementing an updated process 
to "ensure they putting the actual date of the next run, 
at most a week in advance, staff are now entering a 
date that is 3 weeks out, therefore, SAP will now pick 
up any posted payment transactions that are past due 
or due within the next 3 weeks, in accordance with 
vendor terms IA will not test this added alternate 
method to see if this is being implemented". Because 
Accounting has stated that the AP automation might 
assist the process and because the department has 
stated that due to the signifcant resources on 
reprogramming SAP, this recommendation will be 
considered no longer applicable.

Prior Progress Update Disposition: Please provide an 
update on the meeting on 4/19/2022, were staff trained and
do they understand how to implement this new process?  

Also, please provide an update on the documented/formal 
SOP to determine if this process will be included in the 
SOP.   IA can assist in reviewing a draft of the SOP. 

IA can also test the timeliness of payments during a future 
review if requested.  

This recommendation is considered In Progress pending 
finalization of the items above. 

15 Acct

The Accounting management should take the lead to 
work with the Leadership Team to determine the 
Agency’s policy/business decision of when to pay invoices
(prior to due date or after due date). 
Based on results noted above, if necessary, the 
Accounting Management should take the lead to work 
with the IT Department to evaluate the cost/ benefit to 
establish a procedure and/or reconfigure this built-in SAP 
“flag/alert” to ensure SAP “flags” items for payment five 
(5) or so days before the invoice due date, so that items 
can be processed days prior to the due date to avoid 
being paid late. 
(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure 
to Pay Chemicals audit report as Recommendation 
twenty-five (25) currently In Progress).  

Page 20 of 27



8/2/2022 Response provided: ENG # 16 
Accounting has implemented a new internal 
email address APInternal@ieua.org and sent 
out notification introducing the new way for 
Agency staff to communicate with AP on 
6/23/22.  Accounting management has advised 
Agency staff through meetings with Admin 
Assistants and Engineering Management that it 
is optional to send confirmation of receiving; 
however, most Agency staff continue this 
process, but using the new internal email. 
Accounting considers this recommendation 
implemented.

Prior Progress Update Response: For purchases 
that follow the P2P procedures, including 
requesting items via a PR/PO, AP staff can see if 
the receiving is completed by viewing transactions 
posted in the 200900 account, via the FBL3N 
transaction in SAP. As such, it should not be 
necessary to email Accounting when receiving is 
completed. However, that does not apply to 
purchasing that circumvents the P2P process and 
there is no PO. In such cases, the purchaser will 
email a signed copy of the invoice, and/or other 
receiving support, to the APgroup email. 
To help separate the “noise” that comes into the 
APGroup email (such as vendor advertisements), 
as well as help isolate the vendor invoices that are 
coming via email vs internal communication, 
Accounting is looking into setting up an additional 
AP email address for internal communications. This 
will allow the Interns to focus on the incoming 
invoices in the APgroup email and vendor inquires, 
while the internal email can be used to for 
communication with the Account Technicians to 
follow-up on issues as well as a place to receieve 
non-PO invoices and support. We anticipate 
implementing this new email within the next month 
(pending request to IT, as well as notification to 
Agency staff.)   

8/5/2022: Recommendation is considered 
implemented. As a follow-up, IA would like to 
document if this new email and process is being 
utilized and is it efficient for accounting? Per the new 
process implemented, IA will consider this 
recommendation implemented. 

Prior Progress Update disposition:  Quick follow up 
question - Does E&CM understand when to send an email 
to inform that receiving was done and when not to?  
Suggest there is a discussion on this to inform the 
department.    IA will consider this recommendation In 
Progress until this information is clarified between both 
departments and/or when the secondary email is set up if 
that is the direction the department will go.  

16 Acct

The Accounting management take the lead to work 
directly with E&CM Department to determine the most 
efficient/effective way to communicate that receiving has 
been performed.  Both Departments noted above should 
discuss and agree if there a need use email 
communication for invoice management.  

X

Page 21 of 27



17
Acct

SOP

Accounting management  formalize and document 
specific procedures to specify how and what items should 
be selected by AP Group staff to perform the three-way 
match and  processing of payments, also specify the 
frequency of when this process should be completed.  

(Note:  This is recommendation was provided in the 
Procure to Pay Chemicals audit report as 
Recommendation twenty-six (26)).

X

8/2/2022 Response provided: ENG # 17 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26. 

Prior Progress Update Response:  Accounting has 
gathered a variety of existing “desk manuals” as 
well as other processing notes and instructions, 
that in total comprise of the SOPs over AP. Due to 
resource constraints we have not yet finalized an 
updated SOP. We are additionally looking to utilize 
an external consultant used by other department to 
formalize these written procedures into a formal 
SOP (see recomendation 20.)  It is also noted that 
if the Agency elects to implement a new technology 
solution (see recommendation 12), we’ll need to 
revise the SOPs and desk manuals, as well s train 
AP staff. Therefore, especially given limited 
resources and priority of getting back-log of late 
invoices processed, as of April, 2022 we have 
paused working on the SOPs.

8/5/2022:  This recommendation is related to SOPs.  
Specifically related to indicate how and what items 
should be selected by AP Group staff to perform the 
three-way match and  processing of payments, also 
specify the frequency of when this process should be 
completed. As stated in the recommendation, this is 
the same recommendation as Chem #26 and this ENG 
#17, IA will follow up on only one, CHEM #26, this 
recommendation will be noted as no longer applicable 
and closed. 

Prior Progress Update Response: Per the response 
provided, this recommendation is considered In Progress 
pending full documentation of the department SOP and 
formalizing a procedure to address how staff select how, 
what and when to complete the 3-way match and 
processing of payments and also pending the final 
implementation of new software solutions.  This 
recommendation is similar to Recommendation #13 above 
suggesting there be a formal procedure to ensure invoices 
are reviewed, tracked and monitored to ensure all open 
items are addressed/processed. 

18 Acct

The Accounting should provide training periodically to 
reinforce the documented SOPs to ensure employees are 
following consistent procedures. 
(Note:  This recommendation was provided in the Procure
to Pay Chemicals audit report as Recommendation 
twenty-seven (27)).  

X

8/2/2022 response provided: ENG # 18 – This 
recommendation is to update SOPs which is 
addressed under CHEM # 26.

Prior Progress Update Response: The Accounting 
team onboarded 3 additional staff members 
recently; 2 Interns began on February 28, and 1 
Accounting Technician began on March 4, 2022.  
The Accounting Supervisor along with more senior 
AP staff provided on the job training. New staff 
were provided a binder that includes relevant desk 
manuals and procedural notes, as well as were 
instructed on how to find these resources in digital 
format either on the shared network drive or via the 
Agency’s intranet (AIM.) On March 28, 2022, the 
AP staff, Accounting Supervisor, and Controller 
participated in a training facilitated by IT staff 
(Rose) covering basic navigation in SAP, placing 
an invoice on hold in SAP, along with navigation 
through the billing screens.  
If the Agency decides to implement a technology 
solution (see recommendation 12), SOPs, the 
various desk manuals, and procedure write ups will 
need to be updated. Then staff will need to be 
trained on the new procedures.  

8/5/2022: This recommendationis related to training 
that should be provided to reinforce SOPs and should 
be done once new procedures are implemented, but 
can also be provided as new procedures are being 
adopted. As stated in the recommendation, this is the 
same recommendation as Chem #27 and this ENG #18, 
IA will follow up on only one, CHEM #27, this 
recommendation will be noted as no longer applicable 
and closed. 

Prior Progress Update disposition:  Per the response 
provided, this recommendation is considered In Progress 
pending full documentation of the department SOP. 

Page 22 of 27



19 Acct

The Accounting management establish and document 
performance metrics, and KPI’s, goals, and objectives 
and a method to measure how timely invoices are paid. In 
addition, the Accounting management works with the IT 
Department to establish any reports that can provide 
measurements and metrics.  (Note:  This 
recommendation was provided in the Procure to Pay 
Chemicals audit report as Recommendation twenty-nine 
(29)).  

X

8/2/2022 ENG # 19 – This recommendation is to 
establish KPIs which is addressed under CHEM 
# 29.

Prior Progress Update Response: As of April, 2022 
the Accounting Group is still not fully staffed, with 2 
additional Accounting Supervisor positions currently
in recruitment. The additional Supervisors will allow 
redistribution of work, especially for the Accounting 
Supervisor over the AP team. We believe these 
additional staff will help improve the operation of 
the AP unit both directly and indirectly. Once we 
have the team in place specific KPI’s for staff will 
be established.
The AP unit is processing current invoices, as well 
as catching up on the backlog of old invoices and 
other payment requests caused by understaffing for 
the last 9 months. It is difficult to assess the proper 
KPIs for things such as volume goals or time to 
process payments while the team is still functioning 
under these handicaps. However, Accounting 
Management continues to look at payment trends 
each week by extracting data from SAP (via 
FBL1N) and using it to inform decisions about 
future KPIs.  
The overall goal for the AP team is to pay invoices 
as close to the due date as possible, but not after 
the due date. More so, the goal is first to eliminate 
any outstanding invoices that are greater than 90 
days. Form there the focus will be 60 days, until we 
are paying all invoices within 45 days, with the goal 
of no later than the due date (generally, net 30.) 
Discussions about specific measurements are 
ongoing and any metrics would need to be adjusted 
if the Agency decides to  implement a technology 
solution that changes the process for paying 
invoices (see recommendation 12.) 

8/5/2022: This recommendation will be consolidated 
inot one KPI recommendation. As stated in the 
recommendation, this is the same recommendation as 
Chem #29 and this ENG #19, IA will follow up on only 
one, CHEM #29, this recommendation will be noted as 
no longer applicable and closed. 

Prior Progress Update disposition:  This recommendation 
is considered Not Implemented.  IA suggests Accounting 
work with the Leadership Team, AGM and GM to 
determine appropriate overall, Department- specific KPIs, 
goals and objectives and to look at industry best practices 
and similar organizations for ideas regarding appropriate 
goals/objectives and KPIs for similar Accounting 
departments.  

Page 23 of 27



20 Acct

The Accounting management should work with the 
General Manager and the Leadership Team and discuss 
or consider bringing in professional consultants to assist 
in catching up with the backlog of overdue payments, 
and/or using a professional consultant to evaluate the 
department’s needs, key performance indicators (KPIs), 
processes, procedures, and help implement 
recommendations to ensure the Accounting Unit can 
implement audit recommendations, incorporate best 
practices that ensure payments are made timely, SOPs 
are documented, and training is provided to staff.

X

8/2/2022 Response provided from Accounting: 
ENG # 20 – IA observed that the Finance 
Department has experienced staffing shortages 
due to turnover and retirements . This situation 
continues to-date, and Accounting 
management believes this is the most 
significant factor affecting the ability to process 
vendor invoices timely within Accounting. 
Measures to address this issue have included: 
use of temporary staff (July, 2021 – current), 
hiring 2 Interns (Feb, 2022 ), hiring replacement 
for retired Accounting Technician (original offer 
to candidate December, 2021 who ultimately 
decided not to join agency, then final 
placement of alternative candidate as of March, 
2022), conversion of temporary staff to LT 
Accounting Technician (April, 2022), and re-
hiring retired AP staff as an annuitant (pending 
– tentative start date of 8/15/22.) Additionally , 
AP hourly staff have been working overtime 
hours up to 50 hours per week since July 2021. 
As of August 2022, the Accounting unit has 3 
vacancies: 2 FTEs Senior Accountants and 1 
FTE Accountant I/II; the recruitments are in-
process. 

88/16/2022 Per discussion, Management feels that the 
current staff brought on board are addressing the staff 
shortages. There is a continued use of temps to assist. 
Additional processes are being implemented and 
additional recommendations are being implemented 
through this process. Additionally, the implementation 
of the software solution will address some of the 
recommendations. This recommendation will be 
considered No Longer Applicable. 

8/5/2022 Per Accountings response and Director 
Meetings, this recommendation is on-hold and 
considered In Progress pending additional changes 
and updates to AP processes and needs evaluated by 
Accounting and the leadership team. At this time IA 
determines this will be In Progress pending final 
disposition. 

This recommendation is considered In Progress at this 
time due to discussions and various meeting being held at 
various levels of the organization. This recommendation 
will either end up being Implemented or No Longer 
Applicable pending final decision to either move forward or 
not with a consultant to assist with all accounting functions 
and develop KPIs, procedsses, procedures, implement 
recommendations, etc.  not just a consultant to document 
SOPs. 

IA requires a firm yes, will move forward with all items of 
the recommendation or no, not at this time to clear the 
recommendation. 

Page 24 of 27



X

8/2/2022 Response received: P&R # 9 – 
Accounting management believes the 
timeliness of routing invoices will improve with 
measures implemented as noted under 
recommendation ENG # 10. Additionally, an AP 
automation software solution should improve 
visibility of pending invoices; see 
recommendation ENG # 12.  

8/5/2022:This is a 4-part recommendation: 
1. evaluate if current or new technologies can be leveraged
for AP activities.  The Agency is moving forward with 
evaluating a software tool for the upload, tracking and 
routing of invoices.  This part of the recommendation is 
considered in progress and is being addressed under prior 
recommendations; therefore no longer applicable here. 
2. Work with P&R to evaluate SharePoint similar to E&CM. 
Per recent correspondence information, this is being 
implemented, pending communication from accounting to 
departments for how to use the folders. This part is In 
Progress
3. Establish a system/method for uploading and routing 
vendor invoices - this recommendation is being addressed 
through prior audt recommendations - therefore In 
progress. 
4. establish a metric and goal for how many days it should 
take to route the invoice from AP.   AP did not address 
this it is unclear if Accounting plans to establish this 
metric.  

Elements of this recommendation are being addressed 
through other prior audit recommendations, example 
CHEM #35 and ENG #12.  IA will consider this NLA and 
follow up under the prior audits. 

Should be noted that this recommendation is restated in 
this P&R audit because of the audit findings:  
25% of items tested it took AP longer than 30 to 
accknowledge receipt of the vendor invoice and in 10% of 
the items tested it took AP longer than 30 to route the 
invoice.  Are there metrics for AP activities?  
Additionally, in 20%of items tested, the routing was 
initiated by P&R because the invoice was not sent to the 
department by Accounting.  P&R noted that for calendar 
year 2022, Accounting did not send them any invoices (as 
of May). 

9 Acct

Accounting should take the lead to work directly with IT to 
determine if current or new technologies can be 
leveraged to ensure timely uploading, tracking, and 
routing of invoices to ensure there are no delays in the 
payment process.  Accounting should work directly with 
P&R to evaluate if using the SharePoint Document 
Library (similar to the one developed for Engineering & 
Construction Management) and/or any other technologies 
and solutions (new or existing) to manage and route the 
P&R invoices.  Additionally:
ꞏ         Establish a consistent system/method and best 
practices for uploading and routing vendor invoices to the 
correct department as soon as they are received from 
vendors.
ꞏ         A metric/goal that establishes the total number of 
days it should take to route the invoice should be 
determined and established with the goal of paying the 
invoices on time (possibly 1-4 days).

Page 25 of 27



10 Acct

To minimize delays in routing invoices for approval and 
paying on time, IA recommends Accounting take the lead 
to work closely with the IT and respective departments 
involved to: 
1) determine if having an updated list of current vendors 
and related projects per department would be a good 
reference to rely on for timely/properly routing invoices, 
2) determine if a SharePoint Document Library (similar to 
the one developed for Engineering & Construction 
Management) will assist with routing, 
3) implement other technologies and solutions (new 
and/or existing) or workflow to implement a more efficient 
tool to manage and route invoices that are shared 
amongst various Agency departments, and\
4) work directly with vendors to request they add 
additional identifying information directly on the invoices 
(project/contract, PM, etc.).

X

8/2/2022 Response received: P&R # 10 – 
Recommendations implemented under other audit 
observation; see recommendation ENG # 10. 
Accounting considers this recommendation 
implemented.  

This recommendation is considered In Progress per the 
updates provided and discussed with Planning. 

8/5/2022: In Reco ENG #10,currently In Progress, 
accounting stated that they belive there will be a significant 
benefit to implementing an AP automation software 
solution with the ability to capture and make visible within 
the system all incoming invoices as well as provide a 
workflow capability wich will be more efficient than the 
current process.  This response indicates that AP is 
supportive and pending the implementation of the new AP 
software tool and will rely on this tool to establish a 
consisten system and best practice for uploading and 
routing ventor invoices to the correct department.  

In the response provided AP did not address the fourth 
item which states that the department work with vendors to 
request they add additional identifying information on the 
invoices so that it assists identifying where the invoices go. 

IA determines this recommendation as In Progress until 
Accounting can provide a final disposition for item #4 to 
determine if this is something they will work on.  All other 
items of this recommendation will be considered No 
Longer Applicable since the software solution will be 
addressed under ENG #12. And the routing of professional 
service invoices are being addressed through ENG #10.  

Restated Acct

IA recommends Accounting take the lead to work directly with the IT and P&R Department to determine if a SharePoint Document Library (similar to the one developed for Engineering & Construction Management) 
and/or any Other Technologies and Solutions (New and/or Existing) would be a more effective and efficient tool to manage and route all the invoices, including showing the status and where the invoices are in the 
process, and providing visibility to Accounting and the end-user department. 
(This recommendation was provided in the P2P for E&CM and, according to Accounting, is currently In Progress of being addressed)

8/2/2022 Response received: P&R # 11 – A 
meeting was held on July 18, 2022 with P&R 
management and administrative personnel. No 
specific changes to procedures resulted. 
Accounting management believes 
implementation of an AP automation software 
will allow for AP visibility of invoices being 
routed for signature; see recommendation ENG 
# 12. 

8/5/2022:  The intent of the recommendation is to 
eliminate the many emails that come to accounting 
from internal and external sources.  It is unclear what 
the consistent message and process will be. It is 
unclear what the process will be.  When reviewing the 
response in ENG #16 re the new internal email address 
and this response and our discussion with Planning, it 
is unclear what the communication to staff is and what 
Accounting will do.  Accounting is choosing to keep 
the same process in place and not make any changes 
or modification to the current communication process. 
Accounting believes that the implementation of the 
software solution will be a benefit to this process.  IA 
considers this recommendation In Progress until there 
is one consistent method accross the Agency to 
simplify the process and to assist with eliminating the 
email traffic. 

11 Acct

Accounting management should take the lead to work 
directly with P&R department to determine the most 
efficient/effective way to communicate that the receiving 
function in SAP has been performed. Both departments 
should discuss and agree if there is a need to use email 
communication for invoice management. 

X

Page 26 of 27



Restated Acct

Restated Acct

Restated Acct

Restated Acct

Restated Acct

Restated Acct

Restated Acct

Implemented In Progress
Not 

Implemented
No Longer 
Applicable Total Original Audit Recommendations

Operations Unit 12 0 0 4 16
100% Implemented 
All 16 recommendations have been addressed.

Engineering & Construction Management 2 4 0 1 7
2 of 7 recommendations 29% have been addressed.  
4 of 7 recommendaitons 57% are in progress. 

Planning 4 0 0 2 6
100% Implemented 
All 6 recommendations have been addressed.

Contracts and Procurement 7 1 0 1 9
Only one recommendation requires attention - re 
Agency Policy A-51 procurements.

Accounting 4 16 0 9 29
13 of 29 recommendations 45% have been addressed.
16 of 29 recommendations 55% are in progress. 

Total Recommendations 29 21 0 17 67
43% Implemented
31% In Progress
25% No Longer Applicable

Percentages 43% 31% 0% 25%

The Accounting management should continue to work with the IT Department and determine if an invoice recognition software and/or other technology-based software/systems (new and/or existing) could assist with  
uploading, tracking and monitoring invoices.
(This recommendation was provided in the P2P for E&CM and, according to Accounting, is currently In Progress of being addressed)

IA recommends Accounting: 
 •establish a procedure to track all open invoice issues,
 •open invoice issues are reviewed by the Accounts Payable Supervisor at the end of each month to ensure open items are cleared, 
 •work with the IT department to determine a more streamlined/efficient process in SAP to verify that Receiving was completed and expediate the three-way match, OR 
 •consider working with the IT department to develop SAP workflow notifications that Receiving has been completed against the PO and/or SAP, and 
 •consider technology, software, and/or artificial intelligence tools/ platforms/systems for invoice processing and management. 

(This recommendation was provided in the P2P for E&CM as Recommendation #13 and, according to Accounting, is currently In Progress of being addressed).
The Accounting management should take the lead to work with the Leadership Team to determine the Agency’s policy and business decision of when to pay invoices (prior to due date, on the due date or after due 
date).
Based on results noted above, if necessary, the Accounting should take the lead to work with the IT Department to evaluate the cost/ benefit to establish a procedure and/or reconfigure this built-in SAP “flag/alert” to 
ensure SAP “flags” items for payment five (5) or so days before the invoice due date, so that items can be processed days prior to the due date to avoid being paid late. 
(Note: This recommendation was provided in the P2P Chemicals audit report as Recommendation #25 and P2P E&CM as Recommendation #15, both currently In Progress).
Accounting management formalize and document specific procedures to specify how and what items should be selected by AP Group staff to perform the three-way match and processing of payments, also specify 
the frequency of when this process should be completed.
(Note: This is recommendation was provided in the P2P Chemicals audit and the P2P E&CM audit and according to Accounting, SOPs are currently In Progress and were planned for completion by 
June 2022). 

Accounting should provide training periodically to reinforce the documented SOPs to ensure employees are following consistent procedures. 
(Note: This is recommendation was provided in the P2P Chemicals audit and the P2P E&CM audit and according to Accounting, SOPs are currently In Progress and were planned for completion)

The Accounting management establish and document performance metrics, and KPI’s, goals, and objectives and a method to measure how timely invoices are paid. In addition, the Accounting management works 
with the IT Department to establish any reports that can provide measurements and metrics.
(Note: This is recommendation was provided in the P2P Chemicals audit and the P2P E&CM audit and according to Accounting, currently In Progress of being addressed)

The Accounting management should work with the General Manager and the Leadership Team and discuss or consider bringing in professional consultants to assist in catching up with the backlog of overdue 
payments, and/or using a professional consultant to evaluate the department’s needs, key performance indicators (KPIs), processes, procedures, and help implement recommendations to ensure the Accounting Unit 
can implement recommendations, incorporate best practices that ensure payments are made timely, SOPs are documented, and training is provided to staff.
(Note: This is recommendation was provided in the P2P E&CM audit and there has been no action on to accept or reject recommendation.) 

Page 27 of 27



Progress Update for All Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations

Teresa Velarde

Manager of Internal Audit

September 12, 2022



Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit 

2

Audit Observations & Recommendations

• There are delays with the receiving of goods and services

• There are delays with processing payments

• Processes and procedures require changes to make them more efficient

• Visibility of transactions through monitoring reports

• PO & PR requirements and funding needs

• Training & Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)

• Communication, training, knowledge and information

• Establish processes and controls to monitor all vendor invoices, tracking them through the P2P process

and ensure timely payment

Audit Objective

• Evaluate the ordering, receiving, and payment processes for the Agency's goods and services and 

• Identify efficiencies and provide recommendations for improvements 

• Provide recommendations to ensure the vendor payments are paid within terms. 

Risks to IEUA for Late Vendor Payments

• Being placed on credit hold and not being able to order goods for critical services

• Possible fees imposed or higher prices offered at the time of establishing contracts

• Vendors not willing to do business with IEUA in the future

• Harmed vendor relationships



P2P Audits Completed to-date

• P2P for Chemicals for O&M (Operations & Maintenance)

• Completed November 24, 2021

• 35 audit recommendations

• P2P for Professional Services – for E&CM (Engineering & Construction Management) 

• Completed February 24, 2022

• 21 audit recommendations

• P2P for Professional Services – for P&R (Planning and Resources)

• Completed May 24, 2022

• 11 audit recommendations

• P2P for Home Depot Credit Cards

• Completed September 1, 2022

3



Current Status of the 67 Audit Recommendations

Audit Recommendations Related to the P2P Audits

4

IA will provide a progress reports until all recommendations have been addressed. 



Results of P2P Audit Recommendations

Of the 67 recommendations:

• 29 are now Implemented

• 21 are in progress of being implemented (42% of the remaining items)

• 17 are considered no longer applicable

5

IA will provide a progress reports every quarter until all recommendations have been addressed. 



Highlights –
Contracts and Procurement

CAP has implemented the following:

—Available to provide training, information and guidance

—Working to identify knowledge gaps about SAP and procurement instruments

—Available to provide training and assistance with SOPs

6



Highlights –
Operations & Maintenance Unit

• Leveraging technologies across all treatment plants.

• New goal set to complete receiving into SAP within 5-7 days

• Finalized Department Standard Operating Procedure (SOPs)

7



Highlights –
Accounting Unit

• Filled staff vacancies

• Working closely with IT to evaluate invoice recognition software and other monitoring tools

• Tracking all invoices with the new Invoice Held feature in SAP

• Working with IT to evaluate software solutions

8



Highlights –
Information Technology

1. Goods Receiving and Invoice Payment Tracker

2. MIR6 Held Invoices Download 

3. Invoice Sites to Route Invoices to

4. Payment Status Dashboard

5. Early Payment Training

6. 2-Way Match Viability 

7. Invoice Automation – Review of software vendors 

In progress

• Email ACH Remittances –

• Invoice Automation –

• P-Card – Implementation of P-Card file transfers for transaction data

9



Additional Procure to Pay Audits

10

In Progress

• P2P for Materials & Supplies

• Planned for completion by December 2022

Planned

• P2P for Laboratory Equipment, Supplies and Professional Services

• P2P for other Professional Services

• P2P for Pay Estimates

• Others



The Progress Update for all Procure to Pay Audit Recommendations is consistent with 
the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and 
Business Practices by ensuring IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a 
strong internal control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work 
environment and assist management in achieving goals and objectives.

Questions? 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4H 



Budget Impact 

 
September 21, 2022

Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts

Internal Audit (IA) staff completed the observation of the monthly cycle count for the physical
inventory of a selected sample of warehouse inventory for the month of June 2022. The purpose
was to observe the count as part of the annual financial audit process and to coordinate audit
efforts with the Agency's external financial audit firm. The annual inventory count and the
monthly cycle counts are a best practice process performed before the completion of the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report to validate the total inventory assets dollar amount posted to
the financial statements. IA recommended that the inventory each year, include all or a
substantial material amount of the inventory items in terms of quantity of items and total dollar
value of the whole inventory in order to justify the value of the inventory reported on the
financial statements. Additionally, IA recommended staff document the inventory methodology
in a procedure. The accuracy rate during the past three physical inventory counts has been 99%,
therefore, it is the position of the Warehouse management staff to continue with the current
method of scheduling biannual physical inventory of all items and a sample of items for monthly
cycle counts throughout the year. IA will continue to participate in inventory observations each
year along with the the external financial auditors. The current inventory methodology is
described in detail in the attached. IA recommendations have been addressed by staff.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

09/12/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Warehouse Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts Report is consistent with the
Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business
Practices by ensuring that IA's evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control
environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in
achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed, under ongoing projects includes the observation of the physical inventory
and review of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Attachment 1 - Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22204



 
 

 

DATE:   August 25, 2022 
 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 
 
      

  
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts 
 
   
Audit Authority 
The Internal Audit Department (IA) observed the monthly cycle count for the physical 
inventory for the month of June 2022 at the Inland Empire Utilities Agency’s (IEUA or 
Agency) Warehouse. The observation was performed under the authority given by the 
IEUA Board of Directors as documented in the Board approved IA Charter.  
 
Audit Objective and Scope 
The purpose of IAs observation of the monthly cycle count was to observe the count as 
part of the annual financial audit process, and to coordinate audit efforts with the Agency’s 
external financial audit firm, CliftonLarsenAllen,LLP (CLA), and to be available as an audit 
resource on behalf of the Agency. Additionally, the purpose was to perform an 
independent spot check to verify the monthly cycle count.  
 
Background 
The Agency carries approximately $1.7M of inventory assets on the Agency’s financial 
statements (according to the FY 2020/21 inventory results).  The annual inventory count 
and the monthly cycle counts are a recommended best practice process performed before 
the completion of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) to validate the 
total inventory asset dollar amount posted to the financial statements.   
 
Currently, there is no documented Agency policy or procedure that documents the 
method for conducting the Agency’s warehouse physical inventory. Performing an 
inventory is a recommended best practice and internal control over Agency assets.  
 



Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts 
August 25, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
 

On Tuesday, June 21st, 2022, present at the monthly cycle count were Agency 
representatives from the Warehouse, Accounting, IA, and an auditor from the Agency’s 
external financial audit firm, CLA.   
 
Current Inventory and Cycle Count Practice  
The current practice requires Warehouse staff to perform a comprehensive annual 
physical inventory of all Warehouse assets every other year (currently odd number years, 
last physical inventory was for FY 2021) and perform monthly cycle counts every year.  
The monthly cycle counts randomly selects approximately 2% of the warehouse items for 
physical review and inventory. This translates to conducting a physical inventory of 
approximately 24% of the warehouse items during the fiscal year. The dollar value of the 
items physically counted is not evaluated/recorded in relation to the annual value of the 
inventory.  Cycle counts are a good best practice control, and they are recommended to 
ensure problems are identified early before they become larger problems, additionally to 
aid in ensuring the accuracy of the biannual physical inventory count.   
 
According to staff, to coordinate, prepare and perform the annual physical inventory, the 
warehouse and/or the ERP system is required to be closed/inactive for requests and 
fulfillments for approximately a full week during the month of June.  The annual inventory 
requires approximately 4-6 Agency employees to perform the physical counts. The annual 
physical inventory occurs after staff have taken time and resources to plan for and prepare 
in anticipation of the physical inventory (pre-counts, downloading data, other Warehouse 
and Accounting activities, etc.) 
 
IA has evaluated the current process for monthly cycle counts and determines that the 
current method for monthly cycle counts does not meet the intent or the purpose for the 
annual physical inventory because it does not physically inventory a material amount of 
the items in terms of quantities and dollar value.  As noted above, the purpose of the 
physical inventory is to physically inspect the warehouse inventory items and validate, 
with certainty, the dollar value recorded on the Agency’s financial statements.   
 
Improvements to the current cycle count methodology can be made by selecting more 
items to ensure the cycle counts capture a material portion of the Agency’s whole 
inventory and/or all inventory in a fiscal year.   Counting 100% of the items in the year 
through cycle counts would be an ideal and best practice methodology, for the purpose 
of eliminating the annual physical inventory at fiscal year-end but capturing a material 
amount of the dollar value and the total quantities would also be a justifiable 
methodology.  Another option is to keep the current cycle count methodology for the 
purposes of spot checking and also include an annual physical inventory every year for 
the purpose of the financial statement requirement. 
 
The Finance Department strongly recommends that an annual physical inventory be 
completed each year and suggests keeping cycle counts as an additional internal control.  
 
 



Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts 
August 25, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
 

Below are Internal Audit’s Recommendations:  
 
IA Recommendations 
 
1. Warehouse staff ensure that the cycle counts for the entire year, capture all or 

a substantial material amount of the inventory in terms of quantity of items and 
total dollar value of the whole inventory, to validate with certainty and to justify 
the value of the inventory reported on the Agency’s financial statements.   

 
There are various ways to accomplish this recommendation.  The following are 
suggestions:   
 

• Perform a complete annual physical inventory every year.  
 

• Perform a complete annual physical inventory every other year and on 
the opposite year, perform cycle counts that inventory all or a material 
amount of the inventory in terms of quantity of items and the total dollar 
value of the total inventory.  
 

• Other methodology that addresses the recommendation. 
 
2. Warehouse staff work closely with Accounting staff to ensure the inventory 

methodology is documented in a formal department policy or procedure to 
ensure consistency and continuity of the inventory and to demonstrate that the 
intent of performing inventory is to validate the value of the inventory reported 
on the Agency’s financial statements. Additional procedure/policy 
considerations should include cycle count methodology, evaluating and 
handling slow-moving and obsolete inventory items, other efficiencies, etc. 

 
Warehouse Response:  

The Warehouse staff stated that they will continue their inventory process the same way. Staff 
will perform a bi-annual physical inventory on the odd years and continue with monthly cycle 
counts every fiscal year using the current/attached procedure of 50 items/month to randomly 
spot check throughout the fiscal year. The monthly counts will be completed prior to the formal 
annual inventory led by the Accounting Department].   
 
Warehouse staff stated that based on the accuracy rate of more than 99% on the past 3 physical 
inventory counts, they see no need to change the process at this time.  
 
The proposed methodology for the bi-annual inventory and the monthly cycle count are included 
in the attachments to this report. Additionally, the results of the prior three annual physical 
inventory are also attached.  
 



Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts 
August 25, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
 

For recommendation #1, the response provided by the department appears to be a 
reasonable, justified approach and response.  Warehouse staff consider their 
methodology to be cost-effective and responsive to the current operations of the 
Warehouse.  IA will continue to participate in the annual physical inventory and 
accompany the external auditor during their spot check. If warranted and when 
appropriate, additional audit recommendations will be provided based on the results of 
the physical inventory, annual audit, or new guidance and information that may come from 
the External Financial Auditors. Because the department has documented their 
methodology and justification, recommendation #1 is considered implemented and 
closed.  
 
For recommendation #2, the attached are considered desk procedures utilized by  
Warehouse staff. The procedures satisfy the requirements of the recommendation.  
Warehouse staff should consider documenting the procedures into a formal department 
Standard Operating Procedure and follow the guidelines provided by Agency Policy A-
51.  IA is available to assist in the review of any procedure prior to finalizing. 
Recommendation #2 is considered implemented and closed.  
 
Both recommendations have been addressed, no further follow-up work is required.  IA 
is available to participate each year during the annual physical inentory and the external 
auditor’s spot check.  
 
 

Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the Warehouse and Accounting for their 
cooperation and assistance during this review.  IA provided this audit report in draft format 
and discussed the results and all audit recommendations with all respective Directors, 
Managers and Supervisors for their input and comments.  Their comments have been 
incorporated prior to finalizing this report. IA is available to perform additional audit work.  
 
 

The Warehouse Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts Report is consistent with the 
Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business 
Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong 
control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist 
management in achieving organizational goals and objectives. 



Fiscal Year Methodology: 
 

FY22/23:  ODD (ACTIVE) Bi-Annual Cycle Count Year: 
ODD year based on fiscal year count (June 2023)  
Monthly cycle counts will be completed utilizing the “Monthly Cycle Count Process” 
on page 2 of this document.  In addition to the monthly cycle counts, a formal cycle 
count is completed of all items located at the Regional Plant 1 Warehouse during 
Q4 lead by the Accounting Department.  
 
FY23/24:  EVEN (INACTIVE) Bi-Annual Cycle Count Year:  
EVEN year based on fiscal year count (June 2024) 
Monthly cycle counts will be completed utilizing the “Monthly Cycle Count Process” 
on page 2 of this document.  No formal cycle count is completed in Q4 for EVEN 
years. 
 
FY24/25: Same as FY22/23 
FY25/26: Same as FY23/24 
 
Every FY thereafter follows same sequence mentioned above. 
 
NOTE: Sample count may differ slightly between years based on number of SKU’s 
stocked at warehouse (due to obsolete/discontinued items, and/or new items 
added). 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



MONTHLY CYCLE COUNT PROCESS 
 

1) Warehouse staff generates a count sheet of 50 items per month (or a 2% 
sample size from approx. 2,002 SKU’s) of inventoried items at the Regional 
Plant 1 Warehouse.   
 

2) Once list is generated, one of the warehouse technicians will conduct a 
physical count of each item and record his/her results on the spreadsheet.  
If no count discrepancy is identified between the physical count vs. system 
count, no future counting is required for that item.  If there is a 
discrepancy, proceed to next step. 
 

3) Any system discrepancies are to be re-counted by a different warehouse 
technician (that did not perform the initial count). 

FOR EXAMPLE: 
a. Technician #1 conducts initial counts for all 50 items; there is a 

discrepancy for items 1, 5 & 10. 
b. Recounts for items 1, 5 & 10 are to be performed by Technician #2.  

 
4) Any discrepancies still present upon recounts are considered true 

discrepancies that must be corrected in both SAP and notated on the 
appropriate spreadsheets for each fiscal year (Inventory Accuracy FYXX and 
Inventory Counts FYXX).  
 

5) SAP: Any system adjustment needs to be made using t-code MI10.  Upon 
completion of the adjustment, need to go into MB03 & add a note as to the 
reason for the adjustment. 
 

6) If the location is incorrect, need to go into MM02 & update to the proper 
location (under the “Plant data/stor.1” tab, cell titled “Storage Bin”). 
 

7) After all appropriate adjustments are made in SAP, and properly recorded 
on spreadsheets, the process is complete for the month. 
 

8) Repeat steps each month. 



FY 2020/21 FY 2018/19 Amount $ Percentage %

Count Sheets 442 419 23 5%

SAP Stock Value (A) $1,411,220 $1,302,299 $108,921 8%
SAP Stock Units (C ) 31,800 28,143 3,657 13%

Physical Count Value (B) $1,409,366 $1,294,008 $115,358 9%
Physical Count Units (D) 31,567 28,325 3,242 11%

Overall Value Accuracy ($) 99.87% 99.36%
Overall Unit Accuracy (Units) 99.27% 100.65%

Stock Value Shrinkage (A)‐(B) ($1,854) ($8,290) $6,436 ‐77.64%
Stock Value Shrinkage (%) (0.13%)                     (0.64%)                    
Stock Unit Overage ( D)‐(C) (233) 182 (415) (228.02%)                 
Stock Unit Overage (%) ‐0.73% 0.65%

Value of Items Over Stock ($) (E) $4,022 $7,844 ($3,822) (48.72%)                   
Number of Items Over Stock (Units) 566 355 211 0.59                          
Number of Items Over
<$100 74 88 (14) ‐15.91%
$100‐$499 8 12 (4) (33.33%)                   
$500‐$999 1 2 (1) ‐50.00%
>$1000 0 1 (1) 100.00%

Items Under Stock ($) (F) ($5,876) ($16,135) $10,259 ‐63.58%
Items Under Stock (Units) (799) (3,627) 2,828 ‐77.97%
Number of Items Under:
<$100 100 108 (8) (7.41%)                      
$100‐$499 10 16 (6) (37.50%)                   
$500‐$999 1 2 (1) 100.00%
>$1000 1 4 (3) ‐75.00%

Stock Value Shrinkage (E )+(F) ($1,854) ($8,290) $6,437 ‐77.64%

Precount Sheets 59 62 (3) ‐4.84%

Precount Stock Value $674,463 $668,848 5,615 1%
Precount Stock Value (as a % of A) 47.79% 51.69%
Precount Stock Units 7,387 7,797 (410) (5.26%)                      
Precount Stock Units (as a % of C) 23.23% 27.53%

Recount Items 34 9 25 278%

OBSERVATIONS:
‐ The FY 2020/21 physical inventory result reflects a $1,854 or .13% net shrinkage from SAP stock value 

of $1,411,220.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
FY 2020/21 Physical Inventory Statistic

‐ Of the $1,854 net shrinkage amount, $2,714 is attributed to BPAs, leaving $4,568 the actual shrinkage between SAP 

inventory stock value and the physical inventory count value.

Compared to FY 2018/19 Results

‐ The monthly cycle count  continues to improve the accuracy and results of the physical inventory count process.



FY 2018/19 FY 2017/18 Amount $ Percentage %

Count Sheets 419 430 (11) (2.56%)                     

SAP Stock Value (A) $1,302,299 $1,500,445 ($198,146) (13.21%)                   

SAP Stock Units (C ) 28,143 33,840 (5,697) (16.84%)                   

Physical Count Value (B) $1,294,008 $1,496,304 ($202,296) (13.52%)                   

Physical Count Units (D) 28,325 33,600 (5,275) (15.70%)                   

Overall Value Accuracy ($) 99.36% 99.72%

Overall Unit Accuracy (Units) 100.65% 99.29%

Stock Value Shrinkage (A)‐(B) ($8,290) ($4,141) ($4,149) 100.20%

Stock Value Shrinkage (%) (0.64%)                     (0.28%)                    

Stock Unit Overage ( D)‐(C) 182 (240) 422 (175.96%)                 

Stock Unit Overage (%) 0.65% (0.71%)                    

Value of Items Over Stock ($) (E) $7,844 $8,826 ($982) (11.12%)                   

Number of Items Over Stock (Units) 355 454 (99) (21.81%)                   

Number of Items Over

<$100 88 82 6 7.32%

$100‐$499 12 21 (9) (42.86%)                   

$500‐$999 2 2 0 0.00%

>$1000 1 0 1 100.00%

Items Under Stock ($) (F) ($16,135) ($12,968) ($3,167) 24.42%

Items Under Stock (Units) (3,627) (1,411) (2,216) 157.05%

Number of Items Under:

<$100 108 136 (28) (20.59%)                   

$100‐$499 16 24 (8) (33.33%)                   

$500‐$999 2 0 2 100.00%

>$1000 4 2 2 100.00%

Stock Value Shrinkage (E )+(F) ($8,290) ($4,142) ($4,147) 100.14%

Precount Sheets 62 61 1 1.64%

Precount Stock Value $668,848 $753,496 (84,648) (11.23%)                   

Precount Stock Value (as a % of A) 51.36% 50.36%

Precount Stock Units 7,797 9,494 (1,697) (17.87%)                   

Precount Stock Units (as a % of C) 27.71% 28.26%

Recount Items 9 12 (3) (25.00%)                   

OBSERVATIONS:

‐ In FY16/17, the Warehouse staff reorganized several storage bin locations and updated labels to match with SAP's 

assigned labels. These efforts greatly expedited the physical count and made it a smooth process.

‐ The FY 2018/19 physical inventory result reflects a $8,290 or .65% net shrinkage compared to SAP's stock value 

of $1,302,299.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
FY 2018/19 Physical Inventory Statistic

‐ Of the $8,290 net shrinkage amount, $3,541 is attributed to Vendor BPAs, the remainder, $4,749, is the true shrinkage 

value.

Compared to FY 2017/18 Results

‐ In July 2018, the Warehouse staff implemented a monthly cycle count in an effort to incease inventory accuracy. The 

result of these montly cycles is reflected in this year's increase in stock on hand accuracy.



FY 2017/18 FY 2016/17 Amount $  2017 %

Count Sheets 430 432 (2) (0.46%)                    

SAP Stock Value (A) $1,500,445 $1,510,814 ($10,369) (0.69%)                     

SAP Stock Units (C ) 33,840 33,197 643 1.94%

Physical Count Value (B) $1,496,304 $1,502,558 ($6,254) (0.42%)                     

Physical Count Units (D) 33,600 32,776 824 2.51%

Overall Accuracy ($) 99.72% 99.45%

Overall Accuracy (Units) 99.29% 98.73%

Stock Shrinkage Value (A)-(B) ($4,141) ($8,256) $4,115 (49.84%)                  

Stock Shrinkage Value (%) (0.28%)                   (0.55%)                   

Stock Shrinkage Units ( D)-(C) (240) (421) 181 (42.97%)                  

Stock Shrinkage Units (%) (0.71%)                   (1.27%)                   

Items Over Stock ($) (E) $8,826 $7,494 $1,333 17.78%

Items Over Stock (Units) 454 644 (190) (29.51%)                  

Number of Items Over

<$100 82 121 (39) (32.23%)                  

$100-$499 21 16 5 31.25%

$500-$999 2 1 1 100.00%

>$1000 0 0 0 0.00%

Items Under Stock ($) (F) ($12,968) ($15,749) $2,782 -17.66%

Items Under Stock (Units) (1,411) (3,098) 1,687 (54.45%)                  

Number of Items Under

<$100 136 113 23 20.35%

$100-$499 24 31 (7) (22.58%)                  

$500-$999 0 5 (5) (100.00%)                

>$1000 2 2 0 0.00%

Stock Shrinkage Value (E )+(F) ($4,141) ($8,256) $4,115 (49.84%)                 

Precount Sheets 61 0

Precount Stock Value $753,496 $0

Precount Stock Value (%) 50.36% 0.00%

Precount Stock Units 9,494 0

Precount Stock Units (%) 28.26% 0.00%

Recount Items 12 14 (2) (14.29%)                  

OBSERVATIONS:
- Due to the short notice to complete the physical inventory in FY1617, precount locations were not counted separately.

- The FY 2017/18 physical inventory result reflects a $4,141 or .28% shrinkage compared to SAP's stock value of $1,500,445.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

FY 2017/18 Physical Inventory Statistic

- Of the $4,141 shrinkage amount, $717 is attributed to Vendor BPAs' cleared of their balances, and the remainder, 

$3,424, is the true shrinkage value.

Compared to FY 2016/17 Results

- Prior to this fiscal year's physical count, the Warehouse staff reorganized several storage bin locations and updated 

labels to match with SAP's assigned labels. These efforts greatly expedited the physical count and made it a smooth 

process.



Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Count

Sapna Nangia

Senior Internal Auditor

September 12, 2022



Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory 
& Monthly Cycle Count

2

• Annual financial audit process

• Approximately $1.7M of inventory assets on the Agency’s financial statements 
(according to the FY 2020/21 inventory results)

• Best practice to perform an annual physical inventory



Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory 
& Monthly Cycle Count

Current Practice:

• Biannual Physical Inventory of all inventory 

—a comprehensive annual physical inventory of all Warehouse assets every other year 
(currently odd number years, last physical inventory was for FY 2021) 

AND

• Monthly cycle counts are performed every month, every year

—of a random sample of approximately 2% of items during each cycle count

The last 3 complete physical inventory reviews have shown an accuracy 
rate of more than 99%. 

The Warehouse staff documented a procedure to record this methodology.

3



The Warehouse Annual Physical Inventory & Monthly Cycle Counts is consistent with
the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and
Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that
foster a strong internal control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work
environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

Questions? 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4I 



Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit - Follow-Up Review

Internal Audit (IA) staff completed a follow-up review to provide the implementation status of
the six recommendations provided in the original 2017 audit report related to the Water Use
Efficiency (WUE) Programs Audit. Annually, the WUE staff prepare the WUE Programs
Report for the purpose of tracking water savings achieved through the various water
conservation programs and the funding amounts related to each.

Based on the results of IA's follow-up review, all six recommendations are now considered
implemented. Five of the original recommendations were for the WUE staff to address in the
current WUE Programs' Reports. The recommendations related to improving the program as
well as the information reported in the annual report to ensure the criteria and information used
and referenced is clear, credited and can be compared from annual report to annual report. One
recommendation for Accounting staff was related to making improvements to processes to
minimize and eliminate the need for prior period adjustments related to projects, in the annual
financial statements. IA noted there have been no prior period adjustments in the prior three
fiscal years. All recommendations have been addressed. The complete report with details of
each recommendation is attached.

This is an information item.

N/A

09/12/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit - Follow Up Review is consistent with the Agency’s
Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by
ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control
environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in
achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.
The Plan proposed follow up reviews for prior audit recommendations.

Attachment 1 - Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit - Follow Up Review
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

22203



 
 

 

 
DATE:   July 14, 2022 
  
TO:  Shivaji Deshmukh 
  General Manager 
     

    
FROM:   Teresa V. Velarde 
  Manager of Internal Audit 
 
SUBJECT:  Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
 
 
Audit Authority 
The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA or Agency) Internal Audit Department (IA) 
performed a follow up review of the six audit recommendations provided in the Water Use 
Efficiency (WUE) Programs Audit report, dated June 5, 2017. The follow up review was 
performed under the authority given by the Board of Directors in the approved Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan and the IAD’s Charter. 
 
Audit Objective  
The purpose of the follow up review is to provide a status of the six audit 
recommendations provided in the original WUE Programs Audit report.  The objectives of 
the original audit were to evaluate internal controls over administrative tasks performed 
by staff as required by the executed contracts, Agency Ordinances, policies, and 
procedures. Additionally, to assess how staff implemented and administered WUE 
Programs, to identify opportunities to improve internal controls and record-keeping, and 
to assess the accuracy and completeness of the annual information about WUE 
Programs presented to stakeholders.  
 
Background 
In June of 2017, IA issued the audit report, Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit and 
provided six recommendations related to the Annual Water Use Efficiency Programs 
Report (Annual WUE Programs Report).  This report was prepared annually and listed 
the expected/potential water savings achieved through each program, and the funding 
amounts for WUE Programs implemented in the current and prior years.  The audit noted 
that the Water Resources staff provide valuable services to the Agency in tracking water 
use efficiency information and reporting it in the Annual Water Use Efficiency Programs 
Report. 
 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 2 of 8 

 

 
 

Based on the results of this follow up review, all six recommendations are now considered 
implemented.  The report that follows provides the details of the results.   
 
Additional Water Use Efficiency Staff’s Response:  
The current five-year business plan has been shifted to a two-year reporting cycle to align 
with the new regulatory framework and state standards. IEUA will launch its new WUE 
program model that includes two tracks to address Customer Agency needs: equity, 
transparency, and governance. The two tracks represent “Core” and “Flex” programming 
and are typically cost-effective while providing benefits to all Customer Agencies. The 
Core programs comprise 70% of the WUE budget, while the Flex Programs comprise 
30%. Within the Flex budget, Customer Agencies may select and fund more beneficial 
projects for their local service areas. 
 
 
Recommendation #1 
While many retail customers received rebates, the range of customers could have 
been broader. Outreach to customers about WUE measures is a primary 
responsibility of member agencies, but IEUA may want to consider establishing a 
forum to discuss the goals and results of WUE Programs. The purpose of the 
discussions would be to evaluate and develop approaches to help (or consider 
joint efforts to) publicize, target and follow-up with entities in IEUA’s service area 
when WUE opportunities become available, and tailor outreach towards specific 
and/or different entities in the region that match those characteristics and/or 
potentially maintain a database of the region’s entities by unique characteristics 
(schools, churches, large lots, etc.). 
 
Status:  Implemented 
 
Department’s Response:  
 
The Policy and Inter-Agency Relations Department and Water Use Efficiency staff have 
accomplished this recommendation in two ways. First, department staff continue have 
ongoing coordination with member agencies at its bi-monthly meetings where the purpose 
and goals of the program are discussed. 
 
Additionally, the department has the responsibility of managing an agreement with 
DeGrave Communications, Inc., a consultant to provide new marketing strategies for the 
member agencies. The member agencies shared their specific goals and needs for 
DeGrave's services as they relate to marketing plans. Through equal collaboration of 
DeGrave, the member agencies and IEUA. DeGrave created a toolkit comprised of 
writable universal templates for the member agencies to use for social media posts, bill 
inserts and more. DeGrave also executed photoshoots to capture photo and video 
content for IEUA rebate devices and IEUA WUE programs. The member agencies would 
use this new content in their own unique marketing strategies. DeGrave's contract and 
services concluded on June 30, 2020.  



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 3 of 8 

 

 
 

 
In FY 2020/21, IEUA worked with the member agencies to rename some of the existing 
WUE programs and provide additional flyers with program and rebate information. IEUA 
will provide the new material as an added resource for the member agencies, however, 
implementation will be based on each member agency’s outreach strategy. 
 
Recommendation #2 
Finance and Accounting (FAD) staff have already taken several practical measures 
to review and reduce the amounts included in Work in Process (WIP) to ensure only 
capital projects are capitalized. FAD may want to consider prioritizing additional 
efforts to ensure that prior period adjustments are eliminated, such as: 
 

• Developing a cross-departmental team including representatives from 
Engineering, Operations and FAD to approve items in advance for 
capitalization in WIP. 

• Establishing an automated log, register or report to be reviewed regularly 
that tracks project codes, amounts and purpose for FAD review to ensure 
accurate accounting of projects. 

• Engaging an outside consultant, accounting firm or additional temporary 
resources to make a thorough examination of WIP to: 

• Ensure only capital projects are included 
• Recommend policies and procedures for establishing projects to 

ensure only capital projects are capitalized 
• Develop written examples and guidelines of what constitutes a capital 

project and what constitutes an O & M project. 
 
Status: Implemented 
 
The original WUE audit report noted that the Agency had made prior period adjustments 
on the Agency’s financial statements because projects related to the WUE program were 
initially set up as capital projects, instead of correctly being set up as O&M (Operations & 
Maintenance) projects.  Since the original review, the Finance Department indicated they 
have been vigilant about reviewing with greater detail all projects and will request 
additional information and justification from the departments to ensure projects are 
categorized correctly.  
 
Finance Department’s Response 
The department indicated they have updated the new project set up form to ensure it 
incorporates more information to justify the classification of new projects as capital or non-
capital projects. The new form applies to all new Agency projects, including WUE projects. 
Finance staff stated they are involved in the review of the new project set up form, and 
also meet with the different departments to evaluate the request and provide guidance to 
ensure proper classification of the projects.  Finance staff also stated they have been 
reviewing project cost and types during the year-end process to identify possible 
reclassifications between capital and non-capital costs. 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 

 

IA reviewed the three prior Agency Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports (ACFR) and 
noted there were no prior period adjustments related to the WUE program or other types.  
Based on the response provided by the Finance department that details the new process 
for establishing/reviewing projects and because no prior period adjustments were 
identified in the most recent Agency ACFR’s, this recommendation is considered 
implemented.  

 
Recommendation #3 
The Agency may want to consider utilizing the Annual Water Use Efficiency 
Programs Report as an evaluative tool to compare actual results to those projected 
in the Regional WUE (five year) Business Plan. The Annual WUE Programs Report 
could discuss reasons for variances from that plan, document changes being made 
to the plan and describe progress on any other initiatives that expect to yield water 
savings in future years. 
 
Status:  Implemented 
 
The audit noted that the Annual WUE Programs Report is an effective tool for providing 
a summary of all regional conservation efforts. The audit also noted that the preface to 
the Annual WUE Programs Report references goals and targets established in the five-
year Business Plan for 2015-20, but the actual totals from the Business Plan were not 
carried forward and reflected in the 2016 Annual WUE Programs Report.  
Recommendation #3 suggested staff consider including the amounts for budgets and 
targets established in the five-year Business Plan and compare them to the actual totals.  
The original audit report also provided a suggested comparison chart of various activities 
as a suggestion to illustrate the Business Plan goals and actual results. 
 
Staff addressed this recommendation in the FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Annual WUE 
Programs Report, on page 13 of each of the respective reports.  The WUE Business Plan 
Goals related to budget and projections of water savings were brought forward for 
comparable information. The corresponding section from the FY 2020-21 report is 
included here for reference. This recommendation is considered implemented.   
 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Recommendation #4 
IEUA may want to consider providing additional documentation, descriptions or 
informative information in the body of the Annual WUE Programs Report to 
describe the differing sources of information used to provide member agency 
information vs. regionwide information or alternatively (and/or in addition), 
presenting both the summary and member agency information on the same basis. 
 
Status: Implemented 
 
The original audit noted that the Annual WUE Programs Report is a hybrid of information 
from a variety of sources, documents, and calculations. The recommendation suggested 
that the information mentioned be credited, cited, referenced, or provided as supporting 
information to provide clarity and as additional sources of information.  Providing 
additional descriptions and documentation about the sources of the information and how 
calculations were made, increases transparency, and helps users of the report have 
context about the information being reported, additionally, it provides credit and additional 
sources of information.  The report had a couple of suggestions for consideration:  to 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 

apply any method or provide notes or documentation that describe the sources of the 
information and calculation methods used; and also suggested to consider expanding the 
“Highlights” commentary at the beginning of the report to describe the sources of the 
information and the methods used to calculate the water savings and funding amounts.   
 
A review of the most current FY 2020-21 WUE Annual Report noted that the report now 
includes small notes at the bottom of some of the pages/graphs indicated with an asterisk, 
containing additional information regarding referenced material. Examples of these notes 
and footnotes.   
 
Examples of reference notes: 

 

 
 

 
    

 

 

 

 
 
Calculations have the following reference:   

 
 
It should be noted that the footnote at the bottom of the page contains an asterisk or a 
number and the source of information, but the asterisk or footnote number does not 
appear in the core information, so it may be difficult to reference the information that the 
asterisk applies to. The department addressed the observation related to crediting, citing 
and referencing the information to provide as additional support for the report.  The 
referencing could be improved by specifying the information and the citations to ensure 
their footnotes and the asterisk reference both the source cited and the information in the 
report to demonstrate a tracing of information.  
 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 

This recommendation is considered implemented because the report contains additional 
referencing support and information which had not been included in the original FY 2015 
and FY 2016 reports reviewed by IA during the original audit.  
 
 
Recommendation #5 
IEUA may want to consider expanding the “Highlights” commentary and providing 
subheadings and organizing the section to match the order of the Summary Charts 
to align the descriptions to the charts that follow. 
 
Status:  Implemented 
 
The original audit found that the order and format of the report could be improved to 
present the information in a more streamlined order.  The report stated that the first two 
sections of the Annual Report provide a cover letter from IEUA’s General Manager and a 
“Highlights” document.  The Highlights document provided some descriptive and some 
statistical information, but the headings and descriptions were not aligned with the order 
of the Summary Charts that follow, and some of the most significant programs are not 
mentioned, while other programs that have only recently been initiated are described in 
greater detail. The purpose of IA’s recommendation was for staff to evaluate closely and 
consider further organizing the information related to the programs in a more consistent 
and systematic manner to allow readers to easily follow through the report and be able to 
read the narrative information and refer to the related charts with numbers and totals.   
 
Staff stated that the report’s format was redesigned from FY 2018-19 to 2019-20 and the 
order between the highlights and summary charts will be synchronized  in the FY 2020-
21 Annual WUE Programs Report. IA reviewed the FY 2020-21 Report and noted that the 
information is organized very differently than the 2016 report originally reviewed.  The 
information in the most recent report includes subheadings to preface the information that 
will be presented, and it is organized in different categories, including costs, activities, 
and the specific programs with charts, graphs, totals, photographs and detailed 
information about the programs described.  
 
This recommendation is considered implemented because staff have updated the report 
to see that the information is organized to allow readers to follow all information provided.  
 
 
Recommendation #6 
WR staff may want to consider developing a desk procedure or other document to 
guide the preparation of the Annual WUE Programs Report for internal staff to 
follow. 
 
Status:  Implemented 
 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review   
July 14, 2022 
Page 8 of 8 

 

 
 

The original audit found that WR staff had a “desk procedure” or a document page of 
notes and contacts and a checklist to guide the preparation of the Annual WUE Programs 
Report. The Excel workbook that is the basis of the Report also inherently provides some 
documentation of the formulas and sources of amounts that are shown. However, there 
are also instances where amounts (particularly in the amount of turf removed and the 
dollar amounts of most funding sources) have been added to the report manually. The 
original audit report also noted that the various sources of information and methods of 
calculation can result in inconsistencies and inaccuracies within a schedule and from year 
to year, particularly when new programs begin or older programs are phased out.  IA 
recommended implementing a comprehensive, documented procedure for the 
development of the Annual WUE Programs report and to help improve its consistency 
and accuracy and to reduce the amount of staff time needed to complete it.  
 
The department finalized and implemented a documented Standard Operating Procedure 
(SOP). The “Annual Water Use Efficiency Programs Report SOP” provides detailed 
procedures and information about the information to compile the WUE report.  The SOP 
has been finalized, signed and shared with staff.  IA was able to review and provide 
comments to the SOP prior to its finalization. This recommendation is considered 
implemented.  
 
Acknowledgements 
IA would like to extend our appreciation to the Policy and Inter-Agency Relations 
Department and Water Use Efficiency staff and the Finance Department for their 
cooperation and assistance during this review. 
 
Discussions with Management 
IA met with the respective department managers and staff to discuss the status of each 
recommendation.  Where possible, their comments have been incorporated. 
 
 

 
The Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit – Follow Up Review  is consistent with the Agency’s 
Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by 
ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that foster a strong control environment, 
safeguard assets, promote a safe work environment and assist management in achieving 
organizational goals and objectives. 



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit  
Follow-Up Review

Sapna Nangia

Senior Internal Auditor

September 12, 2022



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit  
Follow-Up Review

• Original review was completed In June of 2017

• The objectives of the original audit were to: 

— evaluate internal controls 

— assess how staff implemented and administered WUE Programs

— identify opportunities to improve internal controls and record-keeping 

— assess the accuracy and completeness of the information about WUE Programs in 
the annual report

• 6 original recommendations

2



Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit  
Follow-Up Review

3

Water Use Efficiency Reports | IEUA

https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/water-use-efficiency-reports/

https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/water-use-efficiency-reports/
https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/water-use-efficiency-reports/


Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit  
Follow-Up Review

• Annual Water Use Efficiency Programs Report (Annual WUE Programs Report) 

—A report prepared annually to document the potential water savings achieved through each of 
the conservation programs and the funding amounts for each 

• Internal Audit provided 5 recommendations for Water Conservation staff and 1 for 
Accounting

—Recommendations relate to improving how the information is reported to ensure it can be 
compared from year to year

—Recommendation for Accounting related to ensuring only capital projects are capitalized to 
minimize or eliminate the need for prior period adjustments

• All 6 recommendations are now considered implemented. 

4



The Water Use Efficiency Program Audit - Follow-Up Review is consistent with the
Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility, Workplace Environment, and
Business Practices by ensuring that IA’s evaluations provide recommendations that
foster a strong internal control environment, safeguard assets, promote a safe work
environment and assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

Questions? 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4J 



Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report for September 2022

The Audit Committee Charter requires that a written status report be prepared and submitted
each quarter. The Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report includes a summary of
significant internal and external audit activities for the reporting period.

During this quarter, along with additional routine audit projects and administrative tasks,
Internal Audit (IA) staff completed the comprehensive evaluation of the procure to pay
processes for the Home Depot Credit Cards and continued on the evaluation of the procure to
pay processes for Materials and Supplies. Additionally, IA completed the progress update and
followed up on the status of 28 outstanding recommendations resulting from the prior procure to
pay audits. Additionally, IA completed a follow-up review of the Water Use Efficiency
Programs Audit and an analysis of the Warehouse's physical inventory practices.

Other audit projects are also discussed in detail in this status report. IA continues to participate
in various committees and discussions and assists with requests for review of Agency policies
and procedures, and provides recommendations to improve internal controls. The attached
Quarterly Status Report provides details of the activities during this quarter.

This is an information item.

N/A

N/A

09/12/22Audit

Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit

N Y

Manager Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The IA Status Report is consistent with the Agency's Business Goals of Fiscal Responsibility,
Workplace Environment, and Business Practices by describing IAs progress in providing
independent evaluations and audit services of Agency financial and operational activities and
making recommendations for improvement, to promote a strong, ethical internal control
environment, safeguarding Agency's assets and fiscal health, providing recommendations to
improve processes and to assist management in achieving organizational goals and objectives.

On June 15, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the Fiscal Year 2022/23 Annual Audit Plan.

On December 8, 2021, the Board of Directors reconfirmed the approved Audit Committee and
IA Department Charters. The Charters require a Quarterly Status Report

Attachment 1 - Internal Audit Department Status Report for September 2022

Not Applicable

22202



 
 

Page 1 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

Project: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit:  
 Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards 
  
Scope: 
The audit scope of the Review of Procure to Pay (P2P) Processes for Home Depot Credit Cards is to evaluate 
the ordering, receiving, and payments, to identify problems, bottlenecks, and constraints in the various steps 
to process the Home Depot invoices and payments timely, and to propose recommendations to make the 
process more efficient. Specifically, to evaluate the processes for invoice receiving and processing, the use 
of the credit card program, internal controls, timeliness of payments and provide recommendations to improve 
efficiencies. 
 
Status:   Completed  
 
As of June 30, 2022, there were a total of 33 Home Depot credit cards assigned to both IEUA and IERCA 
staff, and the total combined amount paid (both IEUA and IERCA) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 was $60,769 
and FY 2022 was $50,490 to Home Depot. To complete this P2P review, IA met with various representatives 
of the different departments, including, Contracts and Procurement (CAP), Operations, Maintenance, and 
Warehouse, and Accounting. IA identified inefficiencies with the administration of this program. The use of 
the Home Depot credit cards is not an efficient program because the Agency is often placed on credit hold 
due to late payments, and users are not able to make purchases. The audit report provides a comprehensive 
evaluation of the program as of August 2022. The program is possibly changing as the Agency is working to 
implement a 2018 audit recommendation.  
 
In 2018, IA recommended Home Depot credit cards be eliminated and absorbed by the Procurement Card 
(Pcard) program. The audit evaluated the benefits of the Pcard program, including, enhance visibility of the 
items purchased, review reports, and most importantly, to ensure the cards are never placed on credit hold.  
 
IA is providing recommendations to improve the current Home Depot credit card program if the Agency 
decides to keep all or part of the credit cards.  The complete audit report with details of the observations and 
recommendations is presented as a separate item. 
 

 
Project: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit:  
 Quarterly Progress Update for all P2P Audit Recommendations – 3rd Progress Update 
 
Scope: 
The purpose of the Progress Update for all P2P Audit Recommendations is to provide an update on the 
implementation status of the 67 audit recommendations provided through the P2P Audits:  

 

• Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Chemicals: 
o Dated November 24, 2021 
o Provided 35 audit recommendations  

• Review of Procure to Pay Processes – Engineering & Construction Management  
o Dated February 24, 2022 
o Provided 21 audit recommendations  

• Review of Procure to Pay Processes - Planning and Resources 
o Dated May 25, 2022 
o Provided 11 audit recommendations  

 
Status:   Completed Quarterly Report & Ongoing 
This is the status of all P2P recommendations, as of August 25, 2022.  
 

Projects Completed This Period 



 
 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

 
 
Of the 67 audit recommendations provided through the three P2P audits, 21 require attention. The 
departments that proposed action plans for all the outstanding recommendations are included in a separate 
report and attachments are under a separate cover.  IA will continue to provide quarterly progress reports 
until all audit recommendations have been addressed.   
 

 
Project: Water Use Efficiency (WUE) Audit Follow-up Review  
  
Scope: 
IA completed a follow-up review to provide a status of the six audit recommendations provided in the original 
WUE Programs Audit report. The objectives of the original audit were to evaluate internal controls over 
administrative tasks performed by staff as required by the executed contracts, Agency Ordinances, policies 
and procedures.  Additionally, to assess the corrective actions taken to improve the completeness of the 
annual information about WUE programs. 
 
Status:   COMPLETE 
The follow-up review noted that all six of the original audit recommendations are now implemented.  The audit 
report is included under a separate cover and provides details of the audit observations and 
recommendations.   
 

 
Project: Warehouse Inventory & Cycle Counts 
 
Scope: 
IA participated in the observation of the monthly cycle count conducted by the Warehouse in June 2022. The 
purpose of IAs observation of the monthly cycle count was to observe the count as part of the annual financial 
audit process, and to coordinate audit efforts with the Agency’s external financial audit firm, CliftonLarsonAllen 
LLP (CLA), and to be available as an audit resource on behalf of the Agency.  Additionally, the purpose was 
to perform an independent spot check to verify the monthly cycle count.  
 
 
Status: COMPLETE 
IA confirmed with the Warehouse staff that the established practice for conducting inventory for the Agency’s 
warehouse will be as follows:  bi-annual physical inventory of all inventory items on the odd number years.  
In addition to the bi-annual physical inventory, the Warehouse staff will conduct cycle counts of 50 items every 
month, every year.  
 
The complete methodology is documented in the attached report presented under a separate cover.  
 

 
  



 
 

Page 3 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

 
Project: Accounts Payable Operational and Internal Control Audit Report -  
 Review of Procure to Pay Processes for Materials and Supplies (M&S) 
 
Scope: 
The scope of the Review of Procure to Pay Processes (P2P) for Materials and Supplies is to evaluate the 
procure to pay processes for materials and supplies including ordering, receiving and payments to identify 
opportunities to make the process more efficient and ensure invoices are paid timely.  Specifically, the 
objectives include evaluating internal controls, reviewing compliance with policies and procedures, identifying 
operating efficiencies and areas for improvement, evaluating the proper use of procurement instruments, and 
analyzing the invoice payment processes to ensure vendors are paid timely to minimize or eliminate credit 
holds placed by vendors. 
  
 
Status:   In Progress  
The audit is ongoing and planned for completion: December 2022. 
 
During this quarter, IA completed the following:   

• Updated the scope of the M&S audit to focus on data from FY 2021-2022 in lieu of the older data 
used in the Interim Report from FY 2020-2021 and prior. 

• Reached out to departments to procure a current and much more comprehensive list of M&S vendors 
and gathered more information about these vendors.  

• Identified eighty-six (86) M&S vendors from FY 2021-2022 (the 86 M&S vendors did not include 
chemical vendors that were already covered in the P2P Processes for Chemicals Review). The 
transactions from these vendors will be used for the sample selection process. 

• Calculated the total dollar amount of procured M&S from FY 2021-2022 based on the 86 vendors to 
be $3,415,956 (based on data as of July 14, 2022). In comparison, the Interim Report considered 9 
M&S vendors and calculated the total dollar amount of procured M&S from FY 2020-2021 to be 
$559,534 based on these vendors. 

• Facilitated interviews with staff from Contracts and Procurement, Operations, Facilities and Water 
System Programs, Maintenance, Warehouse, and Accounting to produce current, more accurate, 
more comprehensive, more detailed, and streamlined flowcharts and lists of process steps for all 
divisions involved in the procurement and payment for M&S.  

• Updated the total number of potential procurement methods for acquiring M&S from 5 up to 8 in the 
flowchart/process steps. 

• Developed an improved list of attributes for testing and began the sample selection process. 

• Identified potential observations for improvement to be included in the final audit report. 
 

Additional audit procedures to be performed include:  

• Completing testing to identify and evaluate the root cause for delays in procurement and/or payment. 

• Evaluating the need for a survey of vendors that have placed the Agency on credit hold. 

• Analyzing the updated data set to gather useful metrics, statistics, and tables. 

• Utilizing the testing results and updated process steps to develop a comprehensive list of 
observations, recommendations, and impacts.  

• Using the findings, recommendations, and impacts to produce the completed Procure to Pay 
Processes for Materials and Supplies Final Audit Report that will be used to increase the timeliness 
of procurement and payment for M&S. 

 

 
  



 
 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

Project:  Audit Software Review Project: Workpaper and Data Analytics Software Tools 
 
Scope:   
IA is evaluating the costs and benefits of implementing automated audit tools to enhance audit processes. 
The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) Audit Standard 1220.A2 provides guidance for exercising due 
professional care for internal auditors.  IIA 1220.A2 states that internal auditors must consider the use of 
technology-based audit and other data analysis techniques.  
 
The use of technology, including, an automated working paper system as well the use of data analytics would 
enhance the audit capabilities and efficiency of the audit process.  Currently, IA is using Microsoft Office 
products. SharePoint is not geared toward auditing tools and creating audit workpapers. Resources, including 
costs and staff time, will be necessary for implementation and maintenance. IA is carefully evaluating 
costs/benefits as well as risks and opportunities. Benefits and opportunities include time saving; quicker, more 
robust and larger scale analysis of transactions; sustainability; efficiencies; report production; dashboards; 
continuous monitoring; storage; workpaper documentation and review administration. 
 
Status:   In Progress 
To date, IA has met with the three audit workpaper software vendors: AuditBoard, TeamMate and Workiva.  
Each vendor has provided a quick version of a demo and preliminary information.  AuditBoard provided a 
three-day sandbox opportunity.  Additional meetings will be scheduled to obtain additional information for 
further research and evaluation with all vendors. 
 
IA is also in the process of meeting with the Agency’s Information Technology (IT) and CAP departments to 
discuss requirements before moving forward. Any proposed plans will be discussed in detail with the GM and 
any affected Agency departments. IA will bring updates to the Audit Committee every quarter for 
review/discussion. Any proposed changes will be carefully evaluated, budgeted, and planned with sufficient 
advanced time and notice.  
 

Project:  On-going Committees/Teams 
 
Scope:   
IA participates in meetings related to the Agency’s Asset Management Steering Committee program and the 
Safety programs to gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities, comprehend Agency risks, represent 
the department and be a resource to provide feedback and recommendations.  
 
The Strike Team was implemented by the GM to assist in implementing audit recommendations and 
immediate changes as a result of the recommendations from the P2P Audits.   
 
Status:  On-going 
During this quarter, IA staff participated in weekly meetings with the Strike Team and monthly meetings with 
the Asset Management Steering Committee and Safety Committee (or more frequent when necessary). The 
meetings provide an opportunity for IA to gain an understanding of the Agency’s priorities and identify potential 
risks that assist in audit planning.  During the meetings, IA provides input and suggestions related to the 
initiatives underway. For example, Asset Management is currently developing an asset onboarding and 
disposal policy and process. IA is also very engaged in regards to prior audit recommendations provided.  
These meetings require approximately one hour each per month and sometimes more. They do not 
compromise the independence of the auditors or the IA Department. 
 

 
  



 
 

Page 5 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

 

Project:  Final Report: Review of Agency COVID-19 Expenses  
  
Scope:  
The original evaluation reviewed the expenses incurred by the Agency in response to the ongoing global 
pandemic (COVID-19).  Expenses include costs incurred to comply with health guidelines, prevent the spread 
of COVID-19, transition employees to work from home, ensure proper on-site precautions and protect Agency 
personnel and the public. The objectives of the review were to evaluate if the expenses follow proper internal 
controls, contain the required supporting documentation, and meet compliance requirements according to 
Agency policies and procedures  
 
Status:   In Progress  
IA will contact the Grants Unit to evaluate any updates.  This coordination/report will be scheduled through 
the Annual Audit Plan as required. 
 
A final report will be presented to the Audit Committee when final financial information is available. 
 

 
Project:  Follow-Up IT Equipment Audit – Integrated Systems Services (ISS) 

 
Scope:  To be planned after all P2P Reviews 
To evaluate the status of the two open recommendations from the original Information Technology (IT) 
Equipment audit completed in 2012.  The recommendations are:  
 

• Original Recommendation # 3 (dated August 2012): ISS implement appropriate tracking systems that 
include relevant information on IT purchases (i.e., serial numbers, etc.), are updated timely and are 
complete and accurate. ISS should establish procedures to enter, modify, and delete information in 
the tracking systems that address areas such as timeliness for updates, responsibilities for 
maintaining the systems, and the types of items included in the tracking system. 
 

• Original Recommendation # 1 (dated November 2012): ISS should ensure that any services procured 
with P-Cards are expressly authorized by the Manager of CAP, CFO, AGM, or GM prior to committing 
to services.  

 
Status:   
IA will meet with ISS to evaluate the remaining two recommendations.  Based on the results of the discussions 
with the Operations Division and ISS Management, IA will assess the feasibility to expand the scope of the 
audit to evaluate additional areas to provide added value to the department and Agency. 
 
On July 26, 2021, ISS initiated an inventory of Technology assets assigned to Agency staff. The purpose of 
the inventory is to update asset records of Technology equipment issued through the department. A 
technology asset inventory assists in ensuring financial reporting is accurate and assists in maintaining 
physical accountability of the assets. Technology assets include desktop computers, laptops, monitors, 
printers, docking stations, tablets, mobile phones, Jetpacks, and other computer peripherals.  
 
Additional details will be documented in the next Internal Audit Department Quarterly Status Report. 
 

The IAD Charter requires IA to follow up on the status of outstanding audit recommendations to determine if 
corrective actions have been implemented.  A recommendation is considered “outstanding” if it requires 
corrective action to address the finding and risk observed.  IA performs follow-up reviews to ensure that risks 
have been addressed and clears a recommendation when deemed appropriate.  Follow-up reviews are 

Report on Open Audit Recommendations as of September 2022 



 
 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

scheduled through the Board-approved Annual Audit Plan. Executive Management supports the 
implementation efforts of the recommendations previously provided and/or the development of alternative 
controls to address the original risks identified.  
 
Status: On-going 
As of September 2022, there are 88 outstanding audit recommendations. Details about each of the 
outstanding recommendations are submitted with the Annual Audit Plan each June.  This summary provides 
an updated count of the outstanding recommendations. This summary includes new recommendations 
provided during this fiscal year and considers any recommendations cleared during the year (up to the prior 
quarter).  A follow-up review is typically scheduled between 12–24 months from the date of the original audit, 
to allow time for full implementation. If a recommendation is deemed not implemented, the recommendation 
remains outstanding or alternate controls to mitigate any risks are evaluated to determine if the risk has been 
addressed and the recommendation is no longer applicable.  A follow-up review is also scheduled sooner, if 
requested by the Audit Committee or Executive Management and/or the department audited.  The audited 
business units are encouraged to submit additional information for IA review if they determine the 
recommendation has been satisfied.  
 

Area Audited 
Report Issued 

Date 

No. of Recs. 
Remaining to 
be Verified by 

IA* 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up  
(Deferred Recommendations related to Agency Policies) 

August 29, 2013 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – ISS  February 29, 2016 2 

Follow-Up – IT Equipment Audit – FAD December 5, 2016 6 

2017 Petty Cash Audit & Follow-Up Review June 5, 2017 7 

Water Use Efficiency Programs Audit June 5, 2017 6 

Contracts and Procurement Follow-Up Audit August 30, 2017 1 

Payroll Operations Audit August 30, 2017 5  

Procurement Card Audit March 1, 2018 7 

Wire Transfers Audit March 1, 2018 4 

Inter-fund Transactions Audit August 30, 2018 1 

Accounts Payable Follow-Up Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Voyager Fuel Card Audit May 30, 2019 4 

Human Resources Audit: Hiring and Promotions 
Operations Review 

December 2, 2019 7 

Recycled Water Revenues Audit  May 28, 2020 3  

Human Resources: Workload Indicators Review May 29, 2020 2 

Human Resources Operational Audit: 
Administration of Employee Training and 
Development Programs 

August 31, 2020 5 

Agency Vehicle Operational Follow-up audit:  
Review of Vehicle Inventory Procedures 

May 27, 2021 1 

Accounts Payable Operational and Internal 
Controls Audit Report Review of Procure to Pay 
Processes for: 

• Chemicals (November 24, 2021) 

• Engineering & Construction Management (February 24, 

2022), and 

•  Planning & Resources (May 26, 2022) 
 

(Open recommendations as of August 25, 2022) 

See column called 
Area Audited 21 

Regional Contract Review – Final Audit Report 
(planned for full implementation with the renegotiation of the 
Regional Contract) 

December 16, 
2015 

31 

Total Outstanding Audit Recommendations 119 

  



 
 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

*The Outstanding Recommendations Table does not update the status of recommendations resolved by follow-up 
audits during the current quarter or add any new recommendations resulting from the projects completed during 
this quarter (as noted in this Status Report).  The table is revised for those changes once all items have been 
received by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors which is when items are determined to be final.  

 
As of September 2022, 119 recommendations remain outstanding:  

o 21 relate to the Procure to Pay audits completed; these are currently followed up on quarterly 
o 31 relate to the renegotiation of the Regional Contract 
o 20 relate to required Agency policy updates; HR is working with a consultant to evaluate 
o 47 recommendations are eligible for follow-up evaluation 

 

Ongoing  
IA perform special reviews and projects including analyzing transactions, evaluating documents and policies, 
verifying information, assisting with interpretation of Agency Policies or other required procedures, and 
providing recommendations and feedback on results of the analysis, engaging necessary assistance if and/or 
when necessary, reporting to the General Manager and the Audit Committee.  These services are provided 
according to the IA and Audit Committee Charters, the Annual Audit Plan, and/or best practices. Special 
Projects can be short or long-term projects, typically requiring more than 80 hours of staff time and requiring 
setting aside or delaying work on scheduled audit projects. The scope of the review is not generally known, 
and the work must be handled with the highest degree of confidentiality and care, as with all audit projects.  
Special Projects are usually considered highly confidential. 

Ongoing  
IA assists Agency Management with analysis requests, evaluations, and information verification; assists with 
the interpretation of policies and procedures; and/or provides review and feedback on new policies or 
procedures. Additionally, staff assists with interviews, document evaluations and discussions when asked 
and time permits. These services are provided according to the IAD Charter, the Annual Audit Plan, and best 
practices.  The management request projects are short-term projects, typically lasting no more than 75 hours 
where IA determines it has the necessary staff, skills, and resources to provide the requested assistance 
without having to delay/defer scheduled audits and priority projects.  The scope of each review is agreed 
upon between the department manager requesting the evaluation, review, analysis, or assistance; the 
Manager of IA; and when deemed appropriate by the Leadership Team and department Managers.  
 
During this quarter, IA staff was asked to assist as an external panelist for interviews for an outside 
governmental agency.  The process included time to review resumes and document details of the interviews, 
as well as, meet with HR and the evaluators.  

  

Management Requests  

Special Projects 



 
 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Internal Audit Department 
Quarterly Status Report for September 2022 

IA provides the following list of ranked risk themes borrowed from Protiviti: 

The Top Risks for 2022: A Global Perspective (protiviti.com) 
 

 
 

As required by the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, and the IAD 
Charter, auditors must regularly enhance their knowledge, skills, and other competencies through continuing 
professional development. Audit standards require practicing internal auditors attain, a minimum of 40 
continuing professional education credits every 2 years.  During the past quarter, IA staff have continued to 
stay abreast of industry developments through review of industry literature and participation in on-line 
webinars. Most training is obtained through the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA), the Global Association for 
the Profession of Internal Auditing, and virtual trainings, most of which have been complimentary.  
 
All training hours met the requirements for Continuing Professional Education (CPE) and earned CPE credits. 
These highlighted trainings are in addition to mandatory IEUA Safety Trainings and other Agency training 
related to finance, procurements, etc. During this quarter, the Manager of IA attended an online webinar on 
Data Analytics and Fraud Detection in August 2022.  
 
All members of the IA team participate in the local chapters of the IIA in an officer/board capacity. All members 
of the IA team have various certifications and higher degrees as required by the IIA standards and the Charter. 
 
The Internal Audit Department is staffed as follows: 

• 1 Full-time Manager of Internal Audit 

• 1 Full-time Senior Internal Auditor 

• 1 Senior Internal Auditor (currently assigned through a temp agency) 

• Monday, December 12, 2022 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting  

• Monday, March 6, 2023 – Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

• Monday, June 12, 2023 - Regularly Scheduled Audit Committee Meeting 

Audit News & Trends 

Future Audit Committee Meetings 

Internal Audit Staffing and Professional Development 

https://www.protiviti.com/US-en/insights/newsletter-bp147-top-risks-2022


INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4K 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency, 

a Municipal Water District 

Federal Update 
August 31, 2022 

Inflation Reduction Act Signed into Law
In August, Congress passed and President Biden signed the “Inflation Reduction Act of 
2022.”  The bill: 

• Allows Medicare to negotiate for prescription drug prices and extend the expanded
Affordable Care Act program through 2025.

• Invests approximately $300 billion in Deficit Reduction and $369 billion in energy
security and climate change programs over the next ten years.

• Reduces carbon emissions by roughly 40 percent by 2030.
• Provides $4 billion in drought mitigation and resiliency in western states.

Once the legislation was signed into law, the Biden Administration released state-by-state 
fact sheets on the impact of the law that can be found HERE. 

Interior Announces Action on Colorado River  
The Department of the Interior (DOI) announced actions that will take to protect the long-
term sustainability of the Colorado River system. Prolonged drought conditions in the West 
have resulted in historically low water levels in Lakes Powell and Mead. Additionally, the 
Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) also released the Colorado River Basin August 2022 
24-Month Study.  This study sets annual operations for Lake Powell and Lake Mean in
2023, which can be found HERE. Low projections for next year will trigger a second year of
shortages on the Colorado River system.  As a result, the Lower Basin states (Arizona,
California, and Nevada) will face a Tier 2a shortage; however, California will not see any
reductions in its water use at this time. Both Nevada and Arizona will see their respective
Colorado River allocations. DOI warned that more severe drought conditions could prompt
additional reductions in the future. More information on Colorado River Basin operating
conditions can be found HERE.

Biden Administration Releases Updated BIL State Fact Sheets 
The Biden Administration released updated fact sheets detailing investments through the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) made to date in all 50 states and territories. BIL funding 
is being used nationwide to help with the construction of roads and bridges, replacing 
drinking water infrastructure, expanding access to high-speed internet, upgrading clean 
energy infrastructure, and more. Individual fact sheets for each state can be found HERE. 

https://www.democrats.senate.gov/inflation-reduction-act-of-2022
https://www.democrats.senate.gov/inflation-reduction-act-of-2022
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2022/08/17/state-fact-sheets-how-the-inflation-reduction-act-lowers-energy-costs-create-jobs-and-tackles-climate-change-across-america/
https://www.usbr.gov/lc/region/g4000/24mo/2022/AUG22.pdf
https://www.usbr.gov/ColoradoRiverBasin/
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2022/08/02/white-house-releases-fact-sheets-highlighting-president-bidens-bipartisan-infrastructure-laws-historic-progress-nationwide/


 

2 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

A Look Ahead: Congress Returns to Washington  
After the spending the month of August in their respective districts/states, Members of 
Congress will return to Washington, D.C. after the Labor Day holiday. The September work 
period will represent that last weeks that Congress will be in session until after the 
November election. During September, Congress will need to act related to FY23 
appropriations process. To avoid a government shutdown, Congress will need to pass a 
Continuing Resolution (CR). While the length of the CR has yet to be determined, it is 
anticipated that the CR will run until the December time frame.  In addition to 
appropriations, Congress will need to deal with several other authorizations that expire at 
the end of the month including the National Flood Insurance Program, Temporary Assistance 
for Needy Families, Maternal Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting program.  
 

Federal Funding Opportunities/Announcements 

 
EPA To Hold Webinar on New Pollution Prevention BIL Grant Opportunity. The 
Environmental Protection Agency will be holding a webinar to seek public input on the new 
Pollution Prevention Grant Program that was included in the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law.  
This grant opportunity will encourage products, purchasing, and/or supply chains that are 
safer, more sustainable, and environmentally preferable. More information about the 
webinar can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces WaterSMART Drought Contingency Grants. Reclamation 
announced $865,480 in grant awards for the WaterSMART Drought Contingency Planning 
grants. These funds help entities to develop and update comprehensive drought plans for 
long-term resiliency. More information can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $310 Million in Funding for Title XVI Program. Reclamation 
announced over $310 million in funding for the Title XVI Water Reuse and Recycling 
Program. This award represents the first allocation of Title XVI Bipartisan Infrastructure 
Law funding.  The list of award recipients can be found HERE. 
 
Reclamation Announces $1.2 Million for Applied Sciences Grant. Reclamation 
announced $1.2 million in funding for the Applied Science Grant program. This funding will 
help develop tools and information to support water management. The projects selected 
include the development of modeling and forecasting tools, hydrologic data platforms, and 
new data sets to inform decision-making. More information can be found HERE. 
 

Federal Agency Personnel/Regulatory Announcements 

 
EPA Releases REUSExplorer Tool. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) released 
its Regulations and End-Use Specifications Explorer (REUSExplorer) tool to provide a 
clearinghouse for water reuse regulations. EPA is hosting a webinar to introduce the tool on 
September 21st at 1:00 pm EDT. More information can be found HERE, and the webinar 
registration page can be found HERE. 
 

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.zoomgov.com%2Fwebinar%2Fregister%2FWN_9eyzKmxYQFeHgpDKm7aUiw&data=05%7C01%7Ccpieroni%40ieua.org%7Ce52f85d6bb6f4a571b3908da73e1ad49%7C4c0c1e5730f340489bd2cd58917dcf07%7C1%7C0%7C637949710358191818%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gfFPwMIRZ6BxgqNtqumVd97FyOj0s9sr0WmRZYc4U0I%3D&reserved=0
https://www.usbr.gov/drought/
https://www.doi.gov/pressreleases/president-bidens-bipartisan-infrastructure-law-help-communities-reduce-vulnerability
https://www.usbr.gov/watersmart/appliedscience/
https://www.epa.gov/waterreuse/regulations-and-end-use-specifications-explorer-reusexplorer
https://www.eventbrite.com/e/us-epa-introducing-the-reusexplorer-a-tool-to-explore-water-reuse-regs-tickets-403165517917


 

3 
 

www.carpiclay.com 

EPA Proposes Designating PFOA and PFOS under CERCLA. EPA is proposing to designate 
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) as hazardous 
substances under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability 
Act (CERCLA), also known as “Superfund.” EPA will be publishing the Notice of Proposed 
Rulemaking in the Federal Register, and there will also be a 60-day comment period. More 
information can be found HERE. 
 
NOAA Releases Report on High Tide Flooding. The National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration (NOAA) release a report that predicts that the number of high-tide floods, 
which occur when the tide reaches 1.75 to 2 feet above the daily average high tide, will reach 
a nationwide average of three to seven days by April 2023. By 2050, NOAA predicts that 
average may rise to between 45 and 70 days in a year. The report can be found HERE. 
 
 
 

## ## ## 

https://www.epa.gov/superfund/proposed-designation-perfluorooctanoic-acid-pfoa-and-perfluorooctanesulfonic-acid-pfos
https://tidesandcurrents.noaa.gov/HighTideFlooding_AnnualOutlook.html


INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4L 



September 1, 2022 

 

To:  Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

 

From:  Michael Boccadoro 

   Beth Olhasso 

  Maddie Munson 

   

RE:  August Report 

 

 

Overview: 

Even though Fall is just around the corner, extreme summer heat conditions are gripping most of 

California, with record high temperatures expected over the Labor Day weekend throughout the state.   

Lake Oroville is sitting at 63 percent of historical average and 37 percent capacity.  San Luis 

Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta storage facility for the State Water Project, is at just 73 percent of 

average for this time of the year and 28 percent capacity. Folsom Lake is also declining rapidly.  

 

In early August, the Governor released a “California Water Supply Strategy- adapting to a hotter, drier 

future.” The new “strategy” highlights some specific items that were previously identified in the 2020 

Water Resilience Portfolio for “expedited urgency.” Expedited permitting and increased investment in 

recycled water would be very helpful to IEUA if regulators and legislators are able to execute on those 

ideas. 

 

In the final weeks of the Legislative Session, significant legislation was introduced to increase the 

state’s renewable energy goals, accelerate greenhouse gas reduction goals and ensure energy reliability 

by extending the life of Diablo Canyon Nuclear Generation Station. This package of legislation, while 

having some good measures to keep the lights on in CA, could be very expensive for California 

ratepayers. 

 

The California Fish and Game Commission (CFGC) is considering a proposal to change the size of 

striped bass that anglers can take and it’s causing significant concern in the water community. The 

proposed change would implement what is known as a slot limit, restricting angler harvest to only fish 

between 20 and 30 inches. Water users take issue with increasing striped bass populations because 

striped bass are known to be among the most aggressive predators in the Sacramento-San Joaquin 

Delta and related tributaries. 

 

CalEPA Secretary Jared Blumenfeld’s last day at his post was August 31. Governor Newsom has 

appointed former CalEPA environmental justice executive Amelia Yana Garcia Gonzalez as the 

agency’s next secretary. 

 

The Legislature has officially adjourned the 2021-22 legislative session. It was a fairly busy year with 

more water-related bills this year. ACWA’s legislation to provide for a tax exemption for turf removal 

rebates is on the Governor’s desk. CASA’s bill to require products containing PFAS to register their 

products on a publicly accessible database struggled with significant opposition from manufacturers 

but was able to pass onto the Governor with just enough votes. MWD’s legislation to allow for 

alternative project delivery methods for several of their projects easily passed out of both houses of the 

Legislature, while similar legislation (SB 991, Newman) to allow for progressive design build 

processes for projects over $5 million also awaits consideration by the Governor. The Governor has 

until September 30 to act on all legislation.  



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report – August 2022 

 

 

Water Supply Conditions 

Even though Fall is just around the corner, extreme summer heat conditions are gripping most of 

California, with record high temperatures expected over the Labor Day weekend throughout the state.   

Lake Oroville is sitting at 63 percent of historical average and 37 percent capacity.  San Luis 

Reservoir, the main south-of-Delta storage facility for the State Water Project, is at just 73 percent of 

average for this time of the year and 28 percent capacity.  Drought conditions continue to worsen with  

over 13 percent of the state in exceptional drought and 43 percent in extreme drought.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Governor Releases “California Water Supply Strategy” 

In early August, the Governor released a “California Water Supply Strategy- adapting to a hotter, drier 

future.” The strategy prioritizes the following actions: creating storage space for up to four million 

acre-feet of water; recycling at least 800,000 acre-feet per year by 2030; freeing up 500,000 acre-feet 

of water through “more efficient water use and conservation”; and making new water available by 

capturing stormwater and desalinating ocean water and brackish groundwater. 

 

Most of these actions are very similar to the 2020 Water Resilience Portfolio, but will now be 

“expedited given the urgency of climate-driven changes.” 

 

Additionally, to advance the infrastructure and policies needed to adapt, the strategy “enlists the help 

of the Legislature to streamline processes so projects can be planned, permitted and built more quickly 

while protecting the environment.” 

 

This document shows the administration’s blueprint for the next few years at the SWRCB and in the 

Legislature and offers opportunities to work with the state to support local and regional projects.  

 

Energy Legislation 

Significant renewable energy and greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction legislation was introduced at the 

end of the legislative session that will have an impact on energy rates for California energy ratepayers.  

 

AB 2133 (Quirk): increases the state’s GHG emission reduction target from 40 percent below 1990 

levels by 2030 to 55 percent. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) assessed an “accelerated” 

2030 target and economy wide carbon neutrality and found that accelerated targets would “require a 

pace and magnitude of investments and actions that is likely unachievable.” Additionally, the CA 

Energy Commission (CEC) has estimated that 20-40 percent of clean energy projects are experiencing 

some sort of delay. The bill failed ultimate passage 

 

AB 1279 (Muratsuchi): declares it a policy of the state that as soon as possible, but no later than 

2045, the state shall achieve net zero emissions and maintain negative GHG emissions thereafter. The 

bill also requires an 85 percent reduction in anthropogenic GHG emissions below 1990 levels by 2045. 

The bill passed and is awaiting action by the Governor. 

 

SB 1020 (Laird): established the policy that eligible renewable energy resources and zero-carbon 

resources supply 90 percent of all retail sales of electricity to CA end-use customers by then end of 

2035 and 95 percent by the end of 2040. The bill also requires that eligible renewable energy resources 

and zero-carbon resources supply 100 percent of electricity procured to serve all state agencies by the 

end of 2035, ten years sooner then required by existing law.  

 

These provisions also apply to the State Water Project (SWP). While the bill was recently amended to 

ease the burden on the SWP, this bill is estimated to cost the State Water Contractors $1.2 billion, with 

MWD likely seeing about a $720 million bill.  The bill passed and is awaiting action by the Governor. 

 

SB 846 (Dodd): extends the operation of the Diablo Canyon Nuclear Generation Station (San Luis 

Obispo). Diablo Canyon was planned to shut down at the end of 2025, but with supply chain 

disruptions and other factors, there is significant risk that there will be insufficient new clean energy 

supplies online before the scheduled retirement. The bill declared that Diablo is crucial to energy 

reliability throughout the state, therefore all IOU ratepayers will be on the hook for 50 percent of the 

cost while PG&E ratepayers will be responsible for the remaining half. Because the fee collection is 

volumetric, high-energy users will be responsible for a majority of the reliability costs. The bill was the 



last bill of the session voted on by both houses and passed overwhelmingly. The Governor is expected 

to sign the bill in the next few days.  

 

Striped Bass  

The California Fish and Game Commission (CFGC) is considering a proposal to change the size of 

striped bass that anglers can take and it’s causing significant concern in the water community. The 

proposed change would implement what is known as a slot limit, restricting angler harvest to only fish 

between 20 and 30 inches. The authors of the petition, the Nor-Cal Guides and Sportsmen’s 

Association, argue that this will result in increased populations of striped bass, as protecting larger fish 

will allow them to procreate more effectively.  

 

Water users take issue with increasing striped bass populations because striped bass are known to be 

among the most aggressive predators in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta and related tributaries. 

Numerous studies have shown that striped bass eat high numbers of threatened and listed salmon 

populations protected under the Endangered Species Act. So while water users are going to great 

lengths to protect and increase populations of these threatened and listed species, including through the 

Voluntary Agreements, the CFGC is contemplating protecting their non-native predators.  

 

The CFGC’s Wildlife Resources Committee will discuss the proposal at their September 15 meeting. 

They may then recommend that the full Commission consider the petition. If the proposal continues to 

move forward, it could be several months before the CFGC would vote on the petition.  

 

CalEPA Secretary Blumenfeld Steps Down 

CalEPA Secretary Jared Blumenfeld’s last day at his post was August 31. He plans to serve as the 

inaugural president of the Waverley Street Foundation, a new global climate change nonprofit focused 

on “community-driven climate solutions.”  

 

Governor Newsom has appointed former CalEPA environmental justice executive Amelia Yana Garcia 

Gonzalez as the agency’s next secretary. She has served as a special assistant attorney general, and as 

an attorney for Earthjustice and Communities for a Better Environment. As her bio suggests, it is 

widely believed that Ms. Gonzalez is a strong friend to the environmental justice community and will 

lead the agency with that perspective in mind. 

 

Legislative Update 

The Legislature adjourned the 2021-22 Legislative Session in the early morning hours of September 1. 

The Governor has until September 30 to take action on the hundreds of bills that have been sent to his 

desk for consideration.  

 

Bill updates: 

 

AB 2142 (Gabriel): This bill would provide an income tax exemption for rebates from a turf removal 

program. Sponsored by ACWA, the bill didn’t receive a single no vote throughout the entire process 

and is awaiting action by the Governor. 

 

AB 1845 (Calderon): MWD sponsored bill to allow for alternative project delivery methods for 

specific MWD projects. The bill only received one no vote through the process and is awaiting action 

by the Governor. 

 



SB 991 (Newman): This bill is similar to MWD’s AB 1845 but it would allow for progressive design 

build to be used on any project over $5 million. The bill didn’t receive a single no vote throughout the 

entire process and is awaiting action by the Governor. 

 

AB 2247 (Bloom): CASA sponsored bill would require products sold in CA that contain PFAS to 

register the product on a publicly accessible reporting platform. The bill was recently amended to 

remove some of the enforcement language, which should remove some of the opposition. The bill has 

had a rough road, garnering significant opposition from the manufacturing community. It has received 

just enough votes to move through the process and is now awaiting action by the Governor. 

 

AB 2449 (Rubio): Sponsored by Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s, this legislation addresses 

remote participation for elected officials. The author took amendments in the Senate to address 

concerns from the Senate Governance and Finance and Judiciary Committee concerns surrounding 

misuse of these allowances to not have to face the public during challenging proceedings. The bill now 

limits the number of times an official can use remote testimony and requires that “cameras must be on” 

at all times. The bill has received broad support throughout the process and is awaiting action by the 

Governor. 

 

SB 1157 (Hertzberg): The bill would implement the indoor GPCD targets outlined in the 

DWR/SWRCB draft report to the Legislature for 47 GPCD by 2025 and 42 GPCD by 2030. The bill 

passed out of Natural Resources and Water Committee despite significant concerns from Senator Ben 

Hueso (D-San Diego). The bill was quickly moved to the floor of the Senate where it passed 28-9. The 

author took amendments in the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee that would require 

studying the impacts to wastewater and recycled water systems. The bill was further amended to 

require consideration of variances for recycled water. The bill was seven votes short of passage on the 

Assembly floor on its first vote, but was brought up under “reconsideration” in the final minutes of the 

session and secured the necessary votes for passage. It is now awaiting action by the Governor. 

 

 



IEUA BILLS— BILLS WITH POSITIONS- 2022 Session September 1, 2022 
Bill 

Number 

Author/Sponsor Title and/or 

Summary 

Summary IEUA Position/ Bill 

Location 

Positions Taken by 

Associations & 

Regional Agencies 

AB 

1845 

Calderon 

 

 

 

MWD 

Sponsored 

Metropolitan 

Water District of 

Southern 

California: 

alternative 

project delivery 

methods 

Would authorize the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California to use the design-build procurement process for certain 

regional recycled water projects or other water infrastructure 

projects. The bill would define "design-build" to mean a project 

delivery process in which both the design and construction of a 

project are procured from a single entity. The bill would require 

the district, if using this procurement process, to follow certain 

procedures, including preparing and issuing a request for 

qualifications, preparing a request for proposals including the 

scope and needs of the project or contract, and awarding projects 

based on certain criteria for projects utilizing either lowest 

responsible bidder or best value selection criteria. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

 

 

MWD, ACWA, 

WRCA in 

support 

AB 

2142 

Gabriel Income taxes: 

exclusion: turf 

replacement 

water 

conservation 

program 

This bill would, for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 

2022, and before January 1, 2027, under both of these laws, 

provide an exclusion from gross income for any amount received 

as a rebate, voucher, or other financial incentive issued by a local 

water agency or supplier for participation in a turf replacement 

water conservation program. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

 

 

ACWA, MWD 

in Support 

AB 

2247 

Bloom 

 

CASA 

Sponsored 

PFAS products: 

disclosure: 

publicly 

accessible 

reporting 

platform 

This bill would require the Department of Toxic Substances 

Control to work with the Interstate Chemicals Clearinghouse to 

establish, on or before January 1, 2024, a publicly accessible 

reporting platform to collect information about PFAS and 

products or product components containing regulated PFAS, as 

defined, being sold, offered for sale, distributed, or offered for 

promotional purposes in, or imported into, the state. The bill 

would require, on or before March 1, 2024, and annually 

thereafter, a manufacturer, as defined, of PFAS or a product or a 

product component containing regulated PFAS that is sold, 

offered for sale, distributed, or offered for promotional purposes 

in, or imported into, the state to register the PFAS or the product 

or product component containing regulated PFAS, and specified 

other information, on the publicly accessible reporting platform. 

 

SUPPORT 

 

 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

 

 

CASA, WRCA, 

ACWA in 

support 

AB 

2449 

Rubio 

 

Three Valleys  

Open meetings: 

local agencies: 

teleconferences 

 This bill would authorize a local agency to use teleconferencing 

without complying with those specified teleconferencing 

requirements if at least a quorum of the members of the 

SUPPORT 

 

ACWA & 

MWD Support 



legislative body participates in person from a singular location 

clearly identified on the agenda that is open to the public and 

situated within the local agency’s jurisdiction. The bill would 

impose prescribed requirements for this exception relating to 

notice, agendas, the means and manner of access, and procedures 

for disruptions. The bill would require the legislative body to 

implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 

requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals with 

disabilities, consistent with federal law. 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

AB 

2787 

Quirk Microplastics in 

products 

The Microbeads Nuisance Prevention Law prohibits a person 

from selling or offering for promotional purposes in the state any 

personal care products containing plastic microbeads that are 

used to exfoliate or cleanse in a rinse-off product, including, but 

not limited to, toothpaste. This bill would, on and after specified 

dates that vary based on the product, ban the sale, distribution in 

commerce, or offering for promotional purposes in the state of 

designated products, such as leave-in cosmetics products and 

waxes and polishes, if the products contain intentionally added 

microplastics, as defined. The bill would exclude from this ban 

products consisting, in whole or in part, of specified substances 

or mixtures containing microplastics. The bill would make a 

violator liable for a civil penalty not to exceed $2,500 per day for 

each violation. 

SUPPORT 

 

 

Held in 

Assembly---  

 

NOT MOVING 

FORWARD IN 

2022 

 

 

CASA in support 

AB 

2811 

Bennett 

 

 

Plumbers 

Union 

California 

Building 

Standards 

Commission: 

recycled water: 

nonpotable 

water systems 

Would require, commencing January 1, 2024, all newly 

constructed nonresidential buildings be constructed with dual 

plumbing to allow the use of recycled water for all applicable 

nonpotable water demands, as defined, if that building is located 

within an existing or planned recycled water service area, as 

specified. 

Oppose 

 

Env. Safety & 

Toxic Materials 

Comm--- no 

hearing 

 

Bill not moving 

forward this 

year.  

CASA & WRCA 

oppose unless 

amended. ACWA 

& CMUA 

Oppose 

SB 

222 

Sen. Dodd Water 

Affordability 

Assistance 

Program 

Would establish the Water Affordability Assistance Fund in the 

State Treasury to help provide water affordability assistance, for 

both drinking water and wastewater services, to low-income 

ratepayers and ratepayers experiencing economic hardship in 

California. The bill would make moneys in the fund available 

 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

Opposed by 

ACWA 



upon appropriation by the Legislature to the state board to 

provide, as part of the Water Affordability Assistance Program 

established by the bill, direct water bill assistance, water bill 

credits, water crisis assistance, affordability assistance, and short-

term assistance to public water systems to administer program 

components. 

SB 

230 

Portantino/ 

CMUA & 

MWD 

State Water 

Resources 

Control Board: 

Constituents of 

Emerging 

Concern 

Would require the State Water Resources Control Board to 

establish, maintain, and direct an ongoing, dedicated program 

called the Constituents of Emerging Concern Program to assess 

the state of information and recommend areas for further study 

on, among other things, the occurrence of constituents of 

emerging concern (CEC) in drinking water sources and treated 

drinking water. The bill would require the state board to convene, 

by an unspecified date, the Science Advisory Panel to review and 

provide recommendations to the state board on CEC for further 

action, among other duties. The bill would require the state board 

to provide an annual report to the Legislature on the ongoing 

work conducted by the panel. 

SUPPORT 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Favor by 

ACWA 

SB 

991 

Newman 

 

 

Water 

Collaborative 

Delivery 

Association 

(formerly the 

Water 

Design-Build 

Council) 

Public contracts: 

progressive 

design-build: 

local agencies 

Current law, until January 1, 2025, authorizes local agencies, as 

defined, to use the design-build procurement process for specified 

public works with prescribed cost thresholds. Current law 

requires specified information submitted by a design-build entity 

in the design-build procurement process to be certified under 

penalty of perjury. This bill, until January 1, 2033, authorizes 

local agencies, defined as any city, county, city and county, or 

special district authorized by law to provide for the production, 

storage, supply, treatment, or distribution of any water from any 

source, to use the progressive design-build process for public 

works projects in excess of $5,000,000, similar to the progressive 

design-build process authorized for use by the Director of 

General Services. The bill would require specified information to 

be verified under penalty of perjury. 

SUPPORT 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk  

WRCA Support 

SB 

1157 

Hertzberg Urban water use 

objectives: 

indoor 

residential water 

use 

Current law requires the Department of Water Resources, in 

coordination with the State Water Resources Control Board, and 

including collaboration with and input from stakeholders, to 

conduct necessary studies and investigations and authorizes the 

department and the board to jointly recommend to the Legislature 

a standard for indoor residential water use. Current law, until 

 

On Governor’s 

Desk 

 

 

 

Oppose unless 

amended by 

WateReuse & 

ACWA, CASA 

& CMUA 



January 1, 2025, establishes 55 gallons per capita daily as the 

standard for indoor residential water use. Existing law 

establishes, beginning January 1, 2025, the greater of 52.5 gallons 

per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department 

and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use, and 

beginning January 1, 2030, establishes the greater of 50 gallons 

per capita daily or a standard recommended by the department 

and the board as the standard for indoor residential water use. 

This bill would eliminate the option of using the greater of 52.5 

gallons per capita daily and the greater of 50 gallons per capita 

daily, as applicable, or a standard recommended by the 

department and the board as the standard for indoor residential 

water use. 

 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4M  



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Public Outreach and Communication

IEUA received the CAPIO (California Association of Public Information Officials) 2022
Excellence in Public Information & Communications Epic Award for the Agency’s FY 19/20
Annual Report.

Staff has been working with the Chino Basin Program (CBP) team leads and partners to develop
an outreach strategy for additional program communication, including developing a
communication workgroup, identifying collaboration and partnership opportunities on shared
media, and more.

Staff recognized Water Quality Month on Agency social media channels with features on IEUA
staff, services, and initiatives that highlight the Agency’s dedication to ensuring a high-water
quality for the region.

Staff sent out a brief communication needs survey for Customer Agencies and are using the
results to gauge how the Agency can best support their respective outreach efforts.

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

09/14/22Community & Legislative Affairs

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting
sustainable water use throughout the region.

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the
preservation of the region's heritage.

N/A

Attachment 1 - Background

Not Applicable

22210



        Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 

Background 
Subject:  Public Outreach and Communication 
  
 
September 

 September, National Preparedness Month 
 September 5, Labor Day 
 September 11, Patriot Day 
 September 15, National Online Learning Day 
 September 18, World Water Monitoring Day 
 September 19-25, Pollution Prevention Week 
 September 20, IT Professionals Day 
 September 22, First Day of Fall 
 September 25, World Rivers Day 
 September 26, World Environmental Health Day 
 September 26-30, Finance and Acct. Appreciation Week 

 
Media and Outreach 

General 
 IEUA received the CAPIO (California Association of Public Information Officials) 2022 

Excellence in Public Information & Communications Epic Award for the Agency’s FY 
19/20 Annual Report. 

 Staff has been working with the Chino Basin Program (CBP) team leads and partners to 
develop an outreach strategy for additional program communication, including 
developing a communication workgroup, identifying collaboration and partnership 
opportunities on shared media, and more. 

 Staff recognized Water Quality Month on Agency social media channels with features on 
IEUA staff, services, and initiatives that highlight the Agency’s dedication to ensuring a 
high-water quality for the region.  

 In honor of World Water Week, staff published a three-part series of posts and stories on 
social media focused on understanding the value of water in accordance with this year’s 
World Water Week theme.  

 Staff continues to collaborate with Chino Basin Water Conservation District on outreach 
promoting their Waterwise Garden and Pumpkin Fest on October 1. IEUA will be hosting 
a booth at this event. 

 On August 31, staff coordinated with Human Resources to lead a nature walk through the 
Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park for employees in honor of Wellness Month. 

Drought Awareness Efforts 
 Staff sent out a brief communication needs survey for Customer Agencies and are using 

the results to gauge how the Agency can best support their respective outreach efforts. 
Customer Agencies shared their interest in communication support and collateral 
assistance for non-functional turf messaging. 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 Staff is coordinating with Customer Agencies on messaging geared towards conservation 
and the irrigation of trees. 

 Staff published a Time is Now reel on August 2 and has received over 1,000 views. 
 Staff is continuing to work with Customer Agencies on drought messaging and outreach. 

Staff is drafting message points and creative for outreach and will be adding these assets 
to the drought communication toolkit for customer agencies. 

Advertising/Marketing  
 A “Time is Now”/Education ad ran on August 3 and 10 in La Opinion.  
 A “Time is Now”/Education ad ran on August 7 in the Daily Bulletin.  
 A “Time is Now”/Education ad ran on August 13 in the Chino Champion.  
 A “Time is Now”/Education spadea ran on August 28 in the Daily Bulletin.  
 A “Time is Now”/Education ad will run in the September issue of the Inland Empire 

Magazine.  
 

Social Outreach and Analytics 
 The Agency continues to publish content on LinkedIn and has gained five followers since 

July, with 641 page views in the last 30 days.  
 August: 42 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, 42 tweets were sent on the 

@IEUAWater Twitter handle, 42 posts were published to IEUA’s Instagram grid, and 29 
posts were published to the IEUA LinkedIn page. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
August were:  
 8/5 CBP Joint News Release 
 8/11 IEUA Board Member Jasmin A. Hall Presides Over Last Meeting as 

California Association of Sanitation Agencies President 
 8/19 Water Quality Month Staff Feature 

o The top three Twitter tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of  
August were: 
 8/23 Cucamonga Valley Water District, IEUA, and Congresswoman 

Norma Torres Tour 
 8/23 World Water Week  
 8/3 Water Word Wednesday 

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
August were: 
 8/4 Water Quality Month Staff Feature 
 8/10 Waterwise Garden and Pumpkin Festival Promo 
 8/8 The Time is Now- Know the Facts 

o The top three LinkedIn posts, based on impressions and reactions, in the month of 
August were: 
 8/19 CBP Expo 
 8/15 Metropolitan Water District General Manager Adel Hagekhalil at 

BIA Conference  
 8/1 CBP Program Manager Opportunity  

 For the month of August, there were 8,713 searches for a park in IEUA’s service area on 
Yelp and the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park was viewed 502 times.  

 
Education and Outreach Updates 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 Staff has begun scheduling in-person and virtual K-12 field trips for Fall.  
 Staff has developed an educational program outreach plan and is beginning the process of 

scheduling another road show for school districts to learn about Agency programs. 
 Staff is working on closing out the last year of the Garden in Every School® program.  

o Randall Pepper Elementary in Fontana is finishing up the final electrical work in 
preparation for construction to begin on their garden. Chino Basin Water 
Conservation District (CBWCD) will be completing the construction. 

o Our Loving Savior’s gardens construction is completed. The planting will be 
completed following the installation of bunny fencing.  

o Staff is working with teachers on finalizing approximately nine mini grant 
approvals. 

 
 Agency-Wide Membership Updates 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the Southern California 
Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Joint Air/Energy/ Biosolids 
Committee Meeting on July 14. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Advanced Clean Vehicle Subgroup Meeting 
on July 18. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Toxics Subgroup Meeting on July 18. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the Southern California 
Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Air Quality Committee Meeting 
on July 19. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Biosolids Regulatory Workgroup Meeting 
on July 21. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Water Regulatory Workgroup Meeting on 
July 21. 

 Richard Lao, Senior Environmental Resources Planner, attended the California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Air Quality, Climate Change, & Energy 
(ACE) Workgroup Meeting on July 28. 



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4N 



Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge 
Update

Andy Campbell, PG, CHG
Groundwater Recharge Supervisor

September 2022



2

Annual Recharge Monthly Accumulation

Recycled WaterStormwater



3

Groundwater Recharge Deliveries
Past 12 Months

R – Record Monthly RW Recharge in
Sept. 2021, January, February, May and July 2022

R
R R

R
R



4

Groundwater Recharge 10-Year History



55

Recycled Water (RW) Deliveries

Direct 
Use 

Through
May



6

Summer 2022 RP-3 Maintenance

July 13



7

• Fall Maintenance Activities (Preparing for Winter Rains)
—CalFire Crew Trash Pickup
—Graffiti Abatement
—Staff Gauge Repairs
—Gopher/Squirrel Hole Abatement

Upcoming Recharge Site Maintenance



88

Record-Setting RW GWR Team

Fiscal Year Delivered for Recharge

2019/20 16,252.8 AF

2021/22 17,054.4 AF



INFORMATIN 
ITEM 

4O 



RP-5 Expansion Project Update: 
September 2022

Project Nos. EN19001 and EN19006

Brian Wilson, Principal Engineer 

Vicky Salazar, Senior Associate Engineer

September 2022



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Jul 2020 ‐ Jan 2025 Construction

Jan 12 ‐ Jun 21 Aeration Basin #4 & Blower Bldg

Jan 25 ‐ Nov 7 MBR Phase1 

Dec 14 ‐ Jul 25 MBR Phase 2

Jan 4 ‐ Sep 23 Digesters

Feb 15 ‐ Aug 16 Thickening

Jan 18 ‐ Aug 24 Dewatering

Jul 1 ‐ Jun 14 Aeration Basin #3

Construction Award

Jul 15

Biosolids Milestone

Jan 11

Project Completion

Jan 10

Day 777 of 1640 = 47%

Data date: 8/31/22

RP-5: Project Status

2

Role Firm Contract
This Month’s 

Payment
Total Paid % Complete

Contractor WM Lyles $334,516,307 $6,783,899 $165,271,248 49%

Designer Parsons $33,670,711 $281,062 $31,155,943 93%

Construction 
Management

Arcadis $21,125,523 $339,214 $9,160,702 43%



3

RP-5: Project Status Changes

Amount Quantity

Original Contract $329,982,900

Change Order (CO) $ 4,533,407 161

Request For Deviation (RFD) $ 2,696,610 137

Changes Total (CO+RFD) $7,230,017 298

% Change of Contract 2.19%

% of Contingency Used 21.9%

Change Type
Amount
$ Millions

% Of 
Changes

Design Errors & Omissions $ 3.3 45%

District Requested $2.6 36%

Differing Site Conditions $ 2.1 29%

Contractor Requested $ -0.8 -10%



Parsons Contract Amendment 

• RP-5 Expansion Engineering 
Services During Construction

• Design changes
• CO/RFD/RFI support
• Value engineering support
• Start-up and training support

• Mountain Ave., RP-2, and 
Butterfield Ranch Lift Stations

• Finalize designs
• Bid services
• Engineering Services During 

Construction (ESDC)

4



5

RP-5: Major Activity Areas 

Construction Staff
• WML Craft: 162
• WML Project: 40
• IEUA & CM: 15
• Total: 217



6

RP-5: Major Activities

Influent Pump Station



7

RP-5: Major Activities

Headwork Influent Box Expansion



8

RP-5: Major Activities

Fine Screens



9

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Clarifiers



10

RP-5: Major Activities

Primary Effluent Pipeline



11

RP-5: Major Activities

MBR Phase 1



12

RP-5: Major Activities

Thickening Building



13

RP-5: Major Activities

Acid Phase Digester Building



14

RP-5: Major Activities

Gas Phase Digester Building



15

RP-5: Major Activities

Dewatering Building



16

RP-5: Major Activities

Solids South Timelapse



Questions?



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4P 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Fiscal Year 2021/22 Fourth Quarter Budget Variance, Performance Updates, and
Budget Transfers

The budget variance report presents the Agency's financial performance through the fourth
quarter ended June 30, 2022 and various analyses are provided in the attachments.

The Agency's total revenues and other funding sources were $305.8 million, or 103.5 percent of
the fiscal year to date amended budget of $295.5 million.

The Agency's total expenses and other uses of funds were $323.8 million, or 69.0 percent of the
fiscal year to date amended budget of $469.5 million. Lower than budgeted administrative and
operating expenses and timing of capital project execution account for the favorable variance.

The net change of the unaudited total revenues and other funding sources over the total expenses
and other uses of funds for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 is an estimated decrease of $18.0
million.

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2021/22 fourth quarter budget variance, performance goal updates, and
budget transfers is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.

The net change of the total revenues and other funding sources over total expenses and other
uses of funds is a decrease of $18.0 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2022.

09/14/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The quarterly budget variance report is consistent with the Agency's business goal of fiscal
responsibility to demonstrate the Agency has appropriately funded operational, maintenance,
and capital costs.

On June 15, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Third Quarter Budget
Variance, Performance Goal Updates, and Budget Transfers.

Attachment 1 - Background
Exhibit A - Q4 Budget Variance Summary and Detail Report
Exhibit B - Business Goals Status Updates by Department
Exhibit C-1 - Summary of Annual Budget Transfers through the Fourth Quarter
Exhibit C-2 - Summary of the GM Contingency Account Activity
Exhibit D - Project Budget Transfers for Capital and Non-Capital Projects

Attachment 2 - Power Point

Not Applicable

22214



User Charges

Recycled Water Sales 

MWD Water Sales 

Connection Fees

Property Taxes 



Grants & Loans

Cost Reimbursements 

Employment – 

Office and Administration –



Professional Fees & Services – 

O&M (Non-capital) and Reimbursable Projects

Operating Fees

MWD Water Purchases 

Utilities 

Capital Projects – 

Financial Expenses - 



                   +/- difference due to rounding 

Intra-fund O&M 



General Manager (GM) Contingency Account

Inter-fund Capital and O&M project



OPERATING REVENUES

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

ADMINISTRATIVE and OPERATING EXPENSES

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2021/22



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Fiscal Year 2021/22

and OPERATING EXPENSES

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

Totals may not add up due to rounding



I.  Actual vs. Budget Summary:

Quarter Ended June 30, 2022

 % of the Year       
Elapsed:100% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 
 (YTD)

Actual 
 (YTD)

Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues $168,838,846 $168,838,846 $167,367,807 ($1,471,039) 99.1%

Non-Operating (Other Sources of Fund) 126,665,339 126,665,339 138,420,710 11,755,371 109.3%

TOTAL FUNDING SOURCES 295,504,185 295,504,185 305,788,517 10,284,332 103.5%

Administrative & Operating Expense (190,172,575) (190,172,575) (158,246,725) 31,925,850 83.2%

Capital Improvement Project Expense (259,410,885) (259,410,885) (145,646,152) 113,764,733 56.1%

Debt Service and All Other Expenses (19,943,835) (19,943,835) (19,865,643) 78,192 99.6%

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS (469,527,295) (469,527,295) (323,758,520) 145,768,775 69.0%

Surplus/(Deficit) ($174,023,110) ($174,023,110) ($17,970,003) $156,053,107 

Actual vs. Budget YTD
For the Quarter

Ended June 30, 2022



2. Actual Revenue vs. Budget:

Quarter Ended June 30, 2022
 % of the Year       
Elapsed:100% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 
 (YTD)

Actual 
 (YTD)

Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Revenues:

  User Charges $93,769,323 $93,769,323 $96,457,000 $2,687,677 102.9%

17,290,000 17,290,000 18,617,864 $1,327,864 107.7%

  MWD Water Sales 47,412,000 47,412,000 44,322,470 ($3,089,530) 93.5%

  Cost Reimbursement 6,987,687 6,987,687 5,697,779 ($1,289,908) 81.5%

  Interest 3,379,836 3,379,836 2,272,694 ($1,107,142) 67.2%

168,838,846 168,838,846 167,367,807 (1,471,039) 99.1%

Non-Operating Revenues:

  Property Tax - Debt,  Capital, Reserves $57,486,000 $57,486,000 $71,584,856 $14,098,856 124.5%

  Connection Fees 37,913,139 37,913,139 41,888,541 $3,975,402 110.5%

  Grants & Loans 29,618,503 29,618,503 22,730,913 ($6,887,590) 76.7%

  Other Revenue 1,647,697 1,647,697 2,216,399 $568,702 134.5%

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 126,665,339 126,665,339 138,420,709 11,755,370 109.3%

Total Revenues $295,504,185 $295,504,185 $305,788,516 $10,284,331 103.5%

User Charges, 102.9%

Property Tax/ 
AdValorem, 124.5%

Recycled Water Sales, 
107.7%

Interest Income, 67.2%

MWD Water Sales, 93.5%

Connection Fees, 110.5%

Grants and Loans, 76.7%

  Recycled Water Sales

OPERATING REVENUES

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) sale of pass-through imported water was $44.3 million or 93.5 percent of the  
budget. Imported water deliveries were 43,001 AF compared to the annual budgeted quantity of 60,000 AF. Additional Dry Year Yield Conjunctive 
Use totaled 22,929 AF.  The variance can be attributed to the drought conditions and the imposed mandatory water restrictions set by MWD to 
conserve water.
Total connection fee receipts of $41.9 million or 110.5 percent of the budget. Receipts include $33.1 million for new regional wastewater system 
connections and $8.8 million for new water connections. The number of new wastewater connections reported for through June were 4,539 
equivalent dwellings unit (EDU) compared to the annual budget of 4,000. The total number of new water connections were 4,972 meter 
equivalent dwelling units (MEU) compared to the budgeted 4,700.

Grant and loan invoiced through the end of fiscal year totaled $22.7 million. Grant invoiced included $6.5 million for the Chino Basin Program and 
other Water Conservation grant, $4.0 million invoiced for the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) and other projects in the Recharge Water 
program, and $0.1 milion for the Plume clean-up, Covid Relief grant, and recycled water projects. SRF loan invoiced included $12.1 million for 
the RP-5 Expansion Construction Project. Grant and loan invoiced are primarily reimbursable in nature and as such are dependent upon related 
capital project expenditures.  Annual budgeted grants of $15.5 million include $9.5 million for Recharge Wastewater Operations fund, $0.2 
million for various water conservation and drought relief projects in the Water Resources fund.  State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan proceeds annual 
budget of $8.0 million are for Recharge Master Plan Update projects in the Recharge Water Fund.

Total user charges were $96.5 million, or 102.9 percent of the budget. The category includes monthly sewer charges based on equivalent 
dwelling units (EDU) of $75.7 million, $12.5 million non-reclaimable wastewater fees paid by industrial and commercial users connected to the 
brine line system, and $8.3 million of monthly meter equivalent unit charges (MEU) imposed on all potable water connections, and Readiness-to-
Serve passthrough charges to meet our Readiness-to-Serve obligation to Metropolitan Water District (MWD).

Property tax receipts through the end of fiscal year totaled $71.6 million. General ad-valorem property tax receipts from the San Bernardino 
County Tax Assessor were $44.2 million and former redevelopment agencies (RDA) pass through tax receipts were $27.4 million through June. San 
Bernardino County has maintained a steady increase in property valuations reflecting increased sale transactions and continued market value 
increases in residential and various commercial markets.

Total Recycled water direct sales were $9.7 million for 18,853 acre feet (AF) and groundwater recharge sales were $8.9 million for 17,055 acre 
feet (AF), for a combined total of $18.6 million and 35,908 AF. Total deliveries of 32,000 AF (17,000 AF Direct and 15,000 AF Recharge) were 
budgeted for the  fiscal year.  Demand for direct use and groundwater recharge varies depending on weather patterns, water use conservation 
efforts, reuse supply, and basin availability.

Interest Income was $2.3 million or 67.2 percent through the end of fiscal year.  The Agency earns interest income by investing funds not 
immediately required for daily operations. The Agency's average portfolio yield for June 2022 was 1.027%. The budgeted interest rate assumption 
for FY 2021/22 is 1.75% based on the Agency's overall fund balance which is higher than that of the agency's investment portfolio.



Cost Reimbursements 
JPA, 81.5%

Other Revenues, 134.5%

3. Actual Operating and Capital Expense vs. Budget:

 % of the Year       
Elapsed:100% 

 Amended Budget
Budget 
 (YTD)

Actual 
 (YTD)

Budget YTD 
vs. Actual

 % of Budget
 Used YTD

Operating Expenses:

  Employment $63,225,829 $63,225,828 $55,618,626 $7,607,202 88.0%

  Admin & Operating 79,534,746 79,534,747 58,305,629 $21,229,118 73.3%

  MWD Water Purchases 47,412,000 47,412,000 44,322,470 $3,089,530 93.5%

OPERATING EXPENSES $190,172,575 $190,172,575 $158,246,725 $31,925,850 83.2%

  Capital 259,410,885 259,410,885 145,646,152 $113,764,732 56.1%

  Debt Service and All Other Expenses 19,943,835 19,943,835 19,865,642 $78,193 99.6%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES $279,354,720 $279,354,720 $165,511,794 $113,842,925 59.2%

     Total Expenses $469,527,295 $469,527,295 $323,758,519 $145,768,775 69.0%

Total other revenues and project reimbursements were $2.2 million, or 134.5 percent of the  budget. Actual receipts include of $0.4 million from 
Chino Basin Waster Master(CBWM) for their share of the 2020A bond debt service and fixed project costs, $0.6 million for Non-Reclaimable 
Wastewater leased capacity units, $0.4 gain on investments, and $0.8 million of other fees and miscellaneous reimbursements.

Expenses through the of the fourth quarter were $3.3 million or 81.8 percent of the budget. The favorable variance was primarily due to staff's 
effort to monitor operational equipment usage to ensure maximum use from supplies, replacement parts, and consumables used by treatment 
plants.

Employment expenses were $55.6 million or 88.0 percent of the budget.  At the end of the fourth quarter, total filled regular positions were 268 
and 11 limited term positions compared to the 319 authorized positions (302 FTE and 17 LT positions). Current recruitment efforts to fill key 
positions have resulted in increased internal promotional opportunities for staff creating  vacancies for the positions they have left behind. 
Continued recruitment of key positions from Agency’s succession plan is expected to net a lower vacancy factor going forward. The budget 
includes $7.5 million of payment towards unfunded retirement liabilities with actuals of $4.9 million through June.

Total expenses were $8.6 million, or 56.3 percent of the budget. The variance is primarily due to continued deferral of non-critical contract 
labor and materials. As public health restrictions remained in effect for the majority of the fiscal year, contractor and consultant support 
budgets were not utilized as planned for operational response plans, energy storage projects, air quality source testing, repairs, and calibration 
of critical compliance equipment.  

Total expenses through the end of fiscal year were $1.2 million or 49.0 percent of the budget. The favorable variance is due to the  impacts of 
COVID 19 restrictions, remote work environment, not fully utilizing office supplies, and less travel for training, seminars and and conferences. 
Also contributing the variance is the inclusion of $250 thousand of GM contingency budget that serves as a funding source for unexpected 
operating expense, and was unutilized in FY 2021/22.

Professional Fees & Services, 56.3%

Materials & Supplies/Leases/Contribution, 81.8%

Total Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) pass-through imported water purchased was $44.3 million or 93.5 percent of the  
budget. Imported water deliveries were 43,001 AF compared to the annual budgeted quantity of 60,000 AF.   Additional Dry Year Yield 
Conjunctive Use totaled 22,929 AF. The variance can be attributed to the drought conditions and the imposed mandatory water restrictions set 
by MWD to conserve water.

Chemicals, 90%

Non-Operating Expenses:

Total cost reimbursements of $5.7 million or 81.5 percent of the  budget were received through the end of fiscal year.  Actuals include 
reimbursements of $3.3 million from the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) and $1.3 million from Chino Basin Desalter 
Authority CDA) for the Agency's operation & maintenance of the IERCA Composter and CDA Desalter facilities respectively. Also included is $1.1 
million for operations & maintenance costs related to the groundwater recharge basins, net of the Agency's pro-rata share for the recycled water 
recharge costs. 

Employment, 88%Employment Expenses 
net of allocation to 
projects

Chemical expenses were $6.4 million, or 90.0 percent of the  budget. Chemicals are essential in meeting regulatory requirements, treatment 
process performance goals, and sustainment of high quality recycled water. The positive variance is due in part to continued tertiary process 
improvements at RP-4 and operations has been diligent in chemical usage.

Administrative & 
Operating Expenses

Office and Administrative, 49%

Biosolids expenses through the end of the fourth quarter were $5.0 million or 100.8 percent of the budget. Total shipped to IERCA was 68,018 
tons with a hauling rate of $58 per ton. The biosolids budget includes costs for hauling and disposal of biosolids and non-biological materials.  
Tonnage of the Agency's biosolids generated from all its water recycling facilities. 

MWD Water Purchases, 93.5%

Biosolids Recycling, 100.8%



Financial Expenses

Other Expenses

Capital Expenses

Total expenses were $10.5 million or 81.1 percent of the  budget. A major part of this category are the "pass-through" fees  from Los Angeles 
County Sanitation District (LACSD) and Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) for the Agency's non-reclaimable wastewater system 
(NRWS).

Other Expenses, 182.3%

Financial Expense, 97.5%
Total financial expenses were $19.0 million or 97.5 percent through the end of the fiscal year. Actual costs include $12.0 million of principal
payments for the 2017A Revenue bonds, 2020A Revenue Bonds and State Revolving Fund loans. Total interest and financial administration fees
were $7.0 million. 

The combined O&M and reimbursable project costs were $10.0 million or 52.9 percent of the combined budget. The favorable budget is mainly
due to lower spending for conservation projects, emergency, and other miscellaneous on call projects. Project scope changes, timeline
extensions, and field coordination delays also contributed to the positive variance.

Operating Fees, 81.1%

Total utilities expenses were $11.6 million or 92.7 percent of the  budget. This category includes the purchase of electricity from Southern 
California Edison (SCE), natural gas, and purchase of renewable energy generated on site from solar and wind.  Through the end of fiscal year, 
the average rate for imported electricity ranged between $0.147/kWh - $0.170/kWh compared to the budgeted rate of $0.140/kWh.  Partially 
offset with lower production of solar energy and lower consumption of natural gas compared to budget.

Utilities, 92.7%

O&M and Reimbursable Projects, 51.7% and 70.6%

Total other expenses were $0.9 million or 182.3 percent of the budget. The category expense includes the annual contribution-in-aid to the
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority, reimbursement for Power/O&M costs associated with the Dry Year Yield (DYY) program, and other
miscellaneous expense. 

Total capital project expenditures  were $145.6 million or 56.1 percent of the  budget. The favorable variance can be attributed to operational 
constraints while taking equipment out of service for condition assessments, design and construction delays to utility conflicts, and equipment 
procurement delays.  Capital project budget related to the Regional Wastewater program was $220.4 million, or 84 percent of the $264.0 million 
of the annual project budget. 

Capital Costs, 56.1%



Capital Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN19006 105,001,185              57,561,025                54.8%

EN19001 72,126,460                47,916,797                66.4%

EN23002 14,968,720                337,398                     2.3%

EN22044 12,000,000                2,121,103                  17.7%

RW15003 9,045,777                  8,151,306                  90.1%

O&M & Reimbursable Projects Annual Budget Actual YTD  % of Budget
 Used YTD

EN19024 2,271,384                  2,209,757                  97.3%

PA17006 2,497,175                  1,918,914                  76.8%

EN16021 506,342                     524,242                     103.5%

EN19023 500,000                     220,241                     44.0%

Per the approved 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU), IEUA and CBWM agreed to implement the seven (7)
recommended new projects which have been selected by the RMPU Steering Committee to enhance stormwater yield for nine (9) groundwater
recharge basins. The basins considered for yield enhancement are: SCI, Wineville, Jurupa, RP3, Victoria, Turner, Ely, and Montclair basins. The
Victoria basin is fully completed. Wineville, Jurupa, and RP3 improvements are in construction with a scheduled completion of December 2023,
and Montclair is scheduled for construction bid in December 2022 and construction completion of December 2023.

Agency-Wide Aeration
Replacement of aeration panels for each aeration basins/trains at the RP1, RP4, CCWRF, and RP5.
Construction is complete. Construction bids came in lower than anticipated and only a few small outstanding costs associated with closeout
should be yet to actualized. The remaining funds on the project will be available to continue to support improvements in the Aeration Basins at
all of our treatment facilities.

Philadelphia Lift Station
Replace the force mains, as well as provide inspection manholes for future condition assessment on the entire length along Philadelphia. The
proposed pipeline alignment has been coordinated with the City of Ontario and is pending final approval from the City to finish the final design.
Construction to begin sometime in the next quarter.

RP-1 Thickening Building
The project is currently completing the 30% Design phase. Design activities are anticipated to run through June 2023, with construction
beginning in late 2023 or early 2024. Project expenditures through then will be largely limited to professional fees associated with design and
review activities.  The major exception will be the purchase of a sludge thickening unit.

Recharge Master Plan

The Project will be a remedial solution to the South Archibald TCE plume by strengthen CDA's groundwater supply infrastructure to capture and
treat the contamination. Design and construction of the project are completed. IEUA and CDA are currently coordinating on the next steps to
meet ongoing progress reports for Prop 68 & Prop 1 funding. Also, IEUA and CDA are evaluating the need of additional monitoring wells. IEUA is
working with West Yost to perform a particle analysis to model groundwater flows to determine the need of constructing additional monitoring
wells. This task is scheduled to be completed by March 2024.

RP-5 Solids Handling Facility
Design of the offsite pump stations and Radio Tower is ongoing. May 2022 received AQMD permit to construct. Completed all digester walls and
three of the five roofs. Thickening Building second floor walls to roof 70% complete. Dewatering Building completed concrete columns and
mezzanine level, started installation of block walls.

RP-5 Expansion to 31 mgd
Design of the offsite pump stations and Radio Tower is ongoing. May 2022 received AQMD permit to construct. Influent Pump Station walls
completed and completed deck slab. Membrane Bioreactor Phase 1 concrete structure complete. Poured foundation for Power Center 5. Power
Center 4, 6, and 9 structures complete, installing electrical equipment installation and interior building systems. Started the Title 22 Engineering
Report for the permit changes based on the Membrane Bioreactor system.

TCE Plume Cleanup

The project when complete in December 2022  will provide IEUA with an optimized asset management plan for managing future cleaning, 
inspection, and sewer repairs of the Regional System. CDM Smith and its sub-contractor, Northwest Pipe Service, are finalizing their condition 
assessment of IEUA’s siphon systems for the Regional Sewer System. The field work is being extended to September 2022 to address additional 
efforts in bypassing flows, implementing extensive traffic control requirements, and removing larger volumes of debris within the pipeline. 

 Summary of major capital and non-capital project expenses and status as of June 30, 2022

Asset Management Plan
Scope of work for the Strategic Asset Management (SAMP) and Condition Assessment Master Plan (CAMP) experieced delays from the consultant
(GHD) due to staff turnover. The lead project manager left the consulting firm and IEUA had to work with a new lead project manager resulting
in delays that led to low budget utilization.  Scope of work was submitted to IEUA project team and currently in procurement process to bring the 
project back on schedule.













































Exhibit C-1

Fund Fund Name Date
Cost 

Center
GL 

Account Expense Category
Amt Transfer 

Out
Cost 

Center
GL 

Account Expense Category
Amount 

Transfer In Description QTR
511120 $200 511120 $200
511220 $150 511220 $150
512010 $3,000 512010 $3,000
512350 $300 512350 $300
513010 $1,000 513010 $1,000
514020 $100 514020 $100
516010 $600 516010 $600

511220 $250

511230 $5,832

511240 $1,452

511250 $3,704

511290 $979

521010 $125,000

521050 $125,000

Total O&M Transfers 
Out $549,750

Total O&M Transfers 
In $549,750

Professional Fees & 
Services

$45,000 118100 521410 Professional Fees & 
Services $45,000

10200 Administrative Services

10600 Recycled Water

6/8/2022

4/19/2022 803110 511120 Office & Administration $25,000 141151 512170 Materials & Supplies $25,000

The transfer is to provide additional funds to the RP-1 Plant 
Maintenance Recycled Water fund to purchase needed parts 

and supplies for the Recycled Water 1630 East Pump 
Station.

5/24/2022 803110 511120

$35,000 116100 512110 Materials & Supplies $35,000

136100 Office & Administration 136100

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Inter-Departmental / Division Transfers FY 2021/22

Budget Transfer

TRANSFER FROM TRANSFER TO

110100 Office & Administration
Transferring FY 21/22 budget to new cost center Board of 
Directors #110100 from Agency Management #112100 as 

requested by Finance due to the new org structure.
44/6/2022 112100 Office & Administration

1461005/5/2022 521080 Professional Fees & 
Services

5/31/2022 141151 530039

Office & Administration

Chemicals

5/24/2022 144155 Professional Fees & 
Services

6/27/2022 156110 519120 Office & Administration

$5,800 141151 521050 Professional Fees & 
Services $5,800

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

$30,000 Transfer funds from Chemicals to Materials & Supplies.

Transfer for the renewal of 65 DocuSign Licenses for Agency 
Use.  The additional purchase of licenses in the previous 18 
months was not reflected in the two year budget process for 

renewal.  This renewal will be for a one year period.

The transfer is to provide additional funds to the RP-1 Plant 
Maintenance Recycled Water fund to purchase needed 

supplies for the Recycled Water 1630 East Pump Station.

$12,216 Consolidating all the travel account budgets into the 
professional services account.

Transfer of funds to accommodate additional expenses due 
to an increase in support tickets and materials for onsite staff 

increase. In addition, requests due to COVID-related 
materials.

$30,000 141151 512170 Materials & Supplies

520980

4

10800 Regional Wastewater O&M

127100 530028 Chemicals $141,384 Transfer funds to Chemicals to reclass polymer costs incurred 
for the RP-5 Expansion project.8/1/2022 127100 520920 Professional Fees & 

Services $141,384

141151 512170 Materials & Supplies $250,000 The transfer will provide additional funds to purchase needed 
parts and supplies.



Exhibit C-2

Date From Expense Account Amount 
Transfer Out

Receiver Fund 
Name

Receiver Fund 
Center Name

Receiver 
Project / 
Expense 
Account

Receiver Project / 
Expense Account 

Name

Amount 
Transfer In Balance Justification

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2021 $250,000

No Activity

Balance, June 30, 2022 $250,000

Administrative Services program $250,000
Recharge Water program -                 
Non-Reclaimable Wastewater program -                 
Recycled Water program -                 
Regional Wastewater O&M program -                 
Regional Wastewater Capital program -                 
Water Resources program -                 
Total GM Contingency Transfers 250,000        

GM Contingency Transfers Summary by Fund

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
FY 2021/22 General Manager Contingency Account Activity

Budget Transfer



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Changes in Total Project Budget: Inter-Departmental/Division Capital & O&M Transfers FY 2021/22

Exhibit D

Fund Transfer 
Date

Project 
Number Project Title

Adopted Total 
Project (TP) 

Budget

Prior TP 
Changes in 
Current FY

Amt. of 
Transfer 
(Out)/In

New TP 
Budget

Annual Project 
Budget

Annual Proj. 
Budget 
Change

New Annual 
Project 
Budget

Project 
Transferred 
To/(From)

Justification

IS21006 Replace RP1 Trailer $225,000 $0 ($125,000) $100,000 $225,000 ($125,000) $100,000 FM20004

FM20004 HQ Door System Upgrades $180,000 $0 $125,000 $305,000 $171,771 $125,000 $296,771 IS21006

EN22010 Asset Management Project $6,450,000 $0 ($50,000) $6,400,000 $50,000 ($50,000) $0 EP22004

EP22004 Agency Wide Vehicle $1,757,256 $0 $50,000 $1,807,256 $150,000 $50,000 $200,000 EN22010

Subtotal General Administrative (GG): $8,612,256 $8,612,256 $596,771 $596,771

EN17043 RP4 Primary Clarifier Rehab $7,681,542 ($545,777) ($14,629) $7,121,136 $2,875,000 ($14,629) $2,860,371 EN22034

EN22034 RP-1 Generator Control $85,000 $140,371 $14,629 $240,000 $225,371 $14,629 $240,000 EN17043

EN17043 RP4 Primary Clarifier Rehab $7,121,136 $0 ($75,000) $7,046,136 $2,860,371 ($75,000) $2,785,371 EN20041

EN20041 RP-1 Tertiary Treatment $680,000 $0 $75,000 $755,000 $150,000 $75,000 $225,000 EN17043

Subtotal Regional Wastewater Operations & Maint. (RO): $15,567,678 $15,162,272 $6,110,742 $6,110,742
Subtotal Regional Capital (RC): $0 $0 $0 $0

Adopted Amended Adopted Amended
$24,179,934 $23,774,528 $6,707,513 $6,707,513

WR21004 Garden in Every School $45,000 $0 ($14,000) $31,000 $45,000 ($14,000) $31,000 WR20026

WR20026 WUE Business Plan Update $150,000 $0 $14,000 $164,000 $122,000 $14,000 $136,000 WR21004

Subtotal Water Resources (WW): $195,000 $195,000 $167,000 $167,000

PA22003 IRP 2020 $3,810,000 $0 ($75,000) $3,735,000 $260,000 ($75,000) $185,000 EN22032

EN22032 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater $50,000 $30,000 $75,000 $155,000 $80,000 $75,000 $155,000 PA22003

EN22054 RO Safety On-Call $500,000 $0 ($95,000) $405,000 $500,000 ($95,000) $405,000 EN22053

EN22053 RO On-Call $500,000 ($30,000) $95,000 $565,000 $470,000 $95,000 $565,000 EN22054

Subtotal Regional Wastewater Operations & Maint. (RO): $1,000,000 $970,000 $970,000 $970,000

Adopted Amended Adopted Amended
$5,055,000 $5,055,000 $1,477,000 $1,477,000

5/19/22

The budget transfer is required to fund a small project for 
Operations and Maintenance to replace the biofilter media at RP-
1 Headworks.  The media needs to be replaced in order to 
properly treat the foul air coming from the headworks and primary 
clarifiers in order to remove the hydrogen sulfide and odors prior 
to releasing it into the atmosphere.

O&M Total Project Budget Total Annual O&M Project Budget

10800

10700 4/6/22 The transfer is to cover future expenses for a regional WUE 
dashboard project.

5/3/22

This budget transfer will cover additional work to develop a 
Business Case Evaluation of options for the design of new 
electrical sources, new instrumentation, process systems, and 
SCADA integration for the RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage 
Upgrades Project.

Capital Total Project Budget Total Annual Capital Budget

O&M Projects

10800

5/5/22

The budget transfer is needed for the RP-1 & RP-4 Generator 
Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization Project. Inflation rates have 
increased thus raising the costs for items, such as the cost of 
diesel fuel.

5/24/22
The budget transfer necessary for completing the construction 
phase for the RP-1 TP-1 Bleach Mixing Repairs, also to cover the 
cost of the additional scope items initiated by IEUA.

Capital Projects

5/31/22 Funds transferred to Facilities for upcoming project tasks.

5/20/22
The budget transfer is required to complete the HQB upgrades 
related to the office partition wall and other work needed for the 
reconfiguration of the BIS work area for Maintenance and IS.

10200

















INFORMATION 
ITEM 

4Q 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

September 21, 2022

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended July 31, 2022 is submitted in a
format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of July 2022, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of $499,146,347
reflects a decrease of $15,935,147 compared to the total of $515,081,494 reported for June
2022. The decrease can be attributed primarily to the RP-5 Expansion and other capital project
expenditures. As a result, the average days cash on hand for the month ended July 2022
decreased from 262 days to 251 days.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in July 2022 was 1.195 percent, a slight
increase of 0.168 percent compared to the June 2022 yield of 1.027 percent. The change in yield
is mainly attributed to market conditions and an increased earnings yield in the Local Agency
Investment Fund and the California Asset Management Program (CAMP) accounts.

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended July 31, 2022 is an information
item for the Board of Director's review

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

09/14/22Finance & Administration

Kristine Day, Assistant General Manager

N N

Staff Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On August 17, 2022 the Board of Directors received the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs
for the month ended June 30, 2022.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

22199





https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/




https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/








INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

July June Variance

Investments
   Agency Managed

Total Agency Managed Investments

PFM Managed

Total PFM Managed Investments

Total Investments

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency

Restricted Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $499,146,347 $515,081,494 ($15,935,147)
**Total reported partial as of June 2022 net of capital call

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Other Cash and Bank Accounts

US Bank Pre-Investment Money Market Account

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,407,860

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $105,305,969

Brokered Certificates of Deposit

Supra-National Agency Bonds

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

U.S. Treasury Notes

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Subtotal PFM Managed Investment Accounts $113,689,245

Total Investments $218,995,214

Restricted Deposits

   Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Restricted Deposits Continued

2020B Construction Project Accounts

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies

CalPERS 

Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of July 31, 2022 $499,146,347

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease)

**Total reported partial as of June 2022 net of capital call

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)

US Bank (USB)
(Investment Mgmt.)
(Debt Service)

Petty Cash

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,407,860 $2,407,860 $2,407,860 $2,407,860

Investments
CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts

LAIF Accounts

CAMP Accounts

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $105,305,969 $105,305,969 $105,305,969 1.00% $105,305,969

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Investments (continued)
US Treasury Note

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities

Supra-National Agency Bond

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

Medium Term Notes

Subtotal PFM Managed Investment Accounts $114,353,000 $113,685,248 $113,689,245 1.37% $109,561,919

Total Investments $219,658,969 $218,991,217 $218,995,214 $214,867,888
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

Total Investment Pool Accounts

Bond and Note Accounts

Total Bond and Note Accounts

2020B Construction Project Account

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $114,959,692 $114,959,692 $114,959,692 1.141% $114,959,692

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies 

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
**Total reported partial as of June 2022 net of capital call

CalPERS Deposits

 Escrow Deposits

Total Restricted Deposits $272,672,915 $272,672,915 $277,743,273 $277,743,273

$494,739,744 $494,071,992 $499,146,347 $495,019,021
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits 
as of July 31, 2022

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield

Total Investment Portfolio $218,995,214
Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 1.195%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $280,151,133
Average Yield of Other Accounts 1.283%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $499,146,347

*Petty Cash

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
July 31, 2022

July Purchases

Total Purchases 1,500,000$       

July Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 1,480,000$       

11



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended July 31, 2022
Agency Investment Portfolio (Net of Escrow Accounts)

$490,891,299

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 4.58%

Restricted 
Accounts (net of 
escrow), 54.90%

LAIF -
Unrestricted, 

13.28%

Medium Term 
Notes, 3.26%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.38%

Other Accounts, 
0.49%

U.S. Government 
Sponsored 

Entities, 5.66%

US Treasuries, 
13.08%

CAMP -
Unrestricted, 

3.59%

Supra-National , 
0.34%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.44%

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended July 31, 2022
Unrestricted Agency Investment Portfolio

$218,995,214

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 10.27%

Local Agency 
Investment Fund, 

29.78%

Medium Term 
Notes, 7.31%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.85%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.98%

U.S. Government 
Sponsored Entities, 

12.69%

US Treasuries, 
29.32% Supra-National, 

0.76%

CAMP, 8.04%

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended July 31, 2022
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities Portfolio

$27,784,743

Fannie Mae 
Bonds, 64.19%

Freddie Mac 
Bonds, 28.56%

Federal Home 
Loan Bank 

Bonds, 7.25%

14



$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

0-30 Days 31-180
Days

181-365
Days

366-730
Days

2 to 3 Years Over 3 Yrs

LAIF+CAMP $82,819,854
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $22,486,115
GSE+CD+MTN+MUNI $0 $0 19,117,193 24,840,495 28,740,760 40,990,796
Percent 48.09% 0.00% 8.73% 11.34% 13.12% 18.72%

Ax
is

 T
itl

e
Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs
Month Ended July 31, 2022

Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)
$218,995,214

15



0.850% 0.893% 1.027% 1.195%

-0.060%
-0.290%

-0.580%

0.670%

0.221% 0.206%

0.861% 1.090%

0.550% 0.053%

2.142%

2.843%

-2.150%

-1.650%

-1.150%

-0.650%

-0.150%

0.350%

0.850%

1.350%

1.850%

2.350%

2.850%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended July 31, 2022
Agency Investment Portfolio Yield Comparison

Agency Yield Merrill Lynch 1-5 US Treasury Index LAIF Yield 6 Months T-Bill

16



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

5A 



S A W P A 
 
 

 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF AB 361, THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED VIRTUALLY WITH 

THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT.  ALL VOTES TAKEN WILL BE CONDUCTED BY ORAL 
ROLL CALL. 

This meeting will be accessible as follows: 
 

Meeting Access Via Computer (Zoom)*: Meeting Access Via Telephone*: 
• https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/81083251436 • 1 (669) 900-6833 
• Meeting ID: 810 8325 1436 • Meeting ID: 810 8325 1436 

*Participation in the meeting via the Zoom app (a free download) is strongly encouraged. 
 

 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 – 9:30 A.M. 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Marco Tule, Chair)  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public may address the Commission on items within the jurisdiction of the Commission; however, 
no action may be taken on an item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by 
Government Code §54954.2(b). 

 
4. ITEMS TO BE ADDED OR DELETED 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and non-controversial and will be acted upon by 
the Commission by one motion as listed below. 

A. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: AUGUST 16, 2022 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 
B. TREASURER’S REPORT:  JULY 2022 

Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 
 

C. TREASURER’S REPORT:  AUGUST 2022 
Recommendation:  Approve as posted. 

 
D. RESOLUTION ON CONTINUATION OF REMOTE COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS (CM#2022.60) 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-15 Proclaiming A State of Emergency 
Persists, Re-Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Gavin 
Newsom, and Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of all Commission and 
Committee meetings of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority for the period of 
September 23, 2022 to October 22, 2022 pursuant to Brown Act Provisions. 

 

          SANTA  ANA  WATERSHED  PROJECT AUTHORITY 
             11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California 92503 •  (951) 354-4220 

 

https://sawpa.zoom.us/j/81083251436


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 20, 2022 
Page 2 

 

 

 
6. WORKSHOP DISCUSSION AGENDA 

 
A. LEGISLATIVE REPORT 

Presenter:  Michael Boccadoro and Beth Olhasso, West Coast Advisors 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. PROPOSITION 1 ROUND 2 INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 
CALL FOR PROJECTS UPDATE (CM#2022.61) 
Presenter:  Ian Achimore 
Recommendation:  Receive and file. 

 
8. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

Recommendation:  Receive for information. 
 

A. CASH TRANSACTIONS REPORT – JULY 2022 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
B. INTER-FUND BORROWING – JULY 2022 (CM#2022.62) 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

C. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS/FINANCIAL REPORTING – JULY 2022 (CM#2022.63) 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
D. PROJECT AGREEMENT 25 – OWOW FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, JULY 2022 

Presenter:  Karen Williams 
 

E. PROJECT AGREEMENT 26 – ROUNDTABLE FUND – FINANCIAL REPORT, 
JULY 2022 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
F. FOURTH QUARTER FYE 2022 EXPENSE REPORT 

• General Manager 
• Staff 
Presenter:  Karen Williams 

 
G. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 
 

H. STATE LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
Presenter:  Jeff Mosher 

 
I. CHAIR’S COMMENTS/REPORT 

 
J. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
K. COMMISSIONERS’ REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
9. CLOSED SESSION 
 

There were no Closed Session items anticipated at the time of the posting of this agenda. 
 

 



SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 20, 2022 
Page 3 

 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE: 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you require any special disability related accommodations to participate in this meeting, call 
(951) 354-4220 or email svilla@sawpa.org.  48-hour notification prior to the meeting will enable staff to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility for this meeting.  Requests should specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested. 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Commission after distribution of the agenda packet are available 
for public inspection during normal business hours at the SAWPA office, 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, and available at 
www.sawpa.org, subject to staff’s ability to post documents prior to the meeting. 
 
Declaration of Posting 
I, Sara Villa, Clerk of the Board of the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority declare that on September 15, 2022, a copy of this agenda has 
been uploaded to the SAWPA website at www.sawpa.org and posted at SAWPA’s office at 11615 Sterling Avenue, Riverside, California. 
 
 
 

2022 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/4/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
1/18/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/1/22 Commission Workshop 
2/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/1/22 Commission Workshop 
3/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/5/22 Commission Workshop 
4/19/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/3/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
5/17/22 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/3 – 5/6/22 ACWA Spring Conference, Sacramento, CA 

June 
6/7/22 Commission Workshop 
6/21/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/5/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
7/19/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/2/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
8/16/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/6/22 Commission Workshop [cancelled] 
9/20/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/4/22 Commission Workshop 
10/18/22 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/1/22 Commission Workshop 
11/15/22 Regular Commission Meeting 
 

December 
12/6/22 Commission Workshop 
12/20/22 Regular Commission Meeting  
11/29 – 12/2/22 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

 

 
  

http://www.sawpa.org/
http://www.sawpa.org/


SAWPA Commission 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

September 20, 2022 
Page 4 

 

 

 

2023 SAWPA Commission Meetings/Events 
First and Third Tuesday of the Month 

(NOTE:  All meetings begin at 9:30 a.m., unless otherwise noticed, and are held at SAWPA.) 
 

January 
1/3/23 Commission Workshop 
1/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

February 
2/7/23 Commission Workshop 
2/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

March 
3/7/23 Commission Workshop 
3/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

April 
4/4/23 Commission Workshop 
4/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

May 
5/2/23 Commission Workshop 
5/16/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
5/9 – 5/11/23 ACWA Spring Conference, Monterey, CA 

June 
6/6/23 Commission Workshop 
6/20/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 
7/4/23 Commission Workshop 
7/18/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

August 
8/1/23 Commission Workshop 
8/15/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

September 
9/5/23 Commission Workshop 
9/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

October 
10/3/23 Commission Workshop 
10/17/23 Regular Commission Meeting 

November 
11/7/23 Commission Workshop 
11/21/23 Regular Commission Meeting 
11/28 – 11/30/23 ACWA Fall Conference, Indian Wells, CA 

December 
12/5/23 Commission Workshop 
12/19/23 Regular Commission Meeting  
 

 

 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

5B 



Tuesday, September 13, 2022
Meeting Schedule

Board of Directors - Final - Revised 1

September 13, 2022

12:00 PM

08:30 a.m. L&C 
09:30 a.m. OP&T
10:30 a.m. RP&AM
12:00 p.m. BOD

Teleconference meetings will continue until further notice. Live streaming is 
available for all board and committee meetings on mwdh2o.com (Click Here) 

A listen only phone line is also available at 1-877-853-5257; enter meeting ID: 831 
5177 2466. Members of the public may present their comments to the Board on 
matters within their jurisdiction as listed on the agenda via in-person or 
teleconference. To participate via teleconference (833) 548-0276 and enter meeting 
ID: 815 2066 4276.

MWD Headquarters Building - 700 N. Alameda Street - Los Angeles, CA 90012

1. Call to Order

a. Invocation:  Arnold O. Castellanos, Senior Designer, Engineering Services 
Group/Design Section/Systems Design Unit

b. Pledge of Allegiance:  Director Fred Jung, City of Fullerton

2. Roll Call

3. Determination of a Quorum

4. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on 
matters within the Board's jurisdiction.  (As required by Gov. Code § 
54954.3(a))

5. OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

A. 21-1458Report on Directors' Events Attended at Metropolitan's Expense

09132022 BOD 5A ReportAttachments:

B. 21-1459Chairwoman's Monthly Activity Report

09132022 BOD 5B ReportAttachments:

Zoom Online and Boardroom

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2550
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8f35c5cd-d0ca-4aec-bf8f-94e0947fe349.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2551
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=68a14be2-a7bd-418b-bfdb-cfa5c8a91ea2.pdf


Board of Directors September 13, 2022

Page 2 

C. 21-1460General Manager's summary of activities

09132022 BOD 5C ReportAttachments:

D. 21-1461General Counsel's summary of activities

09132022 BOD 5D ReportAttachments:

E. 21-1462Interim General Auditor's summary of activities

09132022 BOD 5E ReportAttachments:

F. 21-1463Ethics Officer's summary of activities

09132022 BOD 5F ReportAttachments:

** CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS -- ACTION **

6. CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION

A. 21-1464Approval of the Minutes of the Bay-Delta Committee held January 
25, 2022, the Special Board Meeting held August 9, 2022 and the 
Adjourned Regular Meeting for August 16, 2022 (Copies have 
been submitted to each Director) (Any additions, corrections, or 
omissions)

09132022 BOD 6A-1 Minutes

09132022 BOD 6A-2 Minutes

09132022 BOD 6A-3 Minutes

Attachments:

B. 21-1465Adopt resolution to continue remote teleconference meetings 
pursuant to the Brown Act Section 54953(e) for meetings of 
Metropolitan’s legislative bodies for a period of 30 days; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA

09132022 BOD 6b ResolutionAttachments:

C. 21-1466Approve Committee Assignments

7. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2552
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=003fdb86-e53f-42c1-a5b2-694bcd224783.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2553
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b5f313d6-e31e-42c0-8153-3056bcaac6de.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2554
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=61e5c3b9-8ede-4e77-aab9-5fbb2a921ed3.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2555
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c160aae-8366-4826-ad3c-b91eac2da294.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2556
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=085de12c-56c5-46c5-9a60-5dc8d7abea19.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1fa83c7f-39e9-474f-84ea-5f0e3984562e.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9d699349-01d3-492d-a444-cc0b83857e03.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2557
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4da4c4c8-56ca-4a09-b348-4762d9f1c6f7.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2558


Board of Directors September 13, 2022

Page 3 

7-1 21-1469Determine that there is a need to continue the emergency action of 
executing a no-bid contract for the Upper Feeder expansion joint 
replacement (Requires four-fifths vote of the Board); the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

09132022 EO 7-1 B-L

09122022 EO 7-1 Presentation

Attachments:

7-2 21-1468Authorize an increase of $1,200,000 to an existing agreement with 
IBI Group, for a new not-to-exceed total of $1,830,000 for design 
services, and an agreement with Fugro, in an amount 
not-to-exceed $450,000 for geotechnical engineering services for 
the Weymouth Administration Building seismic upgrade project; the 
General Manager has determined that this proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

09132022 EO 7-2 B-L

09122022 EO 7-2 Presentation

Attachments:

7-3 21-1467Award a $287,824 contract to Bishop, Inc. for replacement of the 
maintenance building roof at the Henry J. Mills Water Treatment 
Plant; the General Manager has determined that the proposed 
action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

09132022 EO 7-3 B-L

09122022 EO 7-3 Presentation

Attachments:

7-4 21-1471Authorize an increase of $690,000 to an existing agreement with 
Carollo Engineers, Inc., for a new not-to-exceed amount of 
$990,000, to serve as the owner’s advisor for development of the 
Sepulveda Feeder Pump Stations project with the alternative 
delivery approach referred to as progressive design-build; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (This action is part of a 
series of projects that are being undertaken to improve the supply 
reliability for State Water Project dependent member agencies) 
(EO)

09132022 EO 7-4 B-L

09122022 EO 7-4 Presentation

Attachments:

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2561
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=932c0a76-f418-4768-8e44-e7a2ba9e1c0e.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9f5d73dd-60d3-4112-9468-43b452106781.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2560
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7a94b776-e978-4251-ac71-d572b65d5209.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=60e1e2c1-6f28-483a-b4a6-9cdb6b3c906f.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2559
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f933e780-4767-4508-9443-df25f086cebe.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c713470a-7958-4eff-a63d-26a6f887b287.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2563
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a0bb66dc-1c6f-4204-aed6-bcdf90f33933.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e7b80f67-2582-4d7f-986c-bf01b3d8e37e.pdf


Board of Directors September 13, 2022

Page 4 

7-5 21-1472Authorize an agreement with Calpine Energy Solutions, LLC for the 
sale of renewable energy from the Phase I-II hydroelectric power 
plants; the General Manager has determined that the proposed 
action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (EO)

09132022 EO 7-5 B-L

09132022 EO 7-5 Presentation

Attachments:

7-6 21-1473Adopt the Revision and Restatement of Bay-Delta Policies; the 
General Manager has determined that the proposed action is 
exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (IW)

09132022 IW 7-6 B-L

09132022 IW 7-6 Presentation

Attachments:

7-7 21-1474Adopt resolution designating Metropolitan’s maximum contribution 
for medical benefits in order to comply with the current authorized 
Memoranda of Understanding; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (OPT)

09132022 OPT 7-7 B-L

09132022 OPT 7-7 Presentation

Attachments:

7-8 21-1475Approve amendments to the Administrative Code to establish 
reporting requirements to the Board on personnel-related 
settlements; the General Manager has determined that the 
proposed action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (LC)

09132022 LC 7-8 B-L

09132022 LC 7-8 Presentation

Attachments:

7-9 21-1476Authorize granting a new ten-year license agreement to 
Valley-Wide Recreation and Park District for the continued 
operation of a trail on Metropolitan fee-owned property in the city of 
Hemet and county of Riverside California Assessor Parcel 
Numbers; 454-070-016; 454-140-029; 454-140-033; 454-140-035, 
-036, -037; 454-160-001; 454-160-010, -011, -012, -013, -014, 
-015, -016; 454-280-024; 454-280-029; the General Manager has 
determined that the proposed action is exempt or otherwise not 
subject to CEQA (RPAM)

09132022 RPAM 7-9 B-L

09132022 RPAM 7-9 Presentation

Attachments:

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2564
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=12b07407-5dce-45b6-af77-7f452248fc69.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=14c3b57b-1448-4c14-bb90-33da374e32ce.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2565
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0a22dc1-87d5-447e-bc2d-fd538950784f.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f0683545-8f79-4bb3-a2ae-653bbd954b7c.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2566
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f09e8f3-7321-4dfa-9682-76523b8970d7.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=db537b01-2146-43ed-82d9-c3ff6c2e8f39.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2567
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e864d5f-8438-4b25-aad4-cc65f4bcb7e3.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5deb79b4-0c03-4f03-ba38-50d3073d89da.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2568
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d19cb19-0f5b-4922-bfc3-f743bc5ec48d.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=317e93cc-cfe9-4fd1-a851-974e67571e5e.pdf


Board of Directors September 13, 2022

Page 5 

7-10 21-1477Authorize the General Manager to grant a permanent easement for 
electrical equipment purposes to Southern California Edison on 
Metropolitan property in Riverside County; the General Manager 
has determined that this proposed action is exempt or otherwise 
not subject to CEQA (RPAM)

09132022 RPAM 7-10 B-L

09132022 RPAM 7-10 Presentation

Attachments:

7-11 21-1478Authorize an increase of $8.5 million to an agreement with 
Roesling Nakamura Terada Architects for a new not-to-exceed 
total of $13.5 million for final design and architectural services in 
support of the District Housing and Property Improvement 
Program; the General Manager has determined that the proposed 
action is exempt or otherwise not subject to CEQA (RPAM)

09132022 RPAM 7-11 B-L Revised

09132022 RPAM 7-11 Presentation

Attachments:

7-12 21-1515Authorize an increase in the maximum amount payable under 
contract with Meyers Nave by $190,000 to an amount not to 
exceed $439,000 to continue providing legal advice and support 
services for the Equal Employment Opportunity Office; the General 
Manager has determined that the proposed action is exempt or 
otherwise not subject to CEQA. [ADDED ITEM 9/9/22] (OPT)

09132022 OPT 7-12 B-LAttachments:

** END OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS **

8. OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION

NONE

9. BOARD INFORMATION ITEMS

9-1 21-1479Report on Conservation

09132022 BOD 9-1 ReportAttachments:

10. OTHER MATTERS

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2569
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ec8b0425-562c-4ad2-a554-6ae7056335a3.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b06e117d-49e2-486c-a246-e6cba8ec03d1.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2570
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=48034161-79e9-4fa0-af4b-4461aa242167.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aa524675-3109-47bb-a789-bf460840fd5e.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2621
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a390da7-093a-4aa6-900f-7562bbe5b504.pdf
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2571
http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2d3ca453-0765-4771-9181-105408e23f61.pdf


Board of Directors September 13, 2022

Page 6 

10-1 21-1481Discussion of Department Head Evaluation Process Guidelines 
and Department Head Evaluation Presentation [Public employee’s 
performance evaluations; General Manager, General Counsel, and 
Ethics Officer, to be heard in closed session pursuant to Gov. 
Code Section 54957]

11. FOLLOW-UP ITEMS

NONE

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13. ADJOURNMENT

NOTE:

Each agenda item with a committee designation will be considered and a recommendation may be made by one or 
more committees prior to consideration and final action by the full Board of Directors.  The committee designation 
appears in parenthesis at the end of the description of the agenda item e.g.  (E&O, BF&I).  Committee agendas may 
be obtained from the Executive Secretary. 

Requests for a disability related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to 
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to the Executive Secretary in advance of the meeting to ensure 
availability of the requested service or accommodation.

Zoom Online and Boardroom

http://mwdh2o.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=2576


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

5C 



 

 

 
Regional Sewerage Program  

Policy Committee Meeting 
 

AGENDA 
Thursday, September 1, 2022 

3:30 p.m. 
Teleconference Call 

 
 

To prevent the spread of COVID-19, the Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting will be 
held remotely by teleconference. 

 
 

Teams Conference Link: https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-

join/19%3ameeting_OTMyZTdmNzItNjBiMC00NmZmLTkzOWYtOTdmZDc5MDIwNGQw%40thread.v

2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-

cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e1bc1283-cd05-48d8-a67b-d2365bb08cc2%22%7d 

Teleconference: 1-415-856-9169/Conference ID: 214 918 877# 

This meeting will be conducted virtually by video and audio conferencing. There will be no public location 

available to attend the meeting; however, the public may participate and provide public comment during 

the meeting by calling the number provided above.  Alternatively, you may email your public comments to 

Recording Secretary Laura Mantilla at lmantilla@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting time. Your comments will then be read into the record during the meeting. 

 

   

 
Call to Order/Flag Salute  
 
Roll Call  

 
Public Comment 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Committee; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes per speaker. 
 

 
 
 

(Continued) 

 
 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTMyZTdmNzItNjBiMC00NmZmLTkzOWYtOTdmZDc5MDIwNGQw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e1bc1283-cd05-48d8-a67b-d2365bb08cc2%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTMyZTdmNzItNjBiMC00NmZmLTkzOWYtOTdmZDc5MDIwNGQw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e1bc1283-cd05-48d8-a67b-d2365bb08cc2%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTMyZTdmNzItNjBiMC00NmZmLTkzOWYtOTdmZDc5MDIwNGQw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e1bc1283-cd05-48d8-a67b-d2365bb08cc2%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTMyZTdmNzItNjBiMC00NmZmLTkzOWYtOTdmZDc5MDIwNGQw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224c0c1e57-30f3-4048-9bd2-cd58917dcf07%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e1bc1283-cd05-48d8-a67b-d2365bb08cc2%22%7d
mailto:lmantilla@ieua.org


Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda 
September 1, 2022 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

 
Additions to the Agenda 

 
 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 

two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 

unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 

need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

 
1. Technical Committee Report (Oral)  

 
2. Action Item  

A. Approval of July 7, 2022 Policy Committee Meeting Minutes  
B. Request to Establish Ad-hoc BAR Subcommittee  

 
3. Informational Items 

A. Regional Contract Negotiation Update (Oral)  
B. Engineering & Construction Management Quarterly Project Updates   
C. Chino Basin Program Update  

 
4. Receive and File 

A. Building Activity Report 
B. Recycled Water Distribution – Operations Summary 
 

5. Other Business 
A. IEUA General Manager’s Update  
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting 
C. Committee Member Comments  
D. Next Meeting – October 6, 2022  

 
 
Adjourn  

 
 

DECLARATION OF POSTING 
I, Laura Mantilla, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, a Municipal Water District, hereby certify 

that, per Government Code Section 54954.2, a copy of this agenda has been posted at the Agency’s main office, 6075 

Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA and on the Agency’s website at www.ieua.org at least seventy-two (72) hours 

prior to the meeting date and time above.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 

meeting, please contact Laura Mantilla at (909) 993-1944 or lmantilla@ieua.org 48 hours prior to the 

scheduled meeting so that IEUA can make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

http://www.ieua.org/
mailto:lmantilla@ieua.org


        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

5D 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
WATERMASTER BOARD MEETING 

11:00 a.m. – August 25, 2022 
Mr. Jim Curatalo, Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any short non-agenda items that are 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Chino Basin Watermaster. No discussion or action can be taken 
on matters not listed on the agenda, per the Brown Act. Each member of the public who wishes to comment 
shall be allotted three minutes, and no more than three individuals shall address the same subject. 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Note:  All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action.  
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Meeting held June 23, 2022 (Page 1) 
2. Minutes of the Watermaster Board Special Meeting held July 28, 2022 (Page 9) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  

Receive and file as presented: 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of May 2022 (Page 15) 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of May 2022 (Page 27) 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022 (Page 30) 
4. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period May 1, 2022 through May 31, 2022  

(Page 33) 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022 (Page 37) 
6. Cash Disbursements for the month of June 2022 (Page 64) 
7. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of June 2022 (Page 66) 
8. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 (Page 69) 
9. Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the Period June 1, 2022 through June 30, 2022  

(Page 72) 
10. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 (Page 76) 
11. Cash Disbursements for July 2022 (Information Only) (Page 109) 
 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      August 25, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 

C. APPLICATION:  WATER TRANSACTION (Page 119) 
Approve the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 4.5 acre-feet of water from Nicholson Family Trust-Exempt Marital Trust by Fontana 
Water Company. This Purchase is made from Nicholson Family Trust-Exempt Marital Trust’s Annual 
Production Right/Operating Safe Yield. 
 

D. APPLICATION:  WATER TRANSACTION (Page 127) 
Approve the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 2,000 acre-feet of water from Santa Ana River Water Company by Niagara Bottling, 
LLC. This purchase is made from Santa Ana River Water Company’s Excess Carryover Account.  

 
E. APPLICATION:  WATER TRANSACTION (Page 135) 

Approve the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 5,000 acre-feet of water from City of Chino by Fontana Water Company. This 
purchase is made from City of Chino’s Excess Carryover Account.  
 

F. CHINO CREEK WELL FIELD EXTENSOMETER LAND LEASE EXTENSION (Page 143) 
Approve the extension of the Land Lease Agreement and authorize the General Manager to sign the 
letter to the County. 

 
G. FISCAL YEAR 2022/23 REVISED PAY SCHEDULE (Page 169) 

Adopt the revised Pay Schedule, effective September 1, 2022.  
 
 II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. SECOND AMENDMENT TO TASK ORDER NO. 9 UNDER THE MASTER AGREEMENT FOR 
COLLABORATIVE RECHARGE PROJECTS (PROJECT 23a) (Page 173) 

     Approve the Second Amendment to Task Order No. 9 to increase the total budgeted cost. 
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. San Bernardino County Superior Court Emergency Order 
2. August 31, 2022 Hearing 
3. Governor’s Executive Order N-7-22 
4. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 
 

B. ENGINEER  
1. Safe Yield Reset Methodology Update 
2. Chino Basin Maximum Benefit SNMP 
 

C. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
1. FY 2020/21 Audit of Groundwater Recharge Basin O&M Expenses  

 
D. GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Supplemental Water Tracking 
2. July 28, 2022 Board Workshop: OBMP 
3. 2020 OBMP Environmental Review 
4. Other 

 
IV. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
 

V. OTHER BUSINESS 



Agenda Watermaster Board Meeting                                                                      August 25, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION 
Pursuant to Article II, Section 2.6, of the Watermaster Rules & Regulations, a Confidential Session may 
be held during the Watermaster Board meeting for the purpose of discussion and possible action. 

 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – PENDING LITIGATION: 

a) Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino et al., San Bernardino County Superior 
Court Case No: RCVRS51010 

b) Chino Basin Municipal Water District et al. v. City of Ontario et al., California Court of Appeal 4th 
Appellate District Case No: E079052 
  

2. GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2) – CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 
ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: One Case 

 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 

08/23/22    Tue      9:00 a.m.    Groundwater Recharge Coordinating Committee (GRCC) 
 08/25/22    Thu    11:00 a.m.    Watermaster Board 
  09/01/22    Thu      1:00 p.m.    2020 OBMP Environmental Review Process Workshop 
09/08/22    Thu      9:00 a.m.    Appropriative Pool Committee 

 09/08/22    Thu    11:00 a.m.    Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 09/08/22    Thu      1:30 p.m.    Agricultural Pool Committee 
09/15/22    Thu      9:00 a.m.     Advisory Committee 

 09/22/22    Thu    11:00 a.m.    Watermaster Board 
 09/29/22    Thu  9:00 a.m.   Ground-Level Monitoring Committee (GLMC) 
 

ADJOURNMENT 



        AGENCY  
REPRESENTATIVES’ 

      REPORTS 

5E 



SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

CHINO BASIN DESALTER AUTHORITY 

September 1, 2022    2:00 p.m. 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 

All documents available for public review are on file with the Authority’s 

Secretary located at 3550 E. Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA  91761 

According to the directives from the California Department of Public Health and Executive Order N-08-21 issued 
by Governor Gavin Newsom, members of the public are invited to participate via video or teleconference 

To join teleconference:  

Dial-in #:  (669) 900 6833  Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101     Passcode: 380557 

To join video conference:   

Click on link:  Join Zoom Meeting 

Or copy URL:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09 

Or go to  https://zoom.us/   Zoom Meeting ID: 813 5205 9101   Passcode: 380557 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require two-
thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of 
those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the 
attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Chino 
Basin Desalter Authority; however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the 
action is otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.   

Under the provisions of the Brown Act, the CDA Board is prohibited from taking action on non-agendized matters.  
However, Board Members may respond briefly or refer the communication to staff.  The CDA Board may also 
request the Secretary to calendar an item related to your communication at a future CDA Board meeting. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial to be acted upon by the Board at one 
time without discussion.  If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests that an item be removed 
from the Consent Calendar, it will be moved to the first item on the Action Items 
1. MINUTES OF AUGUST 4, 2022 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

2. RESOLUTION 2022-03 PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE 
PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY EXECUTIVE ORDERS N-25-20, N-
29-20 AND N-35-20, AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 
FOR A THIRTY (30) DAY PERIOD PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve Resolution 2022-03, proclaiming a local emergency, ratifying the 
proclamation of a state of emergency by Executive Orders N-25-20, N-29-20 and N-
35-20, and authorizing remote teleconference meetings for a thirty (30) day period 
pursuant to Brown Act provisions 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81352059101?pwd=M01uOEVteVBCTnVyZ0tKVUxrb1hHdz09
https://zoom.us/


September 1, 2022 – Special Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 2 of 3 

ACTION ITEMS 

Prior to action of the CDA Finance Committee, any member of the audience will have the opportunity to address 
the CDA Board on any item listed on the agenda, including those on any consent calendar.  Please submit a 
comment card to the secretary with the agenda item number noted. 

3. CONTRACT AWARD FOR CHINO II DESALTER OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE MANUAL UPDATE 
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve a professional services agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering consulting services in the not-to-exceed amount of $181,542; and  

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to finalize and execute the agreement, 
with subsequent authorizations up to a not-to-exceed total of $200,000. 

4. CONSULTANT SELECTION FOR DESIGN OF CHINO I DESALTER CHEMICAL 
ROOMS REHABILITATION PROJECT 
Report By: Thomas O’Neill, CDA General Manager/CEO 

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Approve a professional services agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services in the not-to-exceed amount of $330,942; and  

2. Authorize the General Manager/CEO to finalize and execute the agreement, with 
subsequent authorizations up to a not-to-exceed total of $370,000. 

STAFF COMMENTS 

i. Deputy CDA General Counsel, Allison Burns 
ii. CDA CFO/Treasurer, Michael Chung 
iii. CDA General Manager/CEO, Thomas O’Neill 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Authority may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider litigation matters, personnel matters, or other matters 
as provided for in the Ralph M. Brown Act (Section 54950 et seq., of the Government Code). 

5. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
CONSIDERATION OF INITIATION OF LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTION 54956.9(D)(4) 

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

6. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTION 54956.9(D)(2)     

(ONE POTENTIAL CASE) 

 

  



September 1, 2022 – Special Chino Basin Desalter Authority Board Meeting               Page 3 of 3 

 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 

Declaration of Posting 

I, Casey Costa, Executive Assistant to the Chino Basin Desalter Authority, hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been 
posted by 2:00 p.m. at the Chino Basin Desalter Authority’s main office, 3550 Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA on 
August 29, 2022. 
_____________________________________ 
Casey Costa, Executive Assistant  

Any person with a disability who requires accommodations in order to participate in this meeting or for package materials in 
an alternative format should telephone Executive Assistant Casey Costa at (909) 218-3730, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation.  All accommodation requests will 
be handled swiftly and resolving all doubts in favor of access  Copies of records provided to Board Members which relate 
to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from Chino Basin Desalter Authority at 3550 
Philadelphia Street, Suite 170, Ontario, CA 91761. 



GENERAL 
 MANAGER’S 
       REPORT 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

AUGUST 2022 NOTES: 
 

 Total stormwater and dry weather flow 
recharged is preliminarily estimated at 53 acre-
feet. 

 Recycled water delivered for recharge totaled 
1,456 acre-feet. 

 Imported water recharge did not occur. 
 Chino Basin Watermaster will remove 4.2% for 

evaporation losses from delivered supplemental 
water sources (imported water and recycled 
water). 

 Considering evaporation losses, total recharge 
is preliminarily estimated at 1,448 acre-feet. 
 

Recycled Water  

Groundwater Recharge 

Recycled Water Use Agency-Wide Effluent TDS & TIN – 12-Month Running Avg  

Full Service Imported Water Deliveries Summary  
(FY 2018/19 to 2022/23) 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

Imported Water 

AF
 

Imported Water TDS Summary  
(FY 2017/18 to 2021/22) 



 
 

 
 

 

Pulse of the Organization 

 

Agency Highlights 

- August was National Water Quality Month. National Water Quality 
Month is dedicated to encouraging water-use efficiency and celebrating 
the importance of water to our individual health, collective agricultural
needs, and the needs of our environment. Throughout the month, 
IEUA’s social media channels featured services and programs the 
Agency provides to ensure water reliability and resiliency for the 
members of our region.

- IEUA received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA). Certification was received for its fiscal year 2020/2021 annual 
comprehensive financial report, celebrating the 24th successive year
IEUA staff have satisfied the high standards of this program.

- IEUA received the District Transparency Certificate of Excellence by the 
Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF) in recognition of its 
outstanding efforts to promote transparency and good governance. 
IEUA has maintained this distinction since 2015. The award is a 
testament to the Agency’s commitment to open government. 

- On August 11, the Maintenance Unit reached a fifteen-month mark 
with no recordable or lost time accidents. Thank you for your strong
commitment to making our workplace safe. 

- On August 12, the Building Industry Association of Southern California
Baldy View Chapter held their annual Southern California Water 
Conference in Ontario, CA. IEUA had the opportunity to sponsor and 
attend the event as well as serve on the planning committee. 

- On August 23, CDA staff provided a tour to Asset Management and
IEUA staff explaining facility operations and discussing ongoing
construction activities. 

Bid & Award Look Ahead Schedule
Active Capital Improvement Project Status
Emergency Projects

COVID-19 Response: 
Management team and key staff members continue to meet when necessary 
to discuss Agency impacts from COVID-19.  

Engineering & Construction Management FY 22/23 
Budget Status Update 

Grants Human Resources 

Biosolids/Compost 
IERCF Inbound & Outbound 

Financial Update 

To
ns

 

https://www.dropbox.com/home/September%202022%20GM%20Report%20with%20Attachments?preview=22217+GM+Report+-+September+2022+-+Attachment+1.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/September%202022%20GM%20Report%20with%20Attachments?preview=22217+GM+Report+-+September+2022+-+Attachment+2.pdf
https://www.dropbox.com/home/September%202022%20GM%20Report%20with%20Attachments?preview=22217+GM+Report+-+September+2022+-+Attachment+3.pdf


  
 

 
 

    
 

 
 Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 

  Project Name 
Projected  

Bid Opening 
Date 

Projected 
Bid Award 

Date 

 Nov-22   

EN21051.00 EN21051.00  Ely Monitoring Well 9/22/2022 11/16/2022 

EN22041.00 EN22041.00  RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement 11/21/2022 11/30/2022 

EN17042.00 EN17042.00  Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs 10/19/22 11/16/2022 

 Dec-22   

EN20064.00 EN20064.00  NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement 9/22/2022 12/21/2022 

EN0000000066 
EN0000000066  Preserve Lift Station Improvements 

10/27/2022 12/21/2022 

EN13016.05 EN13016.05  SCADA Enterprise System - Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 11/7/2022 12/21/2022 

EN17006.00 EN17006.00  CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements 10/25/2022 12/21/2022 

EN23111.00 EN23111.00  RP-1 Headworks Bar Screens Improvements 10/6/2022 12/21/2022 

 Jan-23   

EN23002.00 EN23002.00  Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements 11/11/2022 1/18/2023 

EN23014.00/EN23015.00 EN23014.00  NRWS/Collection System Manhole Upgrades FY 22/23 11/30/2022 1/18/2023 

 Febr-23   

RW15003.03 RW15003.03  Montclair Basin Improvements 11/23/2022 2/15/2023 

 Mar-23   

EN23115.00 EN23115.00  RP-4 Headworks Utility Water Addition 1/18/2023 3/15/2023 

EN21056.00 EN21056.00  RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building 2/5/2023 3/15/2023 

EN23124.00 EN23124.00  1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation 2/1/2023 3/15/2023 

PA22003.01 PA22003.01  Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station 2/1/2023 3/15/2023 

 Apr-23   

EN20057.00 EN20057.00  RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II 3/6/2023 4/19/2023 

EN23123.00 EN23123.00  RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades 3/8/2023 4/19/2023 

 May-23   

EN21053.00 EN21053.00  RP-1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation 3/20/2023 5/17/2023 

EN23121.00 EN23121.00  1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades 4/19/2023 5/17/2023 

 Jul-23   

EN21041.00 EN21041.00  RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow Line 4/12/2023 7/19/2023 

EN22022.00 EN22022.00  RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades 5/24/2023 7/19/2023 

Bid and Award Look Ahead Schedule 



  
 

 
 

 

  

Agency-Wide 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

1 AM23001.00 Old VFD Replacement (Wastewater)                     60            1,350,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

2 
AM23002.00 Old VFD Replacement (Recycled Water)                     60            1,350,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

3 
EN19023.01 RO Assessment Project                        -                 250,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

4 EN21020.00 Oracle P6 Migration and Web Hosting Services                        -                 200,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

5 PA22003.01 Agency Wide Paving at RP-1 Dump Station             72,308                           -    On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

6 
EN20034.03 RP5 Solids Handling Future Uses Evaluation           319,154               550,000  On-Time Consultant 

Contract Award 
  

7 EN19023.00 Asset Management Planning Document           793,133               727,036  On-Time Pre-Design   

8 EN19024.00 Regional System Asset Management (Assessment Only)        3,264,816            3,919,419  On-Time Pre-Design   

9 EN22040.00 NFPA 70E Arc Flash Labels           103,718               210,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

10 EN23077.00 NRW Assessment Projects                        -                    50,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

11 EN23078.00 GWR Assessment Projects                        -                    50,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

12 EN23079.00 GG Assessment Projects                        -                    50,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

13 EN22024.00 AM Cleaning Services                7,429          15,000,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

73%

0%

27%

Design Schedule Performance

On-Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

80%

0%

20%

Construction Schedule Performance

On-Time Recovery in Progress Behind Schedule

Active Capital Improvement Project Status 



  
 

 
 

Agency-Wide (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

14 EN20038.00 Agency Wide Pavement Management Study           203,079               300,000  On-Time Design   

15 EN19051.00 RW Hydraulic Modeling           118,150               235,537  On-Time Design   

16 
PA22003.00 Agency Wide Paving             72,308            3,735,000  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
The schedule delay is due to a change in the scope of work areas based on the current and near 
future projects at RP-1. The design is planned to be completed by the end of September 2022. 

17 FM21005.01 Structural Agency Wide Roofing Phase III           240,158            1,942,000  On-Time Construction   

18 EN19030.00 WC Asset Management             87,872               313,747  On-Time Construction   

19 EN22005.00 RO Asset Management                        -              6,450,000  N/A Pre-Design   

20 EN22006.00 RC Asset Management                        -            51,150,000  N/A Pre-Design   

21 EN22009.00 WC Asset Management Project                        -            54,100,000  N/A Pre-Design   

22 EN22010.00 GG Asset Management Project                        -             6,400,000  N/A Pre-Design   

23 EN22045.00 New Regional Project PDR's                        -              2,500,000  N/A Not Started   

24 EN22008.00 GWR Asset Management Project             17,876            4,500,000  N/A Not Started   

25 EN23021.00 Agency Wide Infiltration and Inflow Study                        -                 600,000  N/A Not Started   

26 EN23034.00 Agency Wide EV Charging Stations                   183            1,100,000  N/A Not Started   

27 EN23085.00 New Regional Project PDR's FY22/23                        -              5,000,000  N/A Not Started   

28 EN23087.00 New Recycled Water Project PDR's FY 22/23                        -              1,000,000  N/A Not Started   

29 EN23088.00 RO On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                   698               500,000  N/A Not Started   

30 EN23089.00 RO Safety On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                        -                 500,000  N/A Not Started   

31 EN23090.00 WC On-Call/Small Projects FY 22/23                       -                 150,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        5,301,002       164,182,739        

Carbon Canyon  

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

32 EN23004.00 CCWRF Aeration Basins 1-6 Drain Valve Replacements                       -              1,500,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

33 
EN23005.00 CCWRF Filter Effluent Sodium Hypochlorite Modification                       -                 105,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

34 
EN23035.00 CCWRF RAS Header Replacement                        -                 285,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

35 EN23038.00 CWRF HVAC System Upgrade                        -                    50,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

36 EN23074.00 CCWRF Influent Box Rehab at the Primary Clarifiers                        -                 600,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

37 
EN17006.00 CCWRF Asset Management and Improvements        4,305,123          25,346,685  Behind 

Schedule Design 
The project's bid/award phase is delayed due to the pending approval of funding from SRF and 
the issuance of the AQMD Permits. The project will be rebaselined at the start of construction. 

38 EN17006.01 CCWRF 12kV Backup Generator Control Circuit Improvements             19,629            1,456,614  On-Time Construction   

39 EN22055.02 CCWRF Vault Rehab and Pavement Repair                8,753                           -    On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total        4,33,505         29,343,299        

Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

40 
 

None to report currently. 0 0    

    Sub Total                       -                           -          



  
 

 
 

Collections/NRWS 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

41 
EN23015.00 Collection System Upgrades FY 22/23                   388               500,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

42 EN23014.00 NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 22/23                     68               200,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

43 EN21058.00 Regional Sewer-Hydraulic Modeling             89,674               100,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

44 
EN20064.00 NSNT Sewer Siphon Replacement           908,622            2,837,200  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
Due to the current market, the engineer’s estimate is now over $2M and a Request for 
Qualifications is being sent out to pre-qualify contractors prior to the bid and award phase.  The 
project will be rebaselined at construction contract award. 

45 

EN19025.00 Regional Force Main Improvements        1,641,065           4,800,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

To avoid bypassing the San Bernardino Lift station during the rainy season, construction was 
scheduled to resume in May 2022.  Construction has been further delayed, because the County 
has not approved the traffic control plans. Construction is estimated to resume in 
September.  The project will be re-baselined once traffic control is approved, and the contractor 
can mobilize. 

46 EN19028.00 NRW Manhole and Pipeline Condition Assessment           738,660            1,256,000  On-Time Construction   

47 EN22015.00 Collection System Upgrades FY 21/22           325,617               500,000  On-Time Construction   

48 EN22014.00 NRWS Manhole Upgrades FY 21/22           160,919               200,000  On-Time Construction   

49 EN22059.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-NRWS                7,884               150,000  On-Time Construction   

50 EN19027.00 NRW Pipeline Relining Along Cucamonga Creek        1,937,200           2,330,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

51 
EN22002.00 NRW East End Flowmeter Replacement        3,464,125           3,600,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

52 EN23075.00 NRWS On Call O&M Projects FY22/23                        -                 100,000  N/A Not Started   

53 EN23086.00 New NRW Projects PDR's FY 22/23                        -              1,000,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total        9,274,421         17,573,200        

Groundwater Recharge 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

54 EN23113.00 RW/GRW Safety Work Improvements for Basin Gate Actuator Access                   852            1,020,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

55 EN21057.00 Recharge Basin Clean-up of Illegally Dumped Materials             34,539               245,538  On-Time Design   

56 

EN21051.00 Ely Monitoring Well           157,318               684,999  Behind 
Schedule 

Design 

The schedule delay is due to extensive coordination with Chino Basin Water Conservation 
District (CBWCD) and Chino Desalter Authority on design concept and cost sharing. Additionally, 
the bid advertisement was delayed due to ongoing litigation between Kaiser Permanente and 
IEUA/CBWCD. Release from IEUA and CBWCD’s attorneys was necessary prior to advertisement. 

The schedule will be re-baselined after construction contract award.   

57 RW15003.03 Montclair Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 2)           362,375                           -    Behind 
Schedule 

Construction The project's bid/award phase is delayed due to the pending permit document from California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife. The project will be rebaselined at the start of construction. 

58 
RW15003.05 RP-3 Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 21)        1,835,612                           -    Behind 

Schedule Construction 
Due to unforeseen field conditions, additional work with the contractor is extending the project 
completion to September 30, 2022. The contractor completed the relocation and removal of 
utility conflicts, and they are proceeding to address and finalize the initial contract scope. 

59 RW15003.06 Wineville/Jurupa/Force Main Improvements (RMPU PID 23a)        9,992,259                           -    On-Time Construction   

60 
RW15004.00 Lower Day Basin Improvements (RMPU PID 12)        3,992,335           4,008,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

61 EN22049.00 GWR-RW OIT Upgrades                       -                    56,100  N/A Not Started   

62 EN22050.00 GWR Basin PLC Upgrades                        -                 900,000  N/A Not Started   

63 EN22051.00 Jurupa Basin VFD Upgrades                   117               300,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total     16,375,408            7,214,637        

        



  
 

 
 

Headquarters 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

64 EN23003.00 Central Plant Cooling Tower Replacement                1,969           2,400,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

65 EN23039.00 Lab Rooms Temperature Variation                   241               240,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

66 
EN20008.00 HQ Parking Lot FY19/20           583,298               590,000  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

Headquarters (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

67 
EN20040.00 HQ Driveway Improvements           516,243               571,213  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

    Sub Total        1,101,750            3,801,213        

Lift Stations 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

68 
EN23036.00 San Bernardino Ave Lift Station Reliability Improvements                1,146           2,000,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

69 
EN22037.00 Prado De-Chlorination Station Inundation Protection           151,306               380,000  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
The schedule delay is due to delay in the kick-off of the hydraulic modeling task.   More time is 
needed to complete the study and stakeholder review.  The projected assessment completion is 
planned for the end of September 2022. 

70 EN22020.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Pump Upgrades           110,279            2,500,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

71 EN22054.03 Montclair Lift Station Gate                1,144               150,000  On-Time Consultant 
Contract Award 

  

72 FM21005.02 Prado Dechlor Roofing Assessment             23,984                           -    On-Time Design   

73 
EN0000000066 Preserve Lift Station Improvements           160,662                           -    Behind 

Schedule Design 
The project is in final design, pending approval from City of Chino to put the project out to bid. 
The project will be rebaselined upon construction contract award. 

74 EN23002.00 Philadelphia Lift Station Force Main Improvements        1,445,836          19,094,788  Behind 
Schedule 

Design The delays to the schedule are attributed to addressing the City of Ontario’s future utilities 
requirements.  The project will be rebaselined at construction contract award. 

75 EN22048.00 PLS Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization             11,821               110,000  On-Time Construction   

76 EN22057.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-SEWER                6,683                  50,000  On-Time Construction   

    Sub Total        1,912,859       24,284,788        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

77 
EN23000.00 RP-1 Device Net Replacement                2,553            4,100,000  On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

78 
EN23102.00 RP-1 New Parking Lot                       -                             -    On-Time Project 

Evaluation 
  

79 EN23024.00 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades                   140            1,300,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

80 EN23114.00 RP-1 Instrumentation and Control Enhancement                   700               100,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

81 
EN21053.00 RP-1 Old Effluent Structure Rehabilitation           150,379            1,480,507  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
This project is part of an RFP for consulting services to develop predesign for five projects which 
took longer to develop due to extensive field coordination and scope verification with the 
stakeholders. Further refining of the project budget and schedule after the completion of the 



  
 

 
 

Predesign Report and during the Project Charter, resulted in schedule delays. The schedule will 
be rebaselined once a consultant is onboarded to complete the design. 

82 
EN20051.00 RP-1 MCB and Old Lab Building Rehab           192,860            2,646,161  Behind 

Schedule Pre-Design 
The presentation for Senior Leadership is scheduled for September.  Upon approval, the project 
will be rebaselined and the project will begin. 

83 

EN22022.00 RP-1 Air Compressor Upgrades             67,944            1,750,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design 

The consultant is currently addressing IEUA Stakeholder comments for the Preliminary Design 
Report (PDR). Additionally, the consultant submitted an amendment that is currently being 
reviewed. The project will be rebaselined after the PDR is finalized and approved and a project 
charter will be added to the timeline. The schedule recovery will not be possible. 

84 EN22027.00 RP-1 Repurpose Lab           112,531            1,847,400  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design The presentation for Senior Leadership is scheduled for September.  Upon approval, the project 
will be rebaselined and the project will begin. 

85 EN22031.00 RP-1 Intermediate Pump Station Electrical improvements           264,723           3,000,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Pre-Design The Project Charter to be reviewed in September 2022 with impacts to project schedule and 
subsequent recovery plan (if feasible) to be determine following approval. 

86 EN22032.00 RP-1 TP-1 Stormwater Drainage Upgrades           126,237               155,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

87 EN23111.00 RP-1 Headworks Bar Screens Improvements             12,590           3,900,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

88 EN21056.00 RP-1 Evaporative Cooling for Aeration Blower Building             72,599               450,000  On-Time Design   

89 EN22041.00 RP-1 Aeration Basins Utility Water System Improvement             64,345               141,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Design The schedule is delayed due to a missed deliverable date by the consultant which pushed the 
construction board award date back one month. 

90 EN22044.00 RP-1 Thickening Building & Acid Phase Digester        1,794,207       100,000,000  On-Time Design   

91 EN22053.07 RP-1 Single Line Diagrams                2,904                  50,000  On-Time Design   

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

92 

EN13016.05 SCADA Enterprise System - (Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1)        4,014,629          16,200,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Bid & Award 

The project is behind schedule because the RP-4 SCADA migration was re-sequenced and 
completed before RP-1.  The project will be re-baselined once the construction contract is 
awarded for RP-1.  The project is being expedited as much as possible; schedule recovery is not 
possible. 

93 
EN22021.00 RP-1 Digester Area Utility Water (UW) Line Replacement               7,654               100,000  Behind 

Schedule Bid & Award 
The scope of work understanding with Operations was delayed due to staff availability. The 
scope of work is expected to be finalized soon, with the project going out to bid this calendar 
year. The project will be rebaselined upon construction contract award. 

94 EN11039.00 RP-1 Disinfection Pump Improvements        1,838,137          12,997,043  On-Time Construction   

95 

EN17042.00 Digester 6 and 7 Roof Repairs        5,616,187            7,828,439  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Digester 7’s condition assessment and predesign effort were delayed waiting for Digester 6 to be 
put back in full operation. Digester 6 delayed the project due to issues with the coating 
subcontractor and multiple operational constraints. Digester 7’s final design is currently in 
progress including added scope for sludge circulation pump installation. Schedule recovery is not 
possible. The project will rebaselined after construction contract award. 

96 

EN18006.00 RP-1 Flare Improvements        7,198,287           9,200,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction 

Due to conflict with numerous underground utilities, part of the original design such as 
equipment foundations and mechanical gas piping could not be constructed. Also flare control 
panels and PLC upgrades were initiated by IEUA. Redesign of multiple systems resulted in 
schedule delays, change orders and overhead cost claimed by the contractor. The project 
completion is now anticipated in December 2022. The project extension will be prepared shortly. 
Schedule recovery is not possible. 

97 EN21042.00 RP-1 East Influent Gate Replacement           147,808               625,000  On-Time Construction   

98 EN22034.00 RP-1 Generator Control Panel Retrofit/Modernization             20,191               240,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Construction After extending out the bid phase to onboard a contractor and equipment lead times, the 
construction is now expected to be from September 2022 to January 2023. 

99 EN17082.01 RP-1 Clarifier Level Sensor Signal Cable                   362                  45,800  On-Time Construction   

100 
EN17082.00 Mechanical Restoration and Upgrades        9,706,175          10,100,200  On-Time Project 

Acceptance 
  

101 EN19009.00 RP-1 Energy Recovery                   408            4,425,000  N/A Not Started   

102 EN23116.00 RP-1 Solids Electrical Panel Upgrades                        -              1,875,000  N/A Not Started   

103 EN23117.00 RP-1 Motor Control Center 9M Upgrades                        -              1,050,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total      31,414,550       185,606,550        

        

 
 



  
 

 
 

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

104 EN21041.00 RP-4 Chlorine Contact Basin Cover Repair & RW Wet Well Passive Overflow Line           246,611           4,334,000  On-Time Design   

105 EN23115.00 RP-4 Headworks Utility Water Addition                   346               175,000  On-Time Pre-Design 
 

106 EN20057.00 RP-4 Process Improvements Phase II             10,531           8,300,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

107 EN23123.00 RP-4 Outfall Valve Replacement and Blow off Upgrades                2,807            1,700,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

    Sub Total           260,295        14,509,000        

Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

108 EN19001.00 RP-5 Expansion to 30 mgd      96,433,837       245,000,000  On-Time Construction   

109 EN19006.00 RP-5 Biosolids Facility   107,237,624       205,000,000  On-Time Construction   

110 EN22033.00 RP-5 Emergency Generator Load Bank Installation             89,662               145,000  On-Time Project 
Acceptance 

  

    Sub Total   203,761,123      450,145,000        

Recycled Water 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

111 

EN15002.00 1158 Reservoir Site Cleanup           243,506            1,215,000  Behind 
Schedule 

Project 
Evaluation 

The consultant completed the work related to decontamination of the soil in one small spot near 
the east recycled water reservoir. The consultant also received the Department of Toxic 
Substance Control’s approval for sampling and analyzing the soil around the abandoned oil 
tanks, which would the location for the potential installation of two new recycled water tanks if 
Ares’ (developer) proposal is accepted by IEUA. Recovery is not possible.   

112 EN23119.00 RW SCADA Migration                1,299           4,630,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

113 EN23121.00 1299 Reservoir Paint/Coating Repairs and Upgrades                   301           2,000,000  On-Time Project 
Evaluation 

  

Recycled Water (Cont.) 

No. Project ID Project Title 

Total 
Expenditures 

thru 8/24 
($) 

Total Project  
Budget 

($) 

Project 
Schedule 

Performance 
Status Schedule Recovery Plan 

114 EN23124.00 1630 East Pump Station VFD Installation                1,022               750,000  On-Time Pre-Design   

115 EN21045.00 Montclair Force Main Improvements           281,458           6,800,000  On-Time Design   

116 EN22058.00 Prado Basin Assets Retrofit-RW                7,327               140,000  On-Time Construction   

117 EN23037.00 Etiwanda Interceptor Grade-Break RW Relocation                        -             4,300,000  N/A Not Started   

    Sub Total           534,913        19,835,000        

    Overall Totals 274,269,827      916,495,426        

  



  
 

 
 

 

FY22/23 Emergency Projects 
  Project ID Contractor Task Order Description  Location TO # Original Not-to-

Exceed /Estimate 
Actual Cost thru 

7/29 
Date of 
Award 

Status 

Agency Wide 

1 EN23019.02 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc El Prado Road 8-inch Ductile Iron Primary Sludge Leak El Prado Road  TO-007 200,000 12,767 7/19/2022 Active 

Sub Totals 200,000 12,767     

RP-1 

2 EN23019.01 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. West RP-1 Main Potable Water Line Leak RP-1 TO-006 25,000 2,548 7/7/2022 Active 

 3  EN23019.03 Norstar Plumbing and Engineering, Inc. 13553 San Bernardino Ave., Fontana Force Main Strike RP-1 TO-008 50,000 0 8/22/2022 Active 

     Sub Totals 75,000 2,548   

        Grand Total 275,000 15,314     

 

August Emergency Project(s) 

Contractor Task Order Description Details of the Circumstances/Cause of Emergency Scope of Repair Location Date of Call 
Out 

Not-to-Exceed 
/Estimate 

Norstar Plumbing 
and Engineering, Inc. 13553 San Bernardino Ave., Fontana Force Main 

Strike 

Sewage leaking from a recent bore spot. Originally believed 
that our 30” line was struck when the bore occurred. 

Investigate and find where the leak originated. Pothole 
the location of where the bore crossed our 30” line. 

13553 San 
Bernardino 
Ave. 

8/22/2022 
50,000 

 

Emergency Projects 


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Agenda 4
	Agenda 5
	Agenda 6
	Agenda 7
	Public Hearing 1A
	Consent Item 2A
	Consent Item 2B
	Consent Item 2C
	Consent Item 2D
	Consent Item 2E
	Consent Item 2F
	Consent Item 2G
	Consent Item 2H
	Consent Item 2I
	Action Item 3A
	Information Item 4B
	Information Item 4C
	Information Item 4D
	Information Item 4E
	Information Item 4F
	Information Item 4G
	Information Item 4H
	Information Item 4I
	Information Item 4J
	Information Item 4K
	Information Item 4L
	Information Item 4M
	Information Item 4N
	Information Item 4O
	Information Item 4P
	Information Item 4Q
	Agency Representatives Report 5A
	Agency Representatives Report 5B
	Agency Representatives Report 5C
	Agency Representatives Report 5D
	Agency Representatives Report 5E
	General Manager's Report



